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We own or have rights to various trademarks, cgys and trade names used in our business incladéfpllowing: GILEAD®,
GILEAD SCIENCES®, HEPSERA®, Leaf and Shield Desigaaf and Shield Design (b/w), Liver Design, Talidetsign (b/w), Tablet
Design (color), VIREAD®, VISTIDE®, DAUNOXOME®, AMBSOME®, EMTRIVA™., TAMIFLU ® is a registered tradenkalbelonging
to Hoffmann-La Roche. This report also includesotinademarks, service marks and trade names ef ottmpanies.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forward-looking statementspémticular, statements about our expectationgfiseplans, objectives, assumptions
or future events or performance are containedaorporated by reference in this report. We havedasese forward-looking statements on
our current expectations about future events. Whééelieve these expectations are reasonable femard-looking statements are
inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, maimyhich are beyond our control. Our actual resuity differ materially from those
suggested by these forward-looking statementsddous reasons, including those discussed in dpiert under the heading “Risk Factors
That Affect Gilead” at page 23. Given these riskd ancertainties, you are cautioned not to plackianeliance on such forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements includetis report are made only as of the date hek@f do not undertake and specifically
decline any obligation to update any such statesn@nto publicly announce the results of any rewisito any of such statements to reflect
future events or developments. When used in thertegnless otherwise indicated, “we,” “our” ands"uefers to Gilead and its subsidiaries.

Overview

Gilead Sciences, Inc. is a biopharmaceutical compaat discovers, develops and commercializes feeartics to advance the care of
patients suffering from life-threatening diseasesldwide. We have six products that are currentiriated in the U.S., all of which are also
marketed in other countries worldwide. Our researuth clinical programs are focused on anti-infagjuincluding antivirals and antifungals.
We endeavor to grow our existing portfolio of protiuthrough proprietary clinical development pragsainternal discovery programs anc
active product acquisition and in-licensing strgteg

Our worldwide headquarters are in Foster City, féalia and our European headquarters are in Famasce. We were incorporated in
Delaware on June 22, 1987.

On January 23, 2003, we completed the acquisiti@il of the net assets of Triangle Pharmaceutjdats (Triangle) to expand our
antiviral pipeline. The aggregate purchase price $&25.2 million, including the cash paid for thestanding stock, the fair value of stock
options assumed, estimated direct transaction esstemployee related costs. Approximately $488lgom of the purchase price was
recorded to in-process research and developmephegpTriangle developed drug candidates in theiabtarea, with a particular focus on
potential therapies for HIV, including AIDS, andethepatitis B virus. Triangle’s portfolio consistefdseveral drug candidates in clinical
trials, including Emtrivd™ (emtricitabine) for the treatment of HIV infectioemtricitabine for the treatment of chronic hepaf, amdoxovi
for the treatment of HIV infection and clevudine the treatment of chronic hepatitis B. In July 20the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) approved for marketing Emtriva for the treatm of HIV and in October 2003, the European Corsioisgranted Marketing
Authorisation for Emtriva in all fiteen member t&a of the European Union. We subsequently retuttmedights to amdoxovir and clevudine
to the licensors and will have no further commedricigerest in these compount



Our Products

» Viread is approved for sale and is sold in the U.S. bylé:8. commercial team for use in combination witheo antiretroviral agents
for the treatment of HIV infection. Viread is alsold




internationally by our international commercialrtes including in the European Union and Australia.

« Emtrivais approved for sale and is sold in the U.S. byld:8. commercial team for use in combination witeo antiretroviral
agents for the treatment of HIV infection in aduEsntriva is also sold in the European Union by ioternational commercial teams.
We are currently developing a fixed-dose combimatibViread and Emtriva.

« AmBisomeis approved for sale and is sold in more than 4kt@s for the treatment of lifdweatening fungal infections and in so
of these countries for prevention of such infecdioiWve market AmBisome in the major countries ofdperand co-promote
AmBisome in the U.S. with Fujisawa Healthcare, IfiEujisawa”).

« Hepserais approved for sale and is sold in the U.S. byldi®. commercial team for the treatment of chrdwmpatitis B. Hepsera
received marketing approval in the European Uniollarch 2003 and has been launched in 13 couritrige® European Union.
Additional launches in the other countries in thedpean Union and other parts of the world are ebgueto occur in 2004.

» Tamiflu is approved for sale and is sold by our corporaténer Hoffmann-La Roche (“Roche”) in more thanc®@intries, including
the U.S. and the European Union, for the preverdimhtreatment of influenza, and in Japan, wheeeapproved for the treatment of
influenza.

« Vistideis approved for sale and is sold in the U.S. byld:®. commercial team, and by Gilead’s ex-U.S.rmartPfizer Inc. (“Pfizery
(formerly Pharmacia Corporation), in 25 countriesthe treatment of cytomegalovirus (“CMV") retisiin patients with AIDS.

« DaunoXomeis approved for sale and has been sold in more2Baountries for the treatment of AIDS-related Esifs sarcoma. It
was sold in the U.S. by our U.S. commercial teathtanindependent distributors abroad. In DecembéB2we decided to
discontinue selling this product.

In 2003, we earned revenues of $861.6 million fsaies of, and royalties on, these products. Ofdimnisunt, sales of Viread generated
aggregate product sales and royalty revenues d.$58illion, or 65% of our total revenues, and sal€AmBisome generated aggregate
product sales and royalty revenues of $210.9 millay 24% of our total revenues. We earned revefrogssales of, and royalties on, all our
products in the U.S. of $439.0 million in 2003, $2Dmillion in 2002 and $53.3 million in 2001. Oidis of the U.S., we earned revenues f
sales of, and royalties on, all of our product$422.6 million in 2003, $237.9 million in 2002 af#i60.7 million in 2001.

Viread (tenofovir disoproxil fumarate)

Viread is an oral formulation of a nucleotide amale reverse transcriptase inhibitor, tenofovir Bésed once a day as part of
combination therapy to treat HIV infection in adulThe drug works by blocking reverse transcriptaseznzyme involved in the replication
of HIV. We sell Viread in the U.S. through our Uc®mmercial team and in the major European counthiough our European commercial
team. See “Commercial Operations.”

The FDA approved Viread for marketing in the UrsQctober 2001 and the European Agency for theuatiain of Medicinal Products
(EMEA) granted similar approval in the Europeandnin February 2002. In May 2003, the EMEA expanthedindication of Viread to
include its use in antiretroviral-naive HIV infedtpatients. In August 2003 the FDA similarly expaddhe indication of Viread in the U.S. In
the U.S., Viread is approved for use in combinatidgth other antiretroviral agents for the treatmehHIV infection. The indication is based
on analyses of plasma HIV RNA levels and CD4 celints in a controlled dosenging study of Viread of 24 weeks duration (St@8@) anc
in a placebo-controlled study of Viread of 48 wedksation (Study 907). Both studies were conduited




treatment-experienced adults with evidence of Hirdlweplication despite ongoing antiretroviral thpy. The expanded indication was based
on 96-week results from an on-going three-yeardoarized, double-blind clinical trial (Study 903)sittned to compare the efficacy and
safety of a combination treatment regimen of Virdadhivudine (3TC) and efavirenz to a combinati@atment regimen of stavudine (d4T),
lamivudine and efavirenz in 600 antiretroviral-r@patients with HIV infection. In February 2004, veported 144wveek data from this stud
Data from Study 903 demonstrates that treatmenenadtients who received Viread experienced subatigriess lipodystrophy and lower
elevations in fasting cholesterol and triglyceriieleels, as well as improved levels of limb fat aneight gain, while achieving similar
reductions in HIV viral load and increases in C[24l counts, compared to those who received staeudihe most common adverse events
reported included viral infection, diarrhea anddeezhe, and each occurred with similar frequendhéntwo study arms. The discontinuation
rate was approximately 18 percent of patients énMliead arm and 21 percent of patients in theustane arm. This 144-week data
supplements the 96 and 48-week results from St08yti®at w e submitted to the FDA in support oftise of Viread.

One of the major challenges in treating HIV-infectatients is drug resistance. Because many afxiséing therapies for treating HIV
infection and AIDS rely on similarly-designed drpigocesses, patients who have developed resistamcetdrug often develop resistance to
other drugs within the same class. We believeViraiad, where approved by regulatory authoritiéiere advantages over other approved
HIV treatments because available data have shoatrfatv patients have developed resistance to Viemaldthat Viread is effective in treating
patients who have developed resistance to otheayiless. We cannot be certain, however, that thsteexe data we may obtain upon
completion of our Phase 3 clinical trials will shewnilar resistance characteristics to thewk®k data from Study 907 or the data we obte
from the more limited Phase 2 clinical trials.

Another major concern in HIV treatment is conven&nf dosing. While combination therapies have sitiye impact, they require HIV-
infected patients to take numerous drugs. Somkeskt drugs require multiple doses every day ang mave timing and dietary restrictions.
This not only results in inconvenience for patignis also contributes to patients missing dosewbeadhering to therapy. Viread is approved
to be administered as a once-daily oral pill, whigh schedule that may be appealing to HIV-inf@gtatients and their physicians.

The HIV competitive landscape is becoming more ciedvand complicated as treatment trends contineedlve. Twenty-two branded
anti-HIV drugs are currently sold in the U.S. andny others are in advanced stages of clinical dgveént. See “Competition.”

We have an exclusive, worldwide license to patightts and related technology for Viread from thstitate of Organic Chemistry and
Biochemistry (part of the Academy of Sciences ef@zech Republic) and Rega Stichting v.z.w. (togettOCB/REGA) and are obligated to
pay a percentage of net revenues from sales oairethe U.S., the European Union, and any otbeniries where the product is approved
and has patent protection, to IOCB/REGA. See “Ansideaand Consulting Relationships—IOCB/REGA.”

Emtriva (emtricitabine)

Emtriva is an oral formulation of a nucleoside agaie reverse transcriptase inhibitor, dosed ortayas part of a combination therapy
to treat HIV infection in adults. We sell Emtrivathe U.S. through our U.S. commercial team artiénmajor European countries through
our European commercial team. See “Commercial Gpes”

The FDA approved Emtriva for marketing in the U@.the treatment of HIV in July 2003 and the Ewewap Commission granted
Marketing Authorisation for Emtriva in all fifteemember states of the European Union in October.2003




Emtriva is an antiviral agent against HIV straifsained from a geographically diverse set of HI¥eated patients. Laboratory studies
have shown that Emtriva shares cross-resistanterpatwvith lamivudine. The most common resistanatation to these two agents also
reverses resistance of HIV to AZT in some casear Pbase 3 clinical studies for Emtriva have bemnpleted, one in collaboration with the
Agence Nationale de Recherches sur le Sida (ANRE}Jance. One of these studies, Study FTC-301, aosdpEmtriva (200 mg once-a-day)
to stavudine (40 mg twice-a-day) in combinationhwdtdanosine (400 mg once-a-day) and efavirenz (8@@nce-a-day) in patients without
previous antiretroviral therapy. In July 2002, addépendent data safety monitoring board (DSMB)odisteed to provide oversight of the
study recommended that Emtriva be offered to alepés enrolled in this study. The interim resefisluated by the study’s DSMB showed
that the Emtriva arm was statistically superioth® stavudine arm for primary and secondary endpdin safety and efficacy. Eighty-seven
percent (87%) of the patients in the once-a-dayrigenarm had persistent virologic response throsighmonths compared to 80% for the
twice-daily stavudine arm. Patients in the Emtawmn also had significant improvements in immunatdginction. In view of a compelling
difference in favor of the Emtriva arm, the DSMEBesenmended that the study be amended and all patiare given the option to switch to
open-label Emtriva or continue on blinded theraptildhe last randomized patient completed weekd®ctober 2004. The final analysis of
the study confirmed the superior efficacy and sadétEmtriva compared to stavudine in combinatidthwlidanosine and efavirenz.

We have an exclusive, worldwide license to patghits and related technology for Emtriva from Emuonyiversity. See “Academic and
Consulting Relationships—Emory University and Umsity of Georgia Research Foundation.”

AmBisome (amphotericin B liposome for injection)

AmBisome is a proprietary liposomal formulationashphotericin B. Amphotericin B is a powerful antifial agent that is known for its
ability to treat serious invasive fungal infectiareused by various fungal species. These infectomgenerally life threatening, particularly
in patients who have depressed immune systemsodaggtessive chemotherapy regimens, stem cellgandransplant or HIV infection.
Amphotericin B treatment also has serious sidecefféncluding kidney toxicity. Studies show, howevthat by delivering amphotericin B in
our proprietary liposomal formulation, AmBisome weds the rate and severity of kidney toxicity amddtion-related reactions and allows
these patients to receive higher doses of amphotdsi

AmBisome is approved for sale in more than 45 aeesmitincluding the U.S., all of the European Uniotost of the rest of Europe,
Australia, Canada, and several countries in thedMi&ast, Latin America and Asia. In more than the countries where AmBisome is
approved, including the U.S., we are authorizegrtonote AmBisome for empirical treatment of fungpdiéctions, i.e. treatment of patients
where a strong suspicion, without definite confitima, exists for a potentially life-threatening asive fungal infection. In the remaining
countries where AmBisome is approved for sales &pgproved for use either as first-line treatméiseoous invasive fungal infection or as
second-line treatment after conventional amphdteBctherapy fails or when conventional amphoteriBicannot be tolerated. Finally,
AmBisome is approved in a number of countries miaus other indications, for example, cryptococoehingitis in AIDS patients,
prophylaxis in liver transplant patients and vist¢dgishmaniasis.

In the U.S., we co-promote AmBisome with Fujisalwatigh our U.S. commercial team. Our agreement Riifilsawa entitles us to a
percentage of revenues generated from these salgwravides that Fujisawa purchases AmBisome freratwur manufacturing cost. See
“Collaborative Relationships—Fujisawa.” In the maturopean countries and in Australia, we sell Agtiie through our international
commercial teams; in certain other countries weAsmBisome through independent distributors. Mdsbuar revenues from AmBisome are
Europe, and we expect this to be the case forateséeable future.




We have licensed commercial rights for AmBisoméapan to Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (Sumzjdn exchange for royalties
generated from those activities; however, AmBisasnaot yet approved for sale in Japan.

AmBisome faces strong competition from severalenircompetitors, and expected competitors whosgnients are in late stage
clinical trials. See “Competition.” Competition frothese current and expected competitors is liteebrode the revenues we receive from
sales of AmBisome.

Hepsera ((adefovir dipivoxil)

Hepsera is an oral formulation of a nucleotide aga¢ HBY DNA polymerase inhibitor, adefovir dipivigdosed once a day to treat
chronic hepatitis B. Hepatitis B is caused by thghly contagious hepatitis B virus (HBV) and camsa acute liver failure. Some patients
develop a chronic hepatitis B infection, which oweany years can lead to complications, such alsasis, liver cancer and liver failure, and
in approximately 33% of patients can result in Heéiccording to recent estimates from the World lHe@rganization and the Centers for
Disease Control, there are over 400 million pesmedwide and about 1.25 million people in the Uao have chronic hepatitis B. There
are about one million deaths attributable to cledwipatitis B worldwide each year, and it is onéheften leading causes of death worldwide.
Hepsera disables HBV by interfering with the atyivaf an enzyme known as HBV polymerase, whicheisassary for the virus to replicate.

Our applications for U.S. and European Union mamigeauthorizations included data from two sepaPdtase 3 clinical trials designec
evaluate the safety and efficacy of Hepsera in m@@osage for treating patients with the hepdsitisrus. Both of our Phase 3 trials were
designed as randomized, double-blind, placebo-othedr studies at clinical sites in the U.S., Cand&tlaope, Australia and Southeast Asia.
Study 437 evaluated Hepsera for treating patiehts t@st positive for the HBV “e” antigen, the mostnmon type of hepatitis B in the U.S.
The other trial, Study 438, evaluated Hepserarfmting patients with a type of hepatitis B knovsri‘jgrecore mutant hepatitis B,” the most
common in Southeast Asian and Mediterranean camffihrough 48 weeks, no adefoagsociated resistance mutations were identifigde
hepatitis B patients treated in these clinicaldrisvhich suggests that the development of resistém Hepsera in hepatitis B patients may be
delayed and infrequent. Consequently, we belieaeliepsera’s resistance profile could make it gmoirtant drug for treating chronic
hepatitis B. We cannot be certain, however, thatésistance data we may obtain from the continBimase 3 clinical trials on Hepsera will
continue to show these resistance characteristics.

Hepsera is approved for sale in the U.S. for thatinent of chronic hepatitis B in adults with evide of active viral replication and
either evidence of persistent elevations in sermimatransferases (ALT or AST) or histologicallyigetliver disease. Our U.S. commercial
team sells Hepsera in the U.S. In March 2002, vpdiegh for approval by the EMEA of Hepsera for traant of chronic hepatitis B in the
European Union. Approval by the EMEA was recommengethe Committee for Proprietary Medicinal Pradu€PMP) in November 2002
and was received in March 2003. We plan to sellddepin the major European Union countries throughEuropean commercial team.

A vaccine is available that can prevent the trassion of HBV, but it is not effective in people whlbeady have become chronically
infected with HBV. We expect that as this vaccieedmes more widely available, the incidence of hepatitis B infections will decrease.
However, even with these advances in the prevenfitrepatitis B, the individuals suffering from ohic hepatitis B represent a patient pool
with a significant risk of morbidity and mortaliiue to their underlying chronic viral infection.

Chronic hepatitis B is most common in China andtBeast Asia. We commenced Phase 1 clinical tnehina in June 2001. We have
licensed the rights to commercialize Hepsera sdt@lyhe treatment of hepatitis B in China, Koréapan, Taiwan, the rest of Asia, Latin
America and certain other territories to GlaxoSiiithe (GSK). To date, GSK has begun selling Hepsetdong Kong, Singapore, the




Philippines, Indonesia and Pakistan. In China, ldep#as granted Class | designation which, if Hepigeultimately approved for sale in
China, would give GSK 12 years of market exclugititr Hepsera with respect to competitors who mtgiwise be able to begin clinical
development of adefovir dipivoxil following suchapval. After receiving the Chinese government’prapal of the Phase 1 study, we were
given approval to move forward with the Phase 2(ym/am, and completed patient enroliment in Mar@gé32

Several existing therapies for treating patients wate infected with HBV compete with Hepsera. Thesatments represent significant
competition for Hepsera. See “Competition.”

We have an exclusive, worldwide license to patightts and related technology for adefovir dipivdrdm IOCB/REGA, and pay a
percentage of net revenues from sales of Hepsé@QB/REGA in countries where the product has pgpeotection, including the U.S. and
the European Union. In addition, we pay a smalialde percentage of net revenues from U.S. saletepsera to the M.D. Anderson Cancer
Center. See “Academic and Consulting RelationshilsB- Anderson Cancer Center.”

Tamiflu (oseltamivir phosphate)

Tamiflu is an oral pill for the treatment and pretien of influenza A and B. Tamiflu is in a cladsppescription drugs called
neuraminidase inhibitors that act by disablingcalinmon strains of the flu virus and preventingitiias from spreading in a patient. When
used as approved for the treatment of influenzaiffia has been shown to reduce the duration oflthan adults by an average of 30%, and
to reduce the severity of flu symptoms and thedecce of secondary infections. When taken as apgrtor the prevention of influenza,
studies have shown that Tamiflu is up to 92% eiffedn preventing the development of the flu.

Tamiflu is approved in more than 60 countries,udahg the U.S., Japan and the European Uniondatrirent of influenza in children
and adults. Tamiflu is also approved in the U.$l gre European Union for the prevention of influeiz adolescents and adults. We
developed Tamiflu with Roche, and Roche has th&usike right to manufacture and sell Tamiflu, sabj® its obligation to pay us a
percentage of the net revenues that Roche genérated amiflu sales. To date, Roche’s sales of Tlanhiave been significantly below
expectations. Moreover , Roche has experiencedgmzbin the manufacturing and distribution of Tdmifvhich have reduced the net sales
and our royalty. This has not had a material efé@cour revenues. See “Collaborative RelationshiBeehe.”

There are several products that have been avatialeat the flu for some time, but they havelmetn shown to be as effective or as
safe as neuraminidase inhibitors. See “Competition.

Tamiflu is not being marketed as an alternativimfioienza vaccinations. We believe that influenaaainations will remain the most
effective method of preventing the flu.

Vistide (cidofovir injection )

Vistide is an antiviral medication for the treathehCMYV retinitis in patients with AIDS. CMV retitis is a condition characterized by
lesions that form on a patient’s retina that afgmrsons with weakened immune systems and isgopshon in patients with AIDS. If left
untreated, CMV retinitis can lead to blindness.

Vistide is approved for sale in the U.S., the EeapUnion and several other countries. Demand iitidé has been low and product
revenues are immaterial. Our U.S. commercial teglia ¥istide in the U.S. Outside the U.S., Pfizas lthe exclusive right to sell Vistide.
Pfizer pays us a percentage of revenues it geseirate sales of Vistide. See “Collaborative Relasloips—Pfizer.”




The active agent in Vistide, cidofovir, is beingis@ered as part of the U.S. government strateggidaling with potential bioterrorism
attacks involving smallpox, a life-threatening dnighly communicable infectious disease. In labanatests, cidofovir has demonstrated
activity against all 31 strains of the virus thatises smallpox. In current clinical trials of dédtsmallpox vaccine conducted by the National
Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, ciof is being considered as a potential treatment#ccinia infection, an adverse reaction
sometimes caused by the smallpox vaccine. Addiliyprthe U.S. National Institutes of Health holdsiavestigational new drug application
(IND) that allows for the emergency use of cidofdar smallpox outbreaks without marketing apprdvam the FDA. We do not know what
the efficacy of cidofovir might be in such emerggnse, or what side effects, if any, may appeah wie use of cidofovir for smallpox. We
also cannot predict whether the U.S. or other a@sitgovernments may stockpile Vistide for theatraent of smallpox.

DaunoXome (daunorubicin citrate liposome injection)

DaunoXome is a liposomal formulation of the antm@magent daunorubicin. It is a first-line therdpytreating patients who suffer from
certain types of HIV-associated Kaposi's sarconmdisaase characterized by widely disseminatedriediothe skin, mucous membranes,
lymph nodes and viscera that can be life threatefinpatients suffering from AIDS.

DaunoXome is approved for sale in the U.S. and e 20 other countries. We sold DaunoXome inLit#& and sell it abroad throu
independent distributors. Demand for DaunoXomeltees low and product revenues are immaterial. lceBwber 2003, we made the
decision to discontinue selling this product.

Our Products in Clinical Trials
Fixed-Dose Combination of Viread and Emtriva

We are currently developing a fixed-dose combimatibViread and Emtriva. We have completed a bioedence study, which
evaluated the systemic exposure to patients ofdhgbination tablet in comparison with the two indival products taken together, and are
currently conducting two 48-week trials in which &iva and Viread are taken together as separdte pil

Emtricitabine for Hepatitis B

Emitricitabine has been shown to be an inhibitdnegatitis B virus replication in patients chronigahfected with HBV. We are
currently in Phase 3 clinical development of enitilzine for the treatment of chronic hepatitis Bni& of the development activities
undertaken with emtricitabine for the treatmenH®¥ will also be used in the assessment of emafiiite for the treatment of chronic
hepatitis B. In November 2003 we announced re$ulta a 48-week clinical trial comparing the effigaand safety of emtricitabine 200 mg
once a day versus placebo in 248 patients withndbiteepatitis B (Study FTCB-301). We believe thaeaond Phase 3 clinical trial will be
necessary before emtricitabine could be submittedeview to any regulatory agency. This secondsPBl&atrial has not yet been designed and
the strategy for emtricitabine for the treatmenhepatitis B is still evolving.

GS 7340

GS 7340 is a novel nucleotide analogue reversadrgatase inhibitor that, when processed in theybpiglds tenofovir, the active
chemical yielded by Viread, selectively within lyhgtic cells. The chemical composition of GS 734§ mitow it to cross cell membranes
more easily than Viread, leading to greater potdhap Viread. Based on data from our Phase 1/&alitrials of GS 7340, we have begun
developing a Phase 2 program for the treatment\gfikfection which will evaluate patients who areatment naive and those who are hi
resistant to thymidine analogues.

Research & Development

We are seeking to add to our existing portfoligpafducts through our internal discovery and clihd@velopment programs and through
an active product acquisition and in-licensingtsigg, such as our acquisition of Triangle complétedanuary 2003. We have research
scientists in Foster City and San Dimas, Califoand Durham, North Carolina engaged in the disgosad development of new molecules
and technologies that we hope will lead to new wieds and novel formulations of existing drugs. @arapeutic focus is in the areas of life
threatening infectious diseases. In total, ouraegeand development (R&D) expenses for 2003 w64 $ million, compared with
$134.8 million for 2002 and $185.6 million for 2001

Nucleotide Analogues

Our scientists are working with our proprietary leatide analogues to develop treatments for viriddtions. These compounds treat
viral infections by interfering with the activityf certain enzymes that are necessary for the wrgsow.

We believe that small molecule nucleotide analogaesoffer advantages as therapeutics. First, timedecules have demonstrated
ability to work in both infected and uninfectedlsellhis could enable us to develop drugs thabnét treat a patient who is infected with a
virus but that can also prevent a healthy persmm foecoming infected in the first place. Secondgdrdeveloped using these molecules have
been shown to have treatment activity in a paf@nionger periods of time than other availableg$ruThis could enable us to develop drugs
that require less frequent dosing and are thus gmmeenient for patients.

HIV Protease | nhibitors

We are evaluating a number of small molecule comgsiknown as protease inhibitors for the potettégdtment of HIV infection



Protease inhibitors act by interfering with theidatt of protease, an enzyme that, like reversadcaiptase, is necessary for replicatiot
HIV. We have conducted a number of preclinical expents on these compounds and have demonstratethéty have potent antiviral
activity. Our lead candidate is GS 9005 (formempWwn as GS 4338), which is currently undergoingesive preclinical evaluations. We
submitted an investigational new drug applicatmithie FDA for GS 9005 in January 2004.

Other Antiviral Research

We are undertaking additional research in the afé@atment of viral diseases. Many of these &fticus on potential targets in HIV
for therapeutic drugs. We also have significanéaesh efforts aimed at hepatitis C viral infectiSee “Collaborative Relationships—Chiron
Corporation.”

Commercial Operations

We have U.S. and international commercial salesatip@s. We have marketing subsidiaries in the éthKingdom, Germany, Italy,
Spain, France, Portugal, Greece and Australia.cOommercial teams promote and sell Viread, Emtitiegpsera and AmBisome in the U.S.,
Europe and Australia. AmBisome is also sold by $ayjia in the U.S. and by Sumitomo in Japan. GSKprilmote and sell Hepsera in Asia
and South America. We sell Vistide in the U.S and@apmmercial partner, Pfizer, sells Vistide outsad the U.S. Our commercial partner,
Roche, promotes and sells Tamiflu everywheresbid. Japan Tobacco Inc. (Japan Tobacco) will pteraad sell Viread and Emtriva in
Japan when approved by Japanese regulatory aighorit




Our commercial teams promote Viread, Emtriva angdddea through direct field contact with physiciamsspitals, clinics and other
healthcare providers who are involved in the tremhof patients with HIV (for Viread) or chronic rettitis B (for Hepsera). They also
promote AmBisome to infectious disease speciali@sjatologists, intensive care units, hospitalsydnbealth care providers and cancer
specialists.

The European commercial team is supported by medigles operations, marketing, financial, regulgttegal affairs, manufacturing
and human resources and information technologyoperd located primarily in our European headquarieiParis, France. The U.S. and
Australian commercial teams are supported by outdmade headquarters in Foster City, Californiasbme countries outside of the U.S.,
have agreements with third-party distributors, iidahg distributors in certain of the countries whare have marketing operations, to
promote, sell and distribute Viread, Emtriva, Hepssnd AmBisome. These international distributignreements generally provide that the
distributor has the exclusive right to sell Vire&triva and AmBisome in a particular country ovesal countries for a specified period of
time.

In January 2003, we announced a program pursuavhitth we will be selling Viread at our cost to efluntries in Africa and to the 15
other countries designated “Least Developed Caesitily the United Nations. We are taking stepsuee that the Viread product sold
under this program is used to serve patients ié@veloping world and not diverted to other mark8tese “International Distribution.”

To support and expand the commercialization of AlireHepsera and Emtriva, we have significantlyéased our sales force in the U.S.
and are devoting additional marketing resourcekénJ.S. to improve our coverage of healthcaregasibnals treating HIV-infected and
HBV-infected patients. We have also significantigreased the size of our commercial operationsihofie to manage the commercialization
of Viread, Emtriva and Hepsera in the European binio

In April 2002, we entered into a licensing agreetiveith GSK, under which GSK received exclusive tigto commercialize Hepsera in
Asia, Latin America, Africa and certain other taries. Under the agreement, we retained righkéepsera in the U.S., Canada, Eastern and
Western Europe, Australia, New Zealand and Turl&§K also received exclusive rights to develop Hepselely for the treatment of
chronic hepatitis B in all other countries, the tgignificant of which include China, Korea, Jaard Taiwan. GSK will have full
responsibility for development and commercializatid Hepsera in its territories.

In July 2003, we entered into a licensing agreemsatht Japan Tobacco under which Japan Tobaccocastimercialize products in
Gilead’s HIV portfolio in Japan. The agreement utgds Viread, Emtriva and a future co-formulationhaf two products. Japan Tobacco has
submitted an application for Viread and expectsuiomit an application for Emtriva and co-formulatiaf the two products to Japanese
regulatory authorities this year.

In the U.S., Viread, Hepsera, Emtriva, Vistide &alinoXome are returnable in their original, unopgkoentainers after expiration up to
one year beyond the expiration date or, if damageeh received by the customer. Our customers ntaynrdmBisome if the shelf life has
expired or if the product is damaged or defectiviemthe customer receives it. AmBisome has an apgrshelf life of 36 months in the U.S.
and 30 months in most European countries. DaunoXuwasea shelf life of 52 weeks in the U.S. and niasbpean countries. Viread has a
shelf life of 24 months in the U.S. and the EurapBaion. Hepsera has a shelf life of 24 monthsi;W.S. and the European Union. Emtriva
has a shelf life of 24 months in the U.S. and theogean Union. To date, returns, rebates and digsdiave not been material to our finan
results. Fujisawa establishes the return policyAimBisome in North America, and Roche establishesréturn policy for TamifluAt the enc
of each flu season, there have been significantnetof Tamiflu to Roche, which reduce the netsale which our royalty from Roche is
based.




Additionally, certain governmental agency custongaTs state AIDS drug assistance programs areezhtitl or receive discounts, and
are required to provide rebates under state Matlmaigrams. We believe that we provide adequateigioms for these discounts and rebates
in accordance with our revenue recognition policy.

Collaborative Relationships

As part of our business strategy, we establistabolations with other companies to assist in thmécal development and/or
commercialization of certain of our products anddurct candidates and to provide support for owrassh programs. We also evaluate
opportunities for acquiring from other companiesducts or rights to products and technologiesdnaicomplementary to our business. The
accounting for each of these relationships carobed in Note 10 to our consolidated financial stegats included in this report. Our existing
collaborative relationships are as follows:

Archemix Corporation

In October 2001, we entered into an agreement Aithemix Corporation (Archemix). Under this agreemee granted Archemix an
exclusive sublicense to the SELEX technology taniig aptamers, subject to the exclusion of allelepment areas as to which rights have
not already been granted or forfeited. Our rightthe SELEX technology derive from a license téram University License Equity
Holdings, Inc., (“ULEHI"), the successor to UnivigysTechnology Corporation and its predecessor Ersity Research Corporation. The
financial terms of the agreement with Archemix pdevfor lump sum payments to us totaling $17.5iomll Archemix has now made these
payments. We also received warrants to purchaskeefinix stock under the agreement. As required byagueements with ULEHI, we shar
a portion of the cash payments with, and transfietfte warrants to ULEHI. See “Academic and Consgl&elationships-Yniversity Licens
Equity Holdings, Inc.”

Chiron Corporation

In August 2003, we entered into a nexclusive licensing agreement with Chiron Corpoma{Chiron) for the research, development
commercialization of small molecule therapeuticaiast selected hepatitis C virus (HCV) drug targetsder the agreement, we received non-
exclusive rights to Chiron’s HCV technology for drecreening purposes. We expect this technologgdist us in our research and discovery
effort to identify and develop potential HCV theies Under the terms of the agreement, we paido@lan up-front license fee and agreed to
make milestone payments and royalty payments ibduyzct is developed using the licensed technology.

EyeTech Pharmaceuticals

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement withTegh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (EyeTech) relatingpgmduct named Macugen that it
has developed for the treatment of age-related lmadageneration (AMD) and diabetic macular edeBMI). We invented the compound
upon which Macugen is based, NX 1838, using SEL&cKmology licensed to us from ULEHI. See “ Acadeamd Consulting Relationships
—University License Equity Holdings, Inc.” We thikrensed NX 1838 to EyeTech who further developaadtd Macugen. Under its license
from us, EyeTech is required to pay us fees andstuhe payments, as well as a percentage of aapueuhey generate from worldwide
sales of Macugen. In addition, EyeTech granted arsamts to purchase EyeTech preferred stock. Oeeatent with EyeTech expires upon
the later of ten years after first commercial sdlany product developed, or the date the lastpa&bepires under the agreement. EyeTech
granted Pfizer a sublicense relating to Macugdbenember 2002. In December 2002, in connection thithsublicense, we entered into a
license with Pfizer on the same terms as contdimedr agreement with EyeTech. In December 2003alse entered into an agreement with
EyeTech to supply Macugen to EyeTech for threessear
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Fujisawa

In 1991, we entered into an agreement grantings&wja the exclusive right to promote and sell AmBisan Canada and the primary
responsibility to promote and sell AmBisome in th&. with Gilead as a co-promoter. Fujisawa payapmoximately 17% of Fujisawa’s net
revenues from sales of AmBisome in the U.S. Werveskthe right to promote and sell AmBisome intthgt of the world, and pay Fujisawa
4% of our net revenues for AmBisome sales in sigaiift Asian markets, including Japan, Korea, Taiv@mna and India. We manufacture
all AmBisome that is sold worldwide. We sell AmBise to Fujisawa for sale in the U.S. at a price etuaur cost to manufacture the
product, and for sale in Canada at a price equalit@ost to manufacture the product, plus a sigecffercentage. Our agreement with
Fujisawa terminates when the last patent coverimi3&ome in the U.S. or Japan expires.

GlaxoSmithKline

In April 2002, we entered into a licensing agreetiveith GSK giving it exclusive rights to commerdiad Hepsera solely for the
treatment of chronic hepatitis B in Asia, Latin Amea and certain other territories. In additiorfées, milestone payments and other contract
revenues, GSK is required to pay us a percentagayofevenue they generate from sales of Hepseheilicensed territories. Under our
agreement with GSK, we have entered into a clirdoal commercial supply agreement with GSK undeckvhie are required to supply them
with their clinical and commercial requirement®at fully burdened cost to do so, subject to reabtnforecasting and ordering procedures.
Our agreement with GSK expires on an individualrtoubasis the later of patent expiration or teargdrom first commercial sale in the
particular country. In addition, GSK has the rightlectively terminate the agreement on 12 monttige to Gilead, subject to a fee for
elective termination under some circumstances ehnling the term of the agreement.

Japan Tobacco

In July 2003, we entered into a licensing agreemétht Japan Tobacco under which Japan Tobaccorwatahe rights to commercialize
products in Gilead’s HIV portfolio in Japan. The@gment includes Viread, Emtriva and a future aoafdation of the two products. We
received an up-front fee and are entitled to rexaiilestone payments. Japan Tobacco also is reguinmake payments to us based on
product sales in Japan. Japan Tobacco has submittadplication for Viread and expects to submiapgplication for Emtriva and a co-
formulation of the two products to Japanese regoyaduthorities this year. As contemplated by tberise agreement, in December 2003 we
completed a supply agreement with Japan Tobaccerumgich we will supply Japan Tobacco with Vireami &mtriva and a future co-
formulation of the two products.

OSl Pharmaceuticals

In December 2001, we sold to OSI Pharmaceutica®)(Gur pipeline of clinical stage oncology produand related intellectual
property, as well as our Boulder, Colorado operetidn consideration for the assets, we receive 0S| $130.0 million in cash and
924,984 shares of OSI common stock. Additionallg] @ required to pay us up to an additional $36illon in either cash or a combination
of cash and OSI common stock upon the achieveme®3i of certain milestones related to the develepinof NX 211, the most advanced
of the oncology product candidates. Separatelyeuadnanufacturing agreement with OSI, we haveeagtre produce for OSlI liposomal
formulations of two products, including NX 211,atr manufacturing facility in San Dimas, California
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Pfizer

In 1996, we entered into an agreement with Pfifm@m(erly Pharmacia Corporation) relating to Vistitlnder this agreement, Pfizer has
the exclusive right to market and sell Vistide lincauntries outside of the U.S., subject to payhierus of a percentage of net revenues. We
are required to sell Pfizer bulk Vistide and to ntain the Vistide patents. Our agreement with Pfezeires on an individual country basis
upon patent expiration or ten years from first caneral sale in countries where the product is meeced by a patent. In addition, Pfizer n
terminate the agreement as a whole upon six maemtise or upon notice on an individual country batfiree months before applying for
marketing approval of a competitive product.

Roche

In 1996, we entered into a collaboration agreematht Roche granting Roche exclusive worldwide rigtet Tamiflu, as well as other
proprietary influenza neuraminidase inhibitors.gi®ecember 31, 2003, we have received licensedrésnilestone payments from Roche
totaling $48.7 million relating to the executiontbfs agreement and to regulatory filings and apgiofor Tamiflu. Roche also funded all of
the research and development costs for Tamifldudtiicg reimbursement to us of $28.1 million for theriod from January 1, 1997 through
December 31, 2001. Under the agreement, Rochsepsmsible for pricing, manufacturing, promoting aedling Tamiflu on a worldwide
basis and pays us a percentage of its net revérmmesales of Tamiflu, subject to reduction forteér defined manufacturing costs. Our
agreement with Roche terminates on an individuahty basis on the later of patent expiration arytears from first commercial sale in the
particular country. In addition, Roche has the trighterminate the agreement in its entirety omalividual country basis prior to expiration at
any time upon 12 months notice.

Sumitomo

In 1996, we entered into an agreement with Sumittrabgave Sumitomo the exclusive right to develog market AmBisome in Jap
In addition to milestone payments, Sumitomo is neglito pay us a percentage of any revenue thegrgenfrom Japanese sales of
AmBisome. If AmBisome is approved for sale in Jgpae would manufacture AmBisome for sale by SumdamJapan. The price that we
would charge Sumitomo for the supply of AmBisomd #me percentage of revenues that they would hérestjto pay to us would be
determined by the price of AmBisome in Japan. @ue@ment with Sumitomo terminates on the laterabépt expiration in Japan or ten ye
from first commercial sale in Japan.

Academic and Consulting Relationships

To supplement our research and development effstpart of our regular business we enter intongements with universities and
medical research institutions. These arrangemdt#s provide us with rights to patents, patent aagilons and technology owned by these
institutions in return for payments and fees ratato our use of these rights.

Emory University and University of Georgia Research Foundation, Inc.

Emtricitabine. In April 1996, Triangle obtained, and we acqdies part of our acquisition of Triangle, an exslasvorldwide license
to all of Emory University’s rights to purified fors of emtricitabine for use in the HIV and the héjsaB fields. We are obligated to make
certain milestone and royalty payments to Emorgiuiding annual minimum royalties beginning thedhyear after the first FDA registration
is granted for an anti-HIV product incorporating #mtricitabine technology in the U.S. and thedtlyigar after the first registration is granted
for an anti-hepatitis B product incorporating tmatecitabine technology in certain major market ewigs, for the HIV and hepatitis B
indications,
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respectively. In 2002, Triangle began paying lieemaintenance fees because development milestadasoh yet been achieved.

In May 1999, Emory and GSK settled their litigatipending in the United States District Court relgtio emtricitabine, and we became
the exclusive licensee of all U.S. and foreign petend patent applications filed by Burroughs \dtetie Co. on the use of emtricitabine to
treat hepatitis B. Under the license and settleragrdements, we and Emory were also given accetes/edopment and clinical data and d
substance held by GSK relating to emtricitabine.

In May 2002, Emory, GSK and Shire Pharmaceuticatau@, plc (Shire) settled worldwide patent dispute®lving lamivudine and
emtricitabine. Under the terms of the settlementpEy received an exclusive license from Shire urlére’s patents relating to emtricitabine
and methods for its use and manufacture and Shit&&K received exclusive licenses under Emorytenia relating to lamivudine. Under
the terms of our license agreement with Emory, wteraatically acquired an exclusive sublicense &Shire patents relating to emtricitabine
granted under the terms of the settlement, theredlving all previously pending patent disputegarding emtricitabine.

The license agreement with Emory terminates upenater of patent expiration or the expiration of obligation to pay royalties. In
addition, we have the right to terminate the age@nm its entirety or with respect to one or biittications (HIV and HBV) in one or more
countries prior to expiration at any time upon @9<inotice.

Amdoxovir. In March 1996, Triangle entered into, and weusreg as part of our acquisition of Triangle, &fise agreement with
Emory and the University of Georgia Research Fotiodalnc. (UGRF) pursuant to which we receivedeanlusive worldwide license to all
of Emory’s and UGRF's rights to a series of nucidesinalogues including amdoxovir and DXG (i.eeg, #lctive antiHIV agent) for use in th
HIV and hepatitis B fields. In March 1999, Trianglegan paying license maintenance fees becausmpmant milestones had not yet been
achieved. In January 2004, we announced our itdeierminate the license agreement for amdoxovir.

M.D. Anderson Cancer Center

In 1994, we entered into an agreement with the Mulllerson Cancer Center relating to Hepsera. Utiileagreement, we currently
M.D. Anderson Cancer Center a percentage of nehtgs based upon sales of Hepsera. The agreentemil\li. Anderson Cancer Center
terminates the later of patent expiration or teargdrom first commercial sale.

|OCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, we entered into agreements WIGB/REGA relating to Viread, Hepsera and Vistidader these agreements, we
received from IOCB/REGA the exclusive right to mfauiure, use and sell the nucleotide compoundsredvay these agreements. We
currently pay a percentage of net revenues basaud sgles of Viread, Hepsera and Vistide to IOCB/REThe agreements with
IOCB/REGA terminate on an individual country basie later of patent expiration or ten years froretftommercial sale. In addition,
IOCB/REGA may terminate the licenses for a particpiroduct in a key market in the absence of coroigesales of that product within
12 months after regulatory approval.

University License Equity Holdings, Inc.

We have an ongoing collaborative arrangement witlvéfsity License Equity Holdings, Inc., (‘“ULEHI"Jhe successor to University
Technology Corporation and its predecessor UnityeResearch Corporation, a technology holding camggar the University of Colorado
Boulder, relating to its SELEX technology to idéptaptamers. Under this arrangement, ULEHI hastgahns all of its present
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and future rights to inventions covered by patamis patent applications for SELEX technology, invements to SELEX technology it
makes or discovers, oligonucleotides or other maééscit makes using SELEX technology and compuiéinsre related to SELEX
technology. We are required to pay ULEHI certainialgle royalties based on revenues generated fabes sf products derived using the
SELEX technology.

Developing World Collaborations
The Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation & Family Health International

In October 2002, we entered into an agreementtvélBill & Melinda Gates Foundation and Family Hedhternational (FHI) to
provide Viread for FHI's multinational clinical &i evaluating Viread’s effectiveness as a methoekdificing the risk of HIV infection among
sexually active adults who are regularly exposedit. The clinical trials, to be conducted by Fldte funded by a $6.5 million, three-year
grant from the Gates Foundation.

The DART Study

In November 2002, we entered into a collaboratieament with the Medical Research Council (MRChefUnited Kingdom,
Boehringer Ingelheim GmBH, and GSK in connectiothvai five-year clinical study conducted by the MBEantiretroviral HIV therapy in
Africa. The trial is called the DART Trial ( Bvelopment of Anti R etroviral Therapy in Africa) and is aimed at studying clinigatsus
laboratory monitoring practices, and structuredttreent interruptions versus continuous antireted\herapy in adults with HIV infection in
sub-Saharan Africa. We will provide Viread at netcfor the DART study.

The Institute for One World Health

In January 2003, we entered into an agreementthéthnstitute for One World Health, pursuant to ethive will provide AmBisome at
our cost for a Phase 3 clinical trial evaluatingBisome for the treatment of visceral leishmaniasth paromomycin in India, which has the
greatest global burden of visceral leishmaniadi® dlinical trial will be conducted by the Instiéuior One World Health in partnership with
the World Health Organization.

International Distribution

We have various agreements with distributors iroRar Asia, Latin America, the Middle East and Adribat grant these distributors the
exclusive right to sell Viread, Emtriva, Hepsera &mBisome in a particular country or countries dospecified period of time. Most of the
agreements also provide for collaborative effogsiMeen us and the distributor for obtaining reguiatipproval for the product in the
particular country and for marketing the producthia country. Most of these agreements establsiica that the distributor must pay for our
product and require us to deliver quantities ofgheduct ordered by the distributor.

Manufacturing

AmBisome

We manufacture AmBisome in commercial quantitiesnio separate but adjacent facilities in San DinGadifornia. The Medicines
Control Agency of the United Kingdom and the FDA/&approved the commercial production of AmBisom#hie facility in which it is
produced. To import AmBisome into the European dniwe own a manufacturing facility in Dublin, Irahwhere we perform quality
control testing, final labeling, packaging and dlisttion for the European Union and elsewhere. \&eehdiscontinued manufacturing
DaunoXome.
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We use commercially available materials and equigrteemanufacture these products. Currently, waiokthe amphotericin B and the
cholesterol that we use to manufacture AmBisomm fsngle approved suppliers.

AmBisome is sold as a freeze-dried product. Weerily freeze-dry AmBisome at our San Dimas manufaag facility and also use a
third party to freeze-dry additional product asdesk Given our current projections for AmBisome damh we believe we have sufficient
capacity to meet future demand. We also have thieropf installing additional freeze-drying capadit San Dimas should such additional
supply become necessary. If we were unable tolirstditional freezedrying capacity in San Dimas or locate appropriltel parties to me«
this need, our ability to meet increased AmBisoremand would be diminished.

Antiviral Products

We contract with third parties to manufacture outinaral drugs for clinical and commercial purposeluding Viread, Emtriva,
Hepsera and Vistide.

We manufacture Viread tablets through a singlereshimanufacturer for the U.S. and the Europeamiyand for sales and distribution
in other territories. In addition, we have a secoodtract manufacturer in Europe for European Uiistributed product. All have been
approved by their respective agencies.

We have obtained qualification in the U.S. and peem Union for two contract manufacturers for adiefdipivoxil, the active
ingredient in Hepsera. We have one contract matwicfor the final Hepsera drug product for comorarsupply and are seeking to qualify
a second supplie



We entered into an agreement with Abbott LaborasofAbbott) to manufacture emtricitabine bulk dsudpstance and final drug product
for us. We have qualified a second contract manufacfor bulk drug substance in both the U.S. tnedEuropean Union.

We have two suppliers that have been approvedéd¥IA and the European Union to manufacture cidofawk drug substance, whi
is used in Vistide. We have a single FDA and EMpfraved supplier for Vistide drug product.

In January 2002, Roche announced that, due to ptioduproblems, the liquid suspension form of Tamé#pproved for treatment of
children as young as one year-old was not avail&loeever, the liquid suspension form of Tamifluswaturned to market in time for the
2002-2003 flu season. These production issuesdtidffect availability of the tablet form of Tamiffor adults and adolescents 13 years and
older. In Japan, where the 2002-2003 flu seasorpadiularly severe, Roche’s sublicensee, Chugap@ration, was unable to meet the
heightened demand satisfactorily. In January 2QbBigai issued a press release attributing thigrigiin part, to manufacturing problems. In
November 2003, Chugai announced a recall of Tamiflese problems in Japan have reduced the nstaaderoyalty from Roche. Whi
royalties from Roche for Tamiflu have been below expectations, to date, these production and caxialization issues have not had a
material effect on our earnings, and we do not exteem to have a material effect on our earningbé future.

We have no commerciakale manufacturing facilities for our antivirabgucts. For our future antiviral products, we widled to develc
additional manufacturing capabilities and estabdidtitional third party suppliers in order to maauitire sufficient quantities of our product
candidates to undertake clinical trials and to nfiacture sufficient quantities of any products tais approved for commercial sale. If we are
unable to develop manufacturing capabilities iralynor contract for large scale manufacturing wilvd parties on acceptable terms for our
future antiviral products, our ability to conduatde-scale clinical trials and meet customer denfandommercial products would be
adversely affected.
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We believe that the technology we use to manufaatur products and compounds is proprietary. Foaativiral products, we have
disclosed all necessary aspects of this techndlomggntract manufacturers to enable them to matwf@¢he products and compounds for us.
We have agreements with these manufacturers thamt@nded to restrict them from using or reveathng technology, but we cannot be
certain that these manufacturers will comply withge restrictions. In addition, these manufactureudd develop their own technology
related to the work they perform for us that we magd to manufacture our products or compoundscaMi be required to enter into an
agreement with that manufacturer if we wanted ®that technology ourselves or allow another mastufar to use that technology. The
manufacturer could refuse to allow us to use ttegihnology or could demand terms to use their telclyy that are not acceptable.

We believe that we are in compliance with all mateznvironmental regulations related to the mactufi@e of our products.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are very itgombto our business. If we have a properly desigamal enforceable patent it can be
more difficult for our competitors to use our teology to create competitive products and morediffifor our competitors to obtain a patent
that prevents us from using technology we creasepdst of our business strategy, we actively se¢émn protection both in the U.S. and
internationally and file additional patent applioat, when appropriate, to cover improvements incompounds, products and technology.
We also rely on trade secrets, internal know-heahhological innovations and agreements with thadies to develop, maintain and protect
our competitive position. Our ability to be comtiggé will depend on the success of this strategy.

We have a number of patents, patent applicatiodgights to patents related to our compounds, mtsdand technology, but we cannot
be certain that issued patents will be enforceabf@ovide adequate protection or that pendingmtatpplications will result in issued pater
The following table shows the actual or estimategiration dates in the U.S. and Europe for the prinpatents and for patents that may is
under pending applications that cover the compoimdsir marketed products and our product candidate

U.S. Patent Expiration European Patent Expiration

Products

Viread 2017 201¢€
Hepsere 2014 2011
AmBisome 201€ 200¢&
Tamiflu 201€ 201¢
Vistide 201C 2012
Emtriva 2021 2011

Patents covering Viread, Hepsera, Vistide and Enatsre held by third parties. We acquired exclusiykts to these patents in the
agreements we have with these parties. See “Codtibe Relationships” and “Academic and Consulfielationships.” Patents do not cover
the active ingredients in AmBisome. Instead, wealtpdtents to the liposomal formulations of this poond and also protect formulations
through trade secrets. We do not have patent §ileayering all forms of Hepsera in China or in a@grbther Asian countries, although we do
have applications pending in various Asian coustriecluding China, that relate to specific formsl &ormulations of Hepsera. Asia is a
major market for HBV therapies.

We may obtain patents for our compounds many Vesfiare we obtain marketing approval for them. Tinists the time that we can
prevent other companies from developing these comgwand therefore
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reduces the value of the product. However, we ppiydor patent term extensions. For example, esiters for the patents on Vistide have
been granted in the U.S. and a number of Europeantiges, compensating in part for delays in olitgirmarketing approval. Similar patent
term extensions may be available for other prodietswe are developing, but we cannot be certaimil obtain them.

It is also very important that we do not infringatents or proprietary rights of others and thatiweot violate the agreements that grant
proprietary rights to us. If we do infringe pateatsviolate these agreements, we could be prevdraetddeveloping or selling products or
from using the processes covered by those pateaigreements, or we could be required to obtaicems$e from the third party allowing us
use their technology. We cannot be certain thagdgfiired, we could obtain a license to any thiagyptechnology or that we could obtain one
at a reasonable cost. If we were not able to olata@quired license, we could be adversely affe@edause patent applications are
confidential for at least some period of time, irthg sometimes in the U.S. until a patent issthese may be pending patent applications
from which patents will eventually issue and prewenfrom developing or selling certain producttesa we can obtain a license to use the
patented technology.

Patents relating to pharmaceutical, biopharmacaiudicd biotechnology products, compounds and psesesuch as those that cover our
existing compounds, products and processes and thaswe will likely file in the future, do notvahys provide complete or adequate
protection. Future litigation or reexamination predings regarding the enforcement or validity af@xisting patents or any future patents
could invalidate our patents or substantially redtieir protection. In addition, our pending pat@mplications and patent applications filec
our collaborative partners may not result in tleigce of any patents or may result in patentsdihabt provide adequate protection. As a
result, we may not be able to prevent third paifties developing the same compounds and produatsata are developing.

We also rely on unpatented trade secrets and ireprents, unpatented internal know-how and techncdd@inovation. In particular, a
great deal of our liposomal manufacturing expertiggich is a key component of our liposomal tecbggl is not covered by patents but is
instead protected as a trade secret. We protesg tights mainly through confidentiality agreemenith our corporate partners, employees,
consultants and vendors. These agreements prdatialt confidential information developed or mé&se®wn to an individual during the
course of their relationship with us will be kephfidential and will not be used or disclosed tiodiparties except in specified circumstances.
In the case of employees, the agreements provadathinventions made by the individual while eoy®d by us will be our exclusive
property. We cannot be certain that these partigsemply with these confidentiality agreementsat we would have adequate remedies for
any breach, or that our trade secrets will notmwtieee become known or be independently discoveyeaub competitors. Under some of our
research and development agreements, inventioosvdired in certain cases become jointly owned bgnasour corporate partner and in
other cases become the exclusive property of oms.dt can be difficult to determine who owns atigalar invention, and disputes could
arise regarding those inventions.

Competition

Our products and development programs target a auofldiseases and conditions, including viral Andyal infections. There are ma
commercially available products for these diseamed,a large number of companies and institutioespending considerable amounts of
money and other resources to develop additionalymts to treat these diseases. Our current prodaotpete with other available products
based primarily on:

« efficacy;

« safety;
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 tolerability;

* acceptance by doctors;

* patient compliance;

e patent protection;

* ease of use;

e price;

« insurance and other reimbursement coverage;
« distribution;

« marketing; and

« adaptability to various modes of dosing.

Any other products we market in the future willatompete with products offered by our competittireur competitors introduce data
that shows improved characteristics of their praésiumprove or increase their marketing effortsiomply lower the price of their products,
sales of our products could decrease. We also téencertain that any products we may developérfature will compare favorably to
products offered by our competitors or that ouseng or future products will compare favorablyatmy new products that are developed by
our competitors. Our ability to be competitive atkepends upon our ability to attract and retairlified personnel, to obtain patent protection
or otherwise develop proprietary products or preessand to secure sufficient capital resourcethfosubstantial period that it takes to
develop a product.

Viread and Emtriva. The HIV competitive landscape is becoming maoevdled and complicated as treatment trends contmue
evolve. A growing number of anti-HIV drugs are @amly sold or are in advance stages of clinicakttgyment. Of the 22 branded drugs
available in the U.S., Zerit (stavudine, d4T) seydBristol-Myers Squibb (BMS) and the fixed combina products, Combivir (AZT and
3TC) and Trizivir (AZT, 3TC, ABC), both sold by GSkepresent the most direct competition for ViréHoese companies are in the process
of launching formulations of existing drugs nowitated by the FDA for once-daily oral dosing. Theas#ude GSK'’s 300 mg dose of Epivir
(3TC) and BMS'’s new extended release formulatiodarft. Other recently approved antiretroviral pwots include atazanivir (QD protease
inhibitor from BMS) and Fuzeon (injectable integrashibitor from Roche/Trimeris). GSK has filed application for approval of a once-
daily dose of Ziagen (abacavir), as well as a ngadfdose combination of Ziagen and Epivir. Oth@mnpanies competing in the HIV
therapeutic category are Pfizer, Merck, Boehririggelheim and Abbott.

AmBisome. AmBisome faces strong competition from seveuatent and expected competitors. Current compstitarude:
e conventional amphotericin B, made by BMS and numegeneric manufacturers;

« caspofungin, a product developed by Merck, whiaméketed as Cancidas in the U.S. and as Caspofeiggwhere;

» voriconazole, developed by Pfizer, which is marétete Vfend; and

 other lipid-based amphotericin B products appraweitie U.S. and throughout Europe, including Abelseld by Enzon Corp. in the
U.S., Canada and Japan and by Medeus Pharma LEdrape, and Amphotec, sold by InterMune Pharmacast Inc.
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Presently unapproved but expected competitorsdieciuclass of treatments called echinocandindudimg Fujisawa’s micafungin,
which received marketing approval in Japan in Oet@®02 and is under review for regulatory appravahe U.S. and Canada, and
anidulafungin, a Vircuron, Inc. (formerly Versicénc.) product candidate, which is being evaluatechultiple late-stage clinical trials.
Finally, Schering Plough is developing Noxafil (aosnazole), which is currently in Phase 3 trialsa@etition from these current and
expected competitors has eroded and is likely hticoe to erode the revenues we receive from sdldsnBisome.

Hepsera. Hepsera faces significant competition from émgstherapies for treating patients who are inféatéth HBV. Most
significantly:

» Epivir-HBV (lamivudine) was developed by GSK in leddoration with Shire Pharmaceuticals, and is golll major countries
throughout North and South America, Europe, andAsiis an orally administered nucleoside analatpa¢ inhibits HBV DNA
polymerase.

« Intron-A (interferon alfa-2b) is sold by Scherintp&gh in major countries throughout North and ScMtherica, Europe, and Asia.
Intron-A is an injectable drug with immunomodulateffects.

Hepsera may also face competition from clinicaggstaandidates, including Bristol-Myers Squibb’sesatvir and Idenix’s LdT, two oral
nucleoside analogues currently in Phase 3 triglseiGcompetition will include Roche’s Pegasys (patpd interferon alfa-2a), which is
currently being studied for chronic hepatitis B.

Tamiflu. Tamiflu competes with Relenza, an anti-flu dthat is sold by GSK. Relenza is a neuraminidasiitun that is delivered as
an orally-inhaled dry powder.

Vistide. Vistidecompetes with a number of drugs that &dsat CMV retinitis, including ganciclovir, sold intravenous and oral
formulations by Roche and as an ocular implant Aydgh & Lomb Incorporated; valganciclovir, also keded by Roche; foscarnet, an
intravenous drug sold by AstraZeneca; and, forre@rnr a drug injected directly into the eye soldlilyaVision.

A number of companies are pursuing the developmiktgichnologies competitive with our research paogs. These competing
companies include specialized pharmaceutical faintslarge pharmaceutical companies acting eitltapendently or together with
biopharmaceutical companies. Furthermore, acadistitutions, government agencies and other pubitt private organizations conducting
research may seek patent protection and may estatgilaborative arrangements for competitive potsland programs.

We anticipate that we will face increased compmtiin the future as our competitors introduce newdpcts to the market and new
technologies become available. We cannot deterih@éasting products or new products that our cotitpes develop will be more effective
or more effectively marketed and sold than any Wetevelop. Competitive products could renderteannology and products obsolete or
noncompetitive before we recover the money anduress we used to develop these products.

Government Regulation

Our operations and activities are subject to extenggulation by numerous government authoritiethe U.S. and other countries. In
the U.S., drugs are subject to rigorous FDA regaafThe Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act ahérofiederal and state statutes and
regulations govern the testing, manufacture, saédfgctiveness, labeling, storage, record keempgroval, advertising and promotion of our
products. As a result of these regulations, prodagelopment and the product approval processrisesgpensive and time consuming.

The FDA must approve a drug before it can be gottié U.S. The general process for this approvas iollows:
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Preclinical Testing

Before we can test a drug candidate in humans, wat study the drug in laboratory experiments anahimals to generate data to
support the drug’s potential safety and benefite.abmit this data to the FDA in an investigatiamalv drug application (IND) seeking their
approval to test the compound in humans.

Clinical Trials

If the FDA accepts the investigational new druglapggion, we study the drug in human clinical tsiéd determine if the drug is safe and
effective. These clinical trials involve three segta phases that often overlap, can take many pearsire very expensive. These three ph
which are themselves subject to considerable régoleare as follows:

* Phase 1. The drug is given to a small numbeeafthy human subjects or patients to test for gafiise tolerance,
pharmacokinetics, metabolism, distribution and etion.

* Phase 2. The drug is given to a limited patiemuation to determine the effect of the drug &ating the disease, the best dose of
the drug, and the possible side effects and safdty of the drug.

e Phase 3. If acompound appears to be effectigesafe in Phase 2 clinical trials, Phase 3 clintigals are commenced to confirm
those results. Phase 3 clinical trials are longiénvolve a significantly larger population, aenducted at numerous sites in different
geographic regions and are carefully designedduige reliable and conclusive data regarding tietgand benefits of a drug. It is
not uncommon for a drug that appears promisinghiase 2 clinical trials to fail in the more rigorcusd reliable Phase 3 clinical trials.

FDA Approval Process

If we believe that the data from the Phase 3 dinicals show an adequate level of safety anccéffeness, we will file a new drug
application (NDA) with the FDA seeking approvalsell the drug for a particular use. The FDA wiNiew the NDA and often will hold a
public hearing where an independent advisory coteminf expert advisors asks additional questiogardéng the drug. This committee
makes a recommendation to the FDA that is not bipdin the FDA but is generally followed by the FORthe FDA agrees that the
compound has a required level of safety and effen#iss for a particular use, it will allow us td gee drug in the U.S. for that use. It is not
unusual, however, for the FDA to reject an appiicabecause it believes that the drug is not saéeigh or effective enough or because it
does not believe that the data submitted is rediablconclusive.

At any point in this process, the development dfueg could be stopped for a number of reasons divfusafety concerns and lack of
treatment benefit. We cannot be certain that aimjcell trials that we are conducting, or any thate@onduct in the future, will be completed
successfully or within any specified time periode Wiay choose, or the FDA may require us to delasuspend our clinical trials at any time
if it appears that the patients are being exposeshtunacceptable health risk or if the drug caatdidoes not appear to have sufficient
treatment benefit.

The FDA may also require us to complete additidesting, provide additional data or informationpiove our manufacturing proces:
procedures or facilities or require extensive poatketing testing and surveillance to monitor taiety or benefits of our product candidates
if they determine that our new drug applicationginet contain adequate evidence of the safety andfits of the drug. In addition, even if
the FDA approves a drug, it could limit the useshefdrug. Approvals can also be withdrawn if tilAFdoes not believe that we are
complying with regulatory standards or if probleans uncovered or occur after approval.
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In addition to obtaining FDA approval for each drtlge manufacturing facilities for any drug we skitluding those of companies who
manufacture our drugs for us as well as our owrstrha approved by the FDA and are subject to pieriadpections by the FDA. Foreign
establishments that manufacture products to beisdle U.S. must also be approved by the FDA aadabject to periodic regulatory
inspection. Manufacturing facilities located in @ainia, including our San Dimas facility and Fas@ty facility, also must be licensed by -
State of California in compliance with local regoly requirements.

Drugs that treat serious or life-threatening dissand conditions that are not adequately addrdssexiisting drugs may be designated
as fast track products by the FDA and may be dédir priority six month review and accelerateghagval, as was the case for Viread. Dr
receiving accelerated approval must be monitorgabst-marketing clinical trials in order to confitime safety and benefits of the drug.

We are also subject to other federal, state aral kegulations regarding workplace safety and ptaia of the environment. We use
hazardous materials, chemicals, viruses and varaiieactive compounds in our research and devedopactivities and cannot eliminate
risk of accidental contamination or injury from seematerials. Any misuse or accidents involving¢heaterials could lead to significant
litigation, fines and penalties.

Drugs are also subject to extensive regulationideitsf the U.S. In the European Union, there is@tralized approval procedure that
authorizes marketing of a product in all countifethe European Union (which includes most majartdes in Europe). If this procedure is
not used, under a decentralized system an appiroeak country of the European Union can be usedbtain approval in another country of
the European Union under a simplified applicatioocgss. After approval under the centralized prosedoricing and reimbursement
approvals are also required in most countries.idéstViread, Hepsera and Emtriva were approvedbyBuropean Union under the
centralized procedure. Viread as an HIV drug wagweed for accelerated approval in the Europearoklriiepsera received a traditional
review, as did Emtriva.

Pricing and Reimbursement

Insurance companies, health maintenance organizatiéMOs), other third-party payors and some gavenmts seek to limit the amount
we can charge for our drugs. For example, in aeftaieign markets, pricing negotiations are oftequired to obtain approval of a product,
and in the U.S. there have been, and we expecthi will continue to be, a number of federal atade proposals to implement drug price
control. In addition, managed care organizatiomesbecoming more common in the U.S. and will cordituseek lower drug prices. The
announcement of these proposals or efforts careqawrsstock price to decrease, and if these prédgpasa adopted, our revenues could
decrease.

Our ability to sell our drugs also depends on traglability of reimbursement from governments amigte insurance companies. These
governments and insurance companies often demaateseor predetermined discounts from list prigés.expect that products we are
developing, particularly for AIDS indications, wilke subject to reimbursement issues. We cannogitairc that any of our other products that
obtain regulatory approval will be reimbursed bggt government and insurance companies.

Regulatory approval of prices is generally requirechost foreign countries. In particular, certaountries will condition their approval
of a product on the agreement of the seller neetbthat product for more than a certain pricéhat country and in the past have required
price reductions after or in connection with pradagproval. We cannot be certain that regulatothi@ities in the future will not establish
lower prices or that any regulatory action redudimg price of our products in any one country wilt have the practical effect of requiring us
to reduce our prices in other countries. Some Erangovernments, notably Germany and Italy, haydeimented, or are considering,
legislation that would require pharmaceutical comes to sell their products subject to reimburseraga mandatory
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discount. Such mandatory discounts would reduceefenue we receive from our drug sales. In cedaireloping countries that are
significantly affected by HIV and AIDS, parallel porting and generic competition may occur and asblgraffect revenues from sales of or
market share of Viread.
Employees

As of February 27, 2004, we had approximately 1##H&ime employees. We believe that we have gagdtions with our employees.

Website

Our website address is www.gilead.com. We makdahlaifree of charge through our website, our ahreport on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reporté&om 8-K, our director and officers’ Section 16 &g, and all amendments to these reports
as soon as reasonably practicable after filingotoyiding a hyperlink to the EDGAR website diredttyour reports.
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RISK FACTORS THAT AFFECT GILEAD

In evaluating our business, you should carefullysider the following risks in addition to the otlieformation in this report. Any of the
following risks could materially and adversely affeur business, operating results and financiatitmn.

Substantially all of our revenues are derived fronmsales of two products. If we are unable to maintailor continue growing sales of
Viread or to maintain sales of AmBisome our result®f operations may be adversely affected.

We are currently dependent on sales of our two feaducts, Viread and AmBisome, to support ourtegsoperations. Together these
products accounted for approximately 90% of owaltatvenues for the year ended December 31, 20@& &re unable to continue growing
Viread revenues or to maintain AmBisome salesyeswults of operations are likely to suffer and weeymeed to scale back our operations.
Viread product sales for the year ended Decembe2®13 were $566.5 million, or 65%, of our totalerues and AmBisome product sales
and royalties for the year ended December 31, 2868 $210.9 million, or 24% of our total revenué& may not be able to maintain the
growth rate of Viread or the current sales levehofBisome for the reasons stated in this risk faseation and, in particular, the following
reasons:

« We face significant competition from businesses llaae substantially greater resources than w&aioexample, in 2003, we
experienced declining sales volumes for AmBisome idypart to the introduction of new European cotitges. On a volume basis,
AmBisome sales decreased by 5% in Europe in 200%aced to 2002.

« As Viread and AmBisome are used over a longer gesfdime and additional studies are conducted, issues with respect to safe
resistance and interactions with other drugs mesg avhich could cause us to provide additional \weys on our labels, narrow our
approved indications or halt sales of a produathes which could reduce our revenues.

« As a product matures, private insurers and goventme@mbursers may reduce the amount they will beiree patients for these
products, which will increase pressure on us taicedrices. For example, in 2003, authorities inn@eay and Italy reduced the
amount of reimbursement they will provide for patseusing Viread and we expect similar reductionBrance in 2004.

If we fail to commercialize new products or expandhe indications for existing products, our prosped for future revenues and stock
price may be adversely affected.

If we do not introduce new products or increasenexes from our existing products, we may not be abfrow our revenues. In orde
expand our products, we have begun marketing Hafiesethe treatment of chronic hepatitis B and Eratfor the treatment of HIV in the
United States and in the European Union. In additice are developing a co-formulation of tenofavith emtricitabine. Failure to achieve
any of these objectives when expected, or at ai; hmve a material adverse effect on our busine$sesults of operations. We may not be
able to achieve these objectives for the followiegsons:

* Hepserais a new drug and faces a competitive naloe in which we have less experience than astedal competitors. For
example, Hepsera primarily competes with lamivudimthe United States and with interferon-alfa @lthie European hepatitis B
market. Hepsera’s primary advantage over lamivudirikeat patients have so far been less likelyeteetbp resistance to Hepsera than
they have to lamivudine. However, lamivudine hasrben the market longer than Hepsera and lamivigliesistance problems did
not surface until after the product was marketegpdéra may not continue to show superior resistpraggerties to lamivudine.
Hepsera’s primary advantages
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over interferon-alfa 2b are greater safety, toléitgland oral dosing. Newer versions of interfef@egylated-interferon) are under
development and may prove to be safer, more tdieraid offer once-weekly injectable dosing. Mankgta treatment for hepatitis B
is also difficult since many infected individualeanot diagnosed and there is not a consensus aphysicians as to the appropriate
methods of treatment.

« A physical combination of emtricitabine with tenefiomay not be technically feasible or cost-effeetiln addition, we may not be
able to develop a chemistry, manufacturing andduio&lence package that shows the co-formulatddttgives the same exposure to
tenofovir and emtricitabine as the two drugs giiretividually that will support regulatory approv&lle have not completed stability
studies necessary to support approval of a co-ftation of tenofovir and emtricitabine.

If we fail to increase our sales of Hepsera oréfdo not obtain regulatory approval and succegsfodrket a co-formulation of
emtricitabine and tenofovir, we may not be abletwease revenues and expand our research andpmait efforts.

If significant safety issues arise for our marketegroducts, our sales may decline, which would advsely affect our results of
operations.

The data that support the marketing approvals dompooducts, including Viread, AmBisome, Hepserd Bmtriva and that form the
basis for the safety warnings in our product labgkre obtained in controlled clinical trials ahited duration, and, in the case of Viread,
from limited post-approval use. Following approvakse products are and will be used over longeoge of time in many patients taking
numerous other medicines, who have underlying hgamtiblems and who will not be monitored for dostegnpliance. If new safety issues
are reported in post-marketing use and we cant®but the contributory role of our products, weyrba required to provide additional
warnings on our labels or narrow our approved iatitinis, each of which could reduce the market aaoep of these products. For example,
while we did not observe kidney toxicity in ourrgtial trials of Viread, kidney toxicity has beemogted with postpproval use of Viread ar
the Viread label has been updated to include thining. If serious safety issues with our marketemtiucts were to arise, sales of these
products could be halted by us or by regulatorhauties. In 1999, we discontinued developmentdsfavir dipivoxil 60 mg for treatment of
HIV infection due to concerns about kidney toxidtysing from our studies. The 10 mg dose of adeftipivoxil used in Hepsera has not
been associated with significant kidney toxicityour clinical trials to date, other than in pateento have pre-existing kidney problems or
who are taking drugs known to cause kidney toxiditgwever, kidney toxicity may develop in the breatiepatitis B patient population.

Our operations depend on compliance with complex FB and comparable international regulations. Failureto obtain broad approvals
on a timely basis or to achieve continued compliamccould delay commercialization of our products.

The products that we develop must be approved &oketing and sale by regulatory authorities andilvélsubject to extensive
regulation by the FDA and comparable regulatorynagss in other countries. We are continuing clihidals for AmBisome, Viread, Hepse
and Emtriva for currently approved and additiors#al We anticipate that we will file for marketiagproval in additional countries and for
additional products over the next several yeargs€&lproducts may fail to receive marketing approwad timely basis, or at all. Also, our
current filing strategy for a co-formulation of t#fovir and emtricitabine is based on data from cletegl studies: if the FDA requires
additional pivotal studies for a combination prodogr regulatory filing will be delayed. Regulataaythorities outside of the U.S. and the
European Union may not approve emtricitabine featment of HIV because it does not have sufficdfitacy advantages over a currently
marketed lamivudine product. We also may not be &dbbbtain the regulatory approvals necessarypared our commercial efforts into new
markets. These failures, delays
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or limitations, as well as other regulatory changesions and recalls, could delay commercialiratibany products and adversely affect our
results of operations.

In addition, our marketed products and how wetbelse products are subject to extensive regulamoinreview. Later discovery of
previously unknown problems with our products arlgems with our promotional activities may resulréstrictions on our products,
including withdrawal of the products from the markeor example, on August 7, 2003, the FDA issueditien warning concerning our
promotional activities of Viread. If we fail to cguly with applicable regulatory requirements, welddue subject to penalties including fines,
suspensions of regulatory approvals, product recsdlizure of products and criminal prosecutioraddition, we have been named in a multi-
party lawsuit alleging that we inflated the reim&ement rates under the Medicaid Program of ceptaémmaceuticals we manufacture.

Results of clinical trials are uncertain and may nosupport continued development of a product pipehe, which would adversely affect
our prospects for future revenue growth.

We are required to demonstrate the safety andtafé@ess of products we develop in each intendedhusugh extensive preclinical
studies and clinical trials. The results from pirgchl and early clinical studies do not alwayswaetely predict results in later, large-scale
clinical trials. Even successfully completed lasgade clinical trials may not result in marketapteducts. A number of companies in our
industry have suffered setbacks in advanced clitiizds despite promising results in earlier sigror example, in 1999 the FDA denied
approval of adefovir dipivoxil (60 mg), a drug déyeed by Gilead for the treatment of HIV, basecconcerns regarding kidney toxicity. We
may in the future seek clinical development of amcompounds that also have the potential for éydioxicity or other adverse effects. If i
of our products under development fail to achidwartprimary endpoint in clinical trials or if sé#yessues arise, commercialization of that
drug candidate could be delayed or halted.

Manufacturing problems could delay product shipmens and regulatory approvals, which may adversely affct our results of
operations.

We depend on third parties to perform manufactuaictiyities effectively and on a timely basis.Hése third parties fail to perform as
required, this could impair our ability to deliveur products on a timely basis or cause delaysiircknical trials and applications for
regulatory approval, and these events could hameampetitive position. The manufacturing processpharmaceutical products is highly
regulated, and regulators may shut down manufagjdacilities that they believe do not comply witlgulations. The FDA'’s current Good
Manufacturing Practices are extensive regulatian&ging manufacturing processes, stability testiagord-keeping and quality standards.
In addition, our manufacturing operations are stitije routine inspections by regulatory agencies similar regulations are in effect in other
countries.

For Viread, Hepsera, Vistide and Emtriva, we raiytloird parties for the manufacture of bulk drupstance and final drug product for
clinical and commercial purposes. In addition, Rothresponsible for manufacturing Tamiflu. Thésedtparty manufacturers may develop
problems over which we have no control and thesblpms may adversely affect our business. For elgrmpJanuary 2002, Roche
announced that due to production problems thediguspension form of Tamiflu approved for treatn@nthildren as young as one year old
was not available. In Japan, where the 2002-2008ghson was particularly severe, Roche’s subkaerGhugai Corporation, was unable to
meet heightened demand satisfactorily. In Janu@®8 2Chugai issued a press release attributindahise, in part, to manufacturing
problems. These problems in Japan have reducetktisales and our royalty from Roche.

We manufacture AmBisome at our facilities in SamBs$, California. These are our only formulation amahufacturing facilities in the
U.S. We own a manufacturing facility in Ireland ttipgrforms certain
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quality control testing, labeling and packagingatidition, we use third parties as alternate cohtappliers to fill and freeze dry certain
batches of product. In the event of a natural tgsasicluding an earthquake, equipment failunekestor other difficulty, we may be unable to
replace this manufacturing capacity in a timely me&mand would be unable to manufacture AmBisomadet market needs.

We may not be able to obtain materials necessary tnanufacture our products, which could limit our ahility to generate revenues.

Many of the materials that we utilize in our opamas are made at only one facility. For example depend on single suppliers for high
quality amphotericin B, distearoylphosphatidylcheliand high quality cholesterol, each of whichssdiin the manufacture of one or more of
our liposomal products. Because the suppliers pfcoenponents and materials must be nhamed in thednegvapplication filed with the FDA
for a product, significant delays can occur if thalification of a new supplier is required. If glips from our suppliers were interrupted for
any reason, we may be unable to ship Viread, AmBédHepsera, Emtriva or Vistide, or to supply ahgur products in development for
clinical trials.

We may need to develop additional manufacturing cagity for our existing and future products, which will increase our expenses.

We have evaluated in the past, and continue taiatalthe feasibility of acquiring manufacturingpahilities to support the production
of our products, principally Viread and Emtriva.€Be facilities may be required to increase prodaatapacities in order to support clinical
trials and to produce such products for commeszdd at an acceptable cost. We have not manufddtuese products in the past. Develoj
these technological capabilities and building arcpasing a facility will increase our expenses withguarantee that we will be able to
recover our investment in our manufacturing cajtdsl

We depend on relationships with other companies fasales and marketing performance and revenues. Faile to maintain these
relationships would negatively impact our business.

We rely on a number of significant collaborativat®nships with major pharmaceutical companiesofar sales and marketing
performance. These include collaborations withdayjia and Sumitomo for AmBisome, GSK for HepserahRdor Tamiflu, Pfizer for
Vistide and Japan Tobacco for Viread and Emtrimacdrtain countries, we rely on international distrors for sales of AmBisome, Viread
and Emtriva and in some European countries, wadhte rely only on international distributors f@las of Hepsera. Some of these
relationships also involve the clinical developmehthese products by our partners. Reliance olalgotative relationships poses a number of
risks, including:

< we will not be able to control whether our corperpartners will devote sufficient resources to muagrams or products;
« disputes may arise in the future with respect éoaWwnership of rights to technology developed withporate partners;

« disagreements with corporate partners could leakbli@ys in or termination of the research, develempinor commercialization of
product candidates, or result in litigation or #udtion;

e contracts with our corporate partners may failrmvple significant protection or may fail to beexfively enforced if one of these
partners fails to perform;

« corporate partners have considerable discreti@teicting whether to pursue the development of audjtianal products and may
pursue alternative technologies or products eitinetheir own or in collaboration with our compet#p
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» corporate partners with marketing rights may chdosevote fewer resources to the marketing ofppaducts than they do to
products of their own development; and

« our distributors and corporate partners may be lertatpay us

Given these risks, there is a great deal of unicéyteegarding the success of our current and &uballaborative efforts. If these efforts
fail, our product development or commercializatadmew products could be delayed or revenue froistieg products, including Viread,
Emtriva, Hepsera, AmBisome and Tamiflu, could dezli

Under our April 2002 licensing agreement with G3I, gave GSK the right to control clinical and regaty development and
commercialization of Hepsera in territories in AgMrica and Latin America. These include major keds for Hepsera, such as China, Japan,
Taiwan and Korea. The success of Hepsera in teesmties will depend almost entirely on the effoof GSK. In this regard, GSK promotes
Epivir—HBV, a product that competes with Hepseran§equently, GSK marketing strategy for Hepsera may be influereits promotiol
of Epivir—HBYV. We receive royalties from GSK equala percentage of net sales made by GSK. If G8&ttadevote sufficient resources
to, or does not succeed in developing or commeézgigl Hepsera in its territories, our potentialeaues from sales of Hepsera may be
substantially reduced.

Expenses associated with clinical trials and saldsictuations as a result of inventory levels held pwholesalers may cause our earning
to fluctuate, which could adversely affect our stdc price.

The clinical trials required for regulatory apprbeéour products are extremely expensive. It fiialilt to accurately predict or control
the amount or timing of these expenses from quéstgquarter. Uneven and unexpected spending oe fhregirams may cause our operating
results to fluctuate from quarter to quarter. ldiidn, a substantial portion of our sales actiwityhe United States is conducted with three
distributors, Amerisource Bergen Corp., McKessompCand Cardinal Health, Inc. Inventory levels higydthese and other wholesalers may
fluctuate significantly which could cause our satethem and as a result, our operating resultuétuate unexpectedly from quarter to
quarter. For example, based on our review of ND&giption trends, IMS inventory data and actuab¥d sales, we believe, in the quarter
ended June 30, 2003, wholesalers built up inveriewgis by an estimated 1.2 months. We believeitivisntory build-up was followed by an
equivalent or possibly greater inventory reductioming the quarter ended September 30, 2003.

Approximately half of our product sales occur outsile the U.S., and currency fluctuations may cause oearnings to fluctuate, which
could adversely affect our stock price.

A significant percentage of our product sales @amothinated in foreign currencies. Increases irvétge of the U.S. dollar against these
foreign currencies in the past have reduced, atigeifiuture may reduce, our U.S. dollar equivataés and negatively impact our financial
condition and results of operations. We use foreigmency forward contracts to hedge a percentbhgerdorecasted international sales,
primarily those denominated in the Euro currency &0 hedge a portion of our accounts receivadiEnibes denominated in foreign
currencies, which reduces but does not eliminateegposure to currency fluctuations between the degale is recorded and the date that
cash is collected. Additionally, to mitigate thepatt of currency rate fluctuations on our cashlows for certain foreign currency-
denominated raw materials purchases, we entefandé@mn exchange forward contracts to hedge owidor currency-denominated accounts
payable. Although we use forward contracts to redhe impact of foreign currency fluctuations om future results, these efforts may not
successful and any such fluctuations could adweedédct our results of operations.
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We face credit risks from our European customers tht may adversely affect our results of operations

We are particularly subject to credit risk from @&uropean customers. Our European product salgsviErnment owned or supported
customers in Greece, Spain, Portugal, and Italpalpgect to significant payment delays due to gomemnt funding and reimbursement
practices. Our accounts receivable from governroemied or supported customers in these countriaketb$148.4 million as of
December 31, 2003. If significant changes werectaupnin the reimbursement practices of Europeargowuents or if government funding
becomes unavailable, we may not be able to caflee@mounts due to us from these customers andsuits of operations would be
adversely affected.

Our plan to supply Viread at our cost to certain deeloping countries may expose us to liability thatvould have a material adverse
affect on our results of operations and financial endition.

We are launching a distribution program pursuanttiich we will supply Viread at our cost to all ¢tries in Africa and to the 15 other
countries designated “Least Developed CountriesthieyUnited Nations. The supply and distributiordnigs in a resource-poor environment
is a complicated undertaking. As this program dep®l we could face unforeseen challenges and rgksh could give rise to unforeseen
liabilities. For example, patients in less devebbpeuntries using Viread may not be as closely isigoed by a doctor as they would be in
more developed nations. Accordingly, there mayrbereased likelihood of Viread-related complioat going undetected or untreated,
which could result in significant liability to Gitel.

Our product revenues could be reduced by imports fom countries where our products are available at Mver prices.

Prices for our products are based on local mad@t@nics and competition and sometimes differ fomuntry to country. Our sales in
countries with relatively higher prices may be reghliif products can be imported into those cousfien lower price markets. There have
been cases in which pharmaceutical products wédeasateeply discounted prices in the developingldvand then re-exported to European
countries, where they could be re-sold at muchérighices. If this happens with our products, patrly Viread, which we have agreed to
provide at our cost to all countries in Africa aondhe 15 other countries designated “Least Dewldpountries” by the United Nations, our
revenues would be adversely affected.

In addition, in the European Union, we are requitedermit cross border sales. This allows buyeisountries where government-
approved prices for our products are relativelyhhig purchase our products legally from countribgre they must be sold at lower prices.
Additionally, some U.S. consumers have been abputohase products, including HIV medicines, frattefnet pharmacies in other count
at substantial discounts. Such cross-border saléld adversely affect our revenues.

In some countries, we may be required to grant comgsory licenses for our HIV products or face gened competition for our HIV
products.

In a number of developing countries, governmeritiaffs and other groups have suggested that phautiaal companies should make
drugs for HIV infection available at a low cost.dame cases, governmental authorities have indi¢hst where pharmaceutical companies
do not make their HIV drugs available at a low ctistir patents might not be enforceable to pregeneric competition. Some major
pharmaceutical companies have greatly reducedspficeHIV drugs in certain developing countriescéfitain countries do not permit
enforcement of our patents, sales of our productsase countries could be reduced by generic cbtigme Alternatively, governments in
those countries could require that we grant congpulicenses to allow competitors to manufacture sell their own versions of our produ
in those countries, thereby reducing our salesjeocould respond to governmental concerns by redymiices for our products. In additior
reducing our sales, compulsory licenses may
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increase the risk of counterfeiting as we wouldarger have control over manufacturing and distidyuin those markets. In addition,
countries such as Canada are considering amerttdirgpatent laws to permit the export of othervgagented products to countries in the
developing world. In all of these situations, oesults of operations could be adversely affected.

Our existing products are subject to reimbursemenfrom government agencies and other third parties. Farmaceutical pricing and
reimbursement pressures may reduce profitability.

Successful commercialization of our products depeimdpart, on the availability of governmental dahud party payor reimbursement
for the cost of such products and related treatsa&@wvernment health administration authoritiesgte health insurers and other
organizations generally provide reimbursement. Gawvent authorities and third-party payors increglgimre challenging the price of
medical products and services, particularly folowative new products and therapies. This has egsuitlower average sales prices. For
example, a majority of our sales of AmBisome anstide, and a significant percentage of our salééirefad and Hepsera, are subject to
reimbursement by government agencies, resultirsigimficant discounts from list price and rebatdéigdtions. Our business may be adver:
affected by an increase in U.S. or internationalipg pressures. These pressures can arise fras and practices of managed care groups,
judicial decisions and governmental laws and regnia related to Medicare, Medicaid and health caferm, pharmaceutical reimbursem
and pricing in general. In the U.S. in recent yeaesv legislation has been proposed at the fe@aktate levels that would effect major
changes in the health care system, either natipnatt the state level. These proposals havedeclyprescription drug benefit proposals for
Medicare beneficiaries recently passed by Congfedditionally, some states have enacted health edoem legislation. Further federal and
state developments are possible. Our results ohtipas could be adversely affected by future heedire reforms. In Europe, the success of
Hepsera, Tamiflu, Emtriva and Viread will also degédargely on obtaining and maintaining governmennbursement because in many
European countries, including the United Kingdord &nance, patients are reluctant to pay for prpsor drugs out of their own pocket. We
also expect that the success of our products irldpnent, particularly in Europe, will depend og #bility to obtain reimbursement. Even if
reimbursement is available, reimbursement polioiag adversely affect our ability to sell our protduan a profitable basis.

In addition, in many international markets, goveemts control the prices of prescription pharmacaigi In these markets, once
regulatory marketing approval is received, priamggotiations with governmental authorities can takelve months or longer. Some foreign
governments have passed, or are considering, d¢igisito require us to sell our products subjecetmbursement at a mandatory discount.
Sales of competing products, attempts to gain niathkare or introductory pricing programs of our patitors could also require us to lower
our prices in these countries, which could advgraffect our results of operations.

We may not be able to obtain effective patents torptect our technologies from use by competitors, ahpatents of other companies
could require us to stop using or pay for the usefaequired technology.

Our success will depend to a significant degreewrability to:
» obtain patents and licenses to patent rights;

» preserve trade secrets; and

« operate without infringing on the proprietary riglof others.

We have rights to U.S. and foreign issued patemishave filed and will continue to file patent apations in the U.S. and abroad
relating to our technologies. There is a risk, hesvethat patents may not issue from any of thepéiations or that the patents will not be
sufficient to protect our technology.
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Patent applications are confidential for at leastes period of time, sometimes in the U.S. untibgept issues. As a result, we may not knc
our competitors filed patent applications for teallogy covered by our pending applications or ifwere the first to invent the technology
that is the subject of our patent applications. @etitors may have filed patent applications or ez patents and may obtain additional
patents and proprietary rights that block or corapéth our patents.

We do not have patent filings in China or certaimeo Asian countries covering all forms of adefalipivoxil, the active ingredient in
Hepsera, although we do have applications pendingiious Asian countries that relate to varioust®and formulations of adefovir
dipivoxil. Asia is a major market for therapies fepatitis B, the indication for which Hepsera haen developed. We may obtain patents for
certain products many years before marketing agpriewobtained for those products. Because patexvs a limited life, which may begin to
run prior to commercial sale, the commercial valfithe product may be limited. In addition, patem&y not provide adequate protection in
certain countries in Africa and Asia, including Gai

Our competitors may file patent applications cavgrour technology. If so, we may have to parti@patinterference proceedings or
litigation to determine the right to a patent. géttion and interference proceedings are expensime i€ we are ultimately successful.

Our success depends in large part on our abiligpgrate without infringing upon the patents orotproprietary rights of third parties
we infringe the patents of others, we may be preagefrom commercializing products or may be reglibeobtain licenses from these third
parties. We may not be able to obtain alternatehdnologies or any required license on reasonahtestor at all. If we fail to obtain such
licenses or alternative technologies, we may bélenta develop or commercialize some or all of products.

In addition, we use significant proprietary tectogyl and rely on unpatented trade secrets and ptapyiknow-how to protect certain
aspects of our production and other technologies.t@de secrets may become known or independdisitpvered by our competitors.

We may face significant liability resulting from our products that may not be covered by insurance anduccessful claims could
materially reduce our earnings.

The testing, manufacturing, marketing and use oéadld, AmBisome, Hepsera, Emtriva, Tamiflu, and id&stas well as products in
development, involve substantial risk of produabliity claims. These claims may be made direcylybnsumers, healthcare providers,
pharmaceutical companies or others. Although wentaid product liability insurance, a successfuldoret liability claim against us may not
be covered by our insurance or could require ymyoamounts beyond that provided by our insuragitieer of which could impair our
financial condition and our ability to clinicallg$t and to market our products.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters, including our princgp@cutive offices and some of our research faglitare located in Foster City,
California. At this location, we own approximat&l96,000 square feet of space in 16 proximatelytémthuildings. We currently occupy 10
of the 16 buildings and also have a tenant occigpyome of the remaining buildings.

We also occupy facilities in San Dimas, CaliforrAdthis location, we lease approximately 102,560ss¢e feet of space, which houses
research and development activities, manufactuaicertain administrative functions. These lease#re in May 2008 and November 20
with no renewal options at present. In addition,|l@ase an adjacent warehouse facility with aboy@@Bsquare feet of space that we use for
product distribution and administrative functiombis lease expires in May 2006, with two additiofiad-year extensions.
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In Durham, North Carolina, we lease approximatély,000 square feet of administrative office anafabory space, of which we
sublease approximately 21,000 square feet to ffartes. This lease expires in October 2009, aftech Gilead has the option to renew for
two seven-year terms.

In addition, we lease approximately 141,000 sqfegtof space for our sales and marketing, reggjafmance, information technology
and human resource operations in Europe and Aisstiatluding a prepaid, 999-year lease for ouf@8,square foot manufacturing and
distribution facility in Ireland. The other leadasve various expiration dates.

We believe that our facilities are adequate anthblg for at least our current and near-term fuhaeds.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On September 4, 2003, Gilead entered into a Seattiedgreement and Release with University Licengeitly Holdings, Inc. (ULEHI)
and Archemix Corporation concerning rights to idfgraptamers using the SELEX technology licensedJb§HI to Gilead. The Settlement
Agreement and Release resolves disputes amongittiesparising out of Gilead’s assignment of riglt&dentify certain aptamers to
Archemix.

On September 2, 2003, the County of Westchester, Yk (“Westchester”) served Gilead with a comptdiled in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New Yowhich alleges that Gilead and a large numbettleéropharmaceutical manufacturer
defendants report prices for products that overstes Average Wholesale Price (“AWP”), allegedlffating reimbursement rates under the
Medicaid Program and causing Westchester to péiceity inflated prices for covered drugs inclugj, in the case of Gilead, Viread. In
addition, Westchester argues that the defendamtisiding Gilead, did not accurately report the ‘th@éce” under the Medicaid Program. The
complaint asserts varying claims under the fedRhalO statutes, their state law corollaries, as aglstate law claims for deceptive trade
practices and common law fraud. Gilead intendsdorously defend itself against the allegationse Tbmplaint seeks an undetermined
amount of damages, as well as other relief, inclgidieclaratory and injunctive relief. Other defemdan this lawsuit have been named in
numerous other lawsuits with comparable AWP allegat To our knowledge, Gilead has not been namékise other lawsuits. Were
Gilead to be named and served in other lawsuits @dmparable AWP allegations, adverse results amddlt in material damages.

A purported class action complaint was filed on Bimber 10, 2003 in the United States District Céurthe Northern District of
California against Gilead and our Company’s Chieé&utive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, ExecutiWice Presidents of Operations and
Research and Development, and Senior Vice Presidémianufacturing and Research. The complaingeliehat the defendants violated the
federal securities laws, specifically Sections }1@ftd 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 Rule 10b-5 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, by making certain allegedfated misleading statements. The plaintiff seelspecified damages on behalf of a
purported class of purchasers of the Gilead’s s&esiduring the period from July 14, 2003 througttober 28, 2003. Other similar actions
were subsequently filed and the court issued aeraronsolidating the lawsuits into a single actborDecember 22, 2003. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses to the allegations coadhin the complaint and intend to defend the gagarously. No trial date has been
scheduled. On February 9, 2004, the court issuextder appointing lead plaintiffs in the actiondahese lead plaintiffs have until March 25,
2004 to file a consolidated complaint.

In December 2003, two purported shareholder devedawsuits were filed by individual shareholdersbehalf of Gilead against its
directors and certain executive officers in the&igr Court of the State of California, County @rSMateo alleging, among other things, that
defendants violated the California Corporations €add breached fiduciary duties owing to Gileade&sl is named as a
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nominal defendant. The plaintiffs seek unspecitiathages on behalf of Gilead in connection withgaltkinsider trading during the period
between July 14, 2003 and October 28, 2003 andhdafes’ alleged breach of their fiduciary dutidsjse of control, waste and
mismanagement. The two cases were consolidatea isitogle action on January 15, 2004 and plairfiiésl a consolidated complaint on
February 12, 2004. No trial date has been schedWedntend to take all appropriate action to ddfear interests in connection with this
litigation.

We are also a party to various other legal actibasarose in the ordinary course of our businéssdo not believe that any of these
other legal actions will have a material adverspdnt on our business, results of operations onéiad position.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securit@ddrs during the quarter ended December 31, 2003.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RE LATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Stock &ankder the symbol “GILD”. The following table sdorth for the periods
indicated the high and low intiday sale prices per share of our common stock @Ndsdaqg Stock Market. These prices represent tijuot
among dealers without adjustments for retail magr&;umarkdowns or commissions, and may not reprgs@gs of actual transactions.

High Low

2003

First Quartel $43.2C $31.24
Second Quarte $57.37 $40.5¢
Third Quartel $70.61 $53.37
Fourth Quarte $61.65 $50.27
2002

First Quartel $39.0C $28.9:
Second Quarte $38.1¢  $28.0%
Third Quartel $37.25  $26.0¢
Fourth Quarte $40.0C $30.61

As of February 27, 2004, we had 213,780,787 sharesmmon stock outstanding held by approximatdly Stockholders of record. V
have not paid cash dividends on our common stawesiur inception and we do not anticipate payimgia the foreseeable future.

On December 18, 2002 we issued $345.0 million ofc@#tvertible senior notes due December 15, 20@7private offering to Goldma
Sachs & Co., which resold the notes to qualifiediintional investors. The notes are currently @otible into a total of 7,340,425 shares of
common stock at $47.00 per share. Net proceedsapgm@ximately $336.6 million.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA(1)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
OPERATIONS DATA:
Total revenue $ 867,86¢. $466,79( $ 233,76¢ $195,55: $168,97¢
In-process research and developn 488,59¢ — — —
Total costs and expens 1,026,53¢ 385,78: 354,45¢ 247,87 239,83¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (158,67 81,007 (120,68%) (52,31f¢) (70,859
Gain on sale of oncology ass — — 157,77 — —
Provision for (benefit from) income tax (95,530 1,30C 4,13t 1,19¢ 888
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of chang
accounting principle (72,009 72,097 51,182 (43,10¢) (66,48€)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle(2) — — 1,08¢ (13,670 —
Net income (loss $ (72,009 $ 72,097 $ 52,271 $(56,77€) $ (66,486
Amounts per common sh—basic:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
change in accounting princip $ (036 ¢ 037 % 027 $ (0.249 $ (0.39
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle — — 0.01 (0.07) —
Net income (loss) per shi—basic $ (036) $ 037 $ 028 $ (031 $ (0.39
Shares used in per share calcule—Dbasic 201,10¢ 195,54 _ 190,24f 182,09¢ 171,30¢
Amounts per common sh—diluted:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
change in accounting princip $ (036) $ 035 % 025 $ (0249 $ (0.39
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle — — 0.01 (0.07) —
Net income (loss) per shi—diluted $ (036 $ 035 % 026 $ (0.31) $ (0.39
Shares used in per share calcule—diluted 201,10t 20647, _ 202,327 _182,09¢ _171,30¢
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA (Continued)
(in thousands)

December 31

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

DATA:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable

securities $ 707,000 $ 942,37¢ $ 582,851 $ 512,87¢ $ 294,39:
Working capital 1,080,000 1,078,86¢ 627,64: 535,56( 324,10«
Total asset 1,554,72: 1,288,18: 794,78¢ 678,09¢  436,80¢
Long-term obligations 323 273 389 2,23¢ 5,252
Convertible deb 345,00( 595,00( 250,00( 250,00( 79,53:
Accumulated defici (453,647  (381,64() (453,737 (506,00¢) (449,237
Total stockholder equity(3) 1,002,97: 571,34! 452,431 351,12 297,29:

(1) During 2003, Gilead completed the acquisition bbéthe net assets of Triangle for an aggregatetmse price of $525.2 million.
Approximately $488.6 million of the purchase prigas allocated to iprocess research and development. Also during 2003ecorde
an income tax benefit of $111.6 million relatedte reduction of the valuation allowance on certdiour net deferred tax assets. Du
2002, we sold all of our shares of OSI common stk recognized a loss on the sale of marketablaites of $16.0 million. These
shares were partial consideration for the saleuobocology assets in 2001. During 2001, we coregi¢he sale of our oncology assets
and related technology to OSI Pharmaceuticals,dnd.recorded a non-operating gain of $157.8 millla 2001, we also recorded a
non-operating gain of $8.8 million from the saleoof 49 percent interest in Proligo.

(2) Gilead adopted Statement of Financial Accountiran&ards Nos. 133 and 138, collectively referrealst&FAS 133Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitigsthe first quarter of 2001. The change was actamlifor as a change in accounting
principle. Effective in the first quarter of 200Bilead adopted the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulléio. 101 (SAB 101)Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statementand the change was also accounted for as a clmageounting principle.

(3) No cash dividends have been declared or paid oo@mumon stock.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Executive Summary

We are a biopharmaceutical company that discodersslops and commercializes therapeutics to adviieceare of patients suffering
from life-threatening diseases. We are a multimati@ompany, with revenues from six approved prtsland marketing operations in ten
countries. We focus our research and clinical mogr on anti-infectives. Currently, we market Virg¢ehofovir disoproxil fumarate) and
Emtriva (emtricitabine) for the treatment of HIVféction; Hepsera (adefovir dipivoxil) for the trent of chronic hepatitis B infection;
AmBisome (amphotericin B liposome for injectioni, antifungal agent; and Vistide (cidofovir injectjcfor the treatment of CMV retinitis.
Roche markets Tamiflu (oseltamivir phosphate) fier treatment of influenza, under a royalty payioiaborative agreement with us. In
December 2003, we made the decision to disconsellimg DaunoXome (daunorubicin citrate liposomjedtion), a drug approved for the
treatment of Kaposi's Sarcoma. We are seeking dot@aur existing portfolio of products through dnternal discovery and clinical
development programs and through an
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active product acquisition and in-licensing strgtesyich as our acquisition of the assets of TrizwRlarmaceuticals, Inc. completed in
January 2003. Our internal discovery activitiedude identification of new molecular targets, targereening and medicinal chemistry. In
addition, we are currently developing clinical stggoducts to treat HIV infection and chronic héjsaB.

Our operating results for 2003 in comparison to2@@re characterized by solid growth in our key HiiNvg, Viread and represent our
second consecutive year of significant increaséstal product revenues. Based on independent plairty data, Viread has become one of
most widely prescribed antiretrovirals in its clagslirugs, achieving more new and total prescrithan competing drugs in the
nucleotide/nucleoside reverse transcriptase irgnilfiRTI) market. As a result of the growth of \aksales, higher than expected AmBis(
sales and controlled spending, we have generattiyeocash flow from operations for each of thet kavo years, with an increase to $234.6
million in 2003 from $74.4 million in 2002, or 215%&ar over year growth. We expect our HIV drug sabegrow in the near term, although
we expect it to be at a slower rate than we hapemanced in the past two years. Enabling this ¢fiasthe increasing importance of once-
daily regimens in prescribing HIV medications. Thailability of both Viread and Emtriva (acquiradr Triangle) now provide physicians
the ability to construct once-daily regimens.

Operating results for 2003 were impacted by theisipn of all of the assets of Triangle i n Jaryu2003. We completed this
acquisition to expand our antiviral pipeline. Tiggmwas a development stage company with a paatiéatus on potential therapies for HIV,
including AIDS, and the hepatitis B virus (HBV). &laggregate purchase price was $525.2 millionudicy cash paid of $463.1 million for
the outstanding stock, the fair value of stockapiassumed of $41.3 million, estimated directsaation costs of $14.2 million and
employee related costs of $6.6 million. Approxinha®488.6 million of the purchase price was allechto in-process research and
development and represented the fair value of §téasincomplete research and development programéadhnot yet reached technolog
feasibility and had no alternative future use athefacquisition date. As a result of this tranisacand the related in-process research and
development charge, our operating loss for 2003%&8.7 million versus operating income of $81.0iam in 2002. This acquisition was
important to us not only for the compounds we a@gljibut also for the opportunity it provided usteate a co-formulation of Viread and
Emtriva into a single pill that can be dosed ondaw If successful, we expect this co-formulatestipct to further grow our HIV franchise.
See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statemfentsirther information on the Triangle acquisitio

In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggassets to OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in a éretien valued at up to $200.0
million in cash and OSI stock. This transaction &lémwved us to focus on and continue to strengthercore expertise in infectious diseases.
See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statenfentsirther information.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiedbnform to the current presentation.

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

The following discussion contains forward-lookirtgtements that involve risks and uncertaintiesasdeead “Risk Factors that Affect
Gilead” in Part | for factors that could cause ontribute to material differences between thesedod-looking statements and actual results.
The “Risk Factors” discussion should be read inuaction with the consolidated financial statemeard notes included elsewhere in this
report.
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Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates and Judgmets

This discussion and analysis of financial conditonl results of operations is based upon our cintaget financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the United Statbe freparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgriat affect the reported amounts of assets|itias, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosures. On an on-going basis, we at@lour estimates, including those related to neeeacognition, bad debts, inventories,
accrued clinical and preclinical expenses, incoaxes and contingencies. We base our estimatestonibal experience and on various other
market-specific assumptions that are believed teebsonable under the circumstances, the resulthioh form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assetsiahitlities that are not readily apparent from otkeurces. Actual results, however, n
differ significantly from these estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting poésireflect the more significant judgments and estédm used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements:

« We record estimated reductions to revenue for gegeeturns of expired products, government repaigrams, such as Medicaid
reimbursements, and customer incentives, suchsdsdiscounts for prompt payment. Estimates for gawent rebate programs and
cash discounts are based on contractual termsricggtutilization rates and expectations regardirigre utilization rates for these
programs. Estimates for product returns, includieg products, are based on an on-going analysiglastry and historical return
patterns. This includes monitoring the feedback weareceive from our sales force regarding custame and satisfaction, the
purchase of third-party data to assist us in moimigochannel inventory levels and subsequent pitgmns as well as, for new
products, a review of our other long shelf life gwots we have sold through the same or similarmélanFurther, we monitor the
activities and clinical trials of our key competig@and assess the potential impact on our futdes sad return expectations where
necessary. Expected returns for our marketed daitgygenerally low because the shelf life for tha®elucts ranges from 24 months
for Viread up to 36 months for AmBisome in the UfSonditions become more competitive for anytef markets served by our
drugs or if other circumstances change, we mayaakens to increase our product return estimategeomay offer additional
customer incentives. This would result in an inceetal reduction of future revenue at the time #tam estimate is changed or
incentives are offered. For example, between 20022803, we increased our reserve for governmaobdints on Viread sales by
more than 3% as a result of our review of histdnitdization rates and the impact of a 2003 -year price increase for Viread. V



could see similar increases in the future basegortontinued reviews of utilization rates and poyential U.S. price increases for
Viread.

* We also maintain an allowance for doubtful accotmt®stimated losses resulting from the inabitifyour customers to make
required payments. This allowance is based on malysis of several factors including, but not lieditto, historical payment patterns
of our customers and individual customer circumstanan analysis of days sales outstanding by mestand geographic region, and
a review of the local economic environment angd@tential impact on the government funding and beireement practices. If the
financial condition of our customers or the ecormamvironment in which they operate were to detat& resulting in an inability to
make payments, additional allowances may be redu@er allowance for doubtful accounts balance psraentage of total accounts
receivable did not materially change from Decengir2002 to December 31, 2003. We believe thaallbgvance for doubtful
accounts is adequate to cover anticipated lossdsr wurrent conditions; however, significant deteation in any of the above factors,
especially with respect to the government funding seimbursement practices in the European macketd materially change these
expectations and result in an increase to our alime for doubtful accounts.
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« We write down our inventory based on historicalieewof the quantity of raw material bad batchesegignced in a given year and
expectations of production and inventory levels. 8lg® perform quality control reviews of our indlual raw material batches. We
generally do not maintain inventory reserves basedstimated obsolescence or risk of competitiamamily because the shelf life of
the products is long. However, if our current agstioms about future production or inventory levelesmand and competition were to
change and if actual market conditions are lessréhle than those projected by management, additiomentory reserves may be
required which could negatively impact our prodgiciss margins.

« We record accruals for estimated clinical and pnésal study costs. Most of our clinical and praatal studies are performed by th
party contract research organizations (CROs). Thests are a significant component of researchdamdlopment expenses. During
2003, 2002, and 2001, we incurred $15.0 millior8.92million and $33.6 million, respectively, of CR®Osts. We accrue costs for
clinical studies performed by CROs on a straighé-Ibasis over the term of the service period afjusadur estimates, if required,
based upon our ogeing review of the level of effort actually incad by the CRO. Initially we estimate that the wpekformed unde
the contracts occurs ratably over the periodséattpected milestone, event or total contract cetigpl date. The expected
completion dates are estimated based upon the tdrthe contracts and past experience with singitentracts. These estimates ma
may not match the actual services performed bythanizations as determined by patient enrollmevels and other measures of
activities specified in the contract. As a reswk, validate our accruals quarterly through writtendor confirmations and detailed
reviews of the activities performed under each i@t Based upon the results of these validatiocgsses, we assess the
appropriateness of our accruals and make any atjmss we deem necessary so that our expensed thieactual effort incurred by
the CROs. Generally, a significant portion of tbtlk costs are associated with start up activibeshe trial and patient enroliment.
Gilead extensively outsources its clinical triafieities and usually performs only a small portigfithe start-up activities in-house. As
a result, CROs typically perform most of the tati@rt-up activities for our trials, including docant preparation, site identification,
screening and preparation, pre-study visits, tnginand program management. On a budgeted bas$® tlosts are typically 25% to
30% of the total contract value. On an actual bakis percentage range is significantly wider @synof our contracts are either
expanded or contracted in scope compared to th@atibudget while the start-up costs for the patér trial do not change
significantly. Start-up costs usually occur witkifiew months after the contract has been estalllishd are milestone or event driven
in nature. The remaining activities and relateds;aguch as patient monitoring and administratigmmerally occur ratably throughout
the life of the individual contract or study. Masintracts are negotiated as fixed price and canimdength between six months for a
single dose Phase 1 study and up to two years o fona more complex Phase 3 study. The averamgghef contract for 2002 and
2003 has been at the upper end of this range &r ¢odorovide long term safety and efficacy dataupport the commercial launches
of Viread, Hepsera and Emtriva. Through DecembefB03, we have not understated or overstatedigciiwels for any particular
study such that a material adjustment was requitaf our material CRO contracts are terminabjeus upon written notice and
Gilead is generally only liable for actual efforpended by the CRO at any point in time duringdbetract, regardless of payment
status. Amounts paid in advance of services beamfppned will be refunded if a contract is termadhtHowever, if managemedoes
not receive complete and accurate information foomvendors or has underestimated activity levet®eiated with a study at a given
point in time, we would have to record additionadlgotentially significant research and developnaxpienses in future periods.

« We develop our income tax provision including defdrtax assets and liabilities based on significaamagement judgment. We
record a valuation allowance to reduce our defetazd
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assets to the amount that is likely to be realixée.consider future taxable income, ongoing taxpiieg strategies and our historical
financial performance in assessing the need f@al@ation allowance. If it were determined that wad be able to realize certain
deferred tax assets related to the valuation alloeaan adjustment to the deferred tax asset woatdase income in the period in
which such determination was made. Such an adjudtwas made in the fourth quarter of 2003 when eternined that it was more
likely than not that certain of our deferred tazets will be realized and therefore released tlae valuation allowance. This
resulted in an income tax benefit of approximagl{ 1.6 milion. Likewise, if we determine that wewldnot be able to realize all or
part of our deferred tax asset in the future, gastichent to the deferred tax asset would be chai@édtome in the period in which
such determination was made. We evaluate the itgititizof our deferred tax assets on a quartedgib. Our future effective tax rate
may be affected by such factors as changes iratex br rates, changes in interpretation to thegse &énd overall changes in future
levels of earnings and research and developmentapithl spending.

Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting policies with thedit Committee of Gilead’s
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee haseemd the disclosure presented above relating to.the
Results of Operations
Total revenues

We had total revenue of $867.9 million in 2003, &&86million in 2002 and $233.8 million in 2001. lnded in total revenue are net
product sales, royalty revenue and contract revanakiding revenue from research & development [R&nd manufacturing collaboratiol
Product sales consisted of the following (in thowsy:

Product sale:

2003 Change 2002 Change 2001
Viread $566,47¢ 151% $22581F 134% $ 15,58€
AmBisome 198,35( 7%  185,66¢ 13% 164,53
Other 71,511 477% 12,39t 14% 10,851
Total product sale $836,34. 970, $423,87¢ 122 $190,97(

Product sales increased 97% in 2003 compared & @0®arily due to significant increases in sale¥ioead for HIV, which was
approved for sale in the U.S. in October 2001 &ed&uropean Union in February 2002 and has sincenoe an antiretroviral therapy widely
prescribed by physicians. A significant percentafjeur product sales continue to be denominatddrgign currencies. Prior to 2002, we did
not hedge our exposure to the impact of fluctuatimgign exchange rates on forecasted sales. imda2002, we began to use forward
contracts to hedge a percentage of our forecasterhational sales, primarily those denominatetthénEuro currency. This reduces, but does
not eliminate, fluctuations in sales due to charngédsreign currency exchange rates. Losses orettemsnue hedges reduced product
revenues by $2.8 million in 2003 and $1.0 millior2002.

Sales of Viread were 68% of total product sale®0@3, compared to 53% of total product sales irR208d 8% of total product sales in
2001. Of the Viread sales in 2003, $355.9 milliczrevU.S. sales, an increase of 113% versus 208Z240.6 million were international
sales, an increase of 258% versus 2002. With theénzeed market expansion of Viread, we expect \drgales in 2004 to grow approximat
25% to 30% and be in the range of $700 million 6 million.
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During 2003, we experienced significant fluctuasiam U.S. distribution channel inventory levels daepeculative purchasing by the
major wholesalers. As a result, we experienceceamed quarter to quarter sales volatility from eh@serchasing patterns. While we have
enacted certain policies to reduce this type o€lpasing and are in discussions with our key whigdesawe expect to continue to experience
sales volatility for the foreseeable future.

Prior to 2002, our revenues were primarily derifredn sales of AmBisome, which represented 44% @l foroduct sales in 2002 and
86% of total product sales in 2001. AmBisome saleZ)03 were $21.7 million higher due to the falabeacurrency environment comparec
2002. On a volume basis, AmBisome sales in Eurepeedised by 5% compared to 2002 due to increasmgetition. Excluding the impact
of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollamBisome sales grew 9% for 2002 over 2001. Theeiase in sales in 2002 compared to 2001
was primarily due to volume sales increases in peyravhich offset declining sales in the U.S. Witk £xpected increase in competition, we
expect AmBisome sales for 2004 to be lower thar820@ in the range of $160 million to $180 million.

Royalty Revenu

We recorded royalty revenue of $25.2 million in 3p6ompared with $20.4 million in 2002 and $23.0Uior in 2001. During this three-
year period, the most significant source of royadtyenue was from sales of AmBisome in the U.Sriljisawa under a -promotion
arrangement with us. Royalty revenue from Fujisaaa $12.5 million in 2003, compared with $15.7 ioiilin 2002 and $17.1 million in
2001.

We also recorded royalty revenue of $12.0 millier2003, $3.4 million in 2002 and $4.5 million in®related to sales of Tamiflu. We
began recognizing royalties from Tamiflu in thesfiquarter of 2000. In June 2002, Roche receivedgaan regulatory approval of Tamiflu
for the treatment of influenza in adults and claldand prevention in adolescents and adults. isdifficult to estimate third party product
sales, we record royalty revenue one quarter Eaasr Due to this lag in reporting, the royaltielated to the severe flu epidemic in the U.¢
the fourth quarter of 2003 will be recorded in finst quarter of 2004.

Contract Revenue

Total contract revenue was $6.3 million in 2003npared with $22.5 million in 2002 and $19.8 million2001. In 2002 and 2001 a
primary source of contract revenue was our licemsiinthe SELEX process patent estate to Archemitricky due to collectibility concerns,
recognized as the cash was received. This prowidettact revenue of $8.1 million in 2002 and $8iBiom in 2001. In 2002, Roche made
milestone payments of $8.0 million for the Europpamphylaxis and treatment approvals of Tamiflud &n2001 made a $2.0 million
milestone payment relating to the development afifla under an R&D collaboration agreement. As @d@ember 31, 2003, we are entitled
to additional milestone payments of up to $1.6iomllupon Roche achieving certain developmentalragdlatory milestones.

In April 2002, Gilead and GSK entered into a lidagsagreement providing GSK the rights to commdima@aHepsera , our antiviral for
the treatment of chronic hepatitis B, in Asia, hatimerica and certain other territories. Underdabgeeement, Gilead retained rights to Hep
in the U.S., Canada, Eastern and Western Europsralia and New Zealand. GSK received exclusivitsigo develop Hepsera solely for the
treatment of chronic hepatitis B in all of its fagries, the most significant of which include CajriKorea, Japan and Taiwan. GSK paid us an
up-front licensing fee of $10.0 million and, mayp# to an additional $30.0 million upon achievet®nGSK of certain regulatory,
development and commercial milestones. Of this@&dllion, $2.0 million was received for the U.Syaioval of Hepsera in September 2002
and $2.0 million was received for the Canadian eygrof Hepsera in August 2003. GSK also will payaroyalty on net sales, if any, of
Hepsera in the GSK territories. GSK will have full
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responsibility for development and commercializatid Hepsera in GSK'’s territories. The $10.0 milligp-front fee and $4.0 million of
approval milestone fees have been recorded asdéfervenue with a total of $0.9 million and $0.#Hion being recognized as contract
revenue in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The $12l®mbalance of deferred revenue at Decembe2803 will be amortized into contract
revenue over the period of our remaining obligatiander the agreement, approximately 12 years.

In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggaassets to OSI. To date, we have received $180lion in cash and $38.8
million in OSI stock from this sale. Under this agment, we are entitled to additional payments f@®h of up to $30.0 million in either cash
or a combination of cash and OSI stock if and w&i reaches certain development milestones for MX the most advanced of the
oncology product candidates sold to OSI. Undelated manufacturing agreement, we will produce N and GS 7904L, the two
liposomal products included in the sale at our nfiacturing facility in San Dimas, California. In 28@nd 2002, we recognized $1.1 million
and $3.3 million, respectively, of contract revenmeler this manufacturing agreement.

In October 2001, we entered into an agreement Aithemix Corporation relating to our SELEX techrgpjoUnder this agreement, we
gave Archemix exclusive rights to the SELEX pro¢c@ssluding therapeutic and other commercial agions to the extent not already
licensed under pre-existing agreements. Archemik fgaus $8.5 million in 2002 and $9.0 million iI0@L and recorded the net amounts of
$8.1 million and $8.6 million as contract revenne002 and 2001, respectively. As required by menke agreement with ULEHI, we paid
5% of the $8.5 million and $9.0 million paymentdtbEHI. We also received a warrant to purchase @80 shares of Archemix common
stock, the value of which is not material. As regdiby our license agreement with ULEHI, we tramsig 5% of this warrant to ULEHI at
that time. We have since transferred the remaiafifhre warrant to ULEHI.

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement withiTegh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to our pré@neaptamer EYEOQOL, currently
known as Macugen. Currently in Phase 3 clinicaldriMacugen is an inhibitor of vascular endothejfawth factor, or VEGF, which is
known to play a role in the development of certgdhthalmic diseases. Under the terms of the agnegBgeTech received worldwide rights
to all therapeutic uses of Macugen, and, if thalpob is successfully commercialized, EyeTech wa¥ pis royalties on worldwide sales of the
product. EyeTech also will be responsible for efigarch and development costs. We provided clisiggplies of the product to EyeTech
through March 2001. We received a $7.0 million tgnf licensing fee from EyeTech in April 2000, wiilkas been recognized as revenue
ratably over the one-year supply agreement peAodordingly, $5.2 million of the license fee waswoeded as contract revenue in 2000, and
$1.8 million was recognized as revenue in 2001.a¢ealso entitled to additional cash payments fegr@Tech of up to $25.0 million if and
when EyeTech reaches certain Macugen developmdgstories. Additionally, we received a warrant tochase 791,667 shares of EyeTech
series B convertible preferred stock, exercisabiemice of $6.00 per share, the price at whiehstiock was issued to other investors. In
January 2004, EyeTech completed its initial pubffering. We intend to exercise our warrant forreisaof common stock and sell the shares
subject to a 180-day loakp period. The fair value of the warrant has bejnsted in the first quarter of 2004 as a resuthefEyeTech publ
offering.

Cost of Goods Sold
The following table indicates cost of goods sotdtfiousands):

2003 Change 2002 Change 2001
Cost of goods sol $112,697 62% $69,72¢ 59% $43,76¢

Substantially all of the increase from each yearetar period can be attributed to increases ivttheme of Viread sold, as this product
was launched in the U.S. late in the third quasfe2001.
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Gross Margins

Product gross margins were 86.5% in 2003, compaitd83.6% in 2002 and 77.1% in 2001. The improvenieom 2002 to 2003 and
2001 to 2002 is primarily driven by product mix\dsead, a higher margin product, contributed magaificantly to net product sales in each
succeeding year.

Movements in foreign currency exchange rates atgmct gross margins as we price our products icaiheency of the country into
which the products are sold while a significantoniéy of our manufacturing costs are in U.S. Ddlldfor example, an increase in the vall
these foreign currencies relative to the U.S. Dalifl positively impact gross margins since ourmagacturing costs will remain
approximately the same while our revenues aftargoganslated into U.S. Dollars, will increase2003 and 2002, gross margins were
positively impacted by the weakening U.S. dollaile/in 2001, gross margins were negatively impatigthese factors. Since 2002, forward
contracts have been used to hedge a percentage fafrecasted international sales, which can redlueémpact that changes in foreign
currency exchange rates have on our gross maigxegpt for the potential impact of unpredictabld ancontrollable changes in exchange
rates relative to the U.S. Dollar and the mix afdarct sales between Viread, Hepsera and AmBisorma@xpect gross margins in 2004 to
remain relatively stable compared to 2003.

Research and Development Exper

In 2003, R&D expenses were 31% of total costs apereses, excluding purchased in-process reseadciearelopment expense. In
total, R&D expenses were $164.9 million in 2003npared with $134.8 million in 2002 and $185.6 roitlin 2001. The major components
of R&D expenses consist of personnel costs, inolydalaries and benefits, clinical studies perfarime contract research organizations,
materials and supplies, and overhead allocationsisting of various support and facilities relatedts. Our R&D activities are also separi
into three main categories: research, clinical igraent and pharmaceutical development. Reseastk tpically consist of preclinical and
toxicology work. Clinical development costs incluglease 1, 2, and 3 clinical trials as well as edpdraccess programs. Pharmaceutical
development costs consist of product formulatioth eimemical analysis.

The following table breaks down research and deretnt expenses into these major components (irsémals):

2003 Change 2002 Change 2001
Researcl $ 37,497 35% $ 27,85¢ (9% $ 30,53t
Clinical developmen 90,547 10% 82,261 (23)% 107,22¢
Pharmaceutical developme 36,82¢  49% 24,641 (3)% 25,39z
Oncology (divested — i — 22,3917
Total $164,87¢ 229 $134,75¢ (27)p, $185,55¢

T he $30.1 million increase in R&D spending in 28@3sus 2002 was attributable to increased heademdhthe clinical trials
associated with the development of Emtriva ancctiiéormulation of Viread and Emtriva. In additiayring 2003, we settled a contractual
dispute with a vendor that resulted in reimbursentens of $13.2 million that was recorded to reskand development expense.e/éxpec
R&D expenses in 2004 to be approximately $200 arilio $220 million, or approximately 20% to 30%lieg than 2003 expenses, due
primarily to costs associated with the developnuénhe fixed-dose combination of Viread and Emtriva

The $50.8 million decrease in R&D spending in 2606hpared to 2001 was primarily due to the redudticexpenses associated with
the clinical program for Viread, which was approwmsdthe FDA for sale in the U.S. in October 2001d ¢he elimination of expenses
associated with our oncology program as
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a result of the sale of that program to OSI in Delzer 2001 . Additionally, in 2001 we recognizedceapense $10.6 million of a $13.0 million
up-front license fee paid to Cubist Pharmaceuticgbted to the European licensing agreement fptaaycin, also known as Cidecin, signed
in January 2001. Upon termination of this agreenme®eptember 2002, we recorded $2.0 million of R&fpense, which represented the
remaining unamortized asset related to the predirural formulation of daptomycin .

Industry reports indicate that a biopharmaceuticahpany generally takes 10 to 15 years (an averBfj2 years) to research, develop
and bring to market a new prescription medicinthU.S. These averages are generally consistémthvg projects that we develop
internally, although our recent product developnignelines have been on a more accelerated basig. d®velopment in the U.S. is a
process that includes several steps defined bife The process begins with the filing of an INEhich, if successful, allows opportunity
for clinical study of the potential new medicindin@al development typically involves three phaséstudy: Phase 1, 2, and 3, and generally
accounts for an average of seven years of a dtaggikdevelopment time. The most significant cestsociated with clinical development are
the Phase 3 trials as they tend to be the longeslaagest studies conducted during the drug dewedmt process. We currently have products
in development that are in Phase 3 studies. Theesstul development of our products is highly utaer Completion dates and R&D
expenses can vary significantly for each produdtare difficult to predict. Even after successfevelopment and FDA approval of a prod:
we undertake additional studies to try and expaedtoduct’s label and market potential. For a noaraplete discussion of the risks and
uncertainties associated with completing the dgaraknt of products, see the “Risk Factors That Aftgitead” section of Item | above.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
The following table highlights selling, general amiministrative expenses (in thousands):

2003 Change 2002 Change 2001
Selling, general and administrati $250,157 38% $181,301 45% $125,14!

The increase in expenses in 2003 compared to 2002marily due to our global sales and marketiffigres, including the expansion of
our U.S. and European sales forces and increafagtimicture investments required to support tloevgir of our business.

The increase in expenses in 2002 compared to 20marily due to our global sales and marketifigres, including the expansion of
our U.S. and European sales forces to supportaimmercial launches of Viread and Hepsera.

In 2004, we expect SG&A expenses to be approxim&@10 million to $330 million, or 25% to 30% highteéan 2003 levels, primarily
due to the increase in marketing activities assediaith the continued promotion of Viread, Emtritdepsera and AmBisome.

In-process Research and Development

In connection with the acquisition of the net assétTriangle completed in January 2003, we reabiderocess research and
development expenses of $488.6 million in the fitsarter of 2003. The charge was due to Triandgte'smplete research and development
programs that had not yet reached technologicalbféity and had no alternative future use as efdlquisition date.

The remaining efforts for completion of Triangleésearch and development projects primarily cowdistinical trials, the cost, length
and success of which are extremely difficult todice Numerous risks and uncertainties exist tloatd prevent completion of development,
including the ability to enroll patients in clinidaials, the possibility of unfavorable resultsadr clinical trials, and the risk of failing to
obtain FDA and other regulatory body approvals.dbeek from regulatory authorities or results from
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clinical trials might require modifications or dgtain later stage clinical trials or additionahbts to be performed. We cannot be certain that
emtricitabine for the treatment of chronic hepatii purchased from Triangle, will be approvedhe U.S. or the European Union or whether
marketing approvals will have significant limitati® on its use. We have terminated our rights véfipect to the other potential products that
we acquired with the acquisition of Triangle. Weaatlo not yet have approval of the fixed-dose coatimn product containing tenofovir DF
and emtricitabine. Future discussions with reguagmencies will determine the amount of data ndedhel timelines for review, which may
differ materially from current projections. The aggd products under development may never be seftdey commercialized. Emtriva, for
example, is a product with many similarities toestkxisting products. As a result, it may be diffico successfully penetrate the market and
to achieve significant revenues. In addition, ecitttbine for the treatment of chronic hepatitisaBds significant uncertainties associated with
pricing, efficacy, and the cost to produce that mat/be successfully resolved. As a result, we make a strategic decision to discontinue
development of this product, as we did with clemedand amdoxovir, if we believe commercializatiah e difficult relative to other
opportunities in our pipeline. If these programsra# be completed on a timely basis or at all, tnnprospects for future revenue growth
would be adversely impacted.

The value of the acquired in-process research amdlopment was determined by estimating the relatiedle net cash flows between
2003 and 2020 using a present value risk adjusseduant rate of 15.75%. This discount rate is aifiitant assumption and is based on our
estimated weighted average cost of capital adjugpedhrd for the risks associated with the projactguired. The projected cash flows from
the acquired projects were based on estimatewvehoes and operating profits related to the prsjeghsidering the stage of development of
each potential product acquired, the time and mressuneeded to complete the development and agmbeach product, the life of each
potential commercialized product and associatéd fiiscluding the inherent difficulties and uncemtas in developing a drug compound
including obtaining FDA and other regulatory apmisy and risks related to the viability of and mbie alternative treatments in any future
target markets.

Asset Impairmer

During 2003, we recorded an asset impairment chair§&0.2 million on certain of our long-lived assegrimarily leasehold
improvements, manufacturing and laboratory equigmgms non-cash charge was driven by the decisidbecember 2003 to terminate our
liposomal research and development activities im Bianas and discontinue the DaunoXome product Tie impairment was based on our
analysis of the undiscounted cash flows to be gaedifrom the affected assets as compared todheiing value. As the carrying value
exceeded the related estimated undiscounted aash, flve wrote the carrying value of the ldhgd assets down to their estimated fair va

Gain on Sale of Oncology Assets

In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggassets, pipeline of clinical stage oncologydurcts and related intellectual
property, as well as our Boulder, Colorado operetjancluding clinical research and drug developnpensonnel, infrastructure and faciliti
to OSI. The pipeline of clinical candidates incladéX 211 (liposomal lurtotecan), GS 7836 (a nudd®manalogue) and GS 7904L (a
liposomal thymidylate synthase inhibitor). On thesing date, we received $130.0 million in cash @&l common stock valued at
approximately $38.8 million. We recorded a non-agieg gain of $157.8 million and income taxes of3d@iillion in the fourth quarter of
2001 as a result of this transaction.

Loss on Sale of Marketable Securit

In July 2002, we sold all of our remaining share®8! common stock for approximately $22.0 millidthese shares were partial
consideration for the sale of our oncology asse3$l! in
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December 2001, at which time they were recordedfair market value of approximately $38.0 millidn.connection with the sale of these
remaining shares, we recognized a non-operatirggdbapproximately $16.0 million in the year enddtember 31, 2002.

Gain on Sale of Unconsolidated Affiliate

In August 2001, we sold our 49 percent interefroligo L.L.C. (Proligo) to Degussa Corporation $i4.3 million in cash. Proligo was
a joint venture between us and SKW Americas, lncu$ed on the manufacturing of oligonucleotidesWSKmericas, a subsidiary of
Degussa Corporation, held the remaining 51 pemeRtoligo. The proceeds, net of our investmerRiioligo, are reflected as an $8.8 million
gain on the sale of unconsolidated affiliate in 200

Interest and Other Income, r

We recorded interest and other income of $13.0aniih 2003, compared with $22.3 million in 2002$25.6 million in 2001. The
decrease in 2003 compared to 2002 is attributaktleet significant decline in interest rates andveelr average cash balance due to the
acquisition of the net assets of Triangle and tivetpase of our Foster City campus, partially offsepositive cash flow from operations. The
decrease in 2002 compared to 2001 is attributakileet significant decline in interest rates, pdlitiaffset by a higher average cash balance
due to positive cash flow from operations and ®ploceeds from the sale of the oncology assé@StoInterest income in 2004 will depend
principally upon prevailing interest rates, overiethwe have no control and the level of our caslsheequivalent and marketable securities
balances.

Interest Expens

We incurred interest expense of $21.9 million i®20compared with $13.9 million in 2002 and $14i0iom in 2001. The significant
increase in 2003 over 2002 is due to the full ydanterest on our $345.0 million 2% convertiblege notes, issued in December 2002.
Interest expense for 2002 and 2001 consisted pitinadrinterest on the $250.0 million 5.0% convbhé subordinated notes, which were
converted to common stock in December 2003. Weabipterest expense in 2004 to decrease as compétle@003 primarily due to the
redemption of the $250.0 million 5% convertible sudinated notes in December 2003.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Tax

Our provision for (benefit from) income taxes w&8%.5) million, $1.3 million and $4.1 million in B8, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The benefit in 2003 includes the reversal of odnation allowance against certain of our defereedassets. In December of 2003, we
concluded that it was more likely than not thatwmald realize a portion of the benefit related tw deferred tax assets. Accordingly, we
reduced the valuation allowance against the assetsecorded a tax benefit of $111.6 million. Teéeognition of these deferred tax assets
no impact on our current period cash flows. Thegedion of these deferred tax assets increasemtegpearnings per share due to the
resulting benefit recorded in the statement of afi@ns from the reduction in our valuation allowankartially offsetting the tax benefit
recorded is income tax expense associated withrira@arned by our foreign subsidiaries, foreigndess lower rates and the non-tax
deductibility of the purchased in-process researahdevelopment charge. We had significant netadipgy losses reducing our U.S. liability.
Excluding the benefit relating to the reversal of valuation allowance, and the write off of purshd in-process research and development,
our effective tax rate for 2003 was 5%. For 2004,expect our effective tax rate to be in the 32%5% range for the full year, reflecting a
more normalized tax rate going forward.
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The income tax expense in 2002 and 2001 was ptiyrassociated with income earned by our foreigrsilibiries as we had significant
net operating losses, which reduced our U.S. &bility. The significant increases in income tayense in 2001 resulted principally from the
gain on the sale of our oncology assets to OShfich we recorded approximately $3.3 million ofiéeal and state alternative minimum
taxes. The provision for 2002 was reduced by aghamthe U.S. income tax law. This law allowed oy¢rating loss carryforward
deductions to offset 100% of alternative minimumxatale income, resulting in a reduction of U.S. imeotax recorded in the previous year
$1.3 million.

Equity in Loss of Unconsolidated Affilie

In 2001, we recorded $2.1 million as our equityhia loss of our unconsolidated affiliate, Prolige sold our 49 percent interest in
August 2001.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In 2001, we adopted SFAS 13%;counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, which resulted in a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle of $1.1 million. $égte 2 to the consolidated financial statementdudher discussion.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securitigledo$707.0 million at December 31, 2003, dowm$942.4 million at December ¢
2002. The decrease of $235.4 million was primatilg to the acquisition of Triangle, for which thet nash impact was $375.5 million, and
the purchase of our Foster City campus for $123llom Other major sources and uses of cash iredudet cash provided by operations of
$234.6 million and proceeds from issuances of stoaler employee stock plans of $83.8 million, @distioffset by additional capital
expenditures of $38.6 millio



Working capital at December 31, 2003 was $1,080lkom compared to $1,078.9 million at December 3@02. Significant changes in
working capital during 2003 included a $97.1 millimcrease in accounts receivable, a $46.5 milliorease in inventory and a $197.6
million increase in current deferred tax asset® atcounts receivable increase was primarily duecteased sales of Viread in the U.S. and
Europe. The $46.5 million increase in inventory \wasmarily due to an increase in the purchase wfmraaterials and the production of Viread
inventory to meet increasing sales demand. The $18ilion increase in current deferred tax assets due to the reversal of the valuation
allowance against certain of our net deferred &et. The $6.1 million increase in accounts pa&yiahprimarily due to increases in our raw
material purchases in support of Viread sales drowt

Significant changes in current liabilities durin@d3 included a $44.5 million increase in accruedilities. The significant components
of the $44.5 million increase in accrued liabilti@xclusive of the assumed liabilities associatild the acquisition of the net assets of
Triangle, consist of a $44.2 million increase ihestaccrued liabilities and a $6.2 million increasaccrued compensation and employee
benefits, partially offset by a $5.9 million decsean accrued clinical and preclinical expenseg $44.2 million increase in other accrued
liabilities is primarily due to Medicaid rebate @ations associated with higher sales of Vireadnarease in our income taxes payable ar
increase in the recorded liability associated whthfair value of our forward currency contractee™6.2 million increase in accrued
compensation is primarily due to increased bongsuats and the expansion of our sales force. Th& B8lion decrease in accrued clinical
and preclinical expenses is primarily due to desirgpactivity associated with the clinical triabgrams for Viread and Hepsera.

In addition to the purchase of our Foster City cagpve made capital expenditures of $38.6 millin2003, compared to $17.6 million
in 2002 and $26.3 million in 2001. These expendgwvere primarily for facilities improvements ta&cammodate our growth, as well as for
laboratory and manufacturing
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equipment. Capital expenditures related to reseandndevelopment were between 50% and 60% of 86 $8illion spent in 2003, 20% to
25% of the $17.6 million spent in 2002 and 50%@&w6of the $26.3 million spent in 2001. We expeat @apital spending for 2004 to be
$55.0 million to $65.0 million due to increasedrasdtructure needs and higher R&D spending assdcigitd the pilot plant we are
constructing at our Foster City facilities.

In December 2002, we issued $345.0 million of 2%wveotible senior notes due December 15, 2007 invate offering. The notes are
currently convertible into a total of up to 7,34864shares of Gilead common stock at $47.00 peeshi&e $47.00 conversion price was
higher than Gilead’s common stock price at the siogsésuance date. The notes are redeemable in whalepart, at our option, at any time
or after June 19, 2004, at specified redemptiocegrplus accrued interest. Debt issuance cosi®.4fillion incurred in connection with the
issuance of the notes were recorded as other nemtw@assets, and are being amortized to intergstnese on a straight-line basis over the
contractual term of the notes.

In December 2000, we issued $250.0 million of 5%vestible subordinated notes due December 15, RD@private offering. The
notes were convertible into a total of up to 10,1718 shares of Gilead common stock at $24.5625keme. The $24.5625 conversion price
was higher than Gilead’'s common stock price aniites’ issuance date. Gilead called the $250.0ami8% convertible subordinated notes
for redemption in November 2003 and converted tte@ilead common stock in December 2003. Upon dmversion, the $4.6 million
remaining balance of the related debt issuance eess reclassified to additional paid in capital.

We believe that our existing capital resourcespkmpented by cash generated from our operatiotishevadequate to satisfy our capital
needs for the foreseeable future. Our future chtpuirements will depend on many factors, inahggdi

« the commercial performance of our current and ipnoducts,

« the progress and scope of our research and devetamfforts, including preclinical studies, andhidal trials,
 the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory reviews,

« the expansion of our sales and marketing capasiliti

< administrative expenses,

 the costs associated with our no-profit Global Ascprogram for least developed nations,

« the possibility of acquiring manufacturing capahab or office facilities,

« the possibility of acquiring other companies or mawducts, and

« the establishment of additional collaborative iielahips with other companies.

We may in the future require additional funding,iethcould be in the form of proceeds from equitydebt financings, such as from our
universal shelf registration filing in December 200r the potential issuance of up to $500.0 millaf our securities, or additional
collaborative agreements with corporate partnésudh funding is required, we cannot assure thatllibe available on favorable terms, if at
all.

Subsidiaries and Other

We have established a variety of subsidiaries ffoua countries for the purpose of conducting besénin those locations. All of these
subsidiaries are consolidated in our financialestegnts. We do not have any “special purpose” estitiat are unconsolidated in our financial
statements. We are also

47




not involved in any non-exchange traded commoditytiacts accounted for at fair value. We have moroercial commitments with related
parties, except for employee loans.
Contractual Obligations

We have contractual obligations in the form of tal@nd operating leases, notes payable, raw rabsenpply arrangements and clinical
research organization contracts.

The following table summarizes these contractufigabons (in thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less than one More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Long-term debt obligation $345,000 $ — $ — $345000 $ —
Capital lease obligatior 563 196 367 — —
Operating lease obligatiol 55,23¢ 7,03€ 25,16¢ 12,83¢ 10,19t
Capital commitments(1 15,70( 15,70( — — —
Inventory purchase obligations( 70,53¢ 36,637 33,89¢ — —
Clinical trials(3) 53,63¢ 41,631 8,631 3,37€ —
Total $540,67¢ $101,20C $68,06¢ $361,21« $10,19¢

(1) At December 31, 2003, we had firm capital projepnhmitments of approximately $15.7 million, relatecbur chemical development
pilot plant currently under construction at our feo<City facility. Our budgeted capital expenditsifer 2004 are significantly higher and
we anticipate increasing our capital spending torkiyears.

(2) At December 31, 2003, we had firm commitments tpase inventory-related materials. The amountdatisd only represent
minimum purchase requirements. Actual purchasesdiffgr significantly from these amounts.

(3) At December 31, 2003, we had several clinical i various clinical trial phases. Our most gigant expenditures are to contract
research organizations. Although most contractsaneelable, we generally have not cancelled cotstrdhese amounts reflect
commitments based on existing contracts and doefigct any future modifications to existing comtiaand anticipated or potential new
contracts.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretaio. 46 (FIN 46)Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitiesin Interpretation of
ARB No. 51. FIN 46 requires certain variable instrentities to be consolidated by the primary biereafy of the entity if the equity investors
in the entity do not have the characteristics obatrolling financial interest or do not have scint equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated finan@apport from other parties. FIN 46 is effectinemediately for all new variable interest
entities created or acquired after January 31, 2063did not create or acquire any new variablerest entities after January 31, 2003. For
variable interest entities created or acquiredrgdd-ebruary 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 46aasended, must be applied at the end of the
first interim or annual period ending after March 2003. The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a mi@ténpact on our consolidated financ
statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Exchange Ri

Our operations include manufacturing and salesiies in the U.S. as well as sales activities imdpe and Australia. As a result, our
financial results could be significantly affectegfactors such as changes in foreign currency exgdaates or weak economic conditions in
the foreign markets in which we distribute our proi$. Our operating results are exposed to changeschange rates between the U.S. d
and various foreign currencies, the most significdrwhich are the Euro, the British pound andAlustralian dollar. When the U.S. dollar
strengthens against these currencies, the reladive of sales made in the respective foreign cagyrelecreases. Conversely, when the U.S.
dollar weakens, the relative amounts of such sat¥ease. Overall, we are a net receiver of foreigmencies and, therefore, benefit from a
weaker U.S. dollar and are adversely affected lyanger U.S. dollar relative to those foreign enaies in which we transact significant
amounts of business.

To mitigate the impact of changes in currency ergearates on cash flows from our foreign curreradgsstransactions, we enter into
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge owidor currency-denominated accounts receivable. thatdilly, to mitigate the impact of
currency rate fluctuations on our cash outflowsdentain foreign currency-denominated raw matepalshases, we enter into foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge our foreigreoat/-denominated accounts payable.

A significant percentage of our product sales isoteinated in foreign currencies. Increases in #laesof the U.S. dollar against these
foreign currencies in the past have reduced, atlkifiuture may reduce, our U.S. dollar returnlmese sales and negatively impact our
financial condition. Prior to 2002, we did not heduur exposure to the impact of fluctuating foreégiehange rates on forecasted sales. In
January 2002, we began to use forward contradisdge a percentage of our forecasted internatgates, primarily those denominated in
Euro currency.

The following table summarizes the notional amouatgrage currency exchange rates and fair vafuegr@pen foreign exchange
forward contracts at December 31, 2003. All congrhave maturities of one year or less. Averagesrate stated in terms of the amount of
foreign currency per U.S. dollar. Fair values repre estimated settlement amounts at Decembel083, (2otional amounts and fair values
U.S. dollars in thousands):

Fair Value
Currency Notional Amount  Average Rate December 31, 200:
British Pounc $ 43,441 0.7111 $ (61)
Euro 361,57« 0.833¢ (14,479

The total notional amount of $405.0 million and feklue of ($14.5) million on our open foreign eacdlge forward contracts at
December 31, 2003 compares with a total notionaluarhof $53.5 million and fair value of ($1.1) rmolh on our open foreign exchange
forward contracts at December 31, 2002. The sicgnifi increase in outstanding contracts from 20@0@8 can be attributed to our decision
to expand the time horizon that we include frone¢éhmonths to twelve months when hedging our fotedasternational sales. This decision
was made due to the growth in our internationaliass and the increasing fluctuations in exchaatgsy primarily the Euro.

Interest Rate Ris

Our portfolio of available-for-sale investment settes and our fixed-rate liabilities create an espre to interest rate risk. With respect
to the investment portfolio, we adhere to an inwestt policy that requires us to limit amounts inedsn securities based on duration,
industry group, investment type
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and issuer, except for securities issued by the ghBernment. The goals of our investment polinygiider of priority, are as follows:
» Safety and preservation of principal and diveratiien of risk;
« Liquidity of investments sufficient to meet casbvil requirements; and
« Competitive after-tax rate of return.

The following table summarizes the expected madsrind average interest rates of our interestifigpassets and fixedxte liabilities a
December 31, 2003 (dollars in thousands).

Fair Value
Years ending December 31 December 31,
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total 2003
Assets
Available-for-sale
securities $543,11¢ $76,10¢ $ 9,01¢ — — — $628,23¢ $628,23¢
Average interest rai 1.5% 1.7% 1.3%
Liabilities
Long-term
obligations,
including current
portion(1) $ 7,23z $ 4,217 $10,61C $ 10,70¢ $10,28¢ $ 12,744 $ 55,801 $ 55,801
Average interest rai 13.5%  13.8% 14.3% 20.7%
Convertible senior
debenture: — — —  $345,00(¢ — — $345,000 $472,65(
Interest rate 2.0%

(1) Long-term obligations consist of capital leases aperating leases (net of noncancelable subleaBas)nterest portion of payments
due is included.

International Credit Risl

Our accounts receivable balance at December 3B ®@8 $235.2 million compared to $125.0 milliorbagcember 31, 2002. The gro\
was primarily due to higher product sales for Vitéathe U.S. and Europe. In certain countries whpyments are typically slow, primarily
Greece, Spain, Portugal and Italy, our accountsivable balances are significant. In most casesgtislow payment practices reflect the pace
at which governmental entities reimburse our custsmrhis, in turn, may increase the financial riglated to certain of our customers. Sales
to customers in countries that tend to be relatigldw paying have in the past increased, andarfuture may further increase, the average
length of time that accounts receivable are outhitay At December 31, 2003, our past due accowuivable for Greece, Spain, Portugal
and ltaly totaled approximately $102.7 million,watiich approximately $59.0 million was more than H2@s past due. At December 31,
2002, past due receivables for these countries $43¢/ million, of which approximately $26.6 milfiavas more than 120 days past due. To
date, we have not experienced significant loss#s spect to the collection of our accounts readaley and we believe that all accounts
receivable balances as reflected on the consotidstlance sheet, including those due from custometese four countries, are collectible.
We perform credit evaluations of our customer’sificial condition and generally have not requirdthteral.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this itemsateforth beginning at page 60 of this report ardicorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

An evaluation as of December 31, 2003 was carnigdinder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including ¢
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and operaifavur “disclosure controls and
procedures,” which are defined under SEC ruleatrals and other procedures of a company thatles@ned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the repbeét it files under the Securities Exchange Ad384 (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within requineg periods. Based upon that evaluation, our Ciiefcutive Officer and Chief Financ
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls pnocedures were effective.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls over Financiep&ting

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated amnges in our internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during thmder ended December 31, 2003, and has conclbdethere was no change during such
quarter that has materially affected, or is reablbynigkely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this Item concerning duiectors and executive officers is incorporaigdeference to the sections of our
Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC puasuto Regulation 14A in connection with the 2004nAal Meeting (the Proxy Statement)
under the headings “Nominees”, “Executive Officef8oard of Directors”, “Audit Committee” and “Corfignce with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934".
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorpa@by reference to the sections of our Proxy Statémnder the headings “Executive
Compensation” and “Compensation Committee Report”.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to the section of our Proxy Statémeder the heading “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managgine
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this Item is incorpedby reference to the sections of our Proxy Statémnder the headings
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and InsideriBigdtion”, “Certain Transactions” and “Executive@pensation”.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpaby reference to the sections of our Definitivexy Statement filed with the SEC
pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with tl8@2 Annual Meeting (the Proxy Statement) undetisdings “Independent
Accountants.”

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(@) The following documents are filed as part of thisri 10-K:

(1) Index list to Financial Statements:

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Audit 61
Audited Consolidated Financial Statemel

Consolidated Balance She: 62
Consolidated Statements of Operati 63
Consolidated Statement of Stockhol¢ Equity 64
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fle 65

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 66



(2) Schedule Il is included on page 101 of this rephlitother schedules are omitted because they atreeguired or the required
information is included in the financial statemeotshotes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
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The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated by reference:

Exhibit
Footnote

Exhibit
Number

(21)

(25)

(20)
(1)

(4)
(10)

(19)

(35)

()

(5)

()
()
1)
(26)

(5)

(6)

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1
4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

10.1

10.2

10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6

10.7

10.8

Description of Document

Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant ané®Bimaceuticals, Inc. dated as of
November 26, 200:

Agreement and Plan of Merger, among Registrantp8imAcquisition Sub, Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Registrant, and Triangle Phasu#tcals, Inc., dated as of December 3,
2002.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatibth® Registrant, as amend:
Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended and restatdhvB0, 199¢
Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 and Exhibit

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated astob&r 21, 1999 between the
Registrant and ChaseMellon Shareholder Service§,

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated February 289 1§9and among Registrant, Gazelle
Acquisition Sub, Inc. and NeXstar Pharmaceutidals,

Indenture dated as of December 18, 2000 betweeRehestrant and Chase Manhattan Bank
and Trust Company, National Association, includingrein the forms of the note

Indenture dated as of December 18, 2002 betweeRedhestrant and J.P. Morgan Trust
Company, National Association, including thereia tbrms of the note:

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Decerh®eP002 between the Registrant and
Goldman, Sachs & C«

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Rightsexgeant dated as of October 29, 2003
between the Registrant and Mellon Investor Seryice€.

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into betweenRlegistrant and its directors and
executive officers

Form of Employee Proprietary Information and InvemtAgreement entered into between
Registrant and certain of its officers and key epés.

Registrar’s 1987 Incentive Stock Option Plan and relatedeagemnts
Registrar’'s 1987 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and relageseanents
Registrar’'s Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended Mard9g9.

Registrant’s 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amendedestdted April 5, 2000, as amended
January 18, 2001 and as amended January 30,

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option issued to certakecutive officers and directors in
1991.

Vintage Park Research and Development Net Leasathypetween Registrant and Vintage
Park Associates dated March 27, 1992 for premizeséd at 344B, 346 and 353 Lakeside
Drive, Foster City, California with related addendiexhibits and amendmen
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()
(7)

(20)
(2)

(26)

(8)

(9)

(9)

(3)

(13)
(14)
(14)

(12)

(15)

(12)

(14)

(13)

10.9

10.11

10.12
10.13

10.14

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.21

10.22
10.23
10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

Letter Agreement, dated as of September 23, 19&leka Registrant and IOCB/REGA,
with exhibits with certain confidential informatiamitted.

Amendment Agreement, dated October 25, 1993 betRegistrant and IOCB/REGA, and
related license agreements and exhibits with cedanfidential information omittec

Amendment Agreement, dated December 27, 2000 batRegistrant and IOCB/REG:

Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 1994 amauyisRant and Mark L. Perry and
Melanie P. Pefie

Registrant’s 1995 Non-Employee Directors’ Stocki@pPlan, as amended January 26,
1999, and as amended January 30, 2

Amendment No. 2 to Vintage Park Research and Dpusdnit Lease by and between
Registrant and WCB Seventeen Limited Partnershipdd2une 24, 1996 for premises
located at 344B, 346 and 353 Lakeside Drive, Fd3tigr, California.

License and Supply Agreement between RegistranPaadmacia & Upjohn S.A. dated
August 7, 1996 with certain confidential informatiomitted.

Development and License Agreement between RegisirahF. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd.
and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. dated September 27, 88®6certain confidential
information omitted

NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, I's 1993 Incentive Stock Plan, adopted February983las
amended

NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, I's 1995 Director Option Plan, adopted July 25, 1!
Vestar, Inc. 1988 Stock Option Pl:

Lease, dated March 26, 1987, between Vestar, inttMajestic Realty Co. and Patrician
Associates, Inc. and Amendment No. 1 thereto anédmximent No. 2 thereto, dated as of
June 8, 1992

Third Amendment, dated January 11, 1996, betwegrsila Realty Co. and Patrician
Associates, Inc. and the Registrant, to Leasedddtrch 26, 1987, between Vestar, Inc.
Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician Associates,

Assignment and Royalty Agreement, dated Decembget 290, effective as of June 2, 1989,
between Vestar, Inc. and City of Hope National MatCenter

License Agreement, effective as of August 12, 18@byeen Vestar, Inc. and The Regents
of the University of California

Agreement by and between Fujisawa USA, Inc. andarekc., dated August 9, 1991, and
Amendment No. 1 thereto, dated as of May 17, 1

Amendment No. 2 to agreement between Fujisawa W8Aand Vestar, Inc., dated as of
April 3, 1995, between Fujisawa USA, Inc. and Vedtac. with certain confidential
information omitted
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(12)

(14)

(12)

(11)

(16)

(17)

(24)
(24)
(24)
(22)

(23)

(27)
(27)

(28)

(28)

(30)

(30)

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36
10.37
10.38
10.39

10.40

10.41
10.42

10.43

10.44

10.46

10.47

Amendment No. 3 to Agreement between Fujisawa UB&,and the Registrant, dated
March 4, 1996, to the Agreement by and betweers&wj USA, Inc. and Vestar, Inc., dated
August 9, 1991

Lease, dated April 13, 1992, between Vestar, Ind.Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician
Associates, Inc

First Amendment to Lease, dated April 10, 1993wken Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician
Associates, Inc. and Vestar, Inc. amending LeasteddApril 13, 1992, between Majestic
Realty Co. and Patrician Associates, Inc. and \Yebia.

License and Distribution Agreement, dated Septerabefl997, by and between Sumitomo
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and NeXstar Pharmacdsitices. with certain confidential
information omitted

Settlement Agreement, dated August 11, 1997, byaamahg NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, |
Fujisawa U.S.A., Inc. and The Liposome Company, With certain confidential
information omitted

Amendment, dated April 30, 1998, between Sumitomarfaceuticals Co., Ltd. and
NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to the License arstriDution Agreement, date
September 26, 1996, between Sumitomo and NeXstmRiteuticals, Inc

The Corporate Plan for Retirement Select —Basic Plan Documen
The Corporate Plan for Retirement Select —Adoption Agreement
Addendum to the Gilead Sciences, Inc. Deferred Gorsation Plar

Licensing Agreement, dated April 26, 2002, by aatinheen Gilead World Markets, Limited
and Glaxo Group Limitec

Employment Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, by andden Gilead Sciences, Inc. and
Sharon Surre-Barbari.

Triangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1996 Stock Incerfilan.

Option Agreement between Triangle Pharmaceutitats,and Daniel G. Welch, dated
August 5, 2002

License Agreement among Triangle Pharmaceutiaads, Emory University and the
University of Georgia Research Foundation, Inc.cmmpound amdoxovir (DAPD), dated
March 31, 1996

License Agreement between Triangle Pharmaceuticaelsand Emory University for
Coviracil (FTC), dated April 17, 199

Exclusive License Agreement among Triangle Pharotézads, Inc., Glaxo Group Limited,
The Wellcome Foundation Limited, Glaxo Wellcome.land Emory University, dated
May 6, 1999

Settlement Agreement among Triangle Pharmaceuticads Emory University, Dr. David
W. Barry, Glaxo Wellcome plc, Glaxo Wellcome InGlaxo Group Limited and The
Wellcome Foundation Limited, dated May 6, 19
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(30)
(31)
(31)
(32)

(32)

(33)
(38)

(36)
(36)

(37)

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.62

10.63
10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71

10.72

First Amendment to License Agreement between Ti@aRfarmaceuticals, Inc. and Emory
University, dated May 6, 199

First Amendment to License Agreement among TriaRylarmaceuticals, Inc., Emory
University and the University of Georgia Researohiredation, Inc., dated July 10, 20l

Second Amendment to License Agreement between glgdPharmaceuticals, Inc. and
Emory University, dated July 10, 20(

Supply and Manufacturing Agreement between TriaRglarmaceuticals, Inc. and Abbott
Laboratories, dated July 30, 20(

Settlement and Exclusive License Agreement amorangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Shire
Biochem Inc., Shire Pharmaceuticals Group plc, Bnubriversity and the University of
Georgia Research Foundation, dated August 30, :

Second Amendment to License Agreement among TeaRlgarmaceuticals, Inc., Emory
University and the University of Georgia Researohidation, Inc., dated August 30, 20

Manufacturing Supply Agreement between Gilead Wbthtkets, Ltd. and PPG-Sipsy
S.A.S, entered into as of January 1, 2(

Gilead Sciences, Inc. Severance Plan, as adofdttieé January 29, 20(

Third Amendment to License Agreement between Ti@Riparmaceuticals, Inc. and Emory
University, dated May 31, 200

Lease Agreement, dated June™, 22003, between Registrant and GRA Associates kit
L.L.C. for premises located at 4611 and 4615 UsiteDrive, Durham, North Carolir

Master Clinical and Commercial Supply Agreemenedatanuary 1, 2003 among Gilead
World Markets, Ltd., Gilead Sciences, Inc. and BPathinc.

Toll Manufacturing Agreement dated August 1, 2093hbd among Gilead World Markets,
Ltd., Gilead Sciences, Inc. and ALTANA Pharma Oeaiurg GmbF

Licensing Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2000aandnded on May 9, 2000,
December 4, 2001 and April 12, 2002, by and betweitgad Sciences, Inc. and EyeTech
Pharmaceuticals, In

Amendment No. 1 to Licensing Agreement, dated ddaf 9, 2000 by and between
EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Gilead Sciethes

Amendment No. 2 to Licensing Agreement, dated d3eafember 4, 2001 by and between
EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Gilead Sciethes

Amendment No. 3 to Licensing Agreement, dated asugfust 30, 2002 by and between
EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Gilead Sciethoes

Amendment No. 1 dated May 19, 2003 to Licensinge&gnent dated 26 April 2002
between Glaxo Group Limited and Gilead World Maskeimited
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+ 10.73  Amendment No. 2 dated January 9, 2004 to Licenamgrgement dated 26 April 2002
between Glaxo Group Limited and Gilead World Maskeimited

211 Subsidiaries of the Registra

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditt
24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to Signataget
31.1 Section 302 Certificatior

31.2 Section 302 Certificatio

32 Section 906 Certificatio

(1) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Annual Reparfr@rm 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended Decemberi®B8, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Réor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 834 ,1and incorporated herein by
reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,dr@@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartededd June 30, 1997, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(4) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporform 8-K filed on October 22, 1999, and incogped herein by reference.

(5) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-1 (No. 33-55680), as amendednandcporated herein by
reference.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reéjpor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembet 383, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(7) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Annual Repaorff@rm 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31,4,9%hd incorporated herein by
reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reépor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1886 ncorporated herein by
reference.

(9) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Répor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembet 386, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporform 8-K filed on March 9, 1999, and incorpodaterein by reference.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drféorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®P6, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drféorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®B5, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(13) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Sejen30, 1995, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(14) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drféorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®P4, and incorporated herein
by reference.
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(15) Filed on March 22, 1991 as an exhibit to NeXstaarRtaceuticals, Inc.’s Registration Statement omF8+2 (File No. 33-39549), and
incorporated herein by reference.

(16) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Sejen30, 1997, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(17) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1888,incorporated herein by
reference.

(18) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, and incaigub herein by reference.

(19) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-3 (No. 333-54350), as amendednaorporated herein by
reference.

(20) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K fioe fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, and incatgxb herein by reference.
(21) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current ReporfForm 8-K filed on January 4, 2002, and incorfeddnerein by reference.

(22) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Re¢por Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 280@ incorporated herein by
reference.

(23) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Re¢jpor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembe?@02, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(24) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, and incaigub herein by reference.
(25) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current ReparfForm 8-K filed on December 10, 2002, and incaapexrl herein by reference.

(26) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-8 (No. 333-102912) filed on Jgn84, 2003, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(27) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-8 (No. 333-102911) filed on Jan84, 2003, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(28) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $rRegistration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 3389B), as amended, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(30) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeteded September 30, 1999, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(31) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeteded September 30, 2000, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(32) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on Septemb@r2002, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(33) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeieded September 30, 2002, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(35) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Currenté&epn Form 8-K filed on October 31, 2003, and ipooated herein by reference.

(36) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Re¢por Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2608 incorporated herein by
reference
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(37) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Re¢por Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2808,ncorporated herein by
reference

(38) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K fioe fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, and incatgxb herein by reference.

+ Certain confidential portions of this Exhibit wesmitted by means of marking such portions with sterdsk (the “Mark”). This
Exhibit has been filed separately with the Secyetdithe SEC without the Mark pursuant to the Riegid’s Application Requesting
Confidential Treatment under Rule 24b-2 under theusities Exchange Act of 1934

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On October 28, 2003, the Company filed a Form &Kaaincing the earnings of the Company for the thirdrter and nine months
ended September 30, 2003.

On October 31, 2003, the Company filed a Form &Kaoaincing that the Board of Directors approvedrapradment to the Company’s
Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, originalbpted as of November 21, 1994 and amended arataests of October 21, 1999.

On November 19, 2003, the Company filed a Form &Kouncing that a purported class action compledtbeen filed on
November 10, 2003 in the United States District i€&ar the Northern District of California agairtse Company and the Compi’s Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, ExeotgiVice Presidents of Operations and Research awdlBpment, and Senior Vice
Presidents of Manufacturing and Research.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Gilead Sciences, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Gilead Sciences, Inc. as of Decenthet0®3 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of operationsklstdders’equity, and cash flows for each of the three yaatlse period ended December
2003. Our audits also included the financial staenschedule listed at Item 15(a) of this Annugbéteon Form 10-K. These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibilityeoimanagement of Gilead Sciences, Inc. Our redpititysis to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with audigtagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about whether the financial statementsraeedf material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarsteements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinic



In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
Gilead Sciences, Inc. at December 31, 2003 and,20@Rthe consolidated results of its operatiomkincash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20@®nformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States. Also, in
our opinion, the related financial statement schedshen considered in relation to the basic fin@gtatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&ements, effective January 1, 2001, the Comphanged its method of account
for derivative instruments and hedging activities.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
January 23, 2004
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31

2003 2002

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 194,71¢ $ 616,93

Marketable securities 512,281 325,44:

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $10,644 at

December 31, 2003 and $5,329 at December 31, 2002 235,217 125,03¢

Note receivable from Triangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc. — 50,00(¢

Inventories 98,102 51,62¢

Deferred tax assets 197,567 —

Prepaid expenses and other 28,01z 14,722
Total current assets 1,265,89¢ 1,183,76(
Property, plant and equipment, net 198,20( 67,721
Noncurrent deferred tax ass 52,49, —
Other noncurrent assets 38,13( 36,69¢

$1,554,72: $1,288,18!

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 3564¢ $ 24,40¢
Accrued clinical and preclinical expenses 11,85¢ 7,062
Accrued compensation and employee benefits 35,77z 21,511
Other accrued liabilities 97,00z 44,02¢
Deferred revenue 5,474 7,692
Long-term obligations due within one year 139 194
Total current liabilities 185,89t 104,89:
Long-term deferred revenue 20,53( 16,67
Long-term obligations due after one year 323 273
Convertible senior debt 345,00( 345,00(
Convertible subordinated debt — 250,00(

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.001 per share, issuatseries; 5,000 shares
authorized; none outstanding — —
Common stock, par value $.001 per share; 500,08 stauthorized; 213,253
and 197,595 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&hp2003 and

December 31, 2002, respectively 213 198
Additional paid-in capital 1,453,20: 950,30¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4,507 2,47%
Deferred compensation (1,30€) —

Accumulated deficit (453,64% (381,640




Total stockholders’ equity 1,002,97- 571,34!
$1,554,72; $1,288,18:

See accompanying notes

62

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Revenues

Product sale $ 836,34! $423,87¢ $ 190,97(

Royalty revenus 25,21¢ 20,40¢ 22,96¢

Contract revenu 6,304 22,50 19,83(
Total revenue 867,86«  466,79( 233,76¢
Costs and expense

Cost of goods sol 112,69 69,72¢ 43,764

Research and developm 164,87  134,75¢ 185,55:

Selling, general and administrati 250,157 181,301 125,141

In-process research and developn 488,59¢ — —

Asset impairmen 10,21¢ —
Total costs and expens 1,026,53¢ 385,78¢ 354,45¢
Income (loss) from operatiol (158,67%) 81,007 (120,689
Gain on sale of oncology ass — 157,771
Gain on sale of unconsolidated affili — — 8,754
Loss on sale of marketable securi — (16,04¢) —
Interest and other income, r 13,03¢ 22,291 25,591
Interest expens (21,897 (13,859 (13,980
Income (loss) before provision for (benefit fromdome taxes, equity in

loss of unconsolidated affiliate and cumulativeeeffof change in

accounting principle (167,537) 73,391 57,447
Provision for (benefit from) income tax (95,530 1,30C 4,13¢
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affilia — — 2,13C
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting principls (72,009 72,0917 51,18
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — 1,08¢
Net income (loss $ (72,005 $ 72,097 $ 52,271
Amounts per common sh«—basic:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting

principle $ (036) $ 037 $ 0.27

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ — — 0.01

Net income (loss) per shi—basic $ (0.36) $ 037 % 0.28
Shares used in per share calcul—basic 201,10t 195,54 190,24t
Amounts per common sh—diluted:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting

principle $ (036) $ 035 $ 0.25

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ — — 0.01

Net income (loss) per sh—diluted $ (036) $ 035 % 0.26
Shares used in per share calcule—diluted 201,10t 206,47 _ 202,32

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
(in thousands)



Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive

Total
Common Stock Paid-In Income Deferred Accumulated  Stockholder¢’
Shares Capital (Loss) Compensation Deficit Equity
Balance at December 31, 20 188,57¢ $ 857,847 $ (901) 3) $ (506,00¢) $ 351,12¢
Net income — — — — 52,271 52,271
Unrealized gain on availat-
for-sale
securities, ne — — 7,735 — — 7,735
Foreign currency translatic
adjustmen — — 577 — — 577
Unrealized gain on cash flo
hedges, ne — — 37 — — 37
Comprehensive incomnr 60,62C
Employee stock purchase pl 368 5,357 — — — 5,357
Option exercises, n 4,098 30,95( — — — 30,954
Tax benefits of employee sto
plans — 1,50C — — — 1,500
Amortization of deferres
compensatiol — — — 3 — 3
Compensatory stoc
transaction: — 2,87¢ — — — 2,879
Balance at December 31, 20 193,041 898,53: 7,448 — (453,737) 452,437
Net income — — — — 72,097 72,097
Unrealized loss on availal-
for-sale
securities, ne — — (4,577) — — (4,577)
Foreign currency translatic
adjustmen — — (580) — — (580)
Unrealized gain on cash flo
hedges, ne — — 184 — — 184
Comprehensive incomnr 67,124
Employee stock purchase pl 342 6,701 — — — 6,701
Option exercises, ni 4,212 44,68( — — — 44,68E
Tax benefits of employee sto
plans — 350 — — — 350
Compensatory stoc
transaction: — 44 — — — 44
Balance at December 31, 20 197,59¢ 950,30¢ 2,475 — (381,64() 571,341
Net loss — — — — (72,003) (72,003)
Unrealized loss on availal-
for-sale
securities, ne — — (4,022) — — (4,022)
Foreign currency translatic
adjustmen — — 7,040 — — 7,040
Unrealized loss on cash flc
hedges, ne — — (986) — — (986)
Comprehensive los (69,971)
Conversion of convertibl
subordinated det 10,17¢ 245,38: — — — 245,392
Acquisition of Triangle
Pharmaceuticals, In — 41,33¢ — (3,305) — 38,034
Employee stock purchase pl 280 8,238 — — — 8,238
Option exercises, n 5,20C 75,563 — — — 75,56¢
Tax benefits of employee sto
plans — 132,362 — — — 132,362
Amortization of deferres
compensatiol — — — 1,999 — 1,999
Compensatory stoc
transaction: — — 10 — — — 10
Balance at December 31, 20 213,25¢  $213  $1,453,20! $ 4,507 $(1,306y $ (453,645 $1,002,97:
See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
Operating activities:
Net income (loss $ (72,007 $ 72,097 52,271
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @ethcprovided by (used i
operating activities
Depreciatior 16,53¢ 13,18¢ 13,50¢
Amortization 4,32¢€ 1,23¢ 1,182
Purchased -process research and developn 488,59¢ — —
Asset impairmen 10,21¢ — —
Net effect of change in accounting princi — — (1,089



Gain on sale of oncology ass

(157,77

Gain on sale of unconsolidated affilic — — (8,754)
Loss on sale of marketable securi — 16,04¢ —
Equity in loss ounconsolidated affiliat — — 2,13C
Net movement in provision for doubtful accou 4,87¢ 3,262 (170)
Deferred tax asse (250,06)) — —
Tax benefits from employee stock ple 132,36: 350 1,50C
Other nor-cash transactior 1,844 3,48C 1,03E
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (97,08¢€) (43,890 (25,482)
Inventories (46,472 (12,34¢) (18,71¢)
Prepaid expenses and other as (10,80¢) (8,91%) (2,734
Accounts payabl 6,144 5,232 8,454
Accrued liabilities 44,49¢ 11,544 11,49¢
Deferred revenu 1,635 13,121 (3,837)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 234,607 74,40¢ (126,979
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securi (934,759 (490,259 (377,72%
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalolgrisies 744,53( 603,67¢ 280,53¢
Acquisition of Triangle net assets, net of cashuaeql (375,509) — —
Acquisition of real estat (123,000 — —
Other capital expenditure (38,609) (17,5979) (26,33])
Issuance of note to Triang — (50,000 —
Proceeds from sale of oncology as: — — 130,00(
Proceeds from sale of unconsolidated affil — — 14,30C
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (727,34%) 45,82z 20,77¢
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuances of common s 83,80¢ 51,38¢ 36,311
Repayments of lor-term debt (1,71%) (1,414 (2,761)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior no&tspf issuance cos — 336,637 —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 82,091 386,60¢ 33,55(C
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (11,56%) (13,399 (1,151
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (422,212) 493,441 (73,802)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 616,937 123,49( 197,29:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 194,71¢ $ 616,931 $ 123,49(
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paic $ 19647 $ 12657 $ 12,71C
Income taxes pai 8,77¢ 851 1,77€
Non-cash investing and financing activities
OSI common stock received upon sale of oncologgta $ — 3 — $ 38,84¢
Common stock issued upon conversion of ( 250,00( — —
Reclassification of deferred debt issuance costltitional pai-in capital upor
conversion of subordinated de 4,60¢ — —

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES
Overview

Gilead was incorporated in Delaware on June 227198 are a biopharmaceutical company that disspadevelops and
commercializes therapeutics to advance the capatt#nts suffering from life-threatening disead#'e. are a multinational company, with
revenues from six approved products and marketiegations in ten countries. We focus our reseanchctinical programs on anitifectives
Currently, we market Viread (tenofovir disoproxilniarate) and Emtriva (emtricitabine) for the treatitnof HIV infection; Hepsera (adefovir
dipivoxil) for the treatment of chronic hepatitisiifection; AmBisome (amphotericin B liposome fajdction), an antifungal agent; and
Vistide (cidofovir injection) for the treatment GMV retinitis. Roche markets Tamiflu (oseltamivingsphate) for the treatment of influenza,
under a royalty paying collaborative agreement wighWe are seeking to add to our existing podfofiproducts through our internal
discovery and clinical development programs andugh an active product acquisition and in-licenstrgtegy, such as our acquisition of the
net assets of Triangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc. caexplie January 2003. Our internal discovery agésiinclude identification of new
molecular targets, target screening and medicimanistry. In addition, we are currently developatigical stage products to treat HIV
infection and chronic hepatitis B.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of Gilead and its wholly arajarity-owned subsidiarie!



Significant intercompany transactions have beaniphted. Certain prior period amounts have beelassified to be consistent with the
current year presentation.

Stock Split

On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 2002, Gilesdpleted two-for-one stock splits, effected in fibven of a stock dividend, to
stockholders of record as of February 2, 2001 afdary 14, 2002, respectively. Accordingly, abushand per share amounts for all periods
presented reflect both of these splits.

Change in Accounting Principle

Gilead adopted Statement of Financial Accountirap&ards (SFAS) Nos. 133 and 138, collectively refeto as SFAS 133\ccounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit,in the first quarter of 2001. The change was actamlifor as a change in accounting
principle. See Note 2.

Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates and Judgmets

The preparation of these consolidated financidéstants requires us to make estimates and judgnieitaffect the reported amounts
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, aatbdedlisclosure of assets and liabilities. On aga@ing basis, management evaluates its
estimates, including those related to revenue mtiog, bad debts, inventories, income taxes, aatilinical and preclinical expenses, and
contingencies. We base our estimates on histagiqagrience and on various other market specificadiner relevant assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstattoesesults of which form the basis for making jomignts about the carrying values of as
and liabilities that are not readily apparent frother sources. Actual results may differ signifitafrom these estimates.
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from product sales when fegrersuasive evidence an arrangement exists etiglio the customer has occurred,
the price is fixed or determinable and collectthils reasonably assured. We do not provide oulocusrs with a general right of product
return. However, we will accept returns of produntthe U.S. that have expired for one year afteirtexpiration, or products that are deel
to be damaged or defective when received by thieies. Upon recognition of revenue from producesaprovisions are made for expected
returns of expired products, government reimbursegsnand customer incentives, such as cash disctarmtsompt payment. Estimates for
government reimbursements and cash discounts aeellma contractual terms and expectations regatidengtilization rates for these
programs. Estimates for product returns, includiew products, are based on angming analysis of industry and historical returtt@ans, a
well as the purchase of third party data to assestCompany in monitoring channel inventory lexasisl subsequent prescriptions.

Contract revenue for research and development@ded as performance occurs and the earningsgg@eeompleted based on the
performance requirements of the contract. Nonredbledcontract fees for which no further performaoiokgations exist, and there is no
continuing involvement by Gilead, are recognizedtunearlier of when the payments are receivedh@anacollection is assured.

Revenue from non-refundable up-front license fewkrailestone payments where we continue involverttentuigh development
collaboration or an obligation to supply produstrécognized as performance occurs and performabiigmtions are completed. In
accordance with the specific terms of Gilead’sgddiions under the contract, revenue is recognige¢tleamanufacturing obligation is fulfilled
or ratably over the development period or the pkabthe manufacturing obligation, as appropriate.

Revenue associated with substantive performanastuiles is recognized based upon the achievemérd afilestones on completion
of all performance requirements, as defined inrélspective agreements. Revenue under researctesalbpment cost reimbursement
contracts is recognized as the related costs averad.

Advance payments received in excess of amounteeane classified as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue from sales of AmBisome is recogmirnethe month following that in which the corregpong sales occur. Royalty
revenue from sales of Vistide and Tamiflu is redegd when received, which is the quarter followihg quarter in which the corresponding
sales occur.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs incurred for inventauychases and product shipments are recorded ist @@oods sold” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Research and Development Expenses

Major components of R&D expenses consist of persboosts, including salaries and benefits, clingtatlies performed by contract
research organizations (CRQO’s), materials and segpnd overhead allocations consisting of varadministrative and facilities related
costs. Our research and development activitiealateseparated into three main categories: reseaicical development and
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES (Continued)

pharmaceutical development. Research costs typicatisist of preclinical and toxicology work. Clial development costs include Phase 1,
2, and 3 clinical trials as well as expanded acpesgrams. Pharmaceutical development costs casfgisbduct formulation and chemical
analysis.

We charge clinical and preclinical study costsxpense when incurred, consistent with SFAS Né&ounting for Research and
Development Cos. These costs are a significant component of R&peages. Most of our clinical and preclinical stgdiee performed by
third party CRO’s. We accrue costs for clinicaldits performed by CRO’s on a straight-line basisrdlie service periods specified in the
contracts and adjust our estimates, if requiresetbaipon our on-going review of the level of efeetually incurred by the CRO. Initially we
estimate that the work performed under the cordracturs ratably over the service periods to theeted milestone, event or total contract
completion date. The expected completion datesstimated based upon the terms of the contractpastcexperience with similar contracts.
We monitor levels of performance under each cohtretuding the extent of patient enroliment andestactivities through communications
with our CRQ’s, and we adjust our estimates, iturezg, on a quarterly basis so that our expendkestehe actual effort incurred by each
CRO.

All of our material CRO contracts are terminableusyupon written notice and Gilead is generallyydialble for actual effort expended
by the CRO at any point in time during the contraegjardless of payment status. Amounts paid imack of services being performed will
be refunded if a contract is terminated. Some eaigrinclude additional termination payments tleatdme due and payable only if Gilead
terminates the contract. Such additional termimatiayments are only recorded to expense if ther&cins terminated.

Advertising Expenses

We expense the costs of advertising, including mttonal expenses, as incurred. Advertising expensgs $43.4 million in 2003, $3¢
million in 2002, and $16.5 million in 2001.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 1&8;ounting For Stock-Based Compensatias amended by SFAS No. 148
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclo§&€AS 123), we have elected to continue to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 2Bccounting For Stock Issued To Employeasd Interpretation No. 44 (FIN 44 ¢ccounting for
Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation-agerpretation of APB Opinion No. 2, accounting for our employee stock option
plans. Under APB 25, if the exercise price of Gifseemployee and director stock options equalsxoeeds the fair value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant, no compensation expermseognized. Although we have elected to foltbe intrinsic value method prescribec
APB 25, we will continue to evaluate our approazidcounting for stock options in light of ongoindustry and regulatory developments.

68




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES (Continued)

The table below presents the combined net incoass)land basic and diluted net income (loss) penoon share if compensation cost
for the Gilead, NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (NaRsand Triangle stock option plans and the emgéastock purchase plan (ESPP) had
been determined based on the estimated fair wdlae/ards under those plans on the grant or puectiate in accordance with SFAS 123 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Net income (los—as reportel $ (72,003 $ 72,097 $ 52,271
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expensgdietlin reported

net income (loss), net of related tax effe 1,21¢ 44 2,882
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgpdetermined

under the fair value based method for all awardsphrelated tax

effects (61,429 (72,137) (50,081)
Pro forma net income (los $(132,21y) $ 4 $ 5,072
Net income (loss) per shal

Basic-as reportet $ (036 $ 037 $ 0.28

Basic-pro forma $ (066 $ 00C $ 0.03

Diluted-as reportel $ (036 $ 035 $ 0.26

Diluted-pro forma $ (066 $ 00C $ 0.03

The effect on net income (loss) and basic andetiluiet income (loss) per common share presenteaboot likely to be
representative of the effects on net income (lass)net income (loss) per share pursuant to SFASnlfiture years, due to subsequent years
including additional grants and years of vesting.
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Fair values of awards granted under the stock pgtians and ESPP were estimated at grant or pwedgss using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The Black-Scholes option aion model was developed for use in estimatingdirevalue of traded options, which
have no vesting restrictions and are fully traredéé. In addition, option valuation models require input of highly subjective assumptions
including the expected stock price volatility. Basa our employee stock options have characterstiesficantly different from those of
traded options, and because changes in the sugécfiut assumptions can materially affect the¥alue estimate, in management’s opinion
the existing models do not necessarily providdiabie single measure of the fair value of its eoyple stock options. We used the multiple
option approach and the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001

Expected life in years (from vesting dat

Stock options 1.84 1.8€ 1.95

ESPF 1.32 1.31 1.2¢
Discount rate

Stock options 28% 3.9% 4.6%

ESPF 18% 3.0% 4.7%
Volatility 78%  82%  83%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%

Through the end of the third quarter of 2003, tie¥alue of stock awards granted in 2003 was deted utilizing a volatility rate of
80%. In the fourth quarter of 2003, we changedvtilatility assumption we used to arrive at a fatue for our stock awards from 80% to
52%. The most recent two-year time period was fisegurposes of calculating the expected volatilifter considering such factors as our
stage of development, the length of time that wesHzeen a public company and several drug approvaisthe past few years which have
enabled us to achieve positive cash flow from djimrg, we believe this volatility rate better refie the expected volatility of our stock going
forward. The 78% volatility used in the table abogpresents the weighted average volatility of 86#4he first three quarters and 52% for
the fourth quarter.

The weighted average estimated fair value of ESRIRes purchased was $19.63 for 2003, $18.54 fd2 266 $11.57 for 2001.

Per Share Computations

For 2003, both basic and diluted net loss per comshare are computed based on the weighted aveuvagiger of common shares
outstanding during the period. The potential comrmsiluares from convertible notes of 17.2 million sglsaand outstanding stock options and
warrants of 9.9 million shares were excluded from¢omputation of diluted net loss per share ir382@8 their effect would be antidilutive.
For 2002 and 2001, basic net income per commorese@omputed based on the weighted average nushlbemmon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commaarshor 2002 includes the effects of approximaidlyd million stock options but does not
include the effect of the $250.0 million 5% conide notes, which would convert to approximately2l@illion shares, or the
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$345.0 million 2% convertible notes, which woulchgert to approximately 7.3 million shares, as tfieat of their assumed conversion is
antidilutive. Diluted net income per common shameZ001 includes the effects of approximately IRillion stock options and warrants, but
does not include the effect of the $250.0 millidh Bonvertible notes which would convert to apprcdety 10.2 million shares, as the effect
of their assumed conversion is antidilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider highly liquid investments with insigo#nt interest rate risk and a remaining maturitthoee months or less at the purch
date to be cash equivalents. We may enter intonylelr repurchase agreements under which we purdeassities with an obligation to res
them the following day. Securities purchased urdeeements to resell are recorded at face valueepudted as cash and cash equivalents.
Under our investment policy, we may enter into repase agreements (repos) with major banks and@aed dealers provided that such
repos are collateralized by U.S. government seeantith a fair value of at least 102% of the fatue of securities sold to Gilead. Other
eligible investments under our investment policgiiile commercial paper, money market funds and dituek obligations.

Marketable Securities

We determine the appropriate classification of marketable securities, which consists solely ot deburities, at the time of purchase
and reevaluate such designation at each balaneedde. All of our marketable securities are dfeegbas available-for-sale and carried at
estimated fair values and reported in either casiivalents or marketable securities. At Decembe2803, cash and cash equivalents include
$116.0 million of securities designated as avadldbt-sale ($559.8 million at December 31, 2002)réalized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities are excluded from earningsrapdrted as a separate component of stockholdgugtye Interest income includes interest,
dividends, amortization of purchase premiums asdadints, and realized gains and losses on sateofities. The cost of securities sold is
based on the specific identification method. Weulady review all of our investments for other-th@mporary declines in fair value. When
we determine that the decline in fair value of mrestment below our accounting basis is other-teamporary, we reduce the carrying value
of the securities we hold and record a loss iratineunt of any such decline. No such reductions baea required during the past three
years.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk from our portfolioaafsh equivalents and marketable securities. Bigypale limit amounts invested in
such securities by duration, industry group, inwestt type and issuer, except for securities istyatie U.S. government. We are not
exposed to any significant concentrations of craslik from these financial instruments. The godlewr investment policy, in order of
priority, are as follows: safety and preservatiéprincipal and diversification of risk; liquiditgf investments sufficient to meet cash flow
requirements; and competitive after-tax rate afnret

We are also subject to credit risk from our acceuateivable related to product sales. A signifieanount of our trade accounts
receivable arises from sales of AmBisome and Vireaidharily through
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sales by our European subsidiaries and export galas distributors in Europe. In certain courgnrehere payments are typically slow,
primarily Greece, Spain, Portugal and Italy, ouwrcamts receivable balances are significant. In roaseés, these slow payment practices
reflect the pace at which governmental entitiesibeirse our customers. This, in turn, may increlsdihancial risk related to certain of our
customers. Sales to customers in countries thdtttehe relatively slow paying have in the pastéased, and in the future may further
increase, the average length of time that accaentsvable are outstanding. At December 31, 2008past due accounts receivable for
Greece, Spain, Portugal and Italy totaled approteiy&102.7 million, of which approximately $59.0llion was more than 120 days past
based on the contractual terms of the receivalBieBecember 31, 2002, past due receivables foetheantries were $49.7 million, of which
approximately $26.6 million was more than 120 dagst due. To date, we have not experienced signifiosses with respect to the
collection of our accounts receivable and belidwa &ll our past due accounts receivable as refleiatthe consolidated balance sheet,
including those due from customers in these founties, are collectible. We perform credit evailuas of our customes’financial conditior
and generally have not required collateral.

Many of the materials that we utilize in our opamas are made at only one facility. For example depend on single suppliers for high
quality amphotericin B, distearoylphosphatidylcheliand high quality cholesterol, each of whichssdiin the manufacture of AmBisome. If
supplies from our suppliers were interrupted foy season, we may be unable to ship Viread, AmBisdiepsera, Emtriva or Vistide, or to
supply any of our products in development for claitrials.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost arketawith cost determined on a first-in, first-dagsis. We periodically review the
composition of inventory in order to identify obstd, slow-moving or otherwise unsaleable itemsuth items are observed and there are no
alternate uses for the inventory, we will recondrie-down to net realizable value in the periodttthe units are identified as impaired.
Historically, inventory write-downs have been ingfgcant and consistent with management’s expemtati

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at costdesumulated depreciation and amortization. Dégien and amortization are
recognized using the straight-line method. Lambisdepreciated. Estimated useful lives are asvdl(in years):

Description Estimated Useful Life

Buildings and improvemen 20

Laboratory and manufacturing equipm 4-10

Office and computer equipme 2-6

Leasehold improvemen Life of related leas
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Office and computer equipment includes capitalizeshputer software. All of our capitalized softwégurchased. We have no
internally developed computer software. Leasehwolgrovements and capitalized leased equipment aoetized over the shorter of the lease
term or the item’s useful life. Capitalized interea construction in progress is included in propgulant and equipment.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with definite lives are amortipedr their estimated useful lives and are reviefeednpairment when facts or
circumstances suggest that the carrying valueasfdtassets may not be recoverable. Optéane lease intangible asset is being amortizec
the remaining period of the related lease termis=idsed in Note 4.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of lor-lived assets is reviewed on a regular basis foe#igtence of facts or circumstances both inteyraaid



externally that may suggest impairment. Specifieptial indicators of impairment include:

« asignificant decrease in the fair value of antasse

« asignificant change in the extent or manner inclvlain asset is used or a significant physical ohémgn asset;

» asignificant adverse change in legal factors @ahénbusiness climate that affects the value cisset;

* an adverse action or assessment by the U.S. FebDraig Administration or another regulator;

» an accumulation of costs significantly in excesthefamount originally expected to acquire or catstan asset; and

» operating or cash flow losses combined with a hystd operating or cash flow losses or a projectioffiorecast that demonstrates
continuing losses associated with an income-praduasset.

Should there be an indication of impairment, wd test for recoverability by comparing the estinthtmdiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset arel/gntual disposition to the carrying amount efdkset. In estimating these future cash
flows, assets and liabilities are grouped at theeki level for which there are identifiable cagiwf$ that are largely independent of the cash
flows generated by other such groups. If the urdisted future cash flows are less than the carrgingunt of the asset, an impairment loss,
measured as the excess of the carrying value afgbet over its fair value, will be recognized. Theh flow estimates used in such
calculations are based on management’s best essmating appropriate and customary assumptionprajettions at the time.
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Foreign Currency Translation, Transactions and Contacts

Adjustments resulting from translating the finahsiatements of our foreign subsidiaries into W&lars are excluded from the
determination of net income and are accumulatedseparate component of stockholders’ equity. bietin exchange transaction gains
(losses) are reported as selling, general and astnsitive expenses in the consolidated statemdmtparations. Such realized gains (losses)
were ($2.2) million in 2003, $0.6 million in 2002 ($1.4) million in 2001.

We hedge certain of our foreign currency expostetged to outstanding trade accounts receivaiotelyf committed purchase
transactions, and forecasted product sales wittignrexchange forward contracts. In general, teesgracts do not expose us to market risk
because gains and losses on the contracts offisest grad losses on the transactions being hedgeadexposure to credit risk from these
contracts is a function of changes in interest@ndency exchange rates and, therefore, variestomer Gilead limits the risk that
counterparties to these contracts may be unalgerform by transacting only with major U.S. barilk& also limit risk of loss by entering
into contracts that provide for net settlement aturity. Therefore, our overall risk of loss in tieent of a counterparty default is limited to
the amount of any unrecognized and unrealized gairmutstanding contracts (i.e., those contraeashhve a positive fair value) at the dat
default. We do not enter into speculative foreigrmrency transactions and do not write options. Was@ntly do not hedge our net investment
in any of our foreign subsidiaries. In accounting liedges of accounts receivable, we record thegdsain the fair value in selling, general
and administrative expense, as these derivatiteuiments are not designated as hedges under SFAS 13

We selectively hedge anticipated currency exposygaurchasing forward contracts to hedge firmlynaatted purchases transactions
and anticipated product sales over the next yebsst which are designated as cash flow hedgesr 81AS 133. The unrealized gains and
losses on the underlying forward contracts arerdembin other comprehensive income and recognizedinings when the forecasted
transaction occurs. At December 31, 2003 and Deeefih 2002, we have net unrealized losses onpmem foreign exchange forward
contracts of $14.5 million and $1.1 million, respeely. Losses on revenue hedges reduced prodlest bg $2.8 million in 2003 and by $1.0
million in 2002.

We had notional amounts on forward exchange cast@dstanding of $405.0 million at December 3028and $53.5 million at
December 31, 2002. All contracts have maturitiesra year or less.

See Note 2 for a further discussion of derivatimaricial instruments and our adoption of SFAS 133.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist priaftipof cash and cash equivalents, marketable g&jraccounts receivable, certain
other non-current assets, forward foreign exchaogéracts, accounts payable, long-term obligatamt convertible notes. Cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and forwardigorexchange contracts that hedge accounts redeiged reported at their respective fair
values on the balance sheet. Forward foreign exgghaantracts that hedge firmly committed purchaseksales are recorded at fair value
of the related deferred gain or loss, resulting neported net balance of zero. The fair valudefconvertible senior notes at December 31,
2003 was
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$472.6 million and the fair value at December 31)2was $357.4 million. The carrying value at thd ef each period was $345.0 million.
The fair value of the convertible subordinated s@eDecember 31, 2002 was $381.9 million and #neying value was $250.0 million.
Gilead called the convertible subordinated notesddemption in November 2003 and converted the@ilead common stock in

December 2003. The fair values at December 31, 2883 ecember 31, 2002 for each of the conventibtes were determined by obtaining
guotes from a market maker for the notes. We beltbe remaining financial instruments are repoaiethe consolidated balance sheet at
amounts that approximate current fair values.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretaio. 46 (FIN 46)Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitiesin Interpretation of
ARB No. 51. FIN 46 requires certain variable instrentities to be consolidated by the primary biereafy of the entity if the equity investors
in the entity do not have the characteristics obatrolling financial interest or do not have scint equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated finan@apport from other parties. FIN 46 is effectinemediately for all new variable interest
entities created or acquired after January 31, 2063did not create or acquire any new variablerest entities after January 31, 2003. For
variable interest entities created or acquiredrgdd-ebruary 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN 46aasended, must be applied at the end of the
first interim or annual period ending after March 2003. The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a mi@ténpact on our consolidated financ
statements.

2. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On January 1, 2001, Gilead adopted SFAS 133. Emelatd requires that Gilead recognize all deriestias either assets or liabilities
measured at fair value. We enter into foreign awyeforward contracts to hedge against changdseifiair value of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in a non-functional currenkf the derivative is designated as, and meetsifinition of, a fair value hedge, the
changes in the fair value of the derivative anthefhedged item attributable to the hedged riskegegnized in earnings.

The Company enters into foreign currency forwandtiarts, generally with maturities of 12 monthdess, to hedge future cash flows
related to purchase transactions and forecastetliprsales in foreign denominated currencies. THesgative instruments are employed to
eliminate or minimize certain foreign currency espies that can be confidently identified and quigati In accordance with SFAS 133,
hedges related to anticipated foreign currencylmses of raw materials and forecasted product dakignated and documented at the
inception of the respective hedge are designatedstsflow hedges and evaluated for effectivenaasterly. As the terms of the forward
contract and the underlying transaction are matethéaception, forward contract effectiveness isdated by comparing the fair value of the
contract to the change in the forward value oftthderlying hedged item. The effective componernhefhedge is recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income. Substantially all vahegported in accumulated other comprehensive iecanbecember 31, 2003 will be
reclassified to earnings within 12 months. Anydesi changes in fair value of the instruments bepineffectiveness are

75




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

2. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
recognized immediately in selling, general and astiative expense. Ineffectiveness during 20032062 was not significant.

As a result of entering into collaborations in pyears, Gilead holds warrants to purchase stotkdnnon-public companies, one of
which completed its initial public offering in Jaamy 2004. See Note 10. These warrants have neatisgdeatures and under SFAS 133 are
classified as derivative instruments. Upon adoptigitead recorded the fair value of one of theseravds at $1.1 million with an offsetting
adjustment to cumulative change in accounting jplac

During 2003, a $5.1 million loss on hedging corisdt@as been recognized in the consolidated incéatensent and a $1.0 million
decrease in the fair value of derivatives has lbeeognized in accumulated other comprehensive iecédDecember 31, 2003, the fair ve
of derivatives included in accumulated other corhpnsive income is not material.

3. ACQUISITION OF TRIANGLE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

On January 23, 2003, we completed the acquisitiail of the net assets of Triangle to expand auivaal pipeline. Triangle was a
development stage company with a particular focupaiential therapies for HIV, including AIDS, atite hepatitis B virus (HBV).
Triangle’s portfolio consisted of several drug dalates in clinical trials, including Emtriva (entitabine) for the treatment of HIV infection,
emtricitabine for the treatment of chronic hepsatigi amdoxovir for the treatment of HIV infectiondaclevudine for the treatment of chronic
hepatitis B. In July 2003, the U.S. Food and Druyninistration (FDA) approved for marketing Emtrifea the treatment of HIV and in
October 2003, the European Commission granted Magk@uthorisation for Emtriva in all fifteen membstates of the European Union.

The Triangle acquisition has been accounted famaacquisition of assets rather than as a busamesbination in accordance with the
criteria outlined in Emerging Issues Task Force398+iangle was a development stage company tlthhbacommenced its planned princ
operations. It lacked the necessary elements abméss because it did not have completed prodmnctstherefore, no ability to access
customers. The results of operations of Triangieesilanuary 23, 2003 have been included in ourntidased financial statements and
primarily consist of research and development egesrand to a lesser extent, selling, general amihédrative expenses.

In December 2002, as part of the arrangements maidted by the proposed acquisition of Triangledilgad, a $50.0 million loan was
extended to Triangle for working capital and otberporate purposes. Triangle issued to Gilead @6 .6nsecured convertible promissory
note. Upon completion of the acquisition in Janu2093, this loan was eliminated in our consoliddbeancial statements.

The aggregate purchase price was $525.2 milliahding cash paid of $463.1 million for all of tbatstanding stock, the fair value of
stock options assumed of $41.3 million, estimatiegctitransaction costs of $14.2 million and empleyelated costs of $6.6 million.

As part of the purchase, we established a workfoedaction plan and also assumed obligations uweagous change of control
agreements. As of the acquisition date, approxim&&2 million of employee termination costs ainge of control obligations had been
recorded as a liability to be paid
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out over a period of approximately two years. AtBmber 31, 2003, approximately $3.6 million remdias a liability.

The following table summarizes the purchase prilceation at January 23, 2003 (in thousands):

Net tangible asse $ 28,70C
Assembled workforc 4,59C
Deferred compensatic 3,30t
In-process research and developn 488,59¢

$525,19¢

The $28.7 million of net tangible assets includesuaned liabilities of $20.8 million. The $4.6 nolti value assigned to the assembled
workforce was being amortized over three yearse#tenated useful life of the asset. The defermrdpensation represents the intrinsic value
of the unvested stock options assumed in the teéinsaand will be amortized over the remaining wresperiod of the options, which extends
through January 2007.

Upon the reversal of the deferred tax asset valnatilowance in the fourth quarter of 2003, theagrimg $3.2 million assembled
workforce asset was eliminated. See Note 18.
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Approximately $488.6 million of the purchase prigas allocated to in-process research and develapanerepresented the fair value
of Triangle’s incomplete research and developmengqams that had not yet reached technologicallféias and had no alternative future
use as of the acquisition date. A summary of tipesgrams at the acquisition date and updated fosequent developments follows:

Program
Emtricitabine for
HIV—Single

Agent

Emtricitabine/
Tenofovir DF
Fixed Dose
Combination
for HIV
Therapy

Amdoxovir for
HIV

Clevudine for
HBV

Emtricitabine for
HBV

Description

Status of Developmen

Value (in millions )

A nucleoside analogue that
has been shown to be an
inhibitor of HIV replication
in patients.

A potential co-formulation of
tenofovir and emtricitabine.

A purine dioxolane
nucleoside that may offer
advantages over other
marketed nucleosides beca
of its activity against drug

Four phase 3 studies completed. U.S.
marketing approval received from the
FDA in July 2003 and European Union
approval received from the European
Commission in October 2003.

As of the acquisition date, work had not
yet commenced on the potentia-
formulation except to the extent that
work on emtricitabine as a single agent
was progressing. We have since
successfully completed co-formulating
tenofovir and emtricitabine into a single
pill, completed three stability studies and
a bioequivalence study required for
approval.

Phase 2 trials at acquisition date.
Effective January 28, 2004, we
announced our intent to terminate the
licensing agreement with Emory
University and the University of Georgia

resistant viruses as exhibited Research Foundation, Inc. and

in patients with HIV
infection.

A pyrimidine nucleoside
analogue that has been shc
to be an inhibitor of HBV
replication in patients
chronically infected with
HBV.

An inhibitor of HBV
replication in patients
chronically infected with
HBV.

development will be discontinued.

Phase 1/2 trials at acquisition date.
Effective August 6, 2003, the licensing
agreement with Bukwang Pharm. Ind.
Co., Ltd was terminated and
development was discontinued.

Phase 3 trial ongoing.
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The remaining efforts for completion of Triangleésearch and development projects primarily cowsistinical trials, the cost, length
and success of which are extremely difficult todice Numerous risks and uncertainties exist tloatd prevent completion of development,
including the ability to enroll patients in clinidaials, the possibility of unfavorable resultsafr clinical trials, and the risk of failing to
obtain FDA and other regulatory body approvals.dbeek from regulatory authorities or results frdimical trials might require
modifications or delays in later stage clinicahlsior additional trials to be performed. We carbtertain that emtricitabine for the treatn
of chronic hepatitis B, purchased from Trianglel] i approved in the U.S. or the European Uniowloether marketing approvals will have
significant limitations on its use. We have ternd@thour rights with respect to the other potengralducts that we acquired with the
acquisition of Triangle. We also do not yet havpragal of the fixed-dose combination product camitag tenofovir DF and emtricitabine.
Future discussions with regulatory agencies wiledaine the amount of data needed and timelinesefoew, which may differ materially
from current projections. The acquired productsaurtevelopment may never be successfully commeredhl Emtriva, for example, is a
product with many similarities to other existingpgucts. As a result, it may be difficult to sucdebg penetrate the market and to achieve
significant revenues. In addition, emtricitabine fioe treatment of chronic hepatitis B faces sigaift uncertainties associated with pricing,
efficacy, and the cost to produce that may notuseessfully resolved. As a result, we may makeadesjic decision to discontinue
development of this product, as we did with clemedand amdoxovir, if we believe commercializatiah e difficult relative to other
opportunities in our pipeline. If these programsrz# be completed on a timely basis or at all, thanprospects for future revenue growth
would be adversely impacted.

The value of the acquired in-process research amdlopment was determined by estimating the refatienle net cash flows between
2003 and 2020 using a present value risk adjusssduant rate of 15.75%. This discount rate is aifitant assumption and is based on our
estimated weighted average cost of capital adjugpedhrd for the risks associated with the projactguired. The projected cash flows from
the acquired projects were based on estimatesehves and operating profits related to the prsjeshsidering the stage of development of
each potential product acquired, the time and messuneeded to complete the development and apgmbeach product, the life of each
potential commercialized product and associatéd fiiscluding the inherent difficulties and uncenmtas in developing a drug compound
including obtaining FDA and other regulatory apmisy and risks related to the viability of and mbie alternative treatments in any future
target markets.

4. ACQUISITION OF REAL ESTATE

In September 2003, we completed the purchase dfaster City campus for approximately $123.0 millia cash. This purchase
included 16 buildings, totaling 496,000 square tdaiffice and laboratory space on Lakeside DrivE&dster City, California.

In accordance with SFAS No. 148ysiness Combinatiorsd SFAS No. 14Z500dwill and Other Intangible Assetthe purchase price
should be allocated between land, buildings anstiexj in-place leases based on the estimatedvwelfir values. Land and buildings were
recorded at $45.1 million and
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$71.4 million, respectively. The fair value of theildings will be depreciated over their remaingmpnomic life estimated to be 20 years. We
used the market approach to value the existingetea® acquired and recorded an intangible assgtpbximately $6.5 million that will be
amortized on a straight-line basis to net rentabine over approximately two years, the remainingp tef the leases. The net rental income
we generate from these leases, after amortizafitireantangible asset, is included in interest atiter income, net and was approximately
$0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2@@®umulated amortization on the intangible asset &8 million as of December 31,
2003.

5. ASSET IMPAIRMENT

During 2003, we recorded an asset impairment chair§&0.2 million on certain of our long-lived asserimarily leasehold
improvements, manufacturing and laboratory equigmehich we have classified as held for use. Tlois-nash charge was driven by the
decision to terminate our liposomal research angldpment activities in San Dimas and discontiee@aunoXome product line. The
impairment was based on our analysis of the undigteal cash flows to be generated from the affeaséts as compared to their carrying
value. As the carrying value exceeded the relatelisaounted cash flows, we wrote the carrying valughe long-lived assets down to fair
value in accordance with SFAS No. 14€counting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd Assets Fair value was derived using an
expected cash flow approach.

6. SALE OF ONCOLOGY ASSETS

On December 21, 2001, Gilead completed the sats ohcology assets, pipeline of clinical candidateoncology and all related
intellectual property, as well as our Boulder, Gattp operations, including clinical research angydtevelopment operations, infrastructure
and facilities, to OSI. The three clinical develagrhcandidates sold to OSI were: NX 211 (liposolmdbtecan), GS 7836 (a nucleoside
analogue) and GS 7904L (a liposomal thymidylatelsse inhibitor). As consideration, Gilead recei$&80.0 million in cash and 924,984
shares of OSI common stock valued at approxim&®8;8 million as of December 21, 2001. The numlishares issued to Gilead was
determined by dividing $40.0 million by the averaigsing sale price of OSI common stock for thea§dpreceding December 21, 2001. We
are also entitled to additional payments from OSimto $30.0 million in either cash or a combinatdf cash and OSI common stock if and
when OSI reaches certain development milestonedXo211, the most advanced of the oncology prodaotidates sold to OSI. Milestone
payments, if any, received from OSI will be recagni as contract revenues upon receipt. Based apdddcember 21, 2001 net book value
of the oncology assets sold of $5.0 million, traxigen costs of $3.2 million, and $2.8 million reddtto the acceleration of approximately
78,000 options to purchase Gilead common stockealized a pretax gain of $157.8 million in thertbugquarter of 2001. The carrying value
of the transferred assets relates primarily toadeproperty and equipment. OS| assumed all ofadieoncology-related clinical and
preclinical obligations, as well as various leabkgations. Under a related manufacturing agreenveatwill produce for OSI liposomal
formulations of NX 211 and GS 7904L, the two liposd products sold to OSI, at our manufacturinglitydin San Dimas, CA.
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7. SALE OF MARKETABLE SECURITIES

In July 2002, Gilead sold all of its remaining s&of OSI common stock for approximately $22.0ioll These shares were partial
consideration for the sale of our oncology asse83! in December 2001, at which time they weremed at a fair market value of
approximately $38.0 million. In connection with teale of these remaining shares, we recognized-®perating loss of approximately $1t
million that is reflected in our consolidated resuf operations for the year ended December 312.20

8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

The following is a summary of available-for-salewsties. Estimated fair values of available-folessecurities are based on prices
obtained from commercial pricing services (in thens):

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

December 31, 200:



U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.Segoment

agenciet $167,82¢ $ 304 $ (B) $168,12:
Corporate debt securiti 104,54¢ 25€ (15) 104,79(
Asse-backed securitie 208,55’ 16t (299 208,42:
Other debt securitie 146,90: — — 146,90:
Total $627,83. $ 72F $(31S) $628,23¢

December 31, 2002
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.Segoment

agencies $419,78: $1,781 $ (9 $421,55¢
Corporate debt securiti 102,89: 1,19¢ a7 104,06¢
Asse-backed securitie 68,70¢ 852 (6) 69,554
Other debt securitie 290,01¢ — — 290,01¢
Total $881,40: $3,82¢ $ (32) $885,19°

Other debt securities consist primarily of moneyketafunds. We also maintain other marketable sgesiiof nominal value recorded in
other noncurrent assets. At December 31, 2003 &oémber 31, 2002, these securities have a netlizeaioss of approximately $0.8
million and $0.1 million, respectively.

The following table presents certain informatiotated to sales of available-for-sale securitieglfousands):

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Proceeds from salt $579,36. $422,16¢ $143,68:
Gross realized gains on sa $ 1897 $ 349 $ 1,28/
Gross realized losses on se $ (1,120) $(16,70%) $ (59)
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At December 31, 2003, $361.9 million of our poritiadf marketable securities (which excludes $208ilion of assetbacked securitie:
has a contractual maturity of less than one yedr$&7.9 million of the portfolio has a contractu@turity greater than one year but less than
three years. None of the estimated maturities ofagaet-backed securities exceed three years.

9. BALANCE SHEET DETAIL (in thousands)

December 31,

2003 2002
Inventories:
Raw materials $ 54,17¢ $ 24,84(
Work in proces: 11,77¢ 16,54¢
Finished good 32,14¢ 10,24(
Total $ 98,10: $ 51,62¢
Property, plant and equipment, net:
Buildings and improvements (including leaseholdiavements $146,44¢ $ 61,01(
Laboratory and manufacturing equipm 35,81¢ 37,10¢
Office and computer equipme 34,19:¢ 27,00t
Capitalized leased equipme 16,33: 14,91¢
Construction in progres 10,29: 8,467
243,08 148,50!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (89,939 (80,779
Subtotal 153,14 67,72%
Land 45,05¢ —
Total $198,20( $ 67,72
Accrued compensation and employee benefits:
Accrued bonuse $ 13,311 $ 9,92¢
Other accrued compensation and employee bel 22,45¢ 11,58
Total $ 35,77: $ 21,51
Other accrued liabilities:
Accrued Medicaid rebate $ 22,097 $ 10,80¢
Fair value of forward currency contra 15,09¢ 1,79¢
Income taxes payab 13,30¢ 2,991
Accrued sales and marketing exper 5,88: 8,20¢
Other liabilities 40,62 20,22
Total $ 97,00: $ 44,02¢
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10. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
Chiron Corporation

In August 2003, we entered into a nexclusive licensing agreement with Chiron Corpora{Chiron) for the research, development
commercialization of small molecule therapeuticaiast selected hepatitis C virus (HCV) drug targetsder the agreement, Gilead received
non-exclusive rights to use ChireHCV technology to develop and commercialize potslor the treatment of HCV. Under the terms &f
agreement, we paid Chiron an up-front licenselieéwas recorded as research and development expsitisere is no future alternative use
for this technology. We also agreed to make adtipayments to Chiron if certain clinical and riegory milestones are met and royalty
payments in the event a product is developed ubiat¢icensed technology.

Japan Tobacco Inc.

In July 2003, Gilead entered into a licensing agret with Japan Tobacco Inc. (Japan Tobacco) umtiesh Japan Tobacco will
commercialize products in our HIV portfolio in Japdhe agreement includes Viread, Emtriva and @éuto-formulation of the two
products. Under the terms of the agreement, wevet@n up-front fee and are entitled to receiwditaahal cash payments upon achievement
of certain milestones. Japan Tobacco also willymg royalty on net sales, if any, of these pragincflapan. The up-front fee has been
recorded as deferred revenue and will be amortizedcontract revenue over the period of our reingimbligations under the agreement,
approximately 14 years.

Emory University

In April 1996, Triangle obtained, and in Januar@20ve acquired as part of our acquisition of Trlangn exclusive worldwide license
to all of Emory University’s rights to purified fors of emtricitabine for use in the HIV and the h@fzaB fields. We are obligated to make
certain milestone and royalty payments to Emorgiuiding annual minimum royalties beginning thedhyear after the first FDA registration
is granted for an anti-HIV product incorporating #mtricitabine technology in the U.S. and thedtlyigar after the first registration is granted
for an anti-hepatitis B product incorporating tmetecitabine technology in certain major market ewies, for the HIV and hepatitis B
indications, respectively. In 2002, Triangle begaying license maintenance fees because developnikstones had not yet been achieved.

The license agreement with Emory terminates upenater of patent expiration or the expiration of obligation to pay royalties. In
addition, we have the right to terminate the age@nm its entirety or with respect to one or biitications (HIV and HBV) in one or more
countries prior to expiration at any time upon @9<inotice.

GlaxoSmithKline

In April 2002, Gilead and GSK entered into a lideagsagreement providing GSK the rights to commdima@aHepsera , our antiviral for
the treatment of chronic hepatitis B, in Asia, hadimerica and certain other territories. Underdgesement, we retained rights to Hepsera in
the U. S., Canada, Eastern and Western Europerafiasind New Zealand. GSK received exclusive ggbtdevelop Hepsera solely
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for the treatment of chronic hepatitis B in allitsfterritories, the most significant of which inde China, Korea, Japan and Taiwan. In
addition, GSK paid us an up-front licensing fe&0.0 million as the first payment against thesditamhal obligations and, may pay up to
$30.0 million upon achievement by GSK of certaigulatory, development and commercial milestonegh3f$30.0 million, $2.0 million
was received for the U.S. approval of Hepsera pt&Saber 2002 and $2.0 million was received forGla@adian approval of Hepsera in
August 2003. GSK also will pay us a royalty on sedes, if any, of Hepsera in the GSK territorieSKGwill have full responsibility for
development and commercialization of Hepsera in G$ritories. The $10.0 million up-front fee a$d.0 million of approval fees have
been recorded as deferred revenue with a toted &f ®illion and $0.5 million being recognized asiract revenue in 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The $12.6 million balance of defemexdenue at December 31, 2003 will be amortizedl éantract revenue over the period of
our remaining obligations under the agreement,@pprately 12 years.

In December 2000, Gilead entered into an agreemimiGlaxo Wellcome, now GSK, giving Gilead thehtg to GS 7904L, a novel
anti-tumor compound. Gilead was developing GS 79044 liposome and was evaluating it in preclingaldies. Under the agreement,
Gilead had exclusive worldwide rights to developg anmmercialize GS 7904L for all indications ottiean malaria. Gilead paid GSK an up-
front fee that was included in R&D expense in 206Mecember 2001, this compound was assigned t@®fart of the sale of oncology
assets.

In May 1998, Gilead entered into a three-part tatation with GSK in which: (a) GSK received a rexelusive right to use Gilead’s
proprietary SELEX process for target validation); @lead received exclusive rights (subject to GSHght to elect to participate in such
activities) to develop and commercialize NX 21lipasomal formulation of GSK’s proprietary topoiserase | inhibitor (lurtotecan); and
(c) GSK acquired 1,457,028 shares of Gilead comstock for $10.0 million in a private offering. InePember 2000, the collaboration and
license agreement was modified. Under the revieedd of agreement, GSK waived its right to partitépin the development and
commercialization of NX 211 and its right to receioyalties, giving Gilead exclusive rights to ttenpound. In December 2001, this
compound was also assigned to OSI as part of thewancology assets.

Cubist Pharmaceuticals

In September 2002, Gilead and Cubist Pharmacesijiciatly announced the termination of their liceigsagreement for the
commercialization of Cidecifi (daptomycin for injection) and an oral formulatiohdaptomycin. The agreement, executed in Janu@dy,2
granted Gilead exclusive commercialization rigltshte products in 16 European countries followiegulatory approval. Under the terms of
the termination agreement, Gilead does not owdanye payments to Cubist, and Cubist reacquireHwlopean rights to both products.
Upon termination, $2.0 million was recorded to ezsb and development expense, which representaertrening unamortized asset related
to the preclinical oral formulation of daptomycin.
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Archemix

In October 2001, we entered into an agreement Arithemix Corporation relating to our SELEX techrgpjoUnder this agreement,
Archemix obtained the exclusive rights to the SELfE¥cess, including therapeutic and other commieapiglications to the extent not
already licensed under pre-existing agreementsheiknix paid to us $9.0 million in 2001 and $8.5 ioillin 2002. As required by our license
agreement with License Equity Holdings, Inc. (ULEHVe paid 5% of these receipts to ULEHI, therefoserecognized $8.1 million and $
million as revenue in 2002 and 2001, respectivAlg.also received a warrant to purchase 350,00@swirArchemix common stock, the
value of which is not material. As required by oense agreement with ULEHI, we transferred 5%hgf warrant at that time. We have
since transferred the remainder of the warrantltBll. No additional payments are due by Archemidemthis agreement.

EyeTech

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement withTEegh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to our prégnyeaptamer EYEO0OL, now
known as Macugen. Currently in Phase 3 clinicaldriMacugen is an inhibitor of vascular endothejfawth factor, or VEGF, which is
known to play a role in the development of certghthalmic diseases. Under the terms of the agnegrageTech received worldwide rights
to all therapeutic uses of Macugen, and, if thelpob is successfully commercialized, EyeTech wa¥ pis royalties on worldwide sales of the
product. EyeTech also will be responsible for efigarch and development costs. We provided clisigaplies of the product to EyeTech
through March 2001. We also received a $7.0 milliprfront licensing fee from EyeTech in April 20Q@hich was recognized as revenue
ratably over the one-year supply agreement peAodordingly, $5.2 million of the license fee waswoeded as contract revenue under the
agreement in 2000, and the remainder of the lickaes&as recognized as revenue in 2001. We arecatiited to additional cash payments
from EyeTech of up to $25.0 million if and when Egeh reaches certain Macugen development milestéaieltionally, we received a
warrant to purchase 791,667 shares of EyeTechss€rimnvertible preferred stock, exercisable ai@mpf $6.00 per share, the price at wi
the stock was issued to other investors. See Nfiite@ description of the accounting treatmenthef warrant.

Fujisawa

Our rights to market AmBisome are subject to a 18@Eement between Gilead and Fujisawa Healthare as successor to Fujisawa
USA, Inc. (Fujisawa). Under the terms of the Fujiaaagreement, as amended, Fujisawa and Gileadotoepe AmBisome in the U.S.
Fujisawa has sole marketing rights to AmBisome am&a and we have exclusive marketing rights to isorBe in the rest of the world,
provided we pay royalties to Fujisawa in connectigth sales in most significant Asian markets, intthg Japan. In connection with U.S.
sales, Fujisawa purchases AmBisome from Gileadstt €or sales in Canada, Fujisawa purchases Ami&isd cost plus a specified
percentage. Fujisawa collects all payments fronsgie of AmBisome in the U.S. and Canada. We rec2d®o of Fujisawa’'s gross profits
from the sale of AmBisome in the U.S. Gross prdfitdude a deduction for cost of goods sold, givirsga current effective royalty rate of
approximately 17% of Fujisawa’s net sales of AmBigan
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the U.S. In connection with the agreement betweeand Fujisawa, we recorded royalty revenue ofSffllion in 2003, $15.7 million in
2002 and $17.1 million in 2001.

Sumitomo

In September 1996, Gilead and Sumitomo enteredaimtagreement pursuant to which Sumitomo agreddwvelop and market
AmBisome in Japan. Under the terms of the agreensemhitomo paid us an initial $7.0 million licengifee (less withholding taxes of
$0.7 million) in October 1996 and a $3.0 millionlesione payment (less withholding taxes of $0.3ioni) in March 1998. Sumitomo also is
required to make additional payments to us if dertinical and commercial milestones are met anpaty us royalties on all Japanese
AmBisome sales. Under the agreement, Gilead igatgd to provide a certain quantity of AmBisom&tomitomo at no charge. AmBisome
is not yet approved for marketing in Japan.

Roche

In September 1996, Gilead entered into a collammratgreement with Roche to develop and commereidhierapies to treat and prev
viral influenza (the Roche Agreement). Under thel®Agreement, Roche received exclusive worldwiiglets to Gilead's proprietary
influenza neuraminidase inhibitors. Prior to 20R0che made license fee and developmental milegtayments totaling $29.1 million.
During 2000, Gilead recognized $9.6 million of cat revenue from milestone payments from Rocleedlto Tamiflu milestones achieved
during the year. The milestones included filing flegulatory approval in Japan for treatment ofuiefiza, the Japanese approval of the
application, the filing for U.S. regulatory approfar the prevention of influenza, and the receipsuch approval in the U.S. In 2001, we
recognized a $2.0 million milestone payment forftlieg of an application to market Tamiflu as aphylaxis in the European Union. In
2002, we recognized $8.0 million in milestone pagtador the European approval of Tamiflu for treafthand prophylaxis.

As of December 31, 2003, Gilead is entitled to tddal cash payments from Roche of up to $1.6 arillipon Roche achieving
additional developmental and regulatory milestohesddition, Roche is required to pay Gilead rtigalon net product sales. Gilead began
receiving royalties from Roche'sales of Tamiflu in the first quarter of 2000. Yéeorded a total of $12.0 million of Tamiflu rogiak in 2003
$3.4 million of royalties in 2002 and $4.5 milliaf royalties in 2001. We recognize royalty revefreen Roche in the quarter following the
quarter in which the related Tamiflu sales occur.

Pfizer

In August 1996, Gilead and Pfizer (formerly Pharrad@orporation) entered into a License and Supmgye@ment (Pfizer Agreement) to
market Vistide in all countries outside the U.Sdenthe terms of the Pfizer Agreement, Pfizer galdad an initial license fee of
$10.0 million.

Subsequent to the cumulative effect of the changecounting principle recorded effective in thetfguarter of 2000, Gilead is
recognizing the initial license fee on a straighelbasis over the supply arrangement period, wikisixteen years from the agreement date.
The net impact of the change in accounting priecfpl the Pfizer Agreement was to increase thdasstin 2000 by $7.3 million. The
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cumulative effect of the change in accounting pplecrelated to the initial license fee from Pfizesis a $7.9 million charge to results of
operations, and additional contract revenue of $tlkon was recognized in 2000 subsequent to ttemanting change. The remaining
$7.3 million of related deferred revenue is expgdtebe recognized on a straight-line basis asraohtevenue over the remaining supply
period, through 2013.

Under the terms of the Pfizer Agreement and relatgdements covering expanded access programsstisié/outside of the U.S.,
Gilead is responsible for maintaining the cidofquatent portfolio and for supplying to Pfizer balkiofovir used to manufacture the finished
Vistide product. Gilead is entitled to receive gaity based upon Pfizer’s sales of Vistide. Gileackives a portion of the royalty upon
shipping either bulk drug substance or Vistide fiad?, and the remainder upon Pfizer’'s sale of Mdesto third parties. Any royalties that
Gilead receives before the product is sold to thadies are recorded as deferred revenue until #hiidl-party sales occur. At December 31,
2003, we have recorded on our balance sheet appately $2.6 million of such deferred revenue ($thifion at December 31, 2002). We
recognized royalty revenue from sales of Vistidesime of the United States by Pharmacia of $1.8aniin 2003, $1.3 million in 2002 and
$1.4 million in 2001.

IOCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, Gilead entered into agreemertstive Institute of Organic Chemistry and Biochamisf the Academy of Sciences
of the Czech Republic and Rega Stichting (IOCB/REG#ating to certain nucleotide compounds discetieat these two institutions. Under
the agreements, Gilead received the exclusive t@ghtanufacture, use and sell these nucleotide oamgs, and Gilead is obligated to pay
IOCB/REGA a percentage of net revenues receivad Bales of products containing the compounds, stifijeninimum royalty payments.
The products covered by the agreement includedéstiiepsera and Viread, but exclude Tamiflu. Gileadently makes quarterly payments
to IOCB/REGA based on a percentage of Vistide, idepand Viread sales.

In December 2000, the agreements with IOCB/REGAeveenended to provide for a reduced royalty ratbuture sales of Hepsera or
Viread, in return for an up-front payment from @itkof $11.0 million upon signing the agreementsTgayment was recorded as a long-term
prepaid royalty and is classified in other noncotr@ssets on the balance sheet at December 31 aR003002. It is being recognized as
royalty expense over the expected commercial fif¢icead and Hepsera. Amortization of the $11.0lioml payment began as of the product
launch dates of Viread and Hepsera and totaledi$illién through December 31, 2003.

Southern Research Institute

In December 2000, Gilead entered into an agreemgmtSouthern Research Institute giving Gilead waitle rights to develop and
commercialize GS 7836, an anti-tumor compound@®@iktad was evaluating in preclinical studies. Unitherterms of the agreement, Gilead
paid Southern Research Institute an up-front féechwas included in research and development esgen2000. In December 2001, this
compound was assigned to OSI as part of the saleaaflogy assets.
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In July 1998, we established Proligo L.L.C., a Delee limited liability company (Proligo), as a whyobwned subsidiary and transferred
all of the assets of the NeXstar Technology Pragiditision to Proligo. In August 1998, we sold &bihterest (Interest) in Proligo to a third
party. As payment for the Interest, we received.@hiillion in cash and a 49% interest in PerSepHigsystems GmbH, a company in
Hamburg, Germany, which specializes in the manufaabf nucleoside phosphoramidite monomers. Poiéetbruary 2000, we made two
additional cash investments in Proligo for a tofe$5.0 million to maintain our 49% ownership irgstin Proligo.

We accounted for our investment in Proligo usirgyelquity method of accountinQuring 2001, Gilead sold its 49% interest in Proltg
Degussa Corporation for $14.3 million in cash. Pheceeds, net of Gilead's investment in Prolige, r@flected as an $8.8 million gain on the
sale of unconsolidated affiliate. In 2001, priothie date of the sale, Gilead recorded $2.1 milisrequity in the loss of Proligo.

12. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations consist of the following ¢flmousands):



December 31
2003 2002

Capital lease obligations: monthly installmentotigh 2007;
interest rates ranging from 6% to 2: $ 462 $ 361
Fixed rate debt: monthly installments through 208&;ured by

equipment; interest rates ranging from 2% to 1 — 106
Total lon¢-term obligations 462 467
Less current portio (1390 (199
Long-term obligations due after one ye $ 323 $ 273

Future minimum lease payments under capital lebkgations are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31

2004 $ 196
2005 184
2006 171
2007 12
2008 —

563
Less amount representing inter (101)
Total $ 462

The terms of the various agreements require usrigpty with certain financial and operating covesaitt December 31, 2003, we were
in compliance with all such covenants.
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On December 18, 2002, Gilead issued $345.0 mitiio2% convertible senior notes due December 157 20@ private offering to
Goldman, Sachs & Co. who resold the notes to dadlihstitutional investors. The notes are conbéatinto a total of up to 7,340,425 shares
of Gilead common stock at $47.00 per share. Thed®4donversion price is higher than Gilead’s comrsimtk price on the note’s issuance
date. The notes are redeemable in whole or in gaithe option of Gilead, at any time on or aftame) 20, 2004, at specified redemption prices
plus accrued interest. Debt issuance costs of/8lidn incurred in connection with the issuancettod notes were recorded as other
noncurrent assets, and are being amortized teesttexpense on a straight-line basis over the actuial term of the notes.

On December 13, 2000, Gilead issued $250.0 mitiob% convertible subordinated notes due Decembge2007 in a private offering
to J.P. Morgan & Co., Lehman Brothers and Morgamiely Dean Witter, which resold the notes to pevastitutional investors. The notes
were convertible into a total of up to 10,178,1héres of Gilead common stock at $24.5625 per sham$24.5625 conversion price was
higher than Gilead’s common stock price on the’'sassuance date. The notes were redeemable irevanoh part, at the option of Gilead, at
any time on or after December 20, 2003, at spetifelemption prices plus accrued interest. Debisse costs of $8.2 million incurred in
connection with the issuance of thenotes were dezbas other noncurrent assets, and were beindiaewbto interest expense on a straight-
line basis over the contractual term of the ndtedlovember 2003, Gilead called the convertiblessdimated notes for redemption and
converted them to shares of common stock in Dece2@@3. Upon conversion, the $4.6 million remainirjance of the related debt
issuance costs was reclassified to additional ipad@pital.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Arrangements

We have entered into various long-term noncancelapérating leases for equipment and facilities.

Facility leases in San Dimas, California and DurhBlorth Carolina expire on various dates betwedd62ihd 2013. One of the San
Dimas leases contains two five-year renewal optidhe Durham lease has two sewear renewal options. We also have operating lefas:
sales, marketing and administrative facilities irdpe and Australia with various terms. Our equiptieases include a corporate airplane,
which has an initial term of two years and an ahner@ewal option of up to ten years.

Lease expense net of sublease income under owuntopeleases totaled approximately $15.5 millio2@®3, $13.4 million in 2002 and
$12.0 million in 2001.
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Aggregate noncancelable future minimum rental paymender operating leases, net of aggregate fatimenum rentals to be received
by us under noncancelable subleases, are as fallowsousands):

Operating Leases, Net o

Years ending December 31 Noncancelable Sublease

2004 $ 7,03€

2005 4,033

2006 10,43¢

2007 10,697

2008 10,28¢

Thereatftel 12,744
$55,23¢

Future minimum rental receipts due to us under ancelable subleases are $6.1 million in 2004, 86li8n in 2005 and $0.5 million i
2006.

Legal Proceedings

In 1997 we reached a settlement with Elan Corpamatilc (Elan, the successor company to The Lip@sGempany) in which both
companies agreed to dismiss all legal proceedimgsviing AmBisome, Gilead liposomal formulation of amphotericin B. Undee tlierms o
the initial settlement agreement in 1997, we madmitial payment to Elan of $1.8 million and agie¢e make additional royalty payments
through 2006, based on AmBisome sales. In 199%ea@rded a $10.0 million accounting charge foraberued litigation settlement
expenses, representing the estimated net predestofall future minimum payments we were requite@dake. In June 2002, Elan and
Gilead entered into an agreement terminating auaneing AmBisome payment obligations under thaahgettlement agreement in
exchange for a payment to Elan of $7.3 million. Ekeess of the $7.3 million settlement amount dlvemremaining accrued litigation
settlement expenses balance of $6.0 million isgpamortized over the remaining life of the pateaproximately four years.

On September 4, 2003, Gilead entered into a Sedtiedgreement and Release with University Licengeitly Holdings, Inc. (ULEHI)
and Archemix Corporation concerning rights to idfgraptamers using the SELEX technology licensedJbfHI to Gilead. The Settlement
Agreement and Release resolves disputes amonguttiesparising out of Gilead’s assignment of rigbt&entify certain aptamers to
Archemix.

On September 2, 2003, the County of Westchestar, Yark (“Westchester”) served Gilead with a comptaivhich alleges that Gilead
and a large number of other pharmaceutical manufactefendants report prices for products thatstate the Average Wholesale Price
(“AWP"), allegedly inflating reimbursement ratesdar the Medicaid Program and causing Westchesigaytatrtificially inflated prices for
covered drugs including, in the case of Gileade¥(d. In addition, Westchester argues that the dafes, including Gilead, did not accurat
report the “best price” under the Medicaid Prograime complaint asserts varying claims under theri@dRICO statutes, their state law
corollaries, as well as state law claims for degeptrade practices and common law fraud. Giledehids to vigorously defend

90




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

itself against the allegations. The complaint seekandetermined amount of damages, as well as i@lef, including declaratory and
injunctive relief.

Other defendants in this lawsuit have been namedinerous other lawsuits with comparable AWP atiega. To our knowledge,
Gilead has not been named in these other lawS\ise Gilead to be named and served in other las/stih comparable AWP allegations,
adverse results could result in material damages.

A purported class action complaint was filed on Bimber 10, 2003 in the United States District Cémrthe Northern District of
California against Gilead and our Company’s Chieé&utive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, ExecutiWice Presidents of Operations and
Research and Development, and Senior Vice Presidéhanufacturing and Research. The complaingaehat the defendants violated the
federal securities laws, specifically Sections }1@ftd 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 Rule 10b-5 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, by making certain allegedfaled misleading statements. The plaintiff seelspecified damages on behalf of a
purported class of purchasers of the Gilead’s #iesiduring the period from July 14, 2003 througttober 28, 2003. Other similar actions
were subsequently filed and the court issued aararonsolidating the lawsuits into a single acttonDecember 22, 2003. We believe that we
have meritorious defenses to the allegations coadhin the complaint and intend to defend the gagerously. No trial date has been
scheduled. On February 9, 2004, the court issuextdger appointing lead plaintiffs in the actiondahese lead plaintiffs have until March 25,
2004 to file a consolidated complaint.

In December 2003, two purported shareholder devedawsuits were filed by individual shareholdersbehalf of Gilead against its
directors and certain executive officers in theSigr Court of the State of California, County @rSMateo alleging, among other things, that
defendants violated the California Corporations €add breached fiduciary duties owing to Gileadedsi is named as a nominal defendant.
The plaintiffs seek unspecified damages on belidilead in connection with alleged insider tradiohgring the period between July 14, 2003
and October 28, 2003 and defendaatigged breach of their fiduciary duties, abuseasftrol, waste and mismanagement. The two casez
consolidated into a single action on January 1842dhd plaintiffs filed a consolidated complaintfeegbruary 12, 2004. No trial date has been
scheduled. We intend to take all appropriate adtiashefend our interests in connection with thigdition.

We are also a party to various other legal acttbasarose in the ordinary course of our busindssdo not believe that any of these
other legal actions will have a material adverspant on our business, results of operations onéiz position.
15. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock

Gilead has 5,000,000 shares of authorized prefetoedk issuable in series. Our Board of Direct&wmafd) is authorized to determine
designation, powers, preferences and rights ofsach series. We have reserved 400,000 sharesfefrgie stock for potential issuance under
the Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan. Theraevpseferred stock outstanding as of Decembe2@03 and December 31, 2002.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under Gilead's Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ES#R)|oyees can purchase shares of Gilead commok Isésed on a percentage of
their compensation. The purchase price per shast equal at least the lower of 85 percent of theketavalue on the date offered or the date
purchased. A total of 6.3 million shares of commstatk have been reserved for issuance under the E&Pof December 31, 2003, 4.9
million shares of the total shares reserved had B=eied under the ESPP (4.6 million shares asoébber 31, 2002).

Stock Option Plans

In December 1987, Gilead adopted the 1987 Incegivek Option Plan and the Supplemental Stock @ ian for issuance of
common stock to employees, consultants and sdeatifzisors. In April 1991, the Board approved ginanting of certain additional
nonqualified stock options with terms and condisieubstantially similar to those granted underl®®&7 Supplemental Stock Option Plan.
None of the options issued under the plans destabeve had exercise prices that were less thafaithealue of the underlying stock on t
date of grant. The options vest over five yearspaint to a formula determined by the Board andrexadter ten years. No shares are avalil
for grant of future options under any of these plan

In November 1991, Gilead adopted the 1991 Stocko@tlan (1991 Plan) for issuance of common stoakmployees and consultants.
Options issued under the 1991 Plan shall, at therelion of the Board, be either incentive stockoms or nonqualified stock options. In
May 1998, the 1991 Plan was amended such thaigreise price of all stock options must be at leagtal to the fair value of Gilead's
common stock on the date of grant. The options eest five years pursuant to a formula determingthle Board and expire after ten years.
The 1991 Plan was amended and restated in AprQ 2®@xtend the term of the plan through 2010. byMO002 the stockholders approvec
amendment to the 1991 Plan that increased thertotaber of authorized shares under the plan frof@0@7000 to 53,000,000. At
December 31, 2003, there were 9,570,258 sharelableafor grant of future options under the 199arPI

In November 1995, Gilead adopted the 1995 Non-Eygadirectors’ Stock Option Plan (DirectoRan) for issuance of common stc
to non-employee Directors pursuant to a predetexchformula. The exercise price of options grantedien the Directors’ Plan must be at
least equal to the fair value of Gilead’s commatkton the date of grant. For options granted leedanuary 2003, vesting is over five years
from the date of grant in quarterly five percergtallments. Initial options granted after Janua@d@2to new Directors vest over three years
from the date of grant in equal annual installmeAtsual grants thereafter to existing Directorstwater 12 months. All options expire after
ten years. In May 2002, the stockholders approveanaendment to the Directors’ Plan that increabeddtal number of authorized shares
under the Plan from 2,200,000 to 2,800,000. At Dremer 31, 2003, there were 781,200 shares availabfgrant of future options under the
Directors’ Plan.

Stock plans assumed by Gilead in the merger withgtgr include the 1988 Stock Option Plan (1988 Rldre 1993 Incentive Stock
Plan, and the 1995 Director Option Plan (colledyivBleXstar Plans). Options pursuant to the NeXBlans that were issued and outstanding
as of July 29, 1999 have been
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converted into options to purchase Gilead commocksas a result of the merger and remain subjeitieio original terms and conditions. No
shares are available for grant of future optiondenrany of the NeXstar Plans.

NeXstar's 1988 Plan allows certain option holdersxecute cashless exercises of options. In aesskkercise transaction, the option
holder specifies how many shares will be exercawd Gilead issues the specified number of shagss,the number that would be required to
cover the exercise price based on the fair valub@ttock on the exercise date. During 2002 afid 2€everal option holders performed
cashless exercises. As a result, such option aveaedsonsidered to be variable and, therefore esegnized a nominal amount of
compensation expense in 2002 and $0.6 million Bil2@s of July 2002, there were no more optionstauiding in this category.

Stock plans assumed by Gilead in the acquisitiadh@iet assets of Triangle include the 1996 S@utton Plan and a separate plan for
the chief executive officer of Triangle (collectiyeTriangle Plans). Options pursuant to each fitat were issued and outstanding as of
January 23, 2003 have been converted into optmpsrichase approximately 2.0 million shares of &lleommon stock as a result of the
acquisition and remain subject to their originairte and conditions. No shares are available fantgrifuture options under either of the
Triangle Plans.

The following table summarizes activity under aille€@d, NeXstar and Triangle stock option plansdach of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2003. All option grants preskintéhe table had exercise prices not less tharfidin value of the underlying stock on
grant date (shares in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding, beginning of ye 21,06 $18.67 21,68¢ $14.2¢ 21,67z $11.0¢
Granted and assum 7,871 $41.74 4,371 $33.37 6,70¢ $21.11
Forfeited (971) $32.57 (785 $21.9C (2,596 $16.1C
Exercisec 5,200 $145% (4,212) $10.61 4,09¢) $ 7.58
Outstanding, end of ye. 22,76C $27.0c 21,06C $18.67 21,68t $14.2¢
Exercisable, end of ye 9,99¢ $18.0¢ _9.27¢ $11.8z _9,02z $ 9.62
Weighted average fair value of options grar $27.3¢€ $22.01 $14.2¢
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The following is a summary of Gilead options outstiag and options exercisable at December 31, 2088ons in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining Average Weighted
Options Contractual Exercise Options Average
Range of Exercise Price QOutstanding Life in Years Price Exercisable  Exercise price
$ 0.45-%$14.59 5,77z 4.38 $10.0¢ 5,047 $ 9.51
$14.8(-$27.20 5,852 6.93 $18.71 2,97¢€ $18.3¢
$27.3:-$34.32 6,28¢ 8.37 $33.37 1,53¢ $33.0z
$34.3¢-$140.93 4,847 9.02 $48.92 442 $62.5C
Total 22,76( 7.13 $27.0C 9,99¢ $18.0¢

The Company has reserved an aggregate of 11. om#hares of common stock for future issuance ueglgity compensation plans as
of December 31, 2003, including 1.4 million isswabhder the ESPP and 10.3 million issuable unaet 891 and 1995 Stock Option Plans.
Approximately 7.3 million shares have been resefeeissuance for the 2% senior convertible notes.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan

In November 1994, we adopted a Preferred SharehBsedRights Plan (Rights Plan). The plan provideshie distribution of a preferred
stock purchase right as a dividend for each shia@lead common stock. The purchase rights arecnoently exercisable. Under certain
conditions involving an acquisition or proposedusiion by any person or group of 15% or more wf common stock, the purchase rights
permit the holders (other than the 15% holder)uiepase Gilead common stock at a 50% discount fhemmarket price at that time, upon
payment of a specified exercise price per purchigbe In addition, in the event of certain busimesmbinations, the purchase rights permit
the purchase of the common stock of an acquirars@% discount from the market price at that tibheder certain conditions, the purchase
rights may be redeemed by the Board in whole, butmpart, at a price of $.0025 per purchase righe purchase rights have no voting
privileges and are attached to and automaticallyetiwith Gilead common stock.

In October 1999 and again in October 2003, the o&Directors approved amendments to the Rigtdas.Plhe first amendment
provided, among other things, for an increase énetkercise price of a right under the plan from ®1$100 and an extension of the term of
the plan from November 21, 2004 to October 20, 200@ second amendment provides, among other tHimgan increase in the exercise
price of a right under the plan from $100 (aftgjuating for two 2-for-1 stock splits) to $400 ana extension of the term of the Rights Plan to
October 27, 2013.

Acceleration of Stock Options

In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggassets to OSI. As part of this transaction aaeelerated approximately 78,000
options to purchase Gilead common stock with aevalu$2.8 million. See Note 6 for further discussio

94

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2003

16. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following reclassification adjustments are fiegglito avoid double&ounting net realized gains (losses) on salesaifrites that wer
previously included in comprehensive income (Igs&)r to the sales of the securities (in thousands)

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Net gain (loss) on sales of securit $ 777 $(13,21Yy $ 1,22¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Net unrealized gain (loss) arising during the y $(3,245) $(17,790 $ 8,96C

Reclassification adjustme (777  13,21%  (1,22%)




Net unrealized gain (loss) reported in other comensive _
income (loss $(4,022) $ (4,577 $ 7,73¢

The balance of accumulated other comprehensiveriaas reported on the balance sheet consists @ditb@ing components (in
thousands):

December 31

2003 2002
Net unrealized gain (loss) on availe-for-sale securitie $ (352) $ 3,67C
Net unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hec (765) 221
Net foreign currency translation gain (lo 5,624 (1,416
Accumulated other comprehensive incc $4,507 $ 2,47

17. DISCLOSURES ABOUT SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISEAND RELATED INFORMATION

SFAS No. 131Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise andt&elnformationSFAS 131), establishes standards for the way
public business enterprises report information &bperating segments in annual financial statemamdsrequires that those enterprises re
selected information about operating segmentsterim financial reports. SFAS 131 also establigtaadards for related disclosures about
products and services, geographic areas, and magtomers.

The Company operates in one business segment, witimhrily focuses on the development and commbizei#on of human
therapeutics for infectious diseases. All prodietge been aggregated into one segment, becaugerayraf our products, Viread and
AmBisome, which accounted for 90% of sales in 20@8e similar economic characteristics and othrailaiities, including the nature of our
products and production processes, type of cus@rmdatribution methods, and regulatory environment

The Company derives its revenues primarily frondpic sales of Viread and AmBisome as well as rgyatid contract revenue. The
royalty revenue relates primarily to sales of AntBie by Fujisawa as well as sales of Tamiflu by Ro€ontract revenue relates to the
licensing of the SELEX process patent estate tdhvémux, milestone payments from Roche related talthelopment of Tamiflu, license and
milestone payments from GSK related to the develgrof Hepsera and license fees from EyeTech ®orifits to the aptamer EYE0O1,
currently known as Macugen.
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Product sales consist of the following (in thousgnd

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Viread $566,47¢ $225,81F $ 15,58¢
AmBisome 198,35( 185,66¢ 164,53:
Other 71,51% 12,39¢ 10,851

$836,347 $423,87¢ $190,97(

The following table summarizes revenues from extkecnstomers and collaborative partners by geogeaplion. Revenues are
attributed to countries based on the location efdirsstomer or collaborative partner (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
United State! $443,50¢ $218,95¢ $ 63,88¢
United Kingdom 63,06¢ 43,427 28,53¢
France 89,17¢ 42,417 16,77¢
Spain 78,391 33,591 18,28¢
Germany 42,99¢ 29,461 19,25¢
Italy 42,72z 20,81¢ 18,78:
Switzerlanc 16,49: 12,44¢F 7,721
Other European countris 64,27: 47,52 40,49¢
Other countrie: 27,24z 18,14¢ 20,031
Consolidated total revenu $867,86: $466,79( $233,76¢

At December 31, 2003, the net book value of ouperty, plant and equipment was $198.2 million. Appmately 95% of such assets
were located in the U.S. At December 31, 2002n#tdook value of property, plant and equipment $&&7 million, and approximately
89% of such assets were located in the U.S.

Product sales to three distributors accountedgpraimately 17%, 14% and 12% of total revenue®0@3. Product sales to these same
three distributors accounted for approximately 10286 and 11% of total revenues in 2002. Produetssal any one distributor in 2001 did
not exceed 10% of total revenues. Total revenuss ffujisawa, which included product sales and t@alwere approximately 3% of total
revenues in 2003, 7% in 2002, and 15% in 2001.
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The provision for income taxes consisted of thiofeing (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Federal Current $ 5178 $(1,300 $2,80C
Deferred (89,3693 — —
(84,188) (1,300) 2,80C
State Current 1,016 4 506
Deferred (20,8249) — —
(19,809) 4 506
Foreign Current 9,849 2,59¢€ 829
Deferred (1,383) — —
8,466 2,59¢€ 829

$(95,53() $ 1,30C $4,13¢

Foreign pre-tax loss was $(79.7) million in 200@2451) million in 2002 and $(67.8) million in 200Ihe Companys foreign subsidiarie
generated operating losses in 2003, 2002, and l@tting the costs of building a commercial istracture in Europe and the foreign

subsidiaries’ investment in the Company’s researchdevelopment efforts.

The difference between the provision for taxesrmoine and the amount computed by applying the &d&tutory income tax rate to
income (loss) before provision for income taxesiiggn loss of unconsolidated affiliate and themuative effect of a change in accounting

principle is explained below (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2002 2001 2001
Income (loss) before provision for income taxesligq
in loss of unconsolidated affiliate and the cuniutat
effect of a change in accounting princi $(167,53) $ 73,397 $ 57,44:
Tax at federal statutory ra $ (58,63€) $ 25,68¢ $ 19,53-
Previously unbenefitted net operating los (150,847) (23,601) (19,339
State taxes, net of federal ben 660 4 506
Federal alternative minimum tax 5,17¢ (1,300) 2,800
Reversal of valuation allowan: (111,57¢) — —
Purchased -process research and developr 170,91 — —
Foreign losses at different raf 45,68¢ — —
Foreign earnings at different rat 3,081 508 636
$ (9553() $ 1,30C $ 4,13t
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The tax benefits associated with stock option @gescand the employee stock purchase plan resaleedumulative tax benefit of
$134.2 million during the year ended December 8D32 Such benefit was credited to additional paidapital when realized.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying amoohfissets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts ugethfome tax purposes. Significant componentsuofdeferred tax assets and liabilities as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows @nghnds):

December 31

2003 2002

Net operating loss carryforwar $156,78¢ $ 126,42«
Research and other crec 63,32¢ 43,70(
Capitalized research and development expe 6,961 14,927
Reserves and accruals not currently deduc 26,45¢ 15,60z
Other, ne 55,69¢ 26,171

Total deferred tax asse 309,23t 226,821
Valuation allowanct (59,179 (226,82))
Net deferred tax assets recogni $250,061 $ —

The valuation allowance decreased by $167.6 mifiiwrihe year ended December 31, 2003 and incradas&d4.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002.

In December 2003, based upon the level of histbtégable income and projections for future taxabt®me over the periods that our
deferred tax assets are deductible, we determivegdttwas more likely than not that certain of deferred tax assets will be realized and
therefore released the related valuation allowahbe.reversal of the valuation allowance resulted fealization of income tax benefits of
approximately $111.6 million. The deferred tax asdeibutable to the net operating loss carryfodgancluded tax benefits of $129.5 milli
related to the exercise of employee stock optiansch benefits were recorded directly to additiopaid in capital. The reversal of the
valuation allowance also resulted in the reductibthe remaining assembled workforce asset of 88llibn established upon the acquisition
of Triangle. At December 31, 2003, we have a remgimaluation allowance of $59.2 million against thet deferred tax asset as we have
concluded, based on the standard set forth in S¥AS.09,Accounting for Income Taxeshat it is more likely than not that we will not
realize any benefits from the related deferredatssets. We will assess the need for the valualiowance at each quarter end based on all
available evidence. Approximately $11.0 milliontbé valuation allowance at December 31, 2003 relatéax benefits of stock option
deductions, which will be credited to additionaidsan capital when realized.

At December 31, 2003, we had U.S. federal net dipgréoss carryforwards of approximately $444.1limil and state net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $23.6 million. TrezlEral net operating loss carryforwards will exgit@arious dates beginning in 2018
through 2022, if not utilized. The state net oparatoss carryforwards will expire at various dafiesn 2004 through 2011, if not
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utilized. In addition, we had federal and statedeedit carryforwards of approximately $56.0 milliand $11.3 million respectively, which
expire in the years 2004 through 2022.

Utilization of net operating losses and credits rhaysubject to an annual limitation due to owngrshiange limitations provided in the
Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisidhs annual limitation may result in the expiratiof the net operating losses and credits
before utilization.

19. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

As of December 31, 2003, Gilead maintains oneawtimt savings plan under which eligible employeag defer compensation for
income tax purposes under Section 401(k) of ther@l Revenue Code. Prior to January 1, 2001, Gileaintained two separate retirement
savings plans. One plan primarily covered formeXstar employees (NeXstar Plan), and the other ptanarily covered Gilead’s remaining
eligible employees (Gilead Plan). At December IN® approximately $0.6 million, representing 13,8bares of Gilead common stock,
held by the NeXstar Plan in trust for plan partits. Effective January 2001, the NeXstar Plantesasinated and combined with the Gilead
Plan. The shares of Gilead common stock held byN#éstar Plan were subsequently liquidated angbtbeeeds were deposited into the
various other investment options available underGilead plan. Under the Gilead Plan, employees enayribute up to 15% of their eligible
annual compensation. Effective January 1, 200@&adibegan making matching contributions under ifea Plan. We contribute up to 50%
of an employee'’s first 6% of contributions up toaamual maximum match of $2,500Qur total matching contribution for the Gilead Plaas
$1.4 million in 2003, $1.2 million in 2002 and $Irdllion in 2001.

20. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

The following table is in thousands, except persl@nounts:

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2003 (1)(2)(3)

Total revenue $ 165,10t $238,87( $200,37:  $263,51"

Gross profit on product sal 134,59 198,56: 168,13¢ 222,35]

Total costs and expens 598,70z 131,09¢ 121,19¢ 175,54(

Net income (loss (438,059 100,37 73,09¢ 192,58
Net income (loss) per common sf—basic $ (2.21) $ 0.50 $ 036 $ 094
Net income (loss) per common sF—diluted $ (22 ¢ 046 $ 033 § 08t
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1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2002 (4)

Total revenue $78,41¢€ $109,36: $133,98:  $145,02%

Gross profit on product sal 58,66¢ 76,07(C 99,78¢ 119,627

Total costs and expens 85,35¢ 90,16¢ 98,067 112,18¢

Net income (loss (3,850) 19,711 20,757 35,47¢
Net income (loss) per common st—Dbasic $ (002 $ 0.10 $ 011 $ o0.18
Net income (loss) per common st—diluted $ 002 $ 010 $ 01C $ 017

(1) In the first quarter of 2003, Gilead completed dloquisition of the net assets of Triangle and et charge of $488.6 million for in-
process research and development.

(2) In the third quarter of 2003, Gilead was reimbur$&8.2 million of research and development expersadting from the settlement ¢
contractual dispute with a vendor.

(3) Inthe fourth quarter of 2003, Gilead recorded wash impairment charges against certain long-lagsts of $10.2 million and $0.7
million related to other asset write-downs. In diddi, we recorded an income tax benefit of $111il6an related to the reduction of the
valuation allowance on certain of our net defetsedassets.

(4) In the third quarter of 2002, Gilead realized a.®@illion non-operating loss upon the sale of mmaining shares in OSI
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

100

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at Additions Balance at
Beginning of  Charged to
Charged to End of
Period Expense Other Deductions Period
Year ended December 31, 20!
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 5,32¢ $4,87¢ $ 436 $ — $ 10,64«
Allowance for sales returr 5,032 4,69¢ — 733 8,997
Valuation allowance for deferred tax

asset: 226,821 — — 167,64:(1) 59,17¢

$237,18: $9,577 $ 436 $168,38C $ 78,81f

Year ended December 31, 20!

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 2,57¢ $3,262 $ — $ 512 $ 5,32¢
Allowance for sales returr 678 4,902 — 548 5,032
Valuation allowance for deferred tax

asset: 212,70( — 14,121(2) — 226,82

$215,951 $8,164 $14,121 $ 106C $237,18:

Year ended December 31, 20!

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 2,30C $ 467 $ — $ 188 $ 2,57¢
Allowance for sales returr 581 569 — 472 678
Valuation allowance for deferred tax

asset: 228,60( — 15,90((3) 212,70(

$231,481 $1,03€ $ — $ 16,56( $215,95]

(1) Charged against current tax expense and additpaidlin capital.
(2) Charged to deferred tax benefit.

(3) Charged against current tax exper
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized.

GILEAD SCIENCES INC.

By: /s/ JouN C. MARTIN
John C. Martin
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESEB|That each person whose signature appears belustitates
and appoints John C. Martin and Mark L. Perry, aach of them, as his true and lawful attorneysatt-ind agents, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for him or her amtlis or her name, place, and stead, in any Hrdpacities, to sign any and all amendma
to this Report, and to file the same, with all dsisi thereto, and other documents in connectiorethi¢gh, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtwitio and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done ineation therewith, as fully to all intents and pasps as he might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming that all said atteys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or thehisisubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. Purswatthiet requirements of the Securities Exchange At84, this Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Regnt and in the capacities and on the datesaneli.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bblothe following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ JoHN C. MARTIN President and Chief Executive Officer, Director March 10, 2004
John C. Martir (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ JoHN F. MILLIGAN Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer March 10, 2004
John F. Milligan (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ JamES M. DENNY Chairman of the Board of Directors March 10, 2004

James M. Denn

/s/ PauL BERG Director March 10, 2004
Paul Berc
/s/ ETIENNE F. CAVIGNON Director March 10, 2004

Etienne F. Davigno

/s/ CorDELL W. HuLL Director March 10, 2004
Cordell W. Hull
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/s/ GorDON E. MoOORE

Gordon E. Moor¢

/s| GEORGEP. SHULTZ

George P. Shult

/s/ GAYLE E. WILSON

Gayle E. Wilsor

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 10.66
CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAIBE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.
MASTER
CLINICAL AND COMMERCIAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT
AMONG
GILEAD WORLD MARKETS, LIMITED
AND
GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
AND

PATHEON INC.

JANUARY 1, 2003




MASTER CLINICAL AND COMMERCIAL SUPPLY AGREEMENT

THIS MASTER CLINICAL AND COMMERCIAL SUPPLY AGREEMEN T (the “Agreement”) made as of the 1st day of
January, 2003 (theEffective Date”) among, on the one hand, Gilead World Marketsl, L4 Cayman Company Gilead World "), whose
registered address is Queensgate House, SouthtC8uset, P.O. Box 1234GT, Grand Cayman, Caymandsl, and Gilead Sciences, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (Gilead Sciences) with its principal office located at 333 Lakesi®rive, Foster City, CA 94404 (Gilead World and
Gilead Sciences collectively,Gilead "), and, on the other hand, Patheon Inc., a Canazhgporation (‘Patheon”) having its principal place
of business at 7070 Mississauga Road, Suite 35ki84iauga, Ontario, Canada L5N 7J8. Gilead anéd&atre sometimes referred to herein
individually as a ‘Party ” and collectively as the Parties”.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS , Gilead Sciences will require the manufacture suqably of Drug Products (as hereinafter definedcfimical use and
commercial distribution and sale in the Territongasilead World will require the manufacture ang@y of Drug Products for commercial
distribution and sale in the Territory; and

WHEREAS , Patheon possesses suitable facilities to manuriagtackage and test Drug Products and will psyqesckage and test
Drug Products according to the terms and conditsatgorth below; and

WHEREAS , Patheon is currently carrying out commercial niacturing of Tenofovir DF Tablets (with the trademe Viread and
the generic name tenofovir disoproxil fumarate)spant to that certain Commercial Supply Agreemerea August 1, 2001 between Gilead
World Markets (which was assigned from Gilead Iti#bidings, Inc. by way of an Assignment of Agreemdsited December 31, 2001) and
Patheon Inc. (the Viread Agreement”) and;

WHEREAS , the Parties now desire that this Agreement ghakplace the Viread Agreement such that the adr&greement shall
be of no further force and effect for the Proceg$as defined below) of new batches of tenofovdogroxil fumarate tablets from and after
Effective Date, and (ii) govern the terms and ctads of clinical and commercial manufacturing efiofovir disoproxil fumarate tablets and
any additional Drug Products as may be agreedtiedsm the Parties in writing from time to time asforth below. For clarity, however, the
Viread Agreement shall continue to have full foarel effect only with respect to Tenofovir DF TablBrocessed between August 1, 2001
and December 31, 2002; and

WHEREAS , Gilead and Patheon now desire to contract fon sa@nufacturing on the terms and conditions s¢i foerein;

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing premises amdnttutual covenants which are recited herein, tméeRBa
agree as follows:

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAIBE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.




ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS AND SCHEDULES
1.1 DEFINITIONS
In this Agreement, the following capitalized tergfall have the following meanings:
“Act” means the United States Food, Drug and CosmeticefA®38 (21 C.F.R. Section 201 et seq.) and agallrequirement of
Canada, the European Union or other jurisdictiotiiwithe Territory for any Drug Product, togethaethaany regulation promulgated under

any of the foregoing, including, without limitatipall Good Manufacturing Practices, in each casanasnded from time to time.

“Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient” or “AP1” shall mean, for each Drug Product, the active dnlgstance of that Drug Product
prior to Processing, as listed on Exhibit A of Bre@duct-Specific Appendix hereto for that Drug Rrod

“Affiliate” shall mean any person, firm or corporation whidreatly or indirectly, through one or more interneates controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with,axtl to this Agreement. For purposes of this d&din, “control” means the legal or
beneficial ownership of fifty percent (50%) or marfethe voting or equity interests, or the poweright to direct the management and affairs
of the business (including acting as the genendghpaof a limited partnership). A Gilead Affilais an Affiliate of either or both of Gilead
Sciences and Gilead World.

“Annual APl Cap” shall mean, for each API, the value identified @shsn Exhibit C of the applicable Product-SpecHigpendix.

“API| Specifications” shall mean, with respect to a given API, the Sjeatibns for that API as set forth on Exhibit Atbe Product-
Specific Appendix hereto for the corresponding DiRwgduct.

“Components” shall mean, for each Drug Product, the labels,,glueduct inserts and other packaging materialsired to be used
for the production of that Drug Product in accoramith the applicable Component Specifications.

“Component Specifications” shall mean, with respect to the Components fovargDrug Product, the Specifications for
Components set forth on Exhibit A of the Produce@fic Appendix for that Drug Product.

“Confidential Information” shall have the meaning specified in Section 8.2.
“Disposition Package”shall mean, with respect to any shipment of DrugpBct, the documentation and records defined potdoa

the relevant Quality Agreement (as defined in $&ci.8), which may include copies of the Certificaf Analysis, Certificate of Compliance,
quality control documentation and manufacturingchatcords for such shipment; written




confirmation that such batch records have beerevwed and approved by Patheon quality assuranceamditany other documentation
required by law that is in Pathesrpossession and required by Gilead for the reletbe batch or batches of Drug Product in sudprsant.

“Drug Product” shall mean a product set forth on Exhibit B of @mgduct-Specific Appendix.
“Effective Date” shall mean January 1, 2003.

“Excipients” shall mean, for each Drug Product, all materiahepthan the APl and Components described in tleeifigations for
such Drug Product as a constituent part of suchpbeted Drug Product.

“Excipient Specifications” shall mean, with respect to the Excipients fonegiDrug Product, the Specifications for such Eerits
set forth on Exhibit A of the Product-Specific Apygx hereto for such Drug Product.

“Facility” shall mean, for a given Drug Product, any Patheanufacturing facility identified in Exhibit C of éhProduct-Specific
Appendix for that Drug Product, or any other fagilised for the Processing of that Drug Produdthila been approved by Gilead, in writi

“FDA” shall mean the United States government agency kra®the Food and Drug Administration, or any sssgethereto.

“Gilead’s Actual Standard API Costs” shall mean, for a given APl in a given Year, theoant established in accordance with
Section 4.7.

“Good Manufacturing Practices” or “cGMPs” shall mean the current Good Manufacturing Pracficemanufacturing finished
products as set forth in the Act, and any otheinvedgent laws, rules or regulations or current gotahufacturing practices specified by a
Regulatory Authority, which are applicable to Pathe

“Intellectual Property” shall mean any intellectual property rights inchgdiwithout limitation, rights in patents, pateppécations
formulae, trade-marks, trade-mark applicationgldrsecrets, Inventions, copyright, industrial designd know-how.

“Inventions” shall mean any invention, innovation, improvemest/elopment, discovery, computer program, devieglet secret,
method, knowhow, process, technique or the like, whether omrdten or otherwise fixed in any form or mediuragardless of the media
which it is contained and whether or not patentableopyrightable.

“Inventory” shall mean all inventories of Materials and workpiocess produced or held by Patheon in conneutitnthe
Processing of Drug Product but, for greater cetyaoes not include any API.




“Master Batch Records” shall mean, for a given Drug Product, the thenantrprocedures to be followed by Patheon with retspe
to the Processing, handling and storage of thatjPrneduct and the corresponding API, as contentplat&xhibits A and B of the Product-
Specific Appendix for that Drug Product.

“Materials” shall mean Excipients and Components as they #imedtin Processing.

“Patheon Manufacturing Responsibilities” shall have the meaning outlined in Section 3.2(a).

“Processing” shall mean the manufacturing, quality control, @ualssurance and stability testing, packagingrafated services, as
contemplated in this Agreement, required to proddeey Product from API and Materials. “Proces$tdcessing” and “Processed” shall
have analogous meanings.

“Product-Specific Appendix” shall have the meaning given such term in Sectib(a®

“Regulatory Authority” shall mean the FDA and any other governmental aityh@vhether national, federal, provincial and/or
local) in the Territory that is a counterpart te ffDA or otherwise has jurisdiction over the mantifee or approval of any Drug Product.

“Regulatory Filing” shall mean any filing with or approval by a RegatgtAuthority regarding a Drug Product or its maamtfire.
“Specifications” shall mean, with respect to a Drug Product, thegulares, test results, requirements, standardetarddata and
documentation with respect to such Drug ProductthadExcipients and Components therefor, as s#t fiorExhibits A and B of the Product-

Specific Appendix for that Drug Product, as mayédased from time to time in accordance with then set forth in Section 4.5 below.

“Territory” shall mean the geographical area set forth in Ex@ilof each Product-Specific Appendix hereto f@jiven Drug
Product.

“Third Party Rights” shall mean the Intellectual Property of any thiedty.

“Year” shall mean, for each Drug Product, the period betvibe effective date of the Product-Specific Amjperfor that Drug
Product (as set forth in Exhibit C of the Produpe8ific Appendix for such Drug Product) until Dedsen 31 of the year of such effective
date, and thereafter, the twelve-month period conuing upon the completion of the immediately précgd/ear.

“Yearly Minimum Volume” shall mean the yearly minimum volume of each DrugdBct to be purchased by Gilead as more
particularly set forth in Exhibit C of the applidaliProduct-Specific Appendix.




1.2 SCHEDULES.

The following Schedules and Product-Specific Appesslas of the Effective Date are annexed heretd@am part of this Agreement:

Schedule A: Yield Calculation Schedul

Schedule B: Quality Agreement

Schedule ¢-1: Form of Product Specifications (Exhibit A to Appén¢e) of {Drug Name}

Schedule (-2: Form of Finished Product Specifications and TesReguirements (Exhibit B to Appendix (¢) of {Drug
Name}

Schedule (-3: Form of Pricing and API Schedule (Exhibit C to Apgé () of {Drug Name}

APPENDIX 1 - TENOFOVIR DISOPROXIL FUMARATE

Exhibit A to Appendix 1 - Tenofovir disoproxil fumarate : Drug Substance, Excipient and
Components Specificatiol

Exhibit B to Appendix 1 - Tenofovir disoproxil fumarate : Finished Product Specifications and
Testing Requiremen

Exhibit C to Appendix 1 - Tenofovir disoproxil fumarate : Pricing and API Schedule
APPENDIX 2 - ADEFOVIR DIPIVOXIL

Exhibit A to Appendix 2 — Adefovir dipivoxil : Drug Substance, Excipient and Components
Specifications

Exhibit B to Appendix 2 - Adefovir dipivoxil : Finished Product Specifications and Testing
Requirement:

Exhibit C to Appendix 2 - Adefovir dipivoxil : Pricing and APl Schedule




ARTICLE Il
PURCHASE AND SUPPLY
2.1 Purchase and Supply Agreement

€)) This Agreement including the Schedules and Appersdimnexed hereto shall serve as a master comhsngjdy
agreement governing the manufacture, purchasewpmlysof Drug Products between the Parties. Th&d3ahave agreed, as of the Effective
Date, to product-specific terms governing the pasehand supply of two (2) Drug Products, Gileag'®fovir disoproxil fumarate and
adefovir dipivoxil products, as reflected in Appé&es 1 and 2. Subject to Section 2.1(b), the &artiay agree to the manufacture, purchase
and supply of additional drug products by agreg¢mgdditional product-specific terms, each in thief of a new Appendix to this Agreement
signed and delivered by a representative of théicaiype Party, annexed hereto and incorporatedrmeree executed and delivered (each, a
Product-Specific Appendix”). Each Product-Specific Appendix shall be subg#dly in the form of Schedule C (e.g. C-1, C-2a&®+-3)
attached hereto, and shall include, at a minimamfallowing for the applicable Drug Product: &) Exhibit A setting forth the API, API
Specifications, Excipients, Excipient Specificasp@omponents, Component Specifications, and Disposackage for the Drug Product
covered by such Product-Specific Appendix; (b) ahikit B setting forth the finished product Specifiions; and (c) an Exhibit C setting
forth the pricing terms, Facility(ies), Territoryearly Minimum Volume, Drug Product costs and ygldffective date and initial term.

(b) Solely Gilead Sciences shall be Patheon’s countigrgmProduct-Specific Appendices for thg supply of any
Drug Product*] or for any[*] supply of any Drug Produgt] . Solely Gilead World shall be Patheon’s counteypim Product-Specific
Appendices for th§] supply of any Drug Produ¢t] . Solely Gilead Sciences will have the rights abtigations of Gilead hereunder to the
extent pertaining t§*] supply of Drug Product] or for any[*] supply of any Drug Product f¢t] , in each case for which Gilead Sciences
is party to the relevant Produgpecific Appendices. Solely Gilead World will ha rights and obligations of Gilead hereundehtoexten
pertaining td*] supply of Drug Products fq¥] for which Gilead World is party to the relevant 8uet-Specific Appendices. Gilead World
agrees to an obligation to provide to Patheon #ewriguarantee by Gilead Sciences, as Gilead Woultimate parent company, of Gilead
World’s performance under this Agreement, andatisfaction of such obligation, Gilead Scienceshbgrguarantees to Patheon the
performance by Gilead World of Gilead World’s olalions under this Agreement.

(c) Changes to the Product-Specific Appendices may loalgnade by prior written agreement of the Partieany
Product-Specific Appendix conflicts with the bodytlois Agreement, the body of this Agreement sbatitrol, except to the extent that such
Product-Specific Appendix explicitly referencestmardar Sections of the body of this Agreement thainot apply, or only partially apply,
with respect to such Product-Specific Appendix, dadcribes the extent to which such Sections slealpply. In such event, with respect to
the subject matter covered by the explicitly refiersl Sections of the body of this Agreement asiegpd such Product-Specific Appendix,
such Product-Specific Appendix and not the bodthisf Agreement shall control.

(d) During the Term (as such term is defined in Secidr) of this Agreement, Gilead agrees to buy, Ratheon
agrees to supply, such quantities of each Druguritddr sale in the Territory as may be set forhFirm Orders placed by Gilead in




accordance with Section 2.4 at the prices set farExhibit C of the applicable Product-Specificggmdices, as may be revised from time to
time in accordance with Article 1V hereof.

(e) Minimum Volumes of Purchases. Patheon acknowletiggsGilead may obtain a portion of its requiretsdor
any Drug Product from third parties; provided, hoae Gilead agrees to purchase from Patheon thdyyiénimum Volume for each Drug
Product as more particularly set forth in Exhibibfdhe applicable Product-Specific Appendix.

2.2 Drug Product And Materials Specifications And Testhg . Patheon shall, in Processing a Drug ProductEuséients
and Components that conform to the Excipient Smetibns and Component Specifications, respectjelysuch Drug Product. Such
conformance will be verified in accordance with thsting standards and procedures specified tharetbe applicable Specifications. The
Parties acknowledge that such Specifications astthtestandards and procedures as set forth inbiEgh or B of the applicable Product-
Specific Appendix may need to be refined and medifivith changes that are necessary or appropgateding to applicable Regulatory
Authority requirements, or as otherwise requesteGitead in writing. If such a change in the Sfieations is needed or proposed, Section
4.5 shall apply.

2.3 Orders and Forecasts Gilead shall provide Patheon with the following:

€)) concurrent with the execution of this Agreementtfar first two (2) Drug Products and concurrentwiite
execution of any Product-Specific Appendix for alditional Drug Product, a written non-bindiffy month forecast of the volume of each
Drug Product that Gilead then anticipates will eguired to be produced and delivered to Gileadhduttie following[*] month period. Such
forecast will be updated by Gilead monthly on dimgl[*] month basis and updated forthwith upon Gilead ddténg that the volumes for
the first[*] months contemplated in the most recent of sucttésts has changed by more tfign; and,

(b) on or before th§] day of each calendar month, firm written orderEi¢tm Orders ") covering the supply for
each Drug Product on the basiq®funits, to be produced and delivered to Gilead data not less thap] from the first day of the calendar
month immediately following the date that the Fi@rder is submitted.

(c) on or beford*] , in each Year, a written non-bindiff§ forecast (broken down by calendar quarters fo’thef
the forecast) of the volume for each Drug Produoat Gilead anticipates will be required to be premtuand delivered to Gilead during such
[*] period.

2.4 Firm Orders . The Firm Orders submitted to Patheon pursua8etdion 2.3 shall specify Gileadpurchase order numb
quantities, monthly delivery schedule and any o#iements necessary to identify what must be deld/&o fill such Firm Order. Unless
mutually agreed upon by both Parties, the quastafeDrug Product ordered in such written ordedldse firm and binding on Gilead and
shall not be subject to reduction, and shall omysbbject to cancellation as set forth in Sectidi®2




2.5 Materials Ordering and Stockpiles.

€)) Reliance by Patheon Gilead understands and acknowledges that Pathidlaely on the Firm Orders submitted
pursuant to Section 2.3(b) in ordering the Matsrfalquired to meet such Firm Orders. In addit@itead understands that to ensure an
orderly supply of such Materials and to achieveneoaies of scale in the costs therefor, it may tsérdble for Patheon to purchase such
Materials in sufficient volumes to meet the produttrequirements for each Drug Product during padll of the forecasted periods referred
to in Section 2.3(a), or such longer period as &attand Gilead may agree to. Accordingly, Gilegitas that purchases may be made by
Patheon in respect of the Materials for a givengCPuoduct to satisfy the production requirementsstach Drug Product for the firgf
months of the forecasted period, or such diffepamtod as may be identified opposite such Materathe applicable Product-Specific
Appendix or agreed in writing by the Parties. dfyaviaterials ordered by Patheon in accordance thigtforegoing sentence are not included
in finished Drug Product purchased by Gilead wiffijnmonths after the forecasted month in respect o€lwbuch purchases have been ir
(or such longer period as the Parties may agregiting), Gilead will pay to Patheon its actual to® acquire such unused Materials and, in
the event such Materials are incorporated intdthey Product subsequently purchased by GileadaG el receive credit for any costs of
such Materials previously paid to Patheon by Gilead

(b) Minimum Stockpiles . Without limiting Patheon’s ability to purchasedshold Materials as set forth in Section
2.5(a), Patheon shall at all times maintain anritmgy of each Material sufficient to manufacture tielevant Drug Products to fill Gilead’s
Firm Orders and forecasts in the followifiy months, or such different period of time as magdieforth for such Material in the applicable
Product-Specific Appendix or otherwise agreed iitimg by the Parties.

2.6 Minimum Orders . Each Drug Product to be Processed by Patheoromigye ordered in the minimum order quantities
set out in Exhibit C of the Product-Specific Appenfir such Drug Product. As the Parties gain fddal experience with the Processing of
each Drug Product, they shall negotiate in goathfaipon request by Gilead, to revise the minimudeoquantities in the applicable Exhibit
C from time to time. If the Parties reach writegreement, following any necessary technical astireview by Patheon in accordance with
Section 4.5, they shall update the applicable EkQitio reflect the revised minimum order quanstie

2.7 Excipients and Components All Materials shall be purchased (with the ex@apof those which are supplied by Gilead,
which exceptions shall be identified in the apfdieaProduct-Specific Appendix) and tested by PatredPatheon’s expense in accordance
with the applicable Specifications.

2.8 Quality Agreements. Each Party shall allocate, use and expend tlweiress necessary to perform the division of
pharmaceutical responsibilities assigned to suctyRa defined in the Quality Agreement(s) as sghfin Schedule B of this Agreement, to
which such Party is a party, the terms of whichdarity, are a part of this Agreement. Withautiting the generality of the foregoing
sentence, the Parties’ responsibilities relatingromuct




complaints shall, at a minimum, include the follagi (a) Patheon shall, as promptly as practicafide & becomes aware (but in any event,
no later tharj*] business days thereafter), forward to Gilead adétsignee, by phone and in writing, any and allglaints or problems
relating to any Drug Product, and any informatioiit$ possession pertaining to such complaint oblem, including but not limited to: (i)
Drug Product or its labeling may have been mistdkeor applied to another product; (ii) Drug Pratimay be affected by bacteriological
contamination, significant chemical, physical dnetchange or deterioration or stability failurgis} Drug Product is the subject of a
complaint by a Third Party, a Regulatory Authoitya customer relating to the quality of the Drugdict; (iv) a unit or batch of Drug
Product supplied to or as directed by Gilead maybedn conformance with the applicable Specifiwagi or (v) a unit or batch of Drug
Product supplied to or as directed by Gilead hadaen Processed in accordance with the Patheonfitztoring Responsibilities; (b) Gilead
shall promptly inform Patheon, by phone and inwgt of any and all complaints that Gilead recem#ich implicate Patheon’s Processing
of Drug Product at the Facility; and (c) Patheoallstespond promptly to, and cooperate fully witthe@d regarding, any reasonable request
by Gilead for assistance in resolving any and @thglaints, in each case on a time frame suffidemermit Gilead to comply with applicable
laws, rules and regulations, as notified by Gilédtk Parties agree to negotiate in good faith tdifjdhe Quality Agreement(s) to which
they are respective parties, pursuant to Sectnfram time to time as necessary or appropriateght of FDA or other regulatory
requirements, or at Gilead’s request. For clagither[*] , or Gilead Sciences may be party in place of @iMéorid to a Quality Agreement
relating to supply of Drug Product(s) to Gilead \idor

2.9 Technology Transfer. Patheon shall facilitate, at Gilead’'s expensg,tachnology transfer to Gilead, its Affiliate &r
third party in relation to the Processing of DrugdRict(s) to the extent reasonably requested bya@il

2.10 Cancellations. Gilead may cancel any Firm Order previously ateg by Patheon by providing Patheon with priortteri
notice (the “Notice”); providedthat if Gilead cancels any Firm Order and the Noiscreceived*] days or less prior to any scheduled
delivery of Drug Product covered by such Firm Ordleen Gilead shall reimburse Patheon for a peagenof the price that Patheon would
have charged Gilead for the Firm Order, which ant®shall be calculated as follows:

(@) if Notice is received by Patheon less tlfgndays prior to any scheduled delivery of Drug Pradavered by suc
Firm Order, then Gilead shall pay Path§gnpercent (*] %) of the price that Patheon would have chargeda@ifor the Firm Order if it had
not been cancelled;

(b) if Notice is received by Patheon betwdgnto [*] days prior to any scheduled delivery of Drug Praduwered
by such Firm Order, then Gilead shall pay PatH&ppercent (*] %) of the price that Patheon would have chargedadifor the Firm Order
if it had not been cancelled; or

(c) if Notice is received by Patheon betwdgnto [*] days prior to any scheduled delivery of Drug Pradcwwered b
such Firm Order, then Gilead shall pay Patheon




[*] percent (*] %) of the price that Patheon would have chargedadifor the Firm Order if it had not be cancelled.

This Section 2.10 shall not apply to mutually agrebanges in production or delivery schedulesngrcancellation for which
alternative terms are mutually agreed upon by Paitties.

2.11 Equipment . If Gilead or a third party with a right to puete Drug Product from Gilead supplies any equiprteent
Patheon for use in Processing any Drug Product:

€)) The Parties, or Patheon and such third party, plcaple, shall prepare a written inventory of secfuipment,
which inventory shall be signed by a representaiiveach Party, or a representative of Patheorsaal third party, as applicable.

(b) Such inventory shall set forth where and under wbatlitions Patheon will locate and use such eqgeigm
Gilead or such third party, as applicable, shaltdsponsible for validation of such equipmentadidition, Gilead or such third party, as
applicable, shall be responsible for any costdrorsportation, installation and training necessanyse such equipment.

(c) Such inventory shall set forth the routine previwamaintenance of such equipment that Patheon paurform,
and Patheon shall perform such routine preventati@mtenance in accordance with the terms and tiondiof a separate agreement to be
entered into by the Parties, or between Patheosaeiu third party, as applicable. For clarity,Heain shall not be responsible to conduct
major repairs to such equipment.

(d) Gilead or such third party will retain ownershipsofch equipment unless otherwise agreed to inngrhiy the
Parties, or by Patheon and such third party, abcafiyie. Gilead or such third party, as applicakl@l be responsible to maintain any
insurance as to such equipment; provided, howehat if Gilead or such third party is unable toqr® insurance to cover such equipment in
Patheon’s possession and requests Patheon to shtdinnsurance, Patheon will use reasonable sfforbtain such insurance at Gilead’s or
such third party’s expense, as applicable.
ARTICLE Il
SUPPLY AND PROCESSING OF DRUG PRODUCT
3.1 Supply Of API And Materials .

(@) For each Firm Order of Drug Product, Gilead, aeipense, shall deliver or cause to be deliverehdd-acility,
the number of kilograms of the applicable API(s3essary for Patheon to Process the Drug Prodwset{$drth on the relevant Firm Order.

(b) Patheon shall use commercially reasonable effontsake the Facility and appropriate personnel akibglin orde
to complete the Processing of the relevant Drug




Product(s) and make such Drug Product(s) avaifabldelivery on the date specified in the relevainin Order. Within*] business days
after Patheors receipt of each Firm Order, Patheon shall nd@ifead in writing via electronic mail (in accordanwith Section 10.5) wheth
Patheon accepts such Firm Order on the delivergdidh set forth therein. Patheon shall use conmalgrceasonable efforts to accept all
Firm Orders on the delivery schedules that thegifpeand in any event shall accept all Firm Orderghe extent not exceedifij percent
([*] %) of the quantity of each Drug Product forecaghmapplicable Last Forecasts (defined belowjHertime period covered by the Firm
Order, subject to reasonable scheduling of eadgheatglwithin the calendar month in which Gilead wegts delivery in order to accommodate
the specific timing of each applicable facility aRdtheon personnel availability. For purposesioh§] percent (*] %) limit, if [*] percent
([*] %) of the quantity of a given Drug Product specifie a Last Forecast equals a fractional numbéatthes, then the minimum number
of batches that Patheon must accept in a Firm Gitut be the next whole number of batches abowérétttional number of batches that is
equal to[*] percent (*] %). For exampld?*] . As used in this Section,L'ast Forecast” shall mean the forecast provided under Secti@n 2.
(@) no later thaf] months prior to the time that Gilead requests @gjivn its Firm Order.

(c) Patheon shall, at its expense, purchase from é plirty designated by Gilead from Patheon’s pretesupplier
list, or a supplier designated by Gilead, all Eienips to be used in the Processing of the Drug®itodGilead may designate an Excipient
supplier not on Patheon’s preferred supplier listoitten notice to Patheon, provided that Gilehdlspay for any increase in costs for such
Excipients resulting from such purchase from a 8appot on Patheon’s preferred supplier list. fcaach notice shall specify either that (a)
an audit of such supplier is not required by Gileadhich case Gilead will provide Patheon withddlcumentation required to support
Gilead’s qualification of such supplier; or (b) &ld shall conduct an audit of such supplier aivits expense. All Excipients shall be tested
in accordance with procedures specified by Gileatthé Excipient Specifications. If a particulapplier (from Patheon’s preferred supplier
list or as so designated by Gilead) is specifiecafgiven Excipient in the applicable Specificaipthen Patheon shall obtain such Excipient
from such supplier. In addition, the Parties megvjgle in the relevant Produ8pecific Appendix for Gilead to procure the reqditpiantitie
of any of the Excipients for the relevant Drug Rrod

(d) Patheon shall, at its expense, purchase all Conrmp@necessary to complete the Processing of Droguets. All
Components shall meet the applicable Componentifg@ions as described in Exhibit A of the Prod&gtecific Appendix for a given Drug
Product, as amended or supplemented from timent® tinder the terms and conditions hereunder. ditiad, the Parties may provide in the
relevant Product-Specific Appendix for Gilead togure the required quantities of any of the Compofa the relevant Drug Product.

3.2 Processing Of Drug Product.
€)) Patheon will Process each Drug Product in accoeuaiith the applicable Master Batch Records and

Specifications, the Quality Agreement and any ajlie federal, provincial and local laws and retioites, including without limitation
cGMPs (hereinafter collectively thePatheon Manufacturing Responsibilities’). Before, during and after each




Processing of a Drug Product, Patheon shall mositoh Processing and the Processing environmerkesmmisuch records of the foregoing
as are required by the applicable Master Batch Riscand Specifications, and in accordance with c&MR accordance with cGMPs and
during the Term of this Agreement and as part efRatheon Manufacturing Responsibilities, Pathéall §) take all commercially
reasonable steps necessary to ensure that anyHbodgct that may be Processed by it pursuant $othieement shall be free of cross-
contamination from any fermentation, other manuféng or similar activities and (ii) be responsilide the performance of validated clear
and changeover procedures prior to Processing amy Product for Gilead.

(b) Patheon shall not manufacture or store [Ahyroduct (for example but without limitatioff] ) at, or otherwise
introduce any of the foregoing to, any Facility wdhany APIl, Component, Excipient, or Drug Prodsd®Piocessed or stored without Gilead's
advance written consent. Gilead may withhold starsent in its sole discretion.

(c) Both Parties shall promptly notify each other oy mew material instructions or specifications regdiby the Act
and of other applicable laws, rules and regulatiand shall confer with each other with respet¢h&obest means to comply with such
requirements. The Parties shall allocate any aistaplementing such changes on an equitable lrmsiscordance with, and subject to the
procedures set forth in, Section 4.5. If the pemgabnew instruction or specification policy relai@she production of a Drug Product solely,
then any additional costs incurred by Patheon edyce such Drug Product shall be passed on todsiteaccordance with, and subject to the
procedures set forth in, Section 4.5.

(d) Upon prior written request, Patheon will permitydalithorized representatives of Gilead and Gilebcknsee(s)
or distributor(s) for any Drug Product to obserive Processing of such Drug Product and to havesa¢oeany relevant records in connection
with such Processing as more fully provided in BecB.4 below; provided that representatives froie&l’s licensee(s) or distributor(s) for
any Drug Product shall be granted access to PathEanility at the same time and to the same extsrilead’s representatives. Such
representatives shall be bound by an obligatiacoaofidentiality (comparable to that of Article V)with respect to information that such
representatives may obtain during such visit teeolesthe Processing of Drug Product and will conwpity all Patheon standard operating
policies and procedures while within the Facilityother Patheon premises.

(e) Patheon shall supply Gilead with copies of Processécords, including batch records, as they retagach Drug
Product, for the purposes of assuring product tuaiid compliance with agreed-upon Processing pies.

® All Processing of each Drug Product to be perfortmgdatheon under this Agreement shall be perforat¢e
Facility(ies) for such Drug Product specified ie @ipplicable Product-Specific Appendix.




3.3 FDA And Regulatory Support.

€)) Patheon agrees to maintain a Site Master FifF ") in accordance with the requirements of the FDANY, as
well as any comparable files required by other Ratguy Authorities, and to provide Gilead with &t of access to such SMF (to the extent
that they are required by the FDA or other relatsggiilatory bodies) and comparable files and tch&rrprovide Gilead with all documents
regarding the Processing of such Drug Productea@ikhall be responsible for all other filings reseey for approval and export of each Drug
Product. At Gilead’s reasonable cost, Patheohéuragrees to assist Gilead, acting reasonabghtaining any government or agency
approval which may be required for the marketingmf Drug Product in any country other than thetéthBtates. Gilead shall provide
written notice of any additional regulatory requi@nts of countries, in accordance with Section 4.6.

(b) Patheon agrees to cooperate with any inspectiaghébffDA or other Regulatory Authority. Patheondifieally
agrees to meet and confer with Gilead represeetivadvance of the pre-approval inspectionsrigr2rug Product and, at Gileaequest
any other inspection of the Facility concerning &g Product, provided that Patheon receives atbvantice of such inspection, and will
provide Gilead with all necessary support in cotioacwith each such inspection as may be reasoreqlyired.

(c) Each Party shall notify the other Party immediatelyriting in the event a Party learns of any actihat has been
or will be taken by the FDA or other Regulatory Aaitity which relates to the Facility and the Pradeg of any Drug Product, or which may
delay or impair the ability to Process any Drugduict in accordance with this Agreement.

3.4 cGMP Compliance and QA Audits. Upon prior written request, Gilead shall have tight[*] per Year to have its
representatives and representatives from its lexg(s$ and distributor(s) for any Drug Product wisé Facility during normal business hours
on business days to audit Patheon’s manufactunocegs, assess Patheon’s compliance with cGMPgualily assurance standards, review
records relating to the Processing of such Druglirband discuss any related issues with manufagtand management personnel as it
relates to such Drug Product (such activities ctillely, a “cGMP/QA Audit ”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Gilead’s megentatives
and/or representatives from its licensee(s) antiloligor(s) for any Drug Product require cGMP/QAdMs in addition td*] per Year, then
they shall have the right to conduct such addilic@&VP/QA Audits, in the presence of a Gilead repreative, provided Gilead or such
licensee(s) or distributor(s) shall pay Patheoe&sonable costs for the conduct of such cGMP/QAtAudilead’s representatives and
representatives from its licensee(s) and distritfs}dor any Drug Product shall be bound by angailon of confidentiality with respect to
information that such representatives may obtaimdusuch visit to inspect and audit Patheon’s rfecturing process and the Processing of
Drug Product and will comply with all standard ogtarg policies and procedures while within the Kgcor other Patheon premises.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Gilead (and its fisee(s) and distributor(s) for any Drug Produdtalishave the right to conduct‘For
Cause” audit at any time, when requested as amabkoresponse to a FDA or other regulatory agandjt notice or inquiry regarding a
Drug Product, an unresolved deviation in Processfrigrug Product by Patheon, or customer complainesdverse events regarding a Drug
Product, and Gilead (or such licensees or diswiis)itshall bear Patheon’s expenses therefore uateas




result of such “For Cause” audit it is determinkedttthere was non-compliance with the warrantieSdation 6.2.

3.5 Change in Manufacturing Process Patheon shall notify Gilead if Patheon wishemtike, and obtain Gilead’s prior
written approval before Patheon implements, antheffollowing: (a) a major change (as definedpplaable regulations) including without
limitation, major or regulatory changes relatingij)ahe Facility that would constitute a changelencGMPs, would impact the validation
status of the process, or would constitute nonc@mpé with the Patheon Manufacturing Responsieditiii) the Materials, (iii) the
Specifications, (iv) any quantitative formulae amy other aspect of Drug Product Processing, aie@tjng methods with respect to the Drug
Product; and (b) changes that require regulatdoyngssion, relating to the Materials, SpecificatioRacility, equipment, process, testing
methods or other procedures used to Process amyPyaduct. Gilead’s consent with respect to suanges shall not be unreasonably
withheld, or unduly delayed; provided, howeverthih respect to such changes affecting a paarcbrug Product, Patheon acknowledges
that Gilead may be required to obtain its licens@®nsent to such changes prior to providing cdrtselPatheon.

3.6 Compliance with Laws. Patheon shall materially comply with all appbt=orders, regulations, requirements and laws of
any and all Regulatory Authorities including, withdimitation, all laws and regulations applicabide(a) the transportation, storage, use,
handling and disposal of hazardous materials hpProcessing of Drug Products and (c) Patheomferpgance of its obligations under this
Agreement. Patheon specifically represents andants that it does not and will not use, in anyacéty, the services of any person that is
debarred under the provisions of the United St@seric Drug Diversion Act or applicable FDA redidas. Patheon represents and
warrants to Gilead that it has and will maintaimidg the Term of this Agreement, all governmentpies, including without limitation,
health, safety and environmental permits, legatyired for the conduct of the actions and proaesithiat it undertakes pursuant to this
Agreement. Unless otherwise provided in the Pro@pecific Appendix for a given Drug Product, therties agree that Patheon shall be the
quality representative for purposedfrelease of all Drug Products.

3.7 Documentation. Patheon shall keep complete, accurate and didtetounts, notes, data and records of the Psioaes
services performed under this Agreement includimigniot limited to all relevant information and reds relating to the Processing of Drug
Products under this Agreement which may be requdiad time to time to be provided to any Regulatdnthority pursuant to applicable
laws and regulations, and all Process developmémtnation relating to the Drug Product (to theegxtsuch information is in Patheon’s
possession) (Documentation”). Each Party shall maintain complete and adegjuatords in accordance with and to the full exteqtired
by cGMP and the applicable Specifications pertaininthe methods and the Facility used for the €&sinig, holding and distribution of Drug
Product. Upon written request by Gilead with reedae notice, Patheon will provide to representatiof Gilead or its licensee(s) or
distributor(s) for Drug Products, during normal imess hours, reasonable access to Documentati@revghich access is necessary or
reasonably useful to permit Gilead or such distobig) or licensee(s) to comply with applicable sawles or




regulations; subject to Section 3.4, the expensici access shall be at the expense of Gileadtbrlieensee(s) or distributor(s). Patheon
shall maintain Documentation until the later of {d)en such Documentation is no longer requiredgpfieable law, rule or obligation to be
maintained by Gilead or Patheon, or (b) for Drugd®ict supplied for (i) clinical trial supplies, thgproval or withdrawal of all applications
for approval included within Regulatory Filings feuch Drug Product, or (ii) commercial suppliess ¢b) year after expiration of the shelf

life for the applicable batch.

3.8 Reprocess and Rework Patheon shall not conduct any rework (meanidgessing or relabeling of Drug Product) or
reprocessing (meaning repetition of any step imtheufacture of unlabeled Drug Product from API Emdipients) activities with respect to
any Drug Product without prior written permissioarh Gilead. Patheon shall document appropriatélsemlork and reprocessing activities
conducted under this Agreement.

3.9 Variances. Patheon shall notify Gilead withjt] business days after its discovery of any Drug Pebbht failure, or
significant deviation from or variance in manufaaig procedures or standard operating proceduresuith Drug Product. The Parties shall
promptly discuss and mutually agree how to addaegssuch deviation or variance. The Quality Agreetrshall include a requirement that
any deviation or variance be resolved witftlndays after discovery or such longer period of tasanay be agreed to between the Parties.

3.10 Storage and Handling. Patheon shall store and handle API and Matesimkset forth in the applicable Master Batch
Records and Specifications, and in accordancea@P, and shall conform to established safety pastand procedures set forth in
Gilead’s then-current material safety data shéetddition, Patheon shall take such actions asem®onably necessary to protect APl and
Materials from damage and deterioration. If reqe@$ty Gilead in writing, Patheon shall return ostdey, at Gilead cost and expense, any
unused API in accordance with Gilead’s writtenfinstions.

3.11 Labels. Unless otherwise agreed, Gilead, or a thirdypa@pproved by Gilead, shall supply in a timely mamnall necessary
copy and art work to allow Patheon to procure Conepds for a Drug Product in accordance with thdiegiple Component Specifications.
Patheon shall use such copy and art work to praalireecessary Components in accordance with thicaple Component Specifications
and Gilead’s written instructions, and in compliandth applicable regulatory requirements. Sucim@onents shall be the only Components
used for such Drug Product.

3.12 Performance Indicators. Within [*] months after the Effective Date, the Parties stwifer to set a timeline for the
development of a commercially reasonable systepedbrmance indicators to evaluate the performafi¢gatheon in carrying out its
obligations under this Agreement. Once the systepedormance indicators is developed, the Pasiied| evaluate the Processing of Drug
Products by Patheon on a quarterly basis againktgerformance indicators.




ARTICLE IV
PRICES AND PAYMENT

4.1 Price. Prices for each Drug Product shall be as s#t fun Exhibit C of the Product-Specific Appendix guch Drug
Product. Gilead shall be responsible for the payroéany sales and use taxes on Drug Productetelivby Patheon to Gilead or on API
furnished by Gilead to Patheon. The fees liste&xinibit C of each Product-Specific Appendix shmat be subject to change until the end of
the first Year after the effective date of suchd@iei-Specific Appendix, subject to the amendmemtsuch fees provided for in Sections 4.3,
4.5 and 4.6. The prices for each Drug Producthdueiach additional Year that this Agreement remirisrce shall be agreed to between the
Parties prior to the commencement of each such, Yfeaccordance with Section 4.4.

4.2 Payment Terms. All payments due hereunder to Patheon shalbliek ot later thaf] days following the date of the
applicable invoice submitted by Patheon in accozdamith Section 5.2(a); provided that if such iroeis received by Gilead more thigh
business days after such date, Patheon will masorable allowances for any payments that arelisdo such delay provided that Gilead
uses commercially reasonable efforts to pay suabiée by the end of sudh] days.

4.3  Adjustments to Current Year’s Pricing . During any Year of this Agreement, the feesostin Exhibit C of each
Product-Specific Appendix shall be subject to ajuent in accordance with the following:

€)) Minimum Order Quantity . If at any time a Firm Order is for less than thi@imum order quantity of any Drug
Product specified in Exhibit C of the applicabl®uctSpecific Appendix (i.e., the smallest campaign sizepecified, as either by batch :
or a minimum number of batches or a combinatiobath of batch size and minimum number of batches) Patheon shall be entitled to
request an adjustment to the fee for Processingsipect of that Drug Product delivered under tla ©rder to reflect the increased costs
that Patheon will incur as a result of manufacmitine lesser volume ordered by Gilead relativééorhinimum order quantity for that Drug
Product. For clarity, the minimum order quantijates to the size of the manufacturing runs th#étiédn will undertake to fill Gilead'’s
orders, and not to overall or annual volume.

(b) Materials and Component Costs If at any time market conditions result in Patfis cost of Materials being
greater than normal forecasted increases, there®&aghall be entitled to request an adjustmeritadde for Processing in respect of any
affected Drug Product to compensate it for sucheimeed Materials costs. For the purposes of #itich 4.3(b), changes greater than nol
forecasted increases shall be considered to hawered only if (i) the cost of a Material for subinug Product increases I§} percent (*]

%) of the cost for that Material upon which the égmte was based or (ii) the aggregate cost faviaterials required to Process a Drug
Product increases %] percent (*] %) of the total Material costs for such Drug Praduyson which the fee quote was based. To the exten
that Processing fees have been previously adjpstestiant to this Section 4.3(b) to reflect an iaseein the cost of one




(1) or more Materials, the adjustments providedridii) and (ii) above shall operate based on & attributed to such Material (or
Materials) at the time the last of such adjustmergse made.

In connection with a fee adjustment request purtsigathis Section 4.3, Patheon shall deliver tee&il a revised Exhibit C for each
Drug Product for which it requests such fee adjestinand such budgetary pricing information, adgidfiaterial costs or other documentat
sufficient to demonstrate that a fee adjustmejtssfied. Upon delivery of such request, eaclsdéad and Patheon shall forthwith use all
reasonable efforts to agree on a revised fee &Ptbcessing in respect of each affected Drug Rtodu

4.4  Adjustments to Subsequent Year's Pricing The fees for the Processing provided pursuatitederms of this Agreeme
for any Drug Product during any Year after thetfifear of this Agreement for that Drug Product sbaldetermined in accordance with the
following:

(@) Manufacturing Costs. No later thatf*] months prior to the end of each Year for each rgfuct, Patheon
shall be entitled to request an adjustment toéls for the applicable Component costs and Praweses in respect of such Drug Product
for the increases in manufacturing costs baseti®@intrease in thig] for July of the then current Year compared to e month of the
preceding Year, published 5} in respect of the immediately prior Year.

(b) Pricing Basis. Gilead acknowledges that the fee for the Pracgss respect of a Drug Product in any Year is
guoted based upon the minimum order quantity pegMroduct specified in Exhibit C of each Produgéedfic Appendix for a given Drug
Product and is subject to change as set forth aibtlve quantity ordered by Gilead in any Firm Qrélls below the minimum order quantity
for that Drug Product as specified in Exhibit Ctloé applicable Product-Specific Appendix or, if bggble, any revised minimum order
guantity hereinafter agreed to by the Parties iitivg; provided that Gilead orders such Drug Prddunc¢he time period covered by such Firm
Order. For greater certainty, if Patheon and @ilegree that the minimum order quantity in respéet Drug Product shall be reduced anc
a result of such reduction, Patheon’s costs rejatrsuch Drug Product increase on a per unit s Patheon shall be entitled to an
increase in the fee for the Processing in resdesich Drug Product by an amount sufficient to abswch increase. In addition, if Gilead
will place orders for quantities permitting Pathéomrmanufacture in larger production runs, theiPsughall review the fee for the Processing
of such Drug Product and shall reduce such feemar-anit basis by a reasonable amount to reflaghgs in Patheon’s costs relating to such
Drug Product as a result of such increase if any.

In connection with a fee adjustment request purtsigathis Section 4.4, Patheon shall deliver te&il a revised Exhibit C for such
Drug Product and such budgetary pricing informatajusted Material costs for such Drug Producitber documentation sufficient to
demonstrate that a fee adjustment is justifiedstmh Drug Product, no later thith prior to the end of the Year. Upon receipt of sach
request, each of Gilead and Patheon shall forthugth




all reasonable efforts to agree on a revised feth®oProcessing in respect of each affected Draguet.

4.5 Adjustments Due To Technical Changes Amendments to the Specifications for a givendPuoduct, the Quality
Agreement relating to Processing or the minimuneogliantities for each Drug Product requested bga@iwill only be implemented
following a technical and cost review by Patheod are subject to Gilead and Patheon reaching agmems to revisions, if any, to the fees
specified in Exhibit C of the corresponding Prod8pecific Appendix or otherwise necessitated by sugh amendment. If Gilead accepts a
proposed fee change, the proposed change in tlufiSaons, Quality Agreement or minimum order gtities shall be implemented, and
fee change shall become effective only with restmtttose orders of such Drug Product that areds®d in accordance with such revision
(s). The Parties acknowledge in Sections 2.2a@d52.8 the potential need to refine or modify $ipecifications, Quality Agreement or
minimum order quantities for Drug Products, respety. Accordingly, the Parties will negotiategood faith to modify the applicable
Specifications, Quality Agreement or minimum ordaantities from time to time if requested by Gile&htheon will facilitate appropriate
changes to the Exhibits, and shall implement amngbs to the Specifications and/or Quality Agredrtigat are required by applicable legal
requirements; provided that Gilead bears the adsdsach changes to the extent relating solely éoDhug Product(s) or the Parties reach
written agreement as to a different allocationwdtsincreased costs. The Parties agree to allocas®m equitable basis any special costs of
developing and implementing revised proceduresnmgahat the cost of implementing any revised pcages shall be borne in full by
Gilead in such cases where the changes are maglg fwlthe benefit of Gilead, and the costs ofeotthanges shall be allocated between the
Parties on the basis of the extent to which suctyRall be benefited by such change relative te #xtent to which the other Party will be
benefited by such change. In any event, Gileadesmgio purchase, at Patheon’s cost, all Inventorthe relevant Drug Product utilized under
any of the “old” Specifications and/or Quality Agraent and purchased or maintained by Patheon ér todill Firm Orders for such Drug
Product or in accordance with Section 2.5, to ttterd that such Inventory can no longer be utiliseder the revised Specifications and/or
Quality Agreement. Open purchase orders for Malferio longer required under such revised Spetifice and/or Quality Agreement that
were placed by Patheon with suppliers in ordeillt&ifm Orders or in accordance with Section Zalsbe cancelled where possible, and
where such orders are not subject to cancellatitmout penalty, shall be assigned to and satidfieilead.

4.6  Multi-Country Pricing . If Gilead decides that it wishes to have Pathemtess a Drug Product for any country in
addition to the Territory as stated in Exhibit Ctloé applicable Product-Specific Appendix, there@d shall inform Patheon of the packaging
requirements for such Drug Product needed forrtbig country market and Patheon shall prepare atjootfor consideration by Gilead of
the additional Component costs, if any, and thenghaver fees for such Drug Product destined f@méaw country market. The agreed
additional packaging requirements and related mgngacosts and change over fees shall be set auwiritten amendment to Exhibit C of t
applicable Product-Specific Appendix.




4.7 APl Cost Adjustment . Each Product-Specific Appendix when it is exeduthall set forth Gilead’s actual standard costs
to acquire or manufacture the relevant APG{lead’s Actual Standard APl Costs”) in Exhibit C. The Parties recognize that suchsoshy
fluctuate over time. Therefore, at the time of @adrprice adjustment pursuant to Section 4.4, @idall determine an adjustment to Gilead’
Actual Standard API Costs to reflect such costh@j*] month period prior to such adjustment. Such adfuSilead’s Actual Standard API
Costs shall apply solely on a prospective baséthddn shall have the right to audit the methodokrgployed by Gilead to determine an
adjusted Gilead’s Actual Standard API Costs.

ARTICLE V
DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE

5.1 Quality Control Sample and Documentation. Prior to the delivery of any batch of Drug ProguPatheon shall provide
Gilead with a quality control sample of such batwhthe purpose of confirming that such batch m#stsSpecifications (unless Gilead
consents in writing that no such sample is reqyjraadd the Disposition Package for such batch. quadity control sample shall consist of
Drug Product sampled so as to be representatitreediatch. Patheon shall not deliver a shipmebtrafy Product until it has been releasec
Gilead pursuant to Section 5.4(a) unless otherreigaested by Gilead in writing.

5.2 Delivery and Title .

€)) Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writiigshipments shall be shippgd (as such term in defined in
Incoterms 2000}*] ; provided,however, that notwithstandirfy responsibility for customs clearance in accordamitie [¥] as so defined in
Incoterms 2000*] shall be responsible to arrange for customs clearfor each shipment hereunder. The Parties idedbnably cooperate
to share any information f¢t] to fulfill its responsibilities to arrange for costs clearance. In accordance with delig}y, [*] shall bear a
risk of loss or damage after the Drug Prodtict Patheon shall package Drug Product in accordaitbethe applicable Specifications. For
each shipment of Drug Product, Patheon shall suton@ilead the applicable Disposition Package pamsto Section 5.1 together with an
invoice for such shipment of Drug Product.

(b) Patheon shall consistently fulfill Firm Orders sutted to Patheon pursuant to Section 2.3 by supglfirug
Product with at leagt] percent (*] %) of initial shelf life remaining at the time oélivery, and Gilead shall have no obligation toegtcor
pay for any shipment of Drug Product delivered tte&l with less thaft] percent (*] %) of initial shelf life remaining; provided, hower
that if there is a delay in delivery due to invgation and resolution of a deviation that doesanmise from Patheon’s failure to manufacture
Drug Product in accordance with the Patheon Manufang Responsibilities, then the deemed delivextedor purposes of calculating
remaining shelf life under this Section 5.2(b) tbalthe date preceding the actual delivery data bymber of days equal to the length of
such delay, provided that Patheon has carried®utsponsibilities in such investigation and resoh using commercially reasonable effo
then Gilead shall be obligated to accept and pagriy shipment of Drug Product delivered to Gileathject to Gilead’s rights pursuant to
Section 5.4.




In addition, Gilead may consent, in writing, toheoger remaining shelf life at delivery of any DrRgoduct as follows: (i) where
release of such Drug Product was delayed to emafviajor deviation to be investigated and resolaed; (ii) provided that any such
acceptance and utilization shall be subject toattiten consent of any applicable third party p@sihg Drug Product from Gilead, acting in
good faith. In the circumstances outlined in thecpding sentence, Gilead shall be obligated te@@nd pay for such shipment of Drug
Product, subject to Gilead's rights pursuant totisad.4. Initial shelf life shall be measured dredjin to expire commencing on the date that
API and any Excipients are first combined. Inciitumstances, Gilead shall use commercially realsierefforts to promptly investigate and
address any deviation or variance of the Drug Rebdu

(c) In the event of a deviation at any time during Bmecessing of a Drug Product, the Parties shallialiytagree
upon procedures to rework, to the extent poss#ieh Drug Product in accordance with Section 3.#absuch Drug Product will meet the
applicable Specifications.

5.3 Late Delivery.

€)) Patheon agrees to use its commercially reason&bléseto deliver Drug Products hereunder on theesaled
delivery dates as set forth in the relevant Firrdéds. It shall not be considered a breach ofAbigement if, for any batch for which Pathe
has accepted a Firm Order, at Idaktpercent (*] %) of Drug Product which conforms to the Specifimas is made available for delivery
within [*] business days following the date originally agrepdn for delivery in such Firm Order (th&theduled Delivery Date).
However, it shall be deemed to be a late delivEBatheon delivers a shipment of Drug Products kaiEn[*] business days after the relevant
Scheduled Delivery Date (such d@ite business days after the Scheduled Delivery Dage’, tlate Delivery Date”).

(b) If Patheon has learned that any delivery of DruadBct may be expected to:
0] have less thaff] percent (*] %) of the quantity stated in the relevant Firm Qraad/or
(i) be delivered after the Late Delivery Date, accagdmPatheon’s master delivery plan,

then Patheon shall: (1) as soon as practical,ynGiilead; (2) ensure thfif] of this issue; and (3) develop and
implement gd*] to the extent reasonably practicable or Eiythereof.

(c) Notwithstanding the previous paragraph, Patheohnetify Gilead as promptly as practicable of sagtticipated
late or short delivery that is likely to occur digsfPatheon’s efforts (theNotice ).




(d) If, to the extent not caused by any of the eveet$ath in Section 5.3(h), during any periodf, Patheon
delivers after the relevant Late Delivery Dife(a “ Delivery Default ), then at Gilead’s option, Gilead may requesteeting[*] . The
request for the meeting shall be given witftinfrom the date of Notice, and the meeting shall &l vithin[*] from the date of the request.

(e) At the meeting, the Parties will negotiate diliggraind in good faith to mutually agree upi¢h for: (i) any[*] of
Drug Product occurring aftgt] ; or (ii) any delivery of Drug Products havift§ of the quantity stateff] . The Parties will, thereafter, enter
into an amendment to this Agreement to reflectntiually agreed resolutions (théA\inending Agreement”).

® If after entering the Amending Agreement and togkint not caused by any of the events set farBeiction 5.3
(h), there is another Delivery Default, then suefadlt shall deemed to be a material breach ofAjigement and Gilead may terminate this
Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3(e).

(9) For purposes of determining a Delivery Default parg to Section 5.3(d), a batch shall not be caliagshaving
been delivered after the Late Delivery Date if haéspect to such batch:

0] the period between the day that Patheon providessievant Disposition Package to Gilead and the
Scheduled Delivery Date is as long or longer themrelease review period, which shall[fjeor such other period as mutually agreed;

(i) the batch has no deviations from the applicablepations or cGMPs that reasonably prevent Gilead
from releasing such batch within the agreed releagsiew period, which shall & or such other period as mutually agreed,;

(iii) there are no deviations in the shipment of sucbhbitat would form the basis of a Deficiency Notice
pursuant to Section 5.4(b); and

(iv) Patheon actually makes such batch available favatglwithin the agreed time frame following releas
by Gilead.
(h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thicten 5.3, Patheon shall not be responsible fofahere to
satisfy any Firm Order to the extent caused byddriiie following events:
0] Gilead's failure to have delivered to Patheon adégisupplies of the applicable API;
(i) Gilead's failure to deliver forecasts pursuant éztin 2.3;
(iii) Gilead's failure to timely deliver specifications aher technical information necessary to perftinm

Processing services;




(iv) a Force Majeure event outlined in Section 10:10yioled that Patheon complies with its obligatiams t
address any such Force Majeure event in accordaitité&ection 10.10;

(v) Gilead's failure to deliver the Firm Orders in amtance with Section 2.3(b); or
(vi) Gilead's changes to any Firm Orders.
5.4 Product Deficiencies.
€)) Release. Gilead or its designee shall review the DispogifPackage for a potential shipment of Drug Product

upon receipt of such Disposition Package theredftast any quality control sample in its discret@m, within[*] , shall either release such
shipment or shall give Patheon written noticé¥eficiency Notice” ) of all claims for Drug Product that deviates frtime applicable
Specifications or cGMPs, as determined by Gileaan testing of any quality control sample oiaenof the Disposition Package. Any
release by Gilead of a shipment of Drug Producll fleadeemed to be an acceptance thereof, sulbj&gdtions 5.4(b) and 5.4(f). Patheon
shall have no liability for any deviations for whiit has not received notice within su¢h day period that should reasonably have been
discovered within such time period by review of Bisposition Package of such shipment.

(b) Inspection. Gilead or its designee shall visually inspedpstents of Drug Product Processed by Patheon upon
receipt thereof and, withifi] days, shall give Patheon a Deficiency Notice otklims for Drug Product that deviates from thelizpple
Specifications or cGMPs, or does not contain odieueantities, as determined by Gilead based ongohl inspection. Such deviations
may include, without limitation, Drug Product thets been crossentaminated during Processing. Should Gileaddaiirovide Patheon wil
a Deficiency Notice with respect to the deliveryhin [*] days of receipt of a delivery of Drug Product, thiee delivery shall be deemed to
have been accepted by Gilead on[thheday after delivery. Patheon shall have no liapfiitr any deviations for which it has not received
notice within such*] day period that should reasonably have been disedweithin such time period by inspection of subipment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thixten 5.4(b), for all shipments of Drug Product ¢&ssed by Pathe(*] as specified in a
Firm Order, the time period (i) for Gilead to prdeiPatheon with a Deficiency Notice with respecuoh shipments, (ii) after which, if
Gilead fails to provide Patheon with a Deficiencgtide with respect to such shipment, such shipméhbe deemed accepted by Gilead, and
(iii) after which, if Patheon has not received netfrom Gilead, Patheon shall have no liabilitydoy deviations with respect to such
shipment that should reasonably have been discoyehall bg*] days ([*] days) of receipt of a delivery of such shipment.

(c) Determination of Deficiency. Upon receipt of a Deficiency Notice, Patheon ishave[*] days to advise Gilead
by notice in writing whether it disagrees with twntents of such Deficiency Notice. If Gilead &ratheon fail to agree with{ti] days after




Patheon’s notice to Gilead as to whether any DmagliRct identified in the Deficiency Notice deviafesm the applicable Specifications or
cGMPs, then the Parties shall mutually select dependent laboratory to evaluate if such Drug Pebdaviates from the applicable
Specifications or cGMPs. A sample of such Drugdod shall be submitted to the independent laboyatnd such independent laboratory
shall determine withilft] days of receipt of the relevant sample (to therextgthin the control of the Parties) whether srlig Product
meets the applicable Specifications and cGMPs. 8ualtuation shall be binding on the Parties armtidéh evaluation certifies that any Drug
Product deviates from the Specifications or cGMFEkad may reject that Drug Product in the manioetemplated by Section 5.4(d) and, at
Gilead'’s option, receive either a credit or a reffio the extent previously paid by Gilead) for #reount that it was invoiced by Patheon for
such shipment. If such evaluation does not safgéntrespect of any such Drug Product, then Gllshall be deemed to have accepted
delivery of such Drug Product upon receipt by theties of the final determination in writing froiimet independent laboratory. The Party
against whom the independent laboratory rules &ieat all costs of the testing.

(d) Product Rejection and Replacement Subiject to the provisions of Sections 5.4(a), (@ and (f), Gilead has the
right to reject and/or return, at the expense dh&an, any portion of any shipment of Drug Prodhat deviates from the applicable
Specifications or cGMPs, without invalidating amyrmrainder of such shipment, to the extent that sleefation arises from Patheon’s failure
to provide the Processing services in accordantteRatheon Manufacturing Responsibilities. For spmttion of any rejected and/or returr
shipment, to the extent requested by Gilead, Patbkall use commercially reasonable efforts to jsl@veplacement quantities of the
applicable Drug Product(s) to Gilead or its des@gas soon as possible, but in any event, w[thinlays after the receipt by Patheon of a
Deficiency Notice, regardless of whether Pathearegywith the rejection. Subject to the provisiohSections 7.3(a) and 7.3(b), Gilead
shall supply quantities of the relevant API to pisuch replacement manufacture, and shall beacdbts of replacement quantities of
rejected Drug Product.

(e) Disposition of Rejected Batches Gilead may destroy any batch of Drug Producheuit Patheon’s consent in
those cases where Patheon does not dispute thaatittefails to meet the applicable SpecificationsGMPs. To the extent that any devia
arises from Patheon’s failure to Process the Dnoglit in accordance with the Patheon ManufactuRegponsibilities, destruction of the
Drug Product shall be made at Patheon’s expens&a@ald shall provide evidence of such destruction.

® Latent Defects. Gilead shall notify Patheon promptly in writing@filead discovers a latent defect in any qua
of Drug Product resulting from nonconformance with applicable Specifications or cGMPs at any tafter such quantity has been accej
in accordance with this Section 5.4 and duringeataaining shelf life, which defect should not razgly have been discovered during the
Disposition Package review conducted in accordaritteSection 5.4(a) or the visual inspection cortdddn accordance with 5.4(b) (a “
Latent Defect”). Gilead’s notice shall be deemed to be a Deficy Notice, and the Parties




shall address the Latent Defect in accordance thélprovisions of Sections 5.4(c), 5.4(d) and 5.4(e
5.5 APl Yield .

€)) Yield-Related Reports. Patheon shall submit yield-related reports #mteDrug Product containing such
information and at such times as described in tieédYCalculation Schedule.

(b) Setting the [*] Yield . The Parties shall determiff¢ (as[*] defined in the Yield Calculation Schedule which is
attached hereto as Schedule B) for a particulagPnoduct in accordance with the Yield CalculatBahedule. The Parties may, upon wri
agreement, adjust su¢f} on a Yearly basis to reflect further experiencehviittual Yields (as defined in the Yield CalculatiSchedule).

5.6 Responsibility for [*] APl in Non-Compliant Deliver ies.

(@) If (i) Patheon has failed to provide the Processieyices in accordance with the Patheon Manufiactur
Responsibilities for a delivery of Drug Produci) {he Drug Product in a delivery is not in complia with the warranty made in Section 6.2,
(iii) a delivery of Drug Product is properly rejedtby Gilead pursuant to Section 5.4, or (iv) oadearget Yield has been set with respect to a
given Drug Product, thg] Yield for any delivery of that Drug Produf¢] the applicablg¢*] Yield, then subject to Section 7.3(a) Patheon
[*] the[*] or the[*] as calculated in accordance with the Yield CaléotaSchedule for item (iv), in each case as catedlan[*] . Within
[*] days after the end of each Year, the Parties datdrmine whether Patheon is responsiblg¢*fopursuant to this Section 5.6(a), and, if
Patheon is responsible gt , within [*] days after the end of each Year, Gilead shaltbeither: (i)[*] , or (ii) a[*] of such[*] .

(b) Clarification of Relationship [*] . For clarity, thg*] by Patheon t§*] for a given Year that ig] the[*] for suct
Year shall not in and of itself constitutg*h of this Agreement, however, whethef*h of this Agreement has occurred in any given inganc
shall depend on all relevant facts and circumstané®r example and without limitation, if tf& arises out of and is associated wit]aof
Patheon to Process any Drug Product in accordaitbehe Specifications therefor, then sythto Process in accordance with the
Specifications may itself constitufg of this Agreement, even though connected g ¢hat in and of itself does not constit(ite .
ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

6.1 Both Parties. Each Party hereby represents and warrants tothiee Party as follows:




(@) Existence and Power. Such Party: (a) is duly organized, validly eixigtand in good standing under the laws of
the jurisdiction in which it is organized; (b) hthe® power and authority and the legal right to @md operate its property and assets, to lease
the property and assets it operates under leaswanadry on its business as it is now being cotetijand (c) is in compliance with all
requirements of applicable law, except to the edteat any noncompliance would not materially adedr affect such Party’s ability to
perform its obligations under the Agreement.

(b) Authorization and Enforcement of Obligations. Such Party: (a) has the power and authoritythadegal right
to enter into the Agreement and to perform itsgdiions hereunder; and (b) has taken all necesstion on its part to authorize the
execution and delivery of the Agreement and théoperance of its obligations hereunder. The Agresmdien duly executed and delivered
on behalf of each Party, shall constitute a legalld, and binding obligation of the Parties.

(c) No Conflict . The execution and delivery of the Agreement thiedperformance of such Party’s obligations
hereunder: (a) do not materially conflict with aolate any requirement of applicable laws or retjofes; and (b) do not materially conflict
with, or constitute a material default or requiny @onsent under, any material contractual obligatif such Party.

6.2 Limited Warranty . Patheon warrants that Drug Product deliveredureder: (a) will be Processed in accordance \uith t
Patheon Manufacturing Responsibilities and in niagteompliance with applicable rules and regulagiancluding, but not limited to, any
regulations regarding use of the services of deldgoersons; (b) will be Processed in accordandetivit agreed-upon manufacturing
procedures described in the applicable Master BR&tords supplied to Gilead and agreed upon bya@ilend (c) will conform to the
applicable Specifications set forth on Exhibits#d@ of the applicable Product-Specific Appendixete at the time of delivery. The Parties
agree that Sections 3.4 (with respect to “For Caagdit costs), 5.4(c), 7.1(b) and 7.3(b) set fdhé sole and exclusive remedy for Patheon’s
breach of the warranty in this Section 6.2. AHatremedies that would otherwise be availablawatdr in equity are hereby explicitly
excluded. The express warranties in Section 3dglais Section 6.2 are in lieu of all other wariasit express or implied, including, without
limitation, the warranties of merchantability ainéss for a particular purpose.

6.3 Non-Infringement . Gilead covenants, represents and warrants that:

(@) the Specifications for each of the Drug Productsitror its Affiliate’s property and that Gileadagnlawfully
disclose such Specifications to Patheon;

(b) any Intellectual Property embodied in the Spedifises and which must be utilized by Patheon in ptdd’rocess
Drug Products may be lawfully used as directed bga@ without infringing any Third Party Rights;

(c) there are no actions or other legal proceedingsstiject of which is the infringement of Third §dRights
related to any of: (i) the Specifications; (ii) aofythe API,




and the Materials; or (iii) the sale, marketingstdbution and use or other disposition of any DRrgduct; and
(d) the Specifications for all Drug Products confornaticapplicable cGMPs, laws and regulations.

The Parties agree that Article VIl sets forth tbesand exclusive remedy for Gilead’s breach of @inthe representations and warranties in
this Section 6.3. All other remedies that would otherwise be ava#add law or in equity are hereby explicitly excldde

ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION
7.1 Indemnity .

(@) Subject to Sections 7.2 and 7.3, and except textent the losses, liabilities, damages, costs, de@xpenses
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (collectiyélLosses’) resulting from any claim, suit, action, demandcause of action brought by a
third party (each a Third-Party Claim ") arise out of or result from any negligent or wgbul act or omission of any of Patheon and
Patheon’s directors, officers, employees, and agant the directors, officers, employees, andtagerany Patheon parent, subsidiary or
related company (thePatheon Indemnitees’), Gilead agrees to indemnify, hold harmless aefiétdd the Patheon Indemnitees from and
against any and all Losses resulting from any FRiagty Claim that arises or results from: (i) tlesgession or use of Drug Product by any
person after delivery to Gilead or its designegjipany claim of infringement or alleged infringent of any Third Party Rights in respect of
the Drug Product; or (iii) failure of Gilead to jf@m its obligations under this Agreement, incluglimithout limiting the generality of the
foregoing, any Losses whatsoever with respect &bhder injury to person or damage to property, jated that Patheon provides Gilead with
prompt notice of any such Thifarty Claim and the exclusive ability to defendtfvthe reasonable cooperation of Patheon) or satitesucl
Third-Party Claim.

(b) Subject to Sections 7.2 and 7.3, and except textent the Losses resulting from any Third-Parigi@larise or
result from any negligent or wrongful act or omissof any Gilead Indemnitee (defined below), Pathagrees to indemnify, hold harmless
and defend Gilead and Gilead'’s directors, officersployees and agents, and the directors, offieanployees and agents of any Gilead
parent, subsidiary, related company (collectivbly tGilead Indemnitees”) from and against any and all Losses resultimgifiany Third
Party Claim that results from or arises out oP@theon’s failure to Process any Drug Product coa@nce with the Patheon Manufacturing
Responsibilities, (ii) any injury to a person ontlge to the Facility occurring in the course ofiéan’s Processing hereunder, (iii) Patheon’s
breach of Section 6.2, (iv) Patheon’s negligencerangful misconduct or (v) transportation, storagge, handling and disposal of hazardous
materials related to such Processing, including




without limiting the generality of the foregoingyyalLosses whatsoever with respect to death onjirfuperson or damage to property,
provided that Gilead provides Patheon with prongtice of any such Third Party Claim and the exelesibility to defend (with the
reasonable cooperation of Gilead) or settle anf Junird Party Claim.

(c) In the event that the Parties cannot agree astaghplication of Sections 7.1(a) and 7.1(b) abovanly particular
Third Party Claim, the Parties may conduct sepatatenses of such Third Party Claim. Each Partyhér reserves the right to claim
indemnity from the other in accordance with Sedi@ri(a) and 7.1(b) above upon resolution of thaetging claim, notwithstanding the
provisions of Sections 7.1(a) and 7.1(b) aboveireguthe indemnified Party to tender to the indéfying Party the exclusive ability to
defend such Third Party Claim. The indemnifiedty?ahall not compromise or settle any such ThirdyP@laim without the indemnifying
Party’s prior written consent. The indemnifying §ashall not compromise or settle any such ThirdyP@laim for any damages other than
monetary damages without the indemnified Partyigrpwritten consent. No such consent of an indéieahior indemnifying Party shall be
unreasonably withheld.

7.2 Consequential Damages UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WHATSOEVER SHALL EITHERARTY BE LIABLE TO
THE OTHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE, BREACH CGBFTATUTORY DUTY OR OTHERWISE FOR (A) ANY (DIRECT O
INDIRECT) LOSS OF PROFITS, OF PRODUCTION, OF ANTRATED SAVINGS, OF BUSINESS OR GOODWILL; OR (B) FORY
LIABILITY, DAMAGE, COSTS OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND INURRED BY THE OTHER PARTY OF AN INDIRECT OR
CONSEQUENTIAL NATURE, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT AARTY MAY BE REQUIRED TO INDEMNIFY THE OTHER
PARTY UNDER SECTION 7.1 FOR AMOUNTS PAID TO A THIRBARTY.

7.3 Limitation Of Liability
€)) Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients.

0] Patheon shall not be responsible for any loss orag@ to any quantity of API, except where such ¢oss
damage occurs while such materials are locatedcatimeBn’s premises and results from Patheon’s resgtig or intentional misconduct or
failure by Patheon to provide the Processing sesvig accordance with the Patheon Manufacturingp&esbilities, or where Pathef on
a[*] basis as provided in Section 5.6(a). In such onstances, Patheon’s maximum liability shall bewatireed in Section 7.3(a)(jii).

(i) For greater certainty, Gilead acknowledges that tssdamage of API in the course of technologystfiemn
from Gilead to Patheon, or as part of failed retqulg stability or test batches, shall not be rdgdras lost due to the negligence or intentional
misconduct of Patheon unless and to the extenPidteon did not provide the Processing servicaséordance with Patheon Manufactut
Responsibilities. Further, Patheon shall not Ispaasible for any loss or damage to any AP| whech $oss or damage occurs during a batch
implementing a new process or procedure Qevelopment Batch’); provided, however, that both Parties shall agpgior to
commencement of manufacture of a batch, whethdr suc




batch shall be deemed a Development Batch. IPdrées do not agree in advance in writing thavargbatch is a Development batch, then
such batch shall not be deemed to be a DevelopBatoh.

(iii) Patheon’s maximum liability for loss or damage ng guantity of API for any reason whatsoever
including, without limitation, those referred to$ection 7.3(a) (i) and (ii) shall be limited tefH] .

(b) Drug Products. Subject to Sections 5.4(c), 5.6 and 7.1(b), &attshall not be liable nor have any responsibility
for any deficiencies in, or other liabilities asgted with, any Drug Product manufactured by itjuding, without limitation, any deficiencies
or defects with respect to an Excipient which westascertainable by Patheon pursuant to Sectiqo)3the Specifications; or the safety,
efficacy or marketability of such Drug Product ayalistribution thereof.

7.4 Expenses No Party shall be required to pay over to ano#imounts called for under this Article VIl untile final
resolution of the claim, action, suit or proceediram which the right to such payment arose.

ARTICLE VI
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

8.1 Obligation . During the Term of this Agreement and for a pef ten (10) years thereafter, the receivingyP@hie “
Receiving Party”) shall maintain in confidence all Confidentiafdnmation, as defined in Section 8.2 below, andlsitd use, disclose or
grant use of such Confidential Information excepéerpressly authorized by this Agreement. The RexeParty may disclose Confidential
Information, as authorized hereunder, only to trereployees or consultants of the Receiving Party adree to be bound by the terms of
Article VIII. The Receiving Party shall use theigest standard of care which is practical to emshat such employees do not disclose or
make any unauthorized use of Confidential Infororati The Receiving Party shall promptly notify Disclosing Party (as defined in Section
8.2) upon discovery of any unauthorized use oraksce of the Confidential Information.

8.2 Definition . As used in this Agreement, the term “Confiddritiformation” shall mean any information, eitheradling or
disabling, including but not limited to the ternfstlois Agreement, any batch record, any purchaderasr other commercial relationship
between the Parties, know-how, trade secret, relsedata, process, technique, algorithm, prograsigd, drawing, formula, experimental
design or test data relating to any research projark in process, future development, scientifi@nufacturing, marketing, business plan,
financial or personnel matter relating to the disoig party (the Disclosing Party”), its present or future products, sales, supsgjier
customers, employees, investors or business,amgtdnvention that is the property of the Disclgsiarty, whether in oral, written, graphic
electronic form disclosed by or on behalf of theddsing Party under this Agreement. The term fi@@mtial Information” shall include,
without limitation: (i) the information contained the batch records




delivered to Gilead; (ii) any cost information iteld to the Processing of Drug Product, includirgdbst of the Materials or Processing; and
(iii) the Specifications for Drug Product. All Cidential Information (as such term is definedhie tViread Agreement) disclosed pursuant to
the Viread Agreement shall be deemed to be thei@amtfal Information under this Agreement of thes@osing Party or, in the case of
Gilead, of Gilead where the disclosing party wag\Hitiate of Gilead Sciences or Gilead World.

8.3 Exceptions. Each of Patheon and Gilead shall be relieveahgfand all of the obligations under Section 8darding
Confidential Information which: (i) was known byetiReceiving Party prior to receipt hereunder (itbecame so known to the Receiving
Party under a separate agreement of confidentialitie Disclosing Party in which case this exa@pshall not apply); (ii) at the time of
disclosure, was generally available to the puldiiayhich after disclosure hereunder becomes gdperadilable to the public through no fa
attributable to the Receiving Party; or (iii) isrbafter made available for use or disclosure fromthird party having a right to do so.

8.4 Permitted Disclosures. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agneent, each Party may disclose Confidential
Information of the other Party:

@) to the extent and to the persons and entities redjloy an applicable governmental law, rule, retimeor order;
provided, howeve, that the Party required to disclose Confidentitdrmation shall first have given prompt noticethe other Party hereto to
enable it to seek any available exemptions frofimaitations on such disclosure requirement andlgkakonably cooperate in such efforts by
the other Party;

(b) to the extent and to the persons and entities medjliy rules of the National Association of SedesiDealers or
other applicable securities laws, rules or regoreg]

(c) to the extent and to the persons and entities redjfior purposes of making Regulatory Filings foy ®rug
Product;

(d) as necessary to file or prosecute patent applitsitiorosecute or defend litigation or otherwisataith rights or
enforce obligations under this Agreement, but dalthe extent that any such disclosure is necesaady

(e) where such Confidential Information consists ofiieéah batch records, protocols, validation repartechnical
reports, to the extent and to the persons andemsiblely as necessary for the purpose of coirtgodind setting process parameters relating to
Drug Products, including but not limited to disclos by Gilead to its bona fide thighrty supplier(s) of processing services for DrugdRcts
solely as necessary for such purpose, providedathatisclosure under this Section 8.4(e) may baenwenly under an agreement of
confidentiality containing provisions as least ti&sas those in this Article 8.




8.5 Trademarks And Trade Names.

€)) Each Party hereby acknowledges that it does nat,lend shall not acquire, any interest in any efdther Party’s
trademarks or trade names unless otherwise expraged.

(b) Each Party agrees not to use any trade namesdenteaks of the other Party, except as specifiealiyorized by
the other Party in writing both as to the namemarks which may be used and as to the manner amdimence of use.
8.6 Improvements.
(@) Patheon acknowledges and agrees that it has nagtayg Intellectual Property in the current marotdising

process for any of the Drug Products, as set farthe Specifications. The Parties acknowledge Ra@heon, independently or jointly with
Gilead, may develop improvements to the Specificetj inventions and other know-how (including withbmitation data, information,
processes, techniques, methods, and unpatentaklatiions) in the course of fulfilling its obligatis under this Agreement [fhprovements

™). Patheon shall reasonably cooperate with Gileadentifying any potential Improvements in the&essing of Drug Products and agrees to
disclose any such Improvements to Gilead priomplémenting such Improvements in the Processingeoapplicable Drug Product under
this Agreement.

(b) All Improvements that relate solely to any API, dfyof an API, and/or Drug Product (or combination oy &f
the foregoing) shall be and remain the exclusiwperty of Gilead (collectively, theProduct-Specific Improvements”). Patheon hereby
assigns its entire right, title and interest in Fveduct-Specific Inventions to Gilead. Patheaalighke all reasonable steps and execute and
deliver all documents reasonably required for Gil@aevidence or record such assignment. Pathedhaly use in its performance under
this Agreement, employees or consultants of Pathdmnhave agreed in writing to assign the Prodyte8ic Inventions to Patheon.

(c) All Improvements that relate to any AP} an API or Drug Product, but also have applicafi$rthe API,[*] or
Drug Product, (collectively, theBroader Improvements”) shall be and remain the exclusive property ahBan. Patheon hereby grants to
Gilead an irrevocable, nonexclusive, worldwide,alby-free license, with the right to sublicenseadtigh one or more tiers of sublicensees),
under the Broader Improvements to research, deyeiage, have made, use, sell, offer for sale, itngod otherwise commercialize Gilead's
(and its Affiliates’ and licensees’) products thghout the world.

(d) Patheon shall not use any of Patheon’s patentedde secret technology in its performance under th
Agreement, without the prior written consent ofdaill, which consent shall not be unreasonably widhtreunduly delayed. The Parties st
agree, prior to the addition of each subsequerduRteSpecific Appendix, whether Patheon shall ugesaich patented or trade secret
technology in the Processing for the given DrugdBod, and will set forth their agreement in sucbdeict-Specific Appendix.




ARTICLE IX
TERM; TERMINATION

9.1 Term . This Agreement shall commence on the Effectiageland shall remain in effect until the terminatid all
Product-Specific Appendices, unless terminatedexdsy one of the Parties as provided herein (therm ”).  The initial term for each
Product-Specific Appendix is set forth in Exhibito€such Product-Specific Appendix (thénitial Term ") and shall automatically continue
for successive one (1) calendar year terms, uei#ssr Party gives written notice to the other fPafftits intention to terminate such Product-
Specific Appendix at leagt] months prior to the end of the then-current term.

9.2 Surviving Obligations . Termination or expiration of this Agreement $imait: (a) affect any other rights of either Party
which may have accrued up to the date of such tetioin or expiration; or (b) relieve Gilead of aisligation to pay to Patheon sums due in
respect of Drug Product delivered prior to termimrabr expiration of this Agreement. The provisaf Sections 3.6, 3.7, 6.2, 9.2, and 9.5,
and Articles V, VI, VII, VIII, and X shall survivéhe termination or expiration of this Agreement.

9.3 Termination .

€)) Either Party may terminate this Agreement uponteminotice to the other Party if the other Partyauts any
material breach of this Agreement which the braagiarty fails to cure withiff] days following written notice from the nonbreachiParty
specifying such breach.

(b) Either Party may terminate this Agreement, effectmmediately upon the giving of written noticethie other
Party shall file a petition for bankruptcy, or i@ adjudicated bankrupt, or shall take advantddke insolvency laws of any state of the
United States, or shall make an assignment fobéimefit of creditors, or shall have a receiver, thheappointed by private instrument or
court officer, appointed for its property.

(c) Any termination or expiration of this Agreement bimat affect any outstanding obligations or paytsetue
hereunder prior to such termination or expiratioar, shall it prejudice any other remedies thatRheties may have under this Agreement.

(d) Patheon may terminate this Agreement ufgbrprior written notice if Gilead assigns pursuanStxtion 10.9 any
of its rights under this Agreement to an assigesel(ding any Gilead Affiliates) that is, in theiojn of Patheon acting reasonably, not a
credit worthy substitute for Gilead, is a competitd Patheon within the field of pharmaceutical taot manufacturing services or
pharmaceutical contract development services, tir whom Patheon has had prior materially negatiwress relations (e.g., Patheon ha
encountered uncured instances of non-payment ofiatsalue under a contract or other uncured matemégches) and has good cause to
believe that any future business relations witthsagsignee will be similarly negative. Notwithstamgthe foregoing, Patheon shall continue
to supply the Drug Products pursuant to the terhtli® Agreement until such time as Gilead is dblestablish




adequate alternative supply (i.e., its alternasiwgplier is regulatorily approved); provided thaiGilead shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to promptly establish adequate alternasiveply and (ii) Gilead remains liable hereunder.

(e) Further Gilead Termination Rights.

() If a Delivery Default has occurred pursuant to Bech.3(d) and Patheon and Gilead cannot reach a
satisfactory Amending Agreement pursuant to Sedi@6e) within[*] days, then Gilead, at its option, may either teatdrthis Agreement
upon[*] days written notice to Patheon (in which case Rattshall have no right to cure the breach undeglginch conditions) or refer the
issue of the terms of such Amending Agreementndibg arbitration pursuant to Schedule D.

(i) If a Delivery Default has occurred subsequent té\arending Agreement being made by Patheon and
Gilead which include§] , then Gilead may either terminate the Agreememéquire Patheon 3] in accordance with the Amending
Agreement. These remedies are mutually exclusivedpect to any Delivery Default and cannot berired concurrently or sequentially in
respect of the same Delivery Default.

9.4 Product Discontinuation/Withdrawal . During the Term of this Agreement Gilead shatlide at least (d)f] advance
notice if it intends to no longer order a Drug Rroddue to that Drug Product’s discontinuationhie tnarket and (H¥] advance notice if a
Drug Product is withdrawn from the market pursuardn order by the applicable Regulatory Authofifpon the expiration of the applicable
notice period in this Section 9.4, this Agreeménalisterminate solely with respect to such Drugdeia.

9.5 Obligations on Termination.

(@) If this Agreement expires or is terminated in whaoién part for any reason other than a materitdwéeby
Patheon of its obligations under this Agreemenlgdsi shall:

0] purchase the Inventory, at such cost that Pathadrekpended to acquire such Inventory, applicabthe
Drug Product which was purchased, produced or migied by Patheon in contemplation of filling Firnnd®rs or in accordance with Section
2.3 prior to notice of termination being given;

(i) purchase all undelivered Drug Product which were®ssed and/or packaged pursuant to a Firm Ort
the price in effect at the time the Firm Order \phsced; and

(iii) satisfy the purchase price payable pursuant toe®ath noneancelable orders with suppliers of Materi
provided such orders were made by Patheon in pdian Firm Orders or in accordance with Section 2.3




(b) If this Agreement is terminated as a result of aemal default by Patheon of its obligations unttes Agreement,
Gilead agrees to purchase such of the items refféoran (a), (b) and (c) above as it determine8ngaeasonably, that can be used by Gilead.

(c) The provisions of Article 5 will survive with resgieto any purchases of Drug Product pursuant toSkeiction 9.5.
ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Recall. In the event that Drug Product is recalled at tBilead is required to disseminate informatiagareling such Drug
Products, Gilead shall so notify Patheon and, ater ithan may be required to permit Gilead to reaeh obligations, Patheon shall provide
Gilead, at Gilead's cost, with such assistanceoimection with such recall as may reasonably beastgd by Gilead. If a Drug Product is
recalled due to Patheon’s negligence or failuneetidorm in accordance with the Patheon ManufacguResponsibilities, Patheon shall be
responsible for the costs reasonably requiredfecesuch recall.

10.2 Insurance. Each Party shall maintain comprehensive getiafality insurance, including blanket contractliability
insurance covering the obligations of that Partglarrthis Agreement through the Term of this Agreetnaad for[*] years thereafter, which
insurance shall afford limits of not less tHahdollars ($[*] ), for each occurrence, in the aggregate for badjlyry liability, personal injury
liability, products liability, property damage li¢ity, contractual liability and completed operat®liability. Each Party will provide the other
with a certificate of insurance evidencing the aband showing the name of the issuing companypdliey number, the effective date, the
expiration date and the limits of liability. EaPlarty will provide at leagt] days’ written notice to the other Party of a calatin of, or a
material change in, the insurance of the firstyart

10.3 Independent Parties. The Parties are not employees, partners, of tegeesentatives of the other Party for any puepos
Neither Party shall have the authority to entep aaty contracts in the name of or on behalf ofatver Party

10.4 Governing Law . This Agreement is made in accordance with, &adl e governed and construed under the lawsef, t
State of New York, excluding its choice of law mleBoth parties hereby consent to the exclusitisdiction and venue of the state and
federal courts of competent subject matter jurisoliclocated within the State of New York, and weaany defenses they may have to the
personal jurisdiction and venue of such courts.

10.5 Notice. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreementpatices, including notice of address change, redur permitted
to be given under this Agreement shall be in wgitimd deemed to have been received: (a) when egtdihand delivered; (b) four (4) days
after being sent by first class U.S. mail, postaggpaid; (c) one (1) business day after being lsgmivernight courier; (d) one (1) business
after facsimile transmission to the number(s) belith receipt confirmed; or (e) one (1) busineasy dfter electronic mail transmission to




the email address(es) below, with receipt confirnie@ach case addressed to the address set &dotlv.b
If to Gilead:

Gilead Sciences, Inc.

333 Lakeside Drive

Foster City, CA 94044

Attention: Vice President and General Counsel
Facsimile: [*]

Email Address[*]

With a copy to:

Gilead Sciences, Inc.

333 Lakeside Drive

Foster City, CA 94044

Attention: Director, Manufacturing
Facsimile: [*]

Email Address:[*]

If to Patheon:

Patheon Inc.

7070 Mississauga Road, Suite 350
Mississauga, Ontario L5N 7J8
Attention: President

Facsimile: [*]

Email Address[*]

10.6 Severability . In the event any provision of this Agreemerttédd to be invalid or unenforceable, the valid ofoeceable
portion thereof and the remaining provisions o$ thgreement will remain in full force and effect.

10.7 Waiver . Any waiver (express or implied) by either Pastyany breach of this Agreement shall not constimivaiver of
any other or subsequent breach.

10.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including without limitation tlsehedules, appendices and the exhibits attached
hereto) and the Viread Agreement constitutes thieeefinal, complete and exclusive agreement betwihie Parties and supersedes all
previous agreements or representations, writteralr with respect to the subject matter of thisegnent. This Agreement may not be
modified or amended except in writing signed byuly duthorized representative of each Party. Asmgntor condition in any order,
confirmation




or other document furnished by Gilead or Patheoitlwis in any way inconsistent with the terms settf herein is hereby expressly rejected.

10.9 Nonassignability: Binding on Successors Except in connection with any sale of all or stalntially all of either Party’s
assets, whether by merger or otherwise, any atehgstsignment of the rights or delegation of tHgations under this Agreement shall be
void without the prior written consent of the nosigaing Party. In the case of any permitted assignt or transfer of or under this
Agreement, this Agreement shall be binding upou,iaare to the benefit of, the successors, and pearassigns of the Parties hereto.

10.10 Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be liable to the other terfailure to perform any of its obligations undeis
Agreement, except for payment obligations, during period in which such performance is delayedceodered impracticable or impossible
due to circumstances beyond its reasonable comuabliding without limitation earthquakes, govermta regulations, riots, wars, acts of
terrorism, fires, floods, storms, interruption apgly of API (to the extent beyond such Party’ssaeable control), Excipients and
Components, interruption of or delay in transpastafto the extent beyond such Party’s reasonatni¢ral), civil disorder, acts of God,
defective equipment (to the extent beyond suchyRBarasonable control), lack of or inability totalm fuel, power or Materials (to the extent
beyond such Party’s reasonable control), or compéavith any order or regulation of any governmeartity acting within color of right,
provided that the Party experiencing the delay mitymotifies the other Party of the delay. Spieaily excluded from this provision are the
following circumstances that interfere, delay arder impossible the ability of Patheon to performy af its obligations under this Agreeme
(a) strike, lockout, or work or labor slowdownsPattheon’s Facility(ies), (b) governmental actiomvtich Patheon’s response is not
reasonable, and (c) shutdowns due to Patheonisdaib make reasonable efforts to comply with gorent orders or regulations. With
respect to any of the specifically excluded circtanses in the foregoing sentence, Patheon shatigitp inform Gilead of any such
circumstance, its extent and duration, and anyribf Patheon to perform hereunder due to su@xelnded circumstance shall constitute a
breach of this Agreement.

10.11 Publicity . Neither Party will make any announcement noepffublic statement concerning the existence angef this
Agreement without the consent of the other Pantgept as required by law. Notwithstanding the doiag sentence, Patheon may, without
Gilead’s consent, disclose in presentations to groupsstorgsonly of current or good faith potential irsters or in small group meetings w
groups consisting only of only current or goodHaibtential inventors that Gilead is a client offie@n, but Patheon may not disclose any
specific Drug Products or other products that ar@re not manufactured for or supplied to Gileadmy other specific services that are or are
not performed for Gilead.

10.12 Captions. The Parties agree that the headings in the Aggatare used for the convenience of the Partilysamd are not
intended to be used in the interpretation of thee&gent.




10.13 Reference to Patheon Drug Product shall be marketed without labetrefice to Patheon except to the extent required by
law, in which case any label reference shall beatheon as a manufacturer only.

10.14 Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in counterpattstive same force and effect as if each of theatigries
had executed the same instrument.




10.15 Currency . Unless otherwise indicated, all monetary amoargsexpressed in this Agreement in the lawfulengy of the
United States of America.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have executed this Agreement asedEftfective Date.

GILEAD WORLD MARKETS, LIMITED PATHEON INC.
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:




SCHEDULE A

YIELD CALCULATION SCHEDULE

1. Yield-Related Definitions:

(@) “ Actual Yield " shall mean, for a given API in each time peribd[t] .

(b) “ [*] Percentage” shall mean the percentage of {ii Yield set out in Exhibit C of the Product-Spec#ippendix hereto
for the corresponding Drug Product.

(c) “[*] Yield " shall mean, for a given API, tHg Yield for such API, less thgg] .

(d) “[*] " shall mean, for a given API in each time perithgy total amount of that AR1] the relevant Drug Product during

such time period. Thg] excludes AP[*] in Drug Product that is properly rejected underti®acs.4. For clarity, th§] of a given API
includes quantities of such AP delivered during the applicable time period undect®n 7.3(b).

(e) “[*] " shall mean, for a given API in each time peritheg total quantity of such AR1] is calculated by adding tHg of
the applicable APJ*] during the applicable time period to tfi¢ API for such Drug Product held at the beginninghef such period;}] API
held at thg*] Yield ” shall mean, for a given API in each time peritheg end of such period.

® “[*] Yield " shall mean, for a given API in each time perithtg[*] in Section 3 below in this Yield Calculation Schidu

2. Yield-Related Reports:Within [*] days after the end of each calendar quarter dtined erm of this Agreement, Patheon will
submit to Gilead a report showing for each DrugdBo (a) all API received during each calendar garafb) the quantities of each API held
in inventory, (c) all API contained in work-in-pregss and incorporated in finished Drug Product (iditig samples) as of the end of each
month of such quarter and (d) the quantities ohdawg Product shipped during each month of suertqu The report shall also indicate
actual conversion ratios experienced during ealdndar month of such quarter.

3. Setting the [*] Yield: Promptly after (and in any event, no more tfthrdays after) Patheon has completdt] anumber of batches
of a particular Drug Product at a given Facilityguant to this Agreement (theEvaluation Batches”), as set forth in the Product-Specific
Appendix, the Parties shall determinglaYield and thg*] Percentage for such Drug Product. Sfithrield shall be (a) th§] Yield for the
Evaluation Batches (excluding any failed batchégypdd by the number of Evaluation Batcigs, multiplied by (b) one hundred (100). The
[*] Percentage shall be determinedfjy.

4, Calculation of [*] Yield for a given Drug Product:

[ Yield =[] o x 100




5. Calculation of [*] Yield for a Given Drug Product:

[*] Yield = ]

6. Patheoris[*] Yield: Once g*] Yield has been set with respect to a given Drugl@et if the[*] Yield for a delivery of Drug
Product*] the applicablg*] Yield for that Year, then Patheon shall[lefor [*] pursuant to Section 5.6(a) for tfi¢ based on the following
calculation:

C1=010101 01




SCHEDULE B

QUALITY AGREEMENT(S)

QUALITY AGREEMENT ON THE TASKS AND DIVISION OF RESP ONSIBILITIES

Defined roles and responsibilities of Patheon aitela@ are referenced in the attached agreemesttaf January 1, 2003, as may be
amended thereto from time to time through mutudttemw agreement of the Parties.




SCHEDULE C-1

FORM OF PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT A to APPENDIX [*] —[DRUG NAME]

DRUG SUBSTANCE, EXCIPIENT AND COMPONENT SPECIFICATI ONS AND TESTING for

All API, Excipient and Component testing shall efprmed in accordance with the following Specificas, as may be amended from time
to time by mutual written agreement of the Parties:

DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATION

APL

Excipients

Components

[*] to any entity other than Gilead without Gilead'sopmritten consent}

1




SCHEDULE C-2

FORM OF FINISHED PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND TESTING REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT B TO APPENDIX [*] [DRUG NAME]

1




1. Launch Supplies

Pricing for packaged

SCHEDULE C-3

FORM OF PRICING AND API SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT C TO APPENDIX [*] [DRUG NAME]

prepareceadiog to Kg batch sizes in preparationléamch are established according to the

schedule below. This pricing reflects initial pagkng as unlabeled bottles followed by subsequarling and cartoning with

inserts.

Minimum Order Quantity (units)
Run Quantity (units)
Price p/unit

USA USA USA
Kg Kg Kg
Brite Stock Brite Stock Brite Stock
30's 30's 30's
Bottles Bottles Bottles

[ [ [

Prices quoted in USD

1




Pricing for packaged are establishexbrding to the schedule below. This pricindgea$ all manufacturing, primary

2. [*] Product Pricing and [*] Product Pricing:
packaging and secondary packaging as requiredhégt]t .
Pricing for kg Batch Size
[*]
iy _
Minimum order quantity (Batche
Pricing for kg Batch Size
[*]
] .
Minimum order quantity (Batche
Conditions:
3. Gilead's Actual Standard API Cost for 200(*):
4. Patheoris Annual API Cap:
5. Territory:
6. Facility(ies):
7. Yearly Minimum Volume for 200(*):
8. [*] Percentage for 200(*):
9. Number of Evaluation Batches to Set [*] Yield:
10. [*] Yield for 200(*):
11. [*] Yield for 200(*):
12. Appendix Effective Date:

13.

Initial Term:

Price per 3Cs
Bottle in USD




SCHEDULE D

ARBITRATION

€)) Referable Issue. Only the issue of the terms of an Amending Agrest under Sections 5.3(e) and 9.3(e)(i)
( “Referable Issue”) may be submitted for resolution and finally detered under Schedule D. No other issues or dispuising under this
Agreement, shall be resolved as set forth in thise8ule D.

(b) Finality of Decision. The resolution of a Referable Issue made putdoahis Schedule D shall be a final
resolution and shall not be subsequently reviewab]asticiable in a court of law.

(c) Selection of Industry Expert. Within [*] days after Gilead refers a Referable Issue forludea under this
Schedule D, each Party shall propose one (1) iddali(i) having at least ten (10) years of sigmifitmanagement level experience with
respect to manufacturing operations in the bioplasutical industry, (ii) that is not directly odinectly affiliated with either Party or with
either Party’s Affiliates, sublicensees or busingsgners, and (iii) that does not have any dioeéhdirect interest of any kind in the
resolution of the Referable Issue (a person hasurady characteristics,“®ualified Individual” ). If the Parties are able to agree as to one of
the Qualified Individuals proposed by a Party teotee the Referable Issue witHi} days after the date by which the Parties’ notioes t
identify Qualified Individuals are due, then thargon shall be th8ndustry Expert” . If the Parties are unable to agree as to symrson
within such[*] day period, then withif¥] days after expiration of su¢f day period, the two (2) Qualified Individuals chnd®y the Parties
shall select another Qualified Individual beforeowhsuch Referable Issue shall be resolved, ang#rabn shall be tH#ndustry Expert”

(d) Resolution of Referable Issue Within [*] days after the selection of the Industry Experspant to Section (c)
this Schedule D, each Party shall submit to therofarty and to the Industry Expert a single, cahensive, written proposal for the
Amending Agreement, including without limitatioretiproposed Amending Agreement itself and any writtaterials in support of such
proposal, with the entire submission of a Partyta@xceed*] pages in a format substantially similar to this égment. Withif*] days of
the submission deadline for the proposals, thedirgiExpert shall adopt in its entirety the singteposal of one of the Parties that the
Industry Expert determines to be the more reasenaioposal. The Industry Expert shall have no@itthto combine elements from one
Party’s proposal with elements from the other Pauptyoposal or to alter the terms of either Parpreposal. The Industry Expert shall
determine the reasonableness of the Parties’ patgasth respect to their terms based upon how thely reflect the following principles: (i)
acceptability in the biopharmaceutical manufacsector as a commercially reasonable solutiohdspecific issues between the Parties;
(i) preservation of the Parties’ ongoing manufaetand supply relationship for the Drug Produdtig;gbility under the proposal of each
Party, through the use of commercially reasonatftets, to attain the same economic profitabilitgduld attain through performance in
compliance with the original agreement; (iv) likelod that the proposal

1




will incentivize each Party to perform its obligais as reflected in the original Agreement; (v)imiaation of interruption of supply, prompt
correction of prior shortages in supply and cossisy of supply; and (vi) ease of administration anglementation. Promptly after selection
of a proposal by the Industry Expert, the Partiedl£xecute and deliver the Amending Agreementiohed in the proposal selected by the
Industry Expert. Such Amending Agreement shalleh@troactive effect to the date of the Notice gipersuant to Section 5.3(c).

(e) Interim Performance; Costs. Until execution and delivery of an Amending Agingent pursuant to Section (d)
this Schedule D, the Parties shall continue togoerftheir obligations under this Agreement in géaith and make any applicable payments
accordingly. The Parties shall bear all expenséscasts of the Industry Expert incurred pursuarhis Schedule D equally.

2




APPENDIX 1 - TENOFOVIR DISOPROXIL FUMARATE

EXHIBIT A
DRUG SUBSTANCE, EXCIPIENT AND COMPONENT SPECIFICATI ONS

All API, Excipient and Component testing shall lefprmed in accordance with the following Specificas, as may be amended from time
to time by mutual written agreement of the Parties:

CURRENT
GILEAD PART CURRENT GILEAD

DESCRIPTION NUMBER SPECIFICATION

API

M [ [

Excipients

[*] [*]

[*] [*]

[*] [*]

[*] [*]

[*] [*]

[*] [*]

[*] [*]

[*] [l

Primary Components

[*] [*] [*]
[*] [*] [*]
[*] [*] [*]
[*] [*] [*]

']




APPENDIX 1 -TENOFOVIR DISOPROXIL FUMARATE

EXHIBIT B

FINISHED PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND TESTING REQUIRE MENTS FOR
TENOFOVIR DISOPROXIL FUMARATE TABLETS

1. Specifications to conform witft] , effective[*] and[*] effective[*] , as may be amended from time to time through nhwttitten
agreement of the parties.

2. Testing to be performed by Patheon in accordantetive testing referenced in the above specifinagcording to the standard
test methods listed or mutually qualified equivalerethods and as may be amended thereto from tirtieé through mutual writte
agreement of the parties.




APPENDIX 1 —TENOFOVIR DISOPROXIL FUMARATE

[

[

[

[]
[]
[

[]
[]
[

[

[]
[]
[

EXHIBIT C
PRICING AND APl SCHEDULE
FOR 2003
1. Launch Supplies: [*]
2. Product Pricing:
1
[
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*]
1
[
[*] [*]

[




Overall Manufacturing and Packaging Assumptions

a) Labeled packaging configuration includgg:

b) Unlabeled packaging configuration includg$:

¢) Bulk packaging configuration include§*]

d) Unit pricing is based off] . A[*] will apply if [*] .

e) Unit pricing is based oft] . A [*] will apply if [*] .

f)  The minimum order quantity (Batches) can be padtagf] . The[*] campaign caift] .
g) Conditions:

I

Sub Lot Packaging[*] Market Assumptions

a) Gilead is[*] the packaging of a batdH .

b) For markets using the same packaging formatg;}theost per unit applies witff] as noted. This requires inserts, cartons andd
to be essentially the same with text differences.

c) Order quantitie$*] for each label will apply. The costs associatdlie extra plates and dies §fe.

d) [*] are applicable for each time that ftie. No more thaii*] per batch will be allowed.

e) For packaging configurations that represent difietabel, carton, or insert sizes or physical agunfations, a separate quote will be
issued.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Gilead’s Actual Standard API Cost for 2003:

Patheor’s Annual API Cap:

[
[

']

[ [y

'] [

Territory:
Facility(ies):

'] ']
']

[']
']

Yearly Minimum Volume: The Yearly Minimum Volume for Tenofovir Disoproxumarate shall be the lesser of:

@) [ ;or
(b) [

[*] Percentage for 2003:

Number of Evaluation Batches to Set [*] Yield:

[*] Yield for 2003:
[*] Yield for 2003:
[] Yield:

Appendix Effective Date:

Initial Term:

]

]

[*]

[*]

]

January 1, 200

January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2!




APPENDIX 2 — ADEFOVIR DIPIVOXIL

EXHIBIT A
DRUG SUBSTANCE, EXCIPIENT AND COMPONENT SPECIFICATI ONS

All API, Excipient and Component testing shall lefprmed in accordance with the following Specificas, as may be amended from time
to time by mutual written agreement of the Parties:

DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATION
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[] [*]
[] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]

Primary Components

[*] [*] [*]

[*] [*] [*]

[*]

[*] [*] [*]

']




APPENDIX 2 — ADEFOVIR DIPIVOXIL

EXHIBIT B
FINISHED PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND TESTING REQUIRE MENTS

1. Specifications to conform witff] , effective[*] , as may be amended from time to time through nhuttiten agreement of the
parties.

2. Testing to be performed by Patheon in accordantetive testing referenced in the above specifinatgcording to the standard
test methods listed or mutually qualified equivalerethods and as may be amended thereto from tirimé through mutual writte
agreement of the parties.




APPENDIX 2 — ADEFOVIR DIPIVOXIL

EXHIBIT C

PRICING AND API SCHEDULE

FOR 2003

1. Launch Supplies: [*]
2. Pricing[*]

['] ['] ['] ['] ['] [']
[*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*]
[*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*]
[*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*]
[*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*] [*]

[*]
Pricing [*]
[] []

[*] [*] [*]




Overall Manufacturing and Packaging Assumptions

a) Labeled packaging configuration includ€gs}

b) Unlabeled packaging configuration includg$:

¢) Bulk packaging configuration include§*]

d) Unit pricing is based off] . A[*] will apply if [*] .

e) Unit pricing is based oft] . A [*] will apply if [*] .

f)  The minimum order quantity (Batches) can be padtagf] . The minimum order quantity (Batches) f¢r .
g) Conditions:

I

Sub Lot Packaging Market Assumptions

a) Gilead is[*] the packaging of a bat¢H

b) For markets using the same packaging formatg;}theost per unit applies witff] as noted. This requires inserts, cartons andd
to be essentially the same with text differences.

c) Order quantitie$*] for each label will apply. The costs associatdlie extra plates and dies §fe.

d) [*] are applicable for each time that ftie. No more thaii*] per batch will be allowed.

e) For packaging configurations that represent difietabel, carton, or insert sizes or physical apunfations, a separate quote will be
issued.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Gilead's Actual Standard Cost for 2003: [*]

Annual API Cap [*]:

[

[

[*] [*]
Territory:

Facility(ies):

Yearly Minimum Volume

[*] Percentage for 2003

Number of Evaluation Batches to Set Target Yield

[*] Yield for 2003:
[*] Yield for 2003:
[*] Yield:

Appendix Effective Date:

Initial Term:

']

[
']

[']
']

']

]
]
]
]
January 1, 200

January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2




Exhibit 10.67

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAIBE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

Toll Manufacturing Agreement

by and among

Gilead World Markets, Ltd
Queensgate House
South Church Street
PO Box 1234 GT
Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

Gilead Sciences, Inc.
333 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, CA 94404
USA

and

ALTANA Pharma Oranienburg GmbH
Lehnitzstr. 70-98
16515 Oranienburg
Germany

1




TOLL MANUFACTURING AGREEMENT

This Amended And Restated Clinical and Commercigdiy Agreement (the “Agreement”) made and effectig of the 01 day of August,
2003 (the “Effective Date”) among, on the one hdaitkad World Markets, Ltd., a Cayman Compang(tead World "), whose registered
address is Queensgate House, South Church Stréet3&x 1234GT, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, aled&Sciences, Inc, a Delaware
corporation (“Gilead Sciences) with its principal office located at 333 Lakesirive, Foster City, CA 94404, USA (Gilead Woriada
Gilead Sciences collectively,GILEAD "), and, on the other hand, Altana Pharma Oraniem@mbH, a German corporationAPO ")

having its principal place of business at Lehnitesde 70-98, 16515 Oranienburg, Germany. Gilead\®@l are sometimes referred to herein
individually as a “Party” and collectively as thedrties”.

WHEREAS, Gilead Sciences will require the manufextand supply of Drug Products (as hereinafteméeli for clinical use in the Territory
and Gilead World will require the manufacture angy of Drug Products for commercial distributiand sale in the Territory; and

WHEREAS, GILEAD is a US biopharmaceutical compamgttdiscovers, develops and commercialises thetiapéa advance the care of
patients suffering from life threatening diseasesldwide.

WHEREAS, GILEAD has developed the API tenofoviratieoxil fumarate (API, as hereinafter defined) &iad filed patents thereto and
commercializes the finished product under the sl Viread® either by itself or through its Affiies on a world-wide basis;

WHEREAS, GILEAD presently supplies thd=inished Product” (as hereinafter defined) produced by a Third Yaranufacturer (Third
Party Manufacturer ") and its UK located affiliate GILEAD Sciences énhational Ltd. Cambridge is the holder of the Maithkg Approval
(Approval No.:;[*] ) pursuant to EU regulation 2309/93/EEC (as amendedny implementation of it under the laws of aeljevant EU
member state where GILEAD markets the Finished tad

WHEREAS, APO is the holder of the Manufacturingheiization pursuant to Directive 75/319/EEC (as adeel) and any implementation of
it under the laws of Germany for the manufactuohgroducts at its site §t] and it is interested in Manufacturing the Bulk Rrod(as
hereinafter defined) for GILEAD;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties thereby agree as fatl
DEFINITIONS
(A) " Affiliate ” of a Party shall mean a corporation or other ooafe entity that owns, is owned by or is under imam direct or indirect
ownership with such Party, where “own”, “owned” dindvnership” refer to ownership of over fifty perdg50%) of the voting shares or
other voting interest of such entity or the abititycontrol or direct management of such entity.
CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED

AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAIBE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.




(B) *“ API " shall mean the active pharmaceutical ingredienofovir disoproxil fumarate to be used by APOha Manufacture of the Bulk
Product;

(©) “I*I" shall mean, for the API, tH&] value identified as such chedule “H” that shall be subject to credit or reimbursemendBYD
pursuant to Section 2[7] .

(D) * Bulk Product(s) " shall mean the API in its finished form as coat&llet(s) containing 300 mg of API in bulk, unldéd after
completion of all processing stages up to, buimatiding, final packaging as identified 8thedule “A” hereto, having the
Specifications contained fchedule “C” attached hereto;

(E) “ cGMPs” shall mean current Good Manufacturing Practiegifations promulgated by the EU Regulatory Agenoiethe FDA, in
respect of medicinal products as well as by theliQuagreement, each in their respective currenmsians;

(F) * Components” means, collectively, raw materials, excipientsl @amgredients, required to be used in order to pcedhe Bulk Product
in accordance with the Specifications, other thenAPI, as set forth iBchedule “D”;

(G) “ Confidential Information ” shall have the meaning given such term in Sectfon.

(H) “ Controlled " means, with respect to a patent, know-how oratimer item of intellectual property, owned by @elised to a Party with
the ability to sublicense it to the other Partyatordance with this Agreement, without violatindoceaching any agreement with any
third party.

(D “ EU Regulatory Agency” shall mean the Regulatory Agency of the Europdaion or their national equivalents;

(J) “ FDA " shall mean the U.S. Food and Drug Administratimnany successor agency.

(K) * Finished Product(s)” shall mean the fully packaged Bulk Product withn@cessary product information leaflets, i.e. SR@he
saleable form as approved by the relevant regyl@othority in the Territory

(L) “ Know-how " shall mean the information and know-how neces$aryhe Manufacturing of the Bulk Product to theleision,
however, of the manufacturing know-how for the API;

(M) “Inventory " means all inventories of Components and worlptineess produced or held by APO in connection thighManufacture
the Bulk Product in accordance with the Specifaragi but, for greater clarity, does not include Alfd;

(N) “ Manufacture " or “ Manufacturing ” shall mean the converting of API supplied by GAIE or its appointee into Bulk Product by
APO at the Manufacturing Location, including thguied analyses and testing of API and such Butid®cts, and the bulk packing and
dispatch labelling of such Bulk Product for shipmenGILEAD or its appointee, to the exclusion & tmanufacture of APl by APO;
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(O) “ Manufacturing Location " shall mean the Manufacturing location for the IBBroduct of APO af*] ;

(P) *“ Marketing Authorization " means the authorization to market Finished Produa jurisdiction issued by the appropriate Raturdy
Agency in such jurisdiction.

(Q) " Release Document$ means the documentation specified pursuant to@ecH.2.3 and 2.2.4 of the Quality Agreement thaéguire
for GILEAD to release a batch of Bulk Product amtharize shipment thereof.

(R) “ Quality Agreement” shall mean the agreement on the pharmaceutispbresibilities of the Parties attached to this &gnent as
Schedule “B”, with Gilead Sciences performing responsibilifiesitself and on behalf of Gilead World.

(S) “ Specification(s)” shall mean all Manufacturing, (primary) packagingality assurance and release specificationsgards to Bulk
Products set forth iBchedule “C” and in regards to API set forth 8thedule “D” attached hereto; such Specifications shall be sgpl
by GILEAD at its sole responsibility;

(T) “ Term " shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4;

(U) “ Territory " shall mean all the countries of the world in whiGILEAD has notified APO that Finished Productalshe marketed;

(V) “ Year” shall meanthe twelve month period commencinghacase of the first Year (regarding the remaimmomnths) of this
Agreement, on the Effective Date, and thereaftemroencing upon completion of the immediately presgdiear;

(W) “ Working Day(s) " shall mean any working day (with the exclusiorSaturday and Sunday) on which banks are normakydn
USA, and in Germany for the transaction of business

SECTION 1
BULK PRODUCT SUPPLY COMMITMENTS

1.1 General. During the term of this Agreement, APO shall Mamtfiae and supply to GILEAD the Bulk Product at griees (the “
Supply Price(s)”) indicated inSchedule “A” hereto (such prices being subject to adjustmeat@ordance with the terms hereof), and
GILEAD agrees to purchase from APO the Bulk Proglustibject to all other terms and conditions of fgreement, at the Supply Prices
provided for inSchedule “A” .

1.2 Acceptance of Manufacturing Location by RegulatoryAgencies in GeneralSuch supply and purchase obligations shall be
conditional upon acceptance of the Manufacturingdtion by the regulatory authorities of the TemitdVith the effective date d¢f] , the
EMEA has granted APO a manufacturing authorizatiomanufacture the Bulk Product.
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1.3 Acceptance of Manufacturing Location by RegulatoryAgencies of the European CommunityAPO represents and warrants that
it is the holder of the Manufacturing authorizatfmrsuant to Directive 75/319/EEC (as amended)agrydmplementation of it under the la
of Germany for the manufacturing of certain solidipnaceutical products at its Manufacturing Loagatio

1.4 Manufacturing of Bulk Product for the United States of America . GILEAD may elect to have APO Manufacturing BulioBuct
also for the United States, upon which terms amdlitions are to be agreed. In such caS8_EAD shall inform APO of such intention in
writing and duly in advance; the Parties shall detee the possible consequences of the Manufaofutes Bulk Product for the US market,
and they shall initiate the necessary steps toyapghe FDA for approval of Manufacture of the B&#Hroduct to be placed on the USA ma
and to comply with the applicable laws and regalai

SECTION 2
SUPPLY OF API

2.1 Supply of API by GILEAD. GILEAD or an Affiliate of GILEAD shall supply, orreange for the supply by their contract
manufacturers of, API to APO for the ManufacturdBatk Product and APO shall Manufacture Bulk Pradexclusively from API supplied
by GILEAD, an Affiliate of GILEAD, or a contract nmmaifacturer thereof. In respect of the supply of ARé Parties agree as follows:

2.2 Timely Supply. GILEAD undertakes by itself or through an assigttetmely supply API directly to the Manufacturihgcation as
further provided hereinafter. APO shall be undeduaty to Manufacture the Bulk Products (includiradidation batches), nor meet delivery
dates provided in the Binding Orders, to the exteat GILEAD does not supply API in a timely fashjavhether said supply is provided by
GILEAD or a permitted appointee of GILEAD.

2.3 Conditions of Supply and Delivery.GILEAD undertakes to supply API to AP[E] . All the API provided by GILEAD shall be
properly packed, marked, sealed and air-shiffjefincoterms 2000) in accordance with GILEAD’s shigpiand packing instructions and
with APQO'’s instructions for delivery, provided thatt GILEAD's request and expense, APO will providasonable assistance in arranging for
any necessary import clearance and licenses. DgloféAP| shall be made at the Manufacturing Lozatbetween 9.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m.
during Working Days.

2.4 Certification and Incoming Inspection of API. The API delivered by GILEAD or its permitted appigie shall be in compliance
with the Specifications and any other legal requigats and shall be accompanied by a Certificafenafysis and a Certificate of Complian
GILEAD will include the information about gross wét, net weight and tara on the label of each bafrAPI. APO agrees to inspect the
API delivered and to check it solely for identitgyantity and conformity with the bill of lading anak far as reasonably possible, any dam
suffered during shipping and any other obvious ctefef the API delivered withift] following receipt. APO will check the gross weigtit
each barrel within sudh] period and will confirm the net weight of each lehin the course of performing the APl weighing gess for
production orders.

2.5. Failure of API to satisfy Incoming Inspection.If the API delivered by GILEAD or its
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permitted appointee to APO fails the inspectionsdaarried out during tH&] following receipt as provided under Section 2.4wehaue to
discrepancy from the bill of lading due to lackiedéntity or a difference in gross weight, or to pioal damages or other obvious defects, /
undertakes to notify GILEAD without undue delaywnting. GILEAD shall, upon receiving such writt@otice from APO, use commercially
reasonable efforts to replace the rejected APbaa as reasonably possible; in any event, the gians of Section 2.9 shall apply.

2.6. Title to API. All API (whether being held for Manufacture or lmetprocess of Manufacture) supplied to APO by GIDE# by a
permitted appointee of GILEAD in accordance witts thgreement shall at all times be and remain tiopgrty of GILEAD, and shall be
treated by APO in all respects as such, and skatdred and handled in a manner to prevent consdion by other drugs and chemicals and
in accordance with GILEAD's instructions as setlidn Schedule “D” hereto, which GILEAD may update from time to timghnAPO’s
approval, not to be unreasonably withheld.

2.7 API Lost or Destroyed. APO shall compensate GILEAD for any API lost ortdeged during the storage of API, or during the
Manufacture or storage of the Bulk Product, whitlamny Yeaf*] which will be set forth in accordance wiithedule “H” hereto, at the pric
as likewise set forth under suBehedule “H” , [*] . In any event, it remains understood and agreeddmstwhe Parties that APO shall not be
responsible for any loss or damage to the API, gxetere such loss or damggk provided under Section 1.1 or is otherwise dug]tg and
that APQ's liability shall be limited tf¥] as likewise set forth und&chedule “H”. Upon a determination that API has been lost orrdgstl
such that APO is required to compensate GILEAD, AdRall[*] GILEAD for the compensable amount.

2.8. Defects of Bulk Product attributable to Defective A°l. With respect to defects of the Bulk Product attrdlnle to defective API,
the provisions of Section 8.5 of this Agreementisiyaply.

2.9. Delays in Delivery of API or Replacement Deliveriesf API pursuant to Section 2.41f GILEAD should fail to make timely
delivery of API, or of a replacement delivery of AR APO, the provisions of Section 2.1 hereoflisiyaply and APO shall not be liable for
any breach of its obligations hereunder due to swemts caused by GILEAProvided, howevethat APO shall be liable for any breach of
its obligations due to failure to properly and tlynespect API pursuant to Section 2.4.

2.10  Destruction of Defective APLIf API in the possession of APO is determined by Brarties to be defective, then APO will destroy it
in compliance with GILEAD's instructions and applide laws, rules and regulations, with GILEAD t@bthe expenses thereof unless the
defect was introduced after delivery to APO purstiarsection 2.3.

SECTION 3
MANUFACTURING LICENSE; MANUFACTURING BULK PRODUCT B Y APO

3.1 Manufacturing License. In relation to the grant of the Manufacturing liserby GILEAD to APO for purposes of this Agreement,
the Parties agree as follows:

3.1.1 Grant of Manufacturing License. GILEAD grants APO a non-exclusive, royalty-freenrgublicensable, non-transferable license
for the entire term of this Agreement, under all




patents Controlled by GILEAD that, but for the grafthis license, would be infringed by the Maraitae by APO of Bulk Product in
accordance with this Agreement, and under all Kinow+ Controlled by GILEAD that is necessary or resgay useful to the Manufacture
APO of Bulk Product in accordance with Agreementyianufacture the Bulk Product at the Manufactutiogation for the sole purpose of
supply for the Territory of the Bulk Product so Mdactured to GILEAD, an Affiliate, or one of thaontract manufacturers of Finished
Product, indicated to APO in writing duly in advan@ accordance with the terms and provisionsisfAgreement.

APO shall be responsible for the Manufacture ofkBRidoduct. Accordingly, GILEAD shall be responsibbe the finishing of the Bulk
Product into the Finished Product and, as holdéne@Marketing Authorizations for the Territory, IHAD shall release and place the
Finished Product on the market.

3.1.2 Transfer of Manufacturing and Quality Control Procedures. To the extent reasonably necessary for the exeogigePO of the
rights granted by GILEAD under Section 3.1.1 helaud to the extent not already performed pursua8ettion 3.2 hereof, GILEAD shall
make available to APO all Manufacturing and quatitytrol procedures, including the related Know-HafwsILEAD and all the other
information, necessary to carry out the contracigerations correctly in accordance with the Margt#uthorisations and any other legal
requirements.

3.2 Validation and other Implementation Work Costs. The validation of the manufacturing process of Batkduct and of the
analytical methods is already performed. If furthalidation work will be necessary, it will be ¢lgad to GILEAD based on the then-current
daily rates; the daily rates will be those gengraffered to APO’s customers.

3.3 Manufacturing Standards. In the Manufacturing of the Bulk Product, APO agréeadhere t@) the quality standards and testing
methods of GILEAD indicated in the Specificatiofig; the Quality Agreementjii) any other condition provided under the Manufacwirin
Authorisation and the Marketing Authorisatidiv) the cGMPs; as well %) any additional manufacturing standards agreed byahe
Parties in writing. Subject to what is provided an&ection 10.2 belowAPO agrees not to unreasonably withhold its consetite
implementation of any such additional manufactustandards to the extent that GILEAD reimburses ARDt-of-pocket-costs, excluding
overheads pertaining to the implementation of arghsadditional manufacturing standards

3.4 Manufacturing Capacity. During the Term of this Agreement, APO agrees amnmercially reasonable efforts to allocate
sufficient Manufacturing resources in order to mMe8HtEAD’s requirements of the Bulk Product schedufer delivery in accordance with
Section 5 and 6 hereof. Nothing in this Sectighi8.intended to negate APQO'’s obligations to fuihding Orders accepted pursuant to
Section 6.3 or to prevent GILEAD from submittinggaggate Binding Orders that APO will accept, ifextlise properly submitted, for a
calendar year for the applicable Yearly Minimum Wfole.

3.5 Quality Agreement, Change Control.The pharmaceutical responsibilities of APO and GADE in particular the procedures
applicable in the event of any changes of the Sipatibns, and/or GILEAD's instructions for the xéng and dispatch labelling of the Bulk
Product, are set forth in the Quality Agreemeradaied hereto e&chedule “B”.
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SECTION 4
TERM AND RENEWAL

4.1.Term. Subject to any extension pursuant to Section &@wj this Agreement shall commerce on the Effecate and shall run unf]
(the“Initial Term” ), unless it is terminated on an earlier date coetance with Section 17 hereof.

4.2 Extension.GILEAD shall give written notice of its willingnede extend the duration of this Agreement to AP@ast[*] months befor
expiry of the Initial Term. The Parties will negati in good faith the conditions of the extensibthe Agreement. Should the Parties not
reach an agreement on such conditions witfjimonths of receipt of said written notice, then thggeement shall expire at the end of

Initial Term.
SECTION 5
YEARLY MINIMUM VOLUMES OF PURCHASES
LONG TERM FORECASTS FOR BULK PRODUCT
5.1. Minimum Volumes of PurchasesGILEAD undertakes to guarantee the yearly minimwiumes of purchases of Bulk Products to

be Manufactured by APO as set forttSchedule “I” attached hereto (theY'early Minimum Volumes ). The Yearly Minimum Volumes
shall be firm and binding on GILEAD and shall net4ubject to reductioprovided, howevethat if GILEAD orders an amount of Bulk
Product for delivery in a calendar year that is ldsn the applicable Yearly Minimum Volumes, GILEAhall not be in breach of this
Section 5.1 if it exceeds the applicable Yearly iinm Volume during any of the following Years by amount equal to the shortfall from
the Yearly Minimum Volume in the that prior calengaar.

5.2. Long Term Rolling Forecast for Bulk Product. Subject to what is provided under Section 5.1ttierentire term of the Agreement,
within the first[*] Working Days of each calendar month{“”), GILEAD shall submit to APO its updated writtéamg term rolling forecast
for Bulk Product, (hereinafter thel'ong Term Rolling Forecast for Bulk Product”) showing GILEAD's estimated requirements for the
Bulk Product to be produced and delivered to GILEdDing the following*] period beginning with such month M. The forecastrhonth
M+ [*] through M+[*] shall be non-binding.

SECTION 6
PURCHASE ORDERS

6.1 Binding Orders for Bulk Product. Within the first[*] Working Days of each month M, GILEAD shall subnaitAPO its written
binding orders (the Binding Orders ") for Bulk Product to be manufactured and deliceby APO in month M+*] .

The Binding Orders submitted to APO shall specify EAD’s purchase order number, quantities of thékBeroduct, monthly delivery
schedule and any other elements necessary to ehsuienely production and delivery of the Bulk Buat by APO. The quantities of Bulk
Product ordered in such written orders shall b ind binding on GILEAD and shall not be subjeateduction.
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6.2 Binding Orders for Bulk Product in batch size.Subject to what is provided under Section 3.4, Gi\DEshall place with APO
Binding Orders for the Bulk Product for a full blatsize or multiples thereof, whereby it is undesstthat one (1) batch shall comprise
approximately*] of the Bulk Product. It is furthermore understogtthe Parties, that it is foreseen, that APO dHalhufacture the Bulk
Product batches in campaigns of at I§¥dsbatches preferably in not more thH&h campaigns per year which should be regularly thisted
over the year. Therefore GILEAD shall consider thpgortunity in its production planning and thddeling submission of its Binding
Orders.

6.3 Acceptance of Binding Orders for Bulk Product by AROD. APO is obliged to accept the Binding Orders plaogdILEAD

pursuant to Sections 6.1 and 6.2 for as long aguheatities ordered do not exceed applicable Yédmimum Volume.

APO shall use commercially reasonable efforts fpsuBulk Product in excess of the applicable Ygainimum Volume (subject to Secti
3.4) and to supply Bulk Product in exces$*dfof GILEAD's previous Long Term Rolling Forecast iBulk Product for the applicable
calendar year, but shall not be obligated to suppbh quantities if it is not able to do so by akeommercially reasonable efforts, and APO
shall be allowed to take into consideration in mgkis commercially reasonable decision to supipyduantity of the excess amounts APQO'’s
Manufacturing capacity and other manufacturing catments.

6.4 Addressee of Purchase OrdersAll purchase orders shall be sent by GILEAD wittmt@mporaneous telephone notification, by
email or to APO to the email or fax number settfdrélow or identified in writing by APO:

ALTANA Pharma Oranienburg GmbH
Attention:[*]

email:[*]
Tel. No.: [*]
Fax No.: [*]

APO will acknowledge and either accept or rejecthase orders withift]
[*] business days of receipt to the email or fax nursbeforth below:

Attention:[*]
Email: [*]
Tel. No.:[*]
Fax No.:[*]

6.5 Prevailing Terms. To the extent the terms of any Binding Order omaeidedgement are inconsistent with the terms af thi
Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall céngmad any inconsistent terms are hereby expresgigted.

6.6 Reliance by APO.GILEAD understands and acknowledges that APO wiil bn the Binding Orders submitted pursuant te thi
Section 6 in ordering the Components required tetraech Binding Orders. In addition, GILEAD undarsdis that to ensure an orderly suj
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such Components and to achieve economies of stébe icosts thereof, it may be desirable for AP@Puchase such Components in
sufficient volumes to meet the production requiratador the Bulk Product during part or all of flegecasted periods referred to in Section 5
or to meet the production requirements of any lopggiod as APO and GILEAD may agree to. Accordin@ILEAD agrees that purchases
may be made by APO in respect of the Componergatisfy the production requirements for the Buldrict for forecasted periods to meet
production requirements during such longer peraximay be agreed to in writing from time to timeGyEAD at the request of APO. If
such Components are not included in the Bulk Prtedperchased by GILEAD withif] months after the forecasted month in respect of
which such purchases have been made (or such lpeged as the Parties may agree), GILEAD will p@APO its costs thereof and, in the
event such Components are incorporated into thk Brdducts subsequently purchased by GILEAD, GILEAiDreceive credit for any

costs of such Components previously paid to AP@GHEAD.

SECTION 7
DELIVERY

7.1 Terms of Delivery of Bulk Product. Prior to delivery and shipment of Bulk Product, AR@ send the Release Documents to
GILEAD at the following email or, with prior notifation by telephone by fax, as follows:

Attention: [*]

Address: Unit 13, Stillorgan Industrial Park, Blemgk, Co. Dublin, Ireland
email:[*]

Fax no:*]

Tel. no:[*]

APO will not deliver or ship until GILEAD has relsed the batch and authorized shipment. GILEAD eitlier release or reject a batch
within [*] business days of receipt of the Release Documéhilk Product Deliveries of the Bulk Product stz madd*] (as such term is
defined in the Incoterms 200P] , provided that AP(Q*] (except as otherwise set forth below). Such tBI&ARO has in the Bulk Products
and risk of loss or of damage to the Bulk Prodsbtsl remain with APO until the Bulk Products §ifeat which time title and risk of loss or
damage shall transfer to GILEAD in accordance withIncoterms 200] clause. APO shall, in accordance with GILEAD’s iastions, (i)
arrange for shipping and insurance, to be paiffjoand (ii) at[*] risk and expense, obtain any export licence orraiffecial authorization
and carry out all customs formalities necessamgxport the Bulk Products. GILEAD, at its electiomay select the freight carrier used by
APO to ship the Bulk Products, informing APO of tieme thereof reasonably in advance, and may ntoRiR@’s shipping and freight
practices as they pertain to this Agreement.

Transport conditions shall be based upon GILEAD&uctions for the transportation of the Bulk Rrois.

7.2 Accompanying Documentation With each shipment of the Bulk Product, APO shedivide GILEAD with the appropriate
documentation, including but not limited to billslading, certificate of analysis and certificafecompliance, and an invoice for such
shipment. APO
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undertakes, with prior notification by telephormetmail or fax to GILEAD a copy of each bill of iad to the attention of the following
employee of GILEAD or as otherwise instructed by EAD in writing duly in advance:

Attention: [*]

Address: Unit 13, Stillorgan Industrial Park, Blemgk, Co. Dublin, Ireland
email:[*]

Fax no:*]

Tel. no:[*]

7.3 Short Deliveries.Subject to what is provided under Section 8.2.4Wwehcceptance by GILEAD of deliveries falling shofrthe
guantities ordered and confirmed by APO shall kihevit prejudice to GILEAD’s rights in relation tayasuch shortage.

SECTION 8
DEFECTIVE BULK PRODUCT

8.1 Defective Bulk Products.Quantities of the Bulk Product shall be deemedetaéfective if such quantities do not comply with
APO'’s warranties under Section 13.1 hereof (tlBefective Bulk Product(s)”) and, in relation to any such non-compliance WAfRO’s
warranties under Section 13.1 (thBéfect(s)").

8.2 GILEAD's Duties to inspect and confirm; Implied Waiver. GILEAD agrees to inspect and confirm incoming shioits of Bulk
Product as follows:

8.2.1 Incoming Inspection. GILEAD shall inspect, or cause its Affiliates or méiacturers to inspect, Bulk Product supplied byOAfier
transport damages, completeness, compliance amttity or timing as stated in the Binding Ordemnd,aas far as reasonably possible, any
other obvious defects withi§] following receipt; GILEAD shall give APO written tioe of all claims for any such obvious defect with
such[*] period.

8.2.2  Additional Quality Control Procedures. Thereafter, GILEAD may perform quality control peatures to be agreed between the
Parties in writing with respect to Bulk Productpplied by APO no later thafi] after receipt of the delivered Bulk Products inertb check
if the delivered Bulk Product meet the Specificasio

8.2.3  Notification of Defects.GILEAD shall inform APO by prompt written communtan (telex, fax) of any Defect as hereinafter
defined, in any event such notice to be receivedB@ in case of defects due to a discrepancy fiwarbtll of lading due to lack of identity or
a difference in gross weight, or to physical dansagéher obvious defects, or defects that reasgreiiauld be detected by any additional
quality control procedures that GILEAD may perfounder Section 8.2.2 Qetectable Defects), within [*] of receipt of the Bulk Product,
and, in case of other Defects, i.e. those not redsly detectable by the inspections in Sectionl8g2the procedures carried out pursuant to
Section 8.2.2 (Non-Detectable Defects), within [*] of discovery by GILEAD.
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Any such notification of defects shall be made btiae given by courier under the following address,with contemporaneous telephone
notification, by either fax to the number givendlor email to the address below:

ALTANA Pharma Oranienburg GmbH
Quality Control Dept.

[*]

"]

Germany

Attention: [*]
Tel. No.: [*]
~ax No.: [*]
amail: [*]

8.2.4 Implied Waiver. Failure of GILEAD to inspect or to perform agreaghlity control procedures, and to notify in writiadPO in the
relevant time periods specified in Sections 8.8.2,2 and 8.2.3 above of any Detectable Defedt aptify in writing APO within the
pertaining time period specified in Section 8.208\& of any Non-Detectable Defect after its discgyshall constitute a waiver of any rights
relating to such Defects, unless otherwise agneediting.

8.3 Disagreement as to Defectd$n the event of a disagreement between APO and &0 b respect of any Defects of the Bulk
Product, GILEAD and APO shall conduct a joint intigation in accordance with GILEAD’s and APQO'’s giyatontrol procedures governing
the re-testing of the Bulk Product, in order toedetine if any Bulk Product has a Defect. ShouldRhaeties fail to agree withifi] days after
receipt of GILEAD's deficiency notice delivered A°O pursuant to Section 8.2.1 and/or Section &B@/e as to whether any Bulk Product
identified in such GILEAD's notice has a Defect tharties shall submit a representative sampleeofdjected Bulk Product to an
independent laboratory acceptable to both Pamietesting under GILEAD’s quality control procedsird@ he findings of such third party
laboratory shall be binding upon the Parties, &sdch evaluation certifies that any Bulk ProdscDefective, Sections 8.4, 8.5 and 8.6 below
shall apply. The fees and expenses of such Thiry Réboratory shall be borne by the Party agantstm the finding is made.

8.4 Remedies in relation to Defective Bulk ProductsSubject to Section 8.5 and subject to appropriatéication of GILEAD of
potential Defects in Bulk Products in accordanci\8iection 8.2 above and to a confirmation of amghDefects in accordance with Section
8.3 above due to APO's failure to produce the Briducts in compliance with the Specifications aitth any other warranties as specified
in Section 13.1 below, APO shall forthwith aftecee/ing written request thereof from GILEAD (i) éase of a visible Defect, sort the reje«
Bulk Product from any non-rejected Bulk Produdtiti case of any Defect, whether visible or noplaee the rejected Bulk Product in the
next available campaign. GILEAD shall supply AP@wthe additional API for new batches at no aduditil costs for APO, provided that
API quantities used to Manufacture such DefectiukBProduct shall be subject as applicable to tmagensation provisions of Section 2.’
GILEAD reasonably determines after consultatiorhwiPO that the timing of any projected replacenignfPO of rejected Bulk Product
during the next available campaign may cause GILE&Dave insufficient inventories of Finished
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Product to meet its requirements for Finished PeqdBILEAD shall have the right to have anotherpdigr provide such replacement batct
Bulk Product. Subject to the other provisionshi$ tAgreement, GILEAD’s remedies under this Sec8ahshall be cumulative with other
remedies it may have under this Agreement.

8.5 Defects of Bulk Product attributable to Deficiencie of API. Subject to what is provided under Section 2 ab8®) shall have no
responsibility for any Defects in the Bulk Produatsich are due to deficiencies of API provided thath Defects are not attributable to
APQO'’s breach of its obligations to inspect the ABlivered in accordance with Section 2.4 above.

8.6 Limitation of Liability. Except in the circumstances where APO has failembtoply with the Specifications and any other
warranties as specified in Section 13.1 above, AR&) not be liable or have any responsibilitydoy deficiencies in, or other liabilities
associated with, any Bulk Product manufactured bpéluding, without limitation, any deficienciesntained in the formulae and procedures
specified by GILEAD in the Specifications and etfederiving from compliance with legal requiremeassspecified in Section 13.1, or wh
are connected to the safety, efficacy or markatglf the Bulk Products or any distribution risk.

8.7 Consequential Damaged\either Party shall be liable to the other for @opsequential damages, except in the case of Baytyss
negligence or intentional misconduct

SECTION 9
API OR BULK PRODUCT SHORTFALLS

If at any time during the Initial Term and any exdmn of this Agreement, APO is or expects thaitilitbe unable to satisfy GILEAD’
requirements of Bulk Product, in full or in part,GILEAD is or expects that it will be unable taisty APO’s requirements of API, then that
Party shall promptly notify the other Party, detajlthe extent to which it will not meet such reguanents. Nothing in this Section 9 is
intended to relieve a Party of its other obligasiomder this Agreement.

SECTION 10
PRICING AND CHANGES

10.1  Supply Price. APO shall Manufacture and supply the Bulk ProdadBILEAD at the Supply Price set forth&thedule “A” .
Subject to Section 10.2, the Supply Price shalhtferce during the Initial Term of this Agreement.

10.2  Changes in Manufacturing, Quality Control and Packaying of the Bulk Product. With respect to any changes of the
Manufacturing, quality control and packaging of Budk Product (hereinafter collectively referredat® “Change(s)”), the Parties agree with
respect to the implication on the Supply Pricecdies:

10.2.1 Changes requested by GILEAD. If GILEAD requests a Change which would resulamincrease in APO’s costs for Components
or for manufacturing, controlling or packaging Belk Product, the Parties shall discuss in goothfahat impact, if any, such Change will
have on the Supply Price of the Bulk Product, af®DAshall propose in good faith a proposal that
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states the price change due to implementationaf auChange. If GILEAD should accept a proposéckmhange, the proposed Change
be implemented, and the price change shall becdieetige only with respect to those orders of thékBProduct which are manufactured in
accordance with the revised Specifications. Undegeoposed Change would cause extreme disrupi®©O’s other operations at the
Manufacturing Facility, APO will be obligated to piement such Change if GILEAD accepts APQO’s godith flaroposal for a price change.

Notwithstanding any Change in the Specificationglemented in accordance with the terms of Art. Zl0above, GILEAD agrees to purchi
all the Bulk Product manufactured by APO based wponBinding Order relying on “old” Specificatiohthe “old” price for those Bulk
Product. In addition, GILEAD agrees to purchaseCalinponents and Inventory utilised under the “@gecifications and purchased or
maintained by APO in order to fulfil Binding Orddarsaccordance with Section 6 of the Agreementhéextent that such Components and
Inventory can no longer be utilised under the mdiSpecifications. Open purchase orders for Compsn® longer required under any
revised Specification which were placed by APO \gitippliers in order to fulfil Binding Orders in asdance with Section 6 of the
Agreement shall be cancelled where possible, aretevbuch orders are not subject to cancellatiomonitpenalty, shall be assigned to and
satisfied by GILEAD.

10.2.2 Other Required Changesln any event should a Change become necessary in order to AlRW to guarantee the performance of
the activities in a state of the art way or to conwaith new provisions or compulsory requests @& thgulatory authorities or, in any event,
with APQO'’s obligations under this Agreement, APQ@lsimmediately inform GILEAD accordingly and theguisions set forth in Art. 10.2.1
above shall applyprovided, howevethat if such Change is not specific to the Bulkd®ret but instead relates to compliance of the
Manufacturing Facility or APO’s general procedundth GMP, any increased costs to APO would be alied equitably and consistently
across all products manufactured by APO at the Néantwring Facility.

SECTION 11
PAYMENT

111 Invoicing. APO shall issue invoices for the payment due frottEAD for Bulk Product shipped to GILEAD, and athioice
amounts shall be expressed, and all payments mdelaros.

11.2  Payment.Payment shall be made by GILEAD to APO witfiih days of the date of each invoice sent pursuanetbié 7.2.
11.3  Currency. Unless otherwise agreedll monetary amounts are expressed in this Agreemedguros.

SECTION 12
GENERAL INFORMATION DUTIES

General Duties to inform.Each Party to this Agreement shall keep the othetyRully informed of any natification or otherfarmation,
whether received directly or indirectly which
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might affect the marketability, safety or effectiess of the finished drug product or which miglsuiein the recall or seizure of the
registration / market validation lots.

SECTION 13
WARRANTIES

13.1  Representations and Warranties of APOAPO makes the following representations and waigantith respect to the Bulk Prod
sold hereunde((i) the Bulk Product shall be of merchantable qualitgt ahall fully comply with all Specification§j) In Manufacturing the
Bulk Product, APO shall adhere (@) the quality standards and testing methods of GILE&Dforth in the Specificationfy) the Quality
Agreement{c) any other condition provided under the Manufacyi#uthorisation and the Marketing Authorisati¢d) the cGMPs{e) any
other applicable laws, rules and regulations apple to manufacture of Bulk Product in territonesere Finished Product is to be marketed,
as notified by GILEAD{f) any additional manufacturing standards agreed byahe Parties; as well ég) the Binding Orders.

13.2  Limitation of Warranty. The above stated warranty does not apply in thatesfémproper storage and/or improper handlinghef
Bulk Product by GILEAD or by any third party.

13.3  Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that it hafulihiéght and authority to enter into this Agreenbeand that it is not
aware of any impediment that would inhibit its #@hito perform its obligations hereunder.

13.4  Formulae. GILEAD represents and warrants that the Specificatifor the Bulk Product are its property and tBRtEAD may
lawfully disclose such Specifications to APO. GILBAurther represents and warrants that any tradesngilized by APO in connection wi
the Bulk Product are its property and may be lalwfused as directed by GILEAD. GILEAD further repesits and warrants that the
Specifications for the Bulk Product conform toaplicable laws and regulations, and that the Butiduct if labelled and formulated in
accordance with such Specifications and Manufadtime&ompliance with this Agreement (i) may be lalyf sold and distributed in every
jurisdiction in which GILEAD markets the Bulk Proctu (i) will be fit for the purpose intended, aii) subject to labelling and application
accordance with applicable laws will be safe fomlan consumption.

SECTION 14
INDEMNIFICATION

14.1 Indemnification by APO. APO shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GILCEAs officers, directors, agents, servants, and
employees harmless against all losses, damagegng@rds, liabilities, costs and expenses (includ@agonable legal expenses). @'sses’)
resulting from third party claims, demands, actj@sts or proceedings Third Party Claims "), arising out of APQO’s breach of this
Agreement (including breaches of its warrantieSéction 13.1) or AP@'negligence or willful misconduct in activitiesder this Agreemen
except in each case to the extent GILEAD has aigativn of defense or indemnity with respect tohslioss or Third Party Claim pursuant
Section 14.2..

GILEAD shall not settle any such Third Party Claiithout the prior written approval of APO, and ARBall have the right, if it so wishes
conduct negotiations to settle, settle or to cohduy litigation arising out of, any such Third 8aClaim. GILEAD shall provide prompt
written notice of
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any such Third Party Claim to APO and shall reabbneo-operate in the defence and/or settlemeangfsuch Third Party Claim at APO’s
request and expense.

14.2 Indemnification by GILEAD. GILEAD shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless@Rts officers, directors, agents, servants, and
employees harmless against all Losses resultimg froird Party Claims arising out of (i) GILEAD’sdeich of this Agreement (including
breaches of its warranties in Section 13.4), @i)ghipments of Bulk Product, the manufacture, imsport, offer for sale, sale, distribution,
testing, handling, transport or disposal of BulkdRrct or Finished Product following delivery of ttedevant Bulk Product pursuant to this
Agreement, or (iii) GILEAD’s negligence or willfuhisconduct in activities under this Agreement, @xdée each case to the extent APO has
an obligation of defense or indemnity with resgectuch Loss or Third Party Claim pursuant to $&cti4.1..

APO shall not settle any such Third Party Claimhwaitt the prior written approval of GILEAD, and GIRAP shall have the right, if it so
wishes, to conduct negotiations to settle, settk® conduct any litigation arising out of, any buthird Party Claim APO shall provide
prompt written notice of any such Third Party ClaorGILEAD and shall reasonably co-operate in théedce and/or settlement of any such
Third Party Claim at GILEAD’s request and expense.

14.3  Survival of Indemnification Obligations. The indemnification obligations set forth in thisclon 14 shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 15
CONFIDENTIALITY

15.1  General Principle. “ Confidential Information” shall mean confidential or proprietary informatiafra Party either disclosed ore

or in writing to or otherwise learned by the otRarty that should reasonably be known to be confidieor proprietary to the disclosing
Party, including but not limited to such Party’esearch, development, preclinical and clinical prots, data and results; pharmaceutical or
biologic candidates and products; inventions, wafkauthorship, trade secrets, processes, conespfiormulas, patents, patent applications,
and licenses; business, product, marketing, ssdétific and technical strategies, programs asdilts, including costs and prices; suppliers,
manufacturers, customers, market data, persommk@nsultants. Each Party agrees to hold in stoofidence any and all Confidential
Information of the other Party disclosed to ituge such Confidential Information only for the pasps of this Agreement, and to restrict
access to such Confidential Information to thosses entrusted to carry out the activities prodifte hereunder and who are subject to the
same secrecy obligation. Each Party will proteetadbnfidentiality of Confidential Information ofdhother Party using use the same level of
effort it uses to protect its own confidential soprietary information of a similar nature but ia event less than a commercially reasonable
level of effort.

15.2  Exceptions.Excepted from the secrecy obligations in Sectiod $8all be any Confidential Informatiofiy which is in public
domain at the time of disclosur@) which is published or otherwise becomes part oftlidic domain through no fault of the receivingtiys
(i) which was in the possession of the receiving Patrtire time of disclosure as shown by prior writtecords{iv) which becomes
available to the receiving Party without secreclgalbions from a third party
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who has the right to disclose it without breactoy obligation to the other Party) or, of which the receiving Party can clearly and
convincingly prove that it was independently depeld by employees of the receiving Party who hadauess to the Confidential Informat
disclosed.

15.3  Required Disclosure.Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemeach Party may disclose Confidential Informatd

the other Party to the extent and to the persoestities as required by applicable governmenta] tale, regulation or order (including to
Regulatory Agencies for the purposes of this Agrerin provided that it first notifies the other Basf such disclosure requirement to enable
it to seek any available Excepted from this secrdaigation shall further be Information or Know-Wavhich has to be disclosed to the EU
Regulatory Agencies for the purposes of this Agreinor which GILEAD is entitled to disclose accaorglito this Agreement.

15.4  Duration of Confidentiality Obligations. The confidentiality obligations of the Parties $isalrvive this Agreement for a period of
ten (10) years.

15.5 Improvements

15.5.1 APO acknowledges and agrees that it has no prapyi@ttellectual property rights in or to the cumrenanufacturing process for the
Finished Product, as set forth in the SpecificaioAPO shall not perform any Manufacturing othrenmt for Manufacture of Finished Product
for supply to Gilead pursuant to this Agreement] ARO shall not perform any process developmenptlerwise attempt to modify the
Manufacturing process without Gilead’s prior writteonsent.

15.5.2 The Parties acknowledge that they, independentjgiotly, may develop improvements to the Specifmas, inventions and other
know-how (including without limitation data, infomtion, processes, techniques, methods, and unphtemventions) in the course of
fulfilling their obligations under this Agreemerititnprovements”). Subject to Section 15.5.3, (i) APO shall owhright, title and interest
in and to Improvements that are general manufagyumprovements that have application beyond mantuifa and processing B
(including Finished Product and finished produntsorporatind*] to the[*] ) (“APO Improvements” ), and (ii) Gilead shall own all, right,
title and interest in and to all other ImprovemgfiGilead Improvements” ). Each Party hereby assigns its entire right #tid interest in
Improvements that are to be owned by the otheyRansuant to this Section 15.5.2, and all patantscopyrights that may be obtained
thereon and trade secrets and other intellectaglgpty rights therein‘dmprovements IP” ), to the other Party, and each Party will take all
reasonable steps and execute and deliver all dousmeasonably required for the other Party toevig or record such assignment as
applicable. Each Party shall only use in its penfance under this Agreement, its employees or dtamga who have agreed in writing to
assign Improvements to it.

15.5.3 APO hereby grants to Gilead an irrevocable, nonesxek, worldwide, royalty-free license under the@G\Pnprovements and the
APO Improvements IP to research, develop, makes haade, use, sell, offer for sale, import and eties commercialize Gilead’s (and its
Affiliates’ and licensees’) products throughout therld, with the right to sublicense (through omenre tiers of sublicensees to Affiliates of
Gilead, licensees with exclusive or co-exclusivenowercialization rights to such products to in onenore countries, and contract
manufacturers).
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SECTION 16
TERMINATION

16.1  Either Party’s Right to terminate for Cause. Either Party shall have the right to terminate thigeement for cause in any of the
following events:

16.1.1 Termination for Material Breach. Without prejudice to any remedy or claim it may @against the other Party for material breach
or non-performance of this Agreement, either Psinll have the right to terminate this Agreementfwse in the event that the other Party
fails to materially comply with or perform any mag provision of this Agreement (theBreach”) in accordance with the following
provisions:

16.1.1.1The terminating Party shall notify the terminatedt? of any such Breach in writing, specifying siieach in reasonable detail and
stating its intention to terminate this Agreememtdause (the Reminder ).

16.1.1.2In the event that the terminated Party eitlijeif the Breach is of such a nature that it can lasoeably expected to be cured within a
[*] day period (for example, as with an obligation take payment of monies), fails to cure such Breaithinva period of*] days following
receipt by the terminated Party of such Reminder {Remedy Period”), or (ii) if the Breach is of such a nature that it cannatdasonably
expected to be cured within*d day period, if the terminated Party fails to estdbto the reasonable satisfaction of the ternigaarty that

it is diligently and actively pursuing a cure ag #xpiration of such Remedy Period, , the termiggitarty shall be entitled to terminate this
Agreement within a period ¢f] following the expiry of such Remedy Period with iradiate effect by giving the terminated Party relate
written notice.

16.1.1.3In the event that the terminated Party, under tleeimstances referred to under (ii) of Section 62labove, can establish to the
reasonable satisfaction of the terminating Pardy iths diligently and actively pursuing a curetfad expiration of the Remedy Period, then
such Remedy Period shall be extended for so lorgcase is being diligently and actively pursuadiisextension not to excegdl days in

the aggregate (theExtended Remedy Period). For clarity, the Remedy Period and the ExtehBemedy Period together shall not exceed
[*] days.

16.1.1.4In the event that the terminated Party shall nettaired the Breach pursuant to Section 16.1.108eabt the end of such Extended
Remedy Period, the terminating Party may exer¢ssteimination right for Breach within a period[8)f following the expiry of such
Extended Remedy Period by giving the terminatedlyRalated written notice.

16.1.2 Termination for Reasons of Insolvency or Terminatio of Business ActivitiesEither Party shall be entitled to terminate this
Agreement if the other Party becomes insolvens subject of a petition in bankruptcy whether viduy or involuntary or of any other
proceeding under bankruptcy, insolvency or simdars, or if this Agreement is assigned by such oBaty for the benefit of creditors. Such
termination right may be exercised within a ternj*pffollowing the date as of which the Party entitledérminate receives knowledge of
such insolvency or termination of business ac#sitdy the other Party, by giving the terminatedyPar

18




related written notice

16.1.3 Termination for Medical or Regulatory ReasonsGILEAD shall be entitled to terminate this Agreermencase of medical or
regulatory reasons which prevent the use of Finighr@duct in humans or in case approval of Finighexdiuct is rejected or withdrawn by
EU or foreign Regulatory Agencies or in case okotterious safety reasons and GILEAD has undertsé@ous attempts to remove the
reasons therefore.

16.2  Financial Consequences in Case of Terminatiotdpon expiration or termination of this Agreement.ERAD shall, to the exclusio
of other financial obligations of GILEAD except sysecifically provided for hereirfi) purchase, at AP@’cost, the Inventory applicable to
Bulk Product which was purchased, produced or raaiatl by APO in contemplation of filling Binding @ars and that is suitable for
production of Bulk Productji) purchase from APO all undelivered Bulk Productsady firmly ordered in accordance with the ordering
terms of Section 5.2, at the price in effect attihme the Binding Order was placed; &jif) satisfy the purchase price payable pursuant to
APOQO’s orders with suppliers of Components, providadh orders were made by APO in reliance on Bon@rnders. The provisions of this
Agreement relating to delivery, acceptance, repectind payment or and for Bulk Product shall gowistivery and purchase of such Bulk
Product under (ii) and (iii).

If the Agreement is terminated by GILEAD pursuanBSection 16.1.1 as a result of a Breach by APfuosuant to Section 16.1.3, GILEAD
agrees to purchase such of the items referred(ip ifii) and (ii) above as it determines, actimgsonably, can be used by it.

16.3  Return of Stocks of API.In case of the expiration or termination of thisrégment for any reason whatsoever, APO shall, at
GILEAD's request and option, return to GILEAD os dlesignee or destroy all stocks of APl remainingRO, the costs of transportation or
destruction to be borne by GILEAD, or, in the cafa termination of this Agreement by GILEAD puratito Section 16.1.1 as a result of a
Breach by APO or pursuant to Section 16.1.3, by APO

16.4  Termination of Manufacturing License. Effective upon the expiration or termination ofstiligreement for any reason whatsoever,
the Manufacturing license granted by GILEAD to AB@ier Section 3.1 shall terminate, and the rightsach Party to Information and
Know-How of the other Party shall expire with imnege effect. APO shall either, at GILEAD’s optiaefurn or destroy all Information and
Know-How of GILEAD and all copies, extracts, sumirarand derivatives thereof, in its possessionstuadi certify to GILEAD the
completion thereof.

SECTION 17
NOTICES
Unless otherwise specified herein, any notice belotommunication required or permitted to be giwveder this Agreement may be delive
personally or be sent by prepaid certified or regedd post, courier or facsimile transmission (wébeipt acknowledged or confirmed)
addressed to the Party addressed as follows:
If to GILEAD: [*]
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Gilead Sciences Inc.
333 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, CA 94404
USA

Fax No.: [*]

Tel. No.:[*]

Email: [*]

with a copy to:  Gilead Sciences, Inc.
333 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, CA 94404

USA
Attention: Vice President and General Counsel
Fax No.: [*]
and
if to APO: [*]

Tel. No.:[*]

Fax No.:[*]

Email: [*]

and any such notice or other communication shatidemed to be effective upon receipt by the Partytich it is addressed if received
during a Working Day or otherwise at the starthaf hext Working Day. Any Party may change the agkite which notice is to be given as
provided herein by giving the other Party relatedten notification.

SECTION 18
DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND GOVERNING LAW

18.1  Disputes.In the event of any dispute, claim, question oagisement arising out of or relating to this Agreatn(a“Dispute” ), the
Parties shall use all reasonable efforts to sstibh Dispute by amicable negotiations within aqeedf[*] days of one Party giving notice of
the Dispute to the other Party.

18.2  Arbitration. Should the Parties not manage to settle the dispuéenicable negotiations within the such perioftpidays, all
disputes shall be finally settled under the ruliesomciliation and arbitration of the Internatiorf@hamber of Commerce (the “Rules”) by three
arbitrators, reasonably fluent in English, one apigal by each of the Parties and the third one, s¥all act as Chairman, by the other two
arbitrators, or, in the event of their failure &mch agreement with[#] days of the appointment, in accordance with the&ul

The arbitration procedure will take place in Genamd will be conducted in the English language.

The decision of the arbitrators will be final anidding upon the Parties.
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18.3  Governing law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforcedéoraance with the laws of Switzerland.

SECTION 19
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACT

19.1  Assignment.This Agreement may be assigned by GILEAD provide:t

() GILEAD shall inform APO of said assignment initing and in advance; and (ii) any assignee stmlenant in writing with APO to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement.

APO may assign this Agreement to subsidiaries ddAlRly with prior written agreement by GILEAD whielgreement shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

19.2  Subcontract. APO may subcontract, in whole or in part, to thpaities the performance of the activities contemeplainder Section
3 above entrusted to it by this Agreement, provithed APO shall bear any additional costs possiligted to this appointment. In any event,
before subcontracting the performance of the afidesctivities to third parties, APO must first ede written consent from GILEAD.

19.3  [*] shall be APO’s counterparty to fpi supplies of Bulk Product, arft] will have the rights and obligations of GILEAD harelel
to the extent pertaining {¢] supplies of Bulk Productd*] shall be APO’s counterparty to ff] supplies of Bulk Product and will have the
rights and obligations of GILEAD hereunder to thxéeat pertaining t¢*] supplies of Bulk Products.

SECTION 20
FORCE MAJEURE

20.1  Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be liable for the failure tafpem its obligations under this Agreement if sdahure is
occasioned by a cause or contingency beyond sutyigogeasonable control, including, but not lindite riots, wars, fires, floods, storms,
strikes (excluding strikes and work slow-downs #iif¢ct APO but not the German pharmaceutical mastufing sector generally),
interruption of energy supply, or compliance wittyarder or regulation of any government entity ebhis not due to any failure or non-
compliance of the Party affected. A Party claiméngght to excused performance under this Sectioghall immediately notify the other
Party in writing of the extent of its inability fwerform, which notice shall specify the occurrebegond its reasonable control that prevents
such performance and shall indicate its consequdinom the stand point of the fulfilment of continaed obligations.

The Party affected by an event of force majeuretmses and continue to use every effort in orderoitinue to perform this Agreement and,
subject to the following paragraph, if absolutefcessary the Parties shall co-operate in ordegrieeaupon terms and conditions different
from those contained herein, for the continuanciefAgreement itself for the entire period of tithe event of force majeure continues.
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Should the event of force majeure extend for moa@f] months, each of the Parties shall be entitledrtoitete this Agreement by giving
[*] days written notice thereof to the other Party.lSuatice shall indicate, inter alia, the date pded for the termination of the Agreement.

SECTION 21
WAIVER

A waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agment shall not be construed as a continuing waivether breaches of the same or other
provisions of this Agreement.

The tolerance by either of the Parties, even itiooied or repeated, of breaches by the other Bagtyovisions contained in any clause of this
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver nor it iragny way affect the validity of the clause bebrgached, so long as the breach is
contested withiri*] days of the date of the event by way of registés&dr with return receipt.

SECTION 22
NO PARTNERSHIP

The relationship established hereby between GILEBAD APO is in all respects a commercial relatignsNthing herein shall be construed
as imposing any fiduciary obligations on eithertaor as establishing any partnership or jointtuem between the Parties, or as rendering
one Party an agent of the other.

SECTION 23
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreememtdmt the Parties with reference to the subjectenhtireof and supersedes any prior
agreements with respect to such subject matter.

Any modification, amendment or supplement to thiggement must be in writing and signed by authdrispresentatives.

The “WHEREAS” and the documents attached as Schedalthis Agreement form an integral and substhpért of this Agreement. The
headings to the Sections of this Agreement aredarvenience only and shall be disregarded in inéirg and construing this Agreement.

SECTION 24
SEVERABILITY

In the event of the invalidity of any provisionstbfs Agreement or of this Agreement containing gaps, the Parties agree that such
invalidity or gap shall not affect the validity tife remaining provisions of this Agreement. ThetiBawill in good faith replace an invalid
provision or fill any gap with valid provisions, wadh most closely approximate the purpose and ecaneffect of the invalid provision or, in
case of a gap, the Parties’ presumable intentlarthe event that the terms and conditions of Agjgeement are materially altered as a result
of
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the preceding sentences, the Parties shall reaggttie terms and conditions of this Agreementdeoto resolve any inequities.

SECTION 25
SURVIVAL

The termination or expiration of this Agreement&ory reason whatsoever shall be without prejudiani obligations or rights on the part of
either Party which have accrued prior to such teation, and shall not affect or prejudice the failog provisions of this Agreement which
shall survive such termination or expiration: TibeAPI, Section 2.6; Destruction of Defective ABEction 2.10; Defective Bulk Product,
Section 8; General Information Duties, Section\W&rranties, Section 13; Indemnification, Section @dnfidentiality, Section 15; Financial
Consequences in Case of Termination, Section Refjrn of Stocks of API, Section 16.3; TerminatadriManufacturing License, Section
16.4; Notices, Section 17; Dispute Resolution angéening Law, Section 18; Waiver, Section 21; Enfh\greement, Section 23; Severability
Section 24; and Survival, Section 25.
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SECTION 26
EXECUTION BY COUNTERPART

This Agreement may be executed by the Partiesdncunterparts, each of which shall be deemed igmat and all of which, taken
together, shall constitute one and the same ingniim

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been execaseof the date first above written by the partiespective duly authorized
representatives.

Gilead World Markets, Ltd. ALTANA Pharma Oranienburg GmbH

Mark L. Perry, Directo Hans«Joachim Kaatz, General Manag

Gilead Sciences, Inc

Mark L. Perry, Executive Vice President, Dr. Hans-Christian Meyer, Senior Director
Operations

Schedules to this Agreement:

Schedule*A”: Supply Price

Schedule “B™: Quality Agreemen

Schedule“C”: Bulk Product Specificatior

Schedule"D”: API and Excipient Specifications; Handling and &g of API
Schedule “E™: Batch Coding Systel

Schedule“F": Dispatch Labelling of AP(

Schedule*G”: Shipment Instruction

Schedule*H”: Manufacturing Line[*] of API[*]

Schedule “1"; Yearly Minimum Volumes of Purchas
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Schedule’ A”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Supply Price

1. Supply Price coated tablets
The Supply Price fof*] shall correspond tf¥] . This price will be fixed til[*] .
No later thar[*] the end of each year APO shall be entitled to retjae adjustment to the fees for the applicablepmrent costs and
processing fees in respect of such drug produdhtweases in manufacturing costs based on theases in the official inddx] .
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Schedule*B”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Quality Agreement
for
the Manufacturing and Supply of
Products for Gilead Sciences, Inc.

between

Gilead Sciences, Inc.
650 Cliffside Drive
San Dimas, CA 91773
and
335 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, CA 94404-1147
and
Gilead Sciences Ltd.
Unit 13, Stillorgan Industrial Park,
Blackrock, Co., Dublin, Ireland
as contract giver

and
Altana Pharma Oranienburg GmbH
(]
Germany
as contract acceptor
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Introduction

This Quality Agreement (hereinafter “AGREEMENT")asrequired and integral part of the Toll Manufaicty Agreement (hereinafter
“Manufacturing Agreement”) between Gilead World Mets, Ltd. and Altana Pharma Oranienburg GmbH (hafeer “APO”). This
AGREEMENT defines the cooperation between Gileddr&es, Inc., with offices in Foster City, Calif@nand San Dimas, California, and
Gilead Sciences Ltd., with offices in Dublin, Ireth (hereinafter “GILEAD”) and APO with respect@uality Assurance issues related to all
such activities as may be required for the manufeadf those drug products set forth in Attachnfehereinafter “PRODUCT”), including
(as appropriate) the planning, purchasing, manufacprocessing, compounding, storage, filling,kaging, labeling, testing, sample
retention, stability testing, release, and dispéteheinafter “MANUFACTURE” or “MANUFACTURING”).

Description of Roles between GILEAD sites:
GILEAD Foster City*]

GILEAD San Dimas[*]

GILEAD Dublin: [*]

In the event that there is a discrepancy betweemptbvisions of the Manufacturing Agreement andptavisions of this AGREEMENT, the
provisions of this AGREEMENT shall control with pesct to terms governing the quality of the PRODWARI®E the provisions of the
Manufacturing Agreement shall control with respecall other terms.

In all instances, “written authorization” shall rmeeommunication written on official letterhead dher official forms of written
correspondence and signed by the authoring pa@#'sepresentative (as listed in Attachment A). lirirestances, “procedures” shall mean
company standard operating procedures approvedghrihe change control process.

GILEAD and APO agree as follows:
1. Manufacturing of PRODUCT
1.1. Manufacturing Procedures

1.1.1 APO shall manufacture the PRODUCT in accordanck pinciples of current Good Manufacturing Prac(c@MP) as
described in the United Stat€sde of Federal Regulatiof€FR), Title 21, Part 211 and the most currentiediof the
Rules Governing Medicinal Products in the Europ@ammunity, Volume IV, Good Manufacturing PractidesMedicinal
Products.

1.1.2 GILEAD shall provide APO with all the informatiorenessary to carry out the contracted operationgcty in accordanc
with the marketing authorizations, regulatory fij§) and any other legal requirements via a PRODY@Ecific Contractor
Manual. GILEAD shall ensure that APO is fully awafeany problems associated with the PRODUCT omtbek that
might pose a hazard to APO’s premises, equipmensopnel, and/or other materials and products.

1.1.3 APO shall manufacture the PRODUCT only in sitessteged and/or approved by the US FDA and othelicadye
regulatory authorities for the manufacture of tiRCPDUCT.
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1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

15.

1.1.4 APO shall not subcontract to a third party any pathe MANUFACTURING of the PRODUCT without GILEAB prior
evaluation and written authorization of the arrangats.

1.1.5 APO shall assure that the PRODUCT is manufactypacdkaged, held, labeled, and tested accordingpmaed procedure
and specifications. APO is responsible for shipnodéthe PRODUCT to GILEAD (or designee) upon writteuthorization
by GILEAD.

1.1.6 APO shall advise GILEAD Quality Assurance (QA) prio implementing any Major change to the approvedhod of
manufacture or specifications. “Major” has the san@aning as set forth in Section 506A (21 U.S.®&a3%f the US
Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

1.1.7 Where control of*] levels is required and included in the PRODUCT Hjmations, material specifications, and/or
component specifications, APO shall control and ioorthe facility environment, utilities and equipmt used for the
MANUFACTURING of the PRODUCT as per APO procedures.

1.1.8 APO shall refrain from any activity that may adwysaffect the quality of the PRODUCT manufactuaed/or analyzed
for GILEAD.

Deviations

1.2.1 APO shall document, justify, and, when appropriategstigate whenever there is a manufacturingadevi (as defined in
APO procedures) from approved procedures or spatifins. Included is any suspect and confirmedofispecification
(O0S) result for GILEAD-related raw material, compats, intermediate, in-process specificationmsfied PRODUCT
specification. This documentation shall be retaiaggart of the batch record(s) for the batch(Begtd.

1.2.2 APO shall notify GILEAD of a manufacturing deviatiavith influence on the quality of the PRODUCT a&dided in APO
procedures withiffi*] business days.

1.2.3 Reprocessing shall be considered a deviation.

Rejection of Product

1.3.1 APO shall include appropriate GILEAD personnel ity énvestigation concerning PRODUCT MANUFACTURING.
1.3.2 In the event of rejection of PRODUCT, GILEAD and @Rhall proceed per the Manufacturing Agreement.
Compendial Compliance

1.4.1 APO is responsible for compliance to the Compendigthods, specifications, and testing of Comperatiiles in the
MANUFACTURING of PRODUCT and for control of the eémmment wherein MANUFACTURING occurs.

1.4.2 GILEAD is responsible for compliance to the Compahthethods, specifications, and testing undediitsct control and
responsibility.

Materials
1.5.1 APO shall purchase and receive from mutually agrgsxh suppliers, inspect, test, release, storédpahdndle materials
related to the MANUFACTURING of the PRODUCT, inclog components and excipients, in accordance wRIDA

procedures and consistent with cGMPs.
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1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.5.2 GILEAD shall provide Active Pharmaceutical IngreatiéAPI) to APO with a GILEAD Certificate of Analis
1.5.3 APO shall receive, inspect, and test API from GILEA

1.5.4 APO shall audit and approve preferred suppliemnatierials per APO procedures. GILEAD shall audit approve
GILEAD-specified suppliers, including suppliersA®I, per GILEAD procedures.

1.5.5 APO shall maintain an approved GILEAD suppliersilisaccordance with APO procedures for controtteaterials
purchased by APO for use in the PRODUCT.

1.5.6 APO shall store controlled materials accordingpecified storage requirements per APO procedurB€ Ahall have a
system in place that ensures that stored materiatsampled and tested according to specifigdstedates and discarded
specified expiration dates, as applicable.

1.5.7 APO shall assure that the potential for cross-aoirtation from any compound used at the APO facifitgatisfactorily
controlled via adequate cleaning procedures, deglicaquipment, and/or cleaning validation as apieits

Labeling

GILEAD shall be responsible for, and provide APQhycopy content and artwork for all printed maitsiassociated with the
PRODUCT. This includes, but is not limited to, g¥ifig container labels, cartons and inserts. GILESRBIl be responsible for
compliance with federal, state, and local regufatiand for obtaining regulatory approval for the BRJCT labeling.

Distribution

1.7.1 APO shall prepare orders and ship PRODUCT by apapfreight forwarders to arrive in suitable ciimh at the
premises designated by GILEAD.

1.7.2 Shipment of PRODUCT shall be conducted upon andrdotg to GILEAD authorization, which shall includeantities
and locations for shipment and all other pertinefarmation.

1.7.3 APO shall forward to GILEAD the following Inventd&hipping documentation:
1.7.3.1. API withdrawals and finished product completionnfrbatch records (every transaction)
1.7.3.2. Shipping Activity (every transaction)
1.7.3.3. [*]

Quialification/Validation

1.8.1 APO shall qualify and maintain, consistent with cBeccording to APO protocols and procedures, ttiéitfas, utilities,
and equipment required to support the MANUFACTURINIGhe PRODUCT.

1.8.2 APO shall qualify cleaning processes for sharedpegent in the facility for MANUFACTURING the PRODULCas per
APO protocols and procedures.

1.8.3 As specifically contracted by GILEAD (i.e., undeparate purchase orders), related APO PRODUCT
qualification/validation results shall be assembted validation report(s) and provided to GILEA®r feview and approve
APO shall maintain original documentation in itediles and provide GILEAD with copies of the apped protocol(s) and
report(s).
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1.9. Reprocessing and Rework

APO shall obtain GILEAD approval prior to perforrgineprocessing and/or rework of the PRODUCT.

Testing of PRODUCT
2.1. Sampling , Inspection, and Testing of PRODUCT

2.1.1 The sampling, inspection, and testing opimcess material related to the PRODUCT shall lbgechout by APO accordin
to the product specifications and shall be appadgly documented.

2.1.2 APO shall sample the PRODUCT per APO procedures.
2.1.3 APO is responsible for quality control (QC) testwfghe PRODUCT.

2.1.4 APO shall perform final PRODUCT testing per the tasthods and specifications agreed upon betweéeh @l
GILEAD.

2.2. Batch Release
2.2.1 APO shall be responsible for release of PRODUCT

2.2.2 Final release of the PRODUCT for clinical or comaiaruse shall b§] . GILEAD shall provide writterf*] to APO prior
to[*] of the PRODUCT to anff] .

2.2.2.1. Final release of PRODUCT for distribution in the EBhe sole responsibility of the Qualified Persoftf] .

2.2.3 Subsequent to the successful completion of a mytagreeable qualification exercise, APO shall fardvto GILEAD the
following documentation for each batch of the PRGIIU

2.23.1. [
2.23.2. 1
2.23.3. [
2.23.4. 1
2.235. [
2.23.6. 1]

2.2.4 GILEAD may reduce the above requirements via writtathorization to APO.
2.3.  Stability Program
GILEAD is responsible for stability testing, prinyadtata interpretation and reporting.
2.4.  Annual Product Review
2.4.1 GILEAD shall perform PRODUCT annual product revipar GILEAD procedures.
2.4.2 APO shall provide an annual product review sumni@@ILEAD per APO procedures.

2.4.3 GILEAD and APO shall periodically discuss qualiggues related to the past MANUFACTURING of the PR@OI with
regards to the obligations and responsibilitiedesribed in this AGREEMENT.

Retention of Samples
3.1.  APO shall retain samples of raw materials (inclgdhPl) per APO procedures.
3.2.  GILEAD shall retain samples of PRODUCT accordingsih EAD procedures.
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4.

Documentation

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Manufacturing Records

4.1.1 Records related to the MANUFACTURING of the PRODU&Td/or materials used for the MANUFACTURING of the
PRODUCT shall be mutually approved by APO and GICEgior to implementation.

4.1.2 Original Batch Records (i.e., MPRs) shall be mag#lable for inspection and review by regulatoryhawiities at mutually
agreeable times.

Records Retention

APO shall retain documentation specifically assedavith the PRODUCT per APO procedures.
Change Control

4.3.1 APO shall process changes to documentation asedaith the PRODUCT per APO procedures.

4.3.2 Upon approval and issuance, APO shall distribupgasoof documentation associated with the MANUFA®ING of the
PRODUCT to GILEAD.

4.3.3 Prior to manufacture of the next batch of the PR@DUAPO shall notify GILEAD of any planned chandlat havd*] ,
as defined in the US FDA Guidance for Industry “Gfs to an Approved NDA or ANDA”. This includes olgas to th¢*]
to MANUFACTURE the PRODUCT.

Contractor Manual

4.4.1 GILEAD shall provide a current, controlled copyezfch PRODUCT-specific Contractor Manual that inekiGILEAD
controlled documents critical to the MANUFACTURINgS the PRODUCT.

4.4.2 APO shall distribute internally updated copies ofaments contained in the Contractor Manual wigtirappropriate
timeframe.
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5. Information Flow

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

Communication
5.1.1 APO and GILEAD shall each employ a QA represengatno shall be responsible for:
5.1.1.1. Approving the AGREEMENT
5.1.1.2. Ensuring that the terms of this AGREEMENT are caegplvith.
5.1.1.3. Ensuring that the terms of this AGREEMENT are perfed in strict accordance with cGMPs.

5.1.1.4. Ensuring that the terms of this AGREEMENT are carted in accordance with the regulatory filing(s) tioe
PRODUCT specified.

5.1.2 Attachment B identifies the contact individual(sdaareas of responsibility for APO and GILEAD. Teaties may modify
the individuals listed in Attachment B by noticevimiting to the other parties.

Regulatory Inspections of Facilities and PRODUCT

5.2.1 APO shall notify GILEAD[*] of any inspections or actions by regulatory agentiiat[*] the PRODUCT.

5.2.2 Prior to[*] with regards to the PRODUCT, APO shall discusgthevith GILEAD.

5.2.3 Prior to[*] with regards to the MANUFACTURING of the PRODUCTILEAD shall discuss th§] with APO.

Access to Facility

GILEAD shall have the right to visit APO PRODUCT mdacturing and quality control testing site afieasonable notice and

during normal business hours to review manufacguoiperations and assess its compliance with cGMRjaality assurance

standards and to discuss any related issues witlifagturing and management personnel as it refatie MANUFACTURING
of the PRODUCT.
Product Complaints

5.4.1 GILEAD shall provide a system to allow for the rigtedf complaints associated with the PRODUCT (PR@I¥
complaints). GILEAD shall receive, log, evaluated aategorize each complaint received in accordaitteGILEAD
procedures.

5.4.2 As soon as possible, but not more tfidrbusiness days (unless a more urgent need is resmjrafter receipt of a
PRODUCT complaint from a source other than APO,EAD shall report the complaint in writing to APO (s required
as a function of the complaint). GILEAD shall prdgiall information relative to the PRODUCT comptaimAPO,
including a description of the complaint and asat@a lot number(s) as stated from complainant. @IREhall forward to
APO digital pictures of complaint subject and retd goods, as available. GILEAD shall send APO tgsie the
complaint as needed.
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6.

5.4.3 APO shall perform a thorough investigation of eREEODUCT complaint, and shall make every effortiovile GILEAD
with appropriate written correspondence and/od fiaport documents for each PRODUCT complaint reaiwithin[*]
business days unless a more (or less) urgent sgedagnized and mutually agreed to.

5.4.4 GILEAD shall maintain communication with the comipknt to include the initial acknowledgement of doenplaint
received and the final results of the investigatonducted by APO.

5.4.5 GILEAD shall communicate to the complainants andégulatory authorities the results of the complaimestigation, if
necessary. GILEAD shall notify APO of any regulgtaction related to the MANUFACTURING of the PRODU@aken
by a regulatory authority.

5.5. Product Recall

5.5.1 GILEAD shall have responsibility for initiating eRODUCT recall or field corrections of the PRODUQThe PRODUCT
violates applicable laws, regulations or agreedi§ipations, or is deemed unacceptable for someratason whether or r
such action is requested by any government agency.

5.5.2 GILEAD shall notify APO of GILEAD's intent to iniite a PRODUCT recall in order to meet the standafrttse US FDA
and other regulatory authorities and shall review potential PRODUCT recall with APO prior to tagiany action.

5.5.3 During a PRODUCT recall, withdrawal, or field caction, APO shall fully cooperate with GILEAD to adunct necessary
activities.

Duration

The term of this AGREEMENT shall be in force foream to coincide with the Manufacturing Agreememtl @an be modified at anytin
by agreement of the Parties. This AGREEMENT shaWise the expiration or termination of the Manufaing Agreement until*] year
after the expiration date of the last batch of PR@D manufactured hereunder.

Modifications to the AGREEMENT

Any modification to this AGREEMENT must be in wrij and approved by both parties in order to balvélny such modifications shi
form part of this AGREEMENT and shall be attachedhis AGREEMENT. Attachments may be updated séplyrand appended to tt
AGREEMENT upon notice in writing to the other pagiand mutual approval.

Approval Signatures

For and on behalf of Gilead Sciences, In For and on behalf of APO
Signed: Signed:
[*] [*]
Signed: Signed:
[*] [*]
Signed: Signed:

] ]
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Signed: Signed:
"]
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Attachment A , Quality Agreement: PRODUCTS for MANUFACTURING

PRODUCT TRADENAME PRESENTATION GILEAD CODE NO. APO CODE NO.

'] '] '] [ [
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Attachment B , Quality Agreement: Contact Information

Gilead Sciences, Inc.

Area of Responsibility Name Address Telephone FAX
Quiality Assurance/ Product Complai [*] * * *
Quality Control [*] ) g .
Materials/Plannin *] [*] [*] [*]
Pharmaceutical Manufacturir *] [*] [*] [*]
Qualified Person, European Testing ¢ *] * [*] [*]
APO, Inc.
Area of Responsibility Name Address Telephone FAX
Managemen [*] [*] [*]
Quality Assuranc [*] . [*] [*]
Quality Managemer *] y [*] [*]
Manufacturing *] [*] [*]
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Attachment C , Quality Agreement: Responsibilities Matrix

Contract Contract
Giver Acceptor
Agreement with registration docume! [ ] [O ]

Active ingredients(s

Specification

Supply/procuremer

Testing (Full specification

Testing (Identity on receipt of each contair

O 0OXIXIE&
®O0O0

Reserve sample

._.
—
—

5]
—

Other starting materia
Non-compendial material specificatio
Compendial material specificatio
Supply/procuremer

Testing(1)

O O00&
& X & O

Reserve sample

._.
—
—

5]
—

Bulk product
Specification
Manufacturing direction
In-process control requiremer
Testing direction:
Manufacture/manufacturing recc
Quality control/testing recor
Certificate of analysi

._.._.._.._.._.._.._.
000 X [ x &
P
e

KEEOOOO0O

(1) Testing is performed per the complete spedificaunless otherwise specified.
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Schedule’ C”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Bulk Product Specifications

APO has to test and release the Bulk Product inrdenice to GILEAD test procedure NB]: and[*] (for clinical batches) in its current
version.

The current versions aff (effective datd*] ) and[*] (effective datg*] ).
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Schedule’ D”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

API and Excipient Specifications; Handling and Stoage of API

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient provided by Gilead
Starting materials (excipients) provided APO:

All API, Excipient and Component testing shall lefprmed in accordance with the following Specificas, as may be amended from time
to time by mutual written agreement of the Parties:

DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATION
API

M [
Excipients

[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]
[*] [*]

']
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Schedule*E”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Batch Coding System

Batch coding will consist of a unique alpha-numeonde of not more than 8 characters. APO willgrssiach lot number prior to
manufacturing and reflect that number on the pwetwader confirmation sent to Gilead for the batategjuested at that time.
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Schedule" F”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Dispatch Labelling of APO

The labelling of the shipping carton of Productalkimclude the following information:
y "]
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Schedule" G”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Shipment Instructions

. ']
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Schedule" H”
Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Manufacturing Line [*]

[*] of API [*]

1. Manufacturing Line Loss (Yield)

The Parties shall set forth and indicate ireddendunto thisSchedule “H” the total[*] of API allowable pef*] period under the
Manufacturing lind*] after completion of the production ] bulk. Other than in cases where APO has failediopty with Section 3.3,
APO shall not be required ft] GILEAD based orj*] or APl Manufacturing ling*] for the first[*] batches.

In addition, the following aspects have to be cded:

i Given that the API source might have an impacthenpgroduction process, i will be [*] by APO for a special API-source before
[*] with the API-source were produced at APO.
. Each change of the manufacturing process, whichines|a new validation and is of a nature that likiely to change the

Manufacturing lind*] will lead to the same procedure and a new agreeatgrtierning the acceptaljfé as described in the
addendum to Schedule “D”. In such event, the sdeeofy*] periods section (a) of the addendum shall not laegéd unless it this
would cause an inequitable result, in which caseptirties will agree in good faith upon an equéatgdhedule. If the parties disac
as to whether a change is likely to change the Néantwring line[*] , they will agree in good faith as to whether taatea new
agreement regarding acceptable [tjepursuant to Schedule “D”.

Addendum to Schedule “H”

(a) Initial Allowable Manufacturing Ling] per[*] period: the initial allowable Manufacturing liff§ shall be equal tfF] not subject to
deviation that are produced under this Agreemeimusithe allowindg*] :

[*]

[*] , then

[*] Manufacturing Ling*] : At the end of everj¥] period, the allowable manufacturing lift¢ shall be adjusted to be equaltp not subjec
to deviation that are produced under this Agreerfténtminus thg*] applicable at that time according to section (a).

(c) [*] Arrangement: th§] arrangement will start with the first batch, ttaproduced after the allowable manufacturing [fhehas been
determined based on tf#¢ initial batches pursuant to section (a).

(d) [*] Procedure: th§] calculation will consider a period of time of up[tb months by the following procedure, using the allblea
Manufacturing lind*] determined pursuant to sections (a) or (b) as equiplk:
i. If the actual Manufacturing ling] for batches Manufactured during an iniff§l month period is less than the allowed
Manufacturing lind*] , this period will[*] .
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Vi.

If the actual Manufacturing ling] for batches manufactured durindfp month period is greater than allowed Manufacturing
line [*] , [*] will be due at that time[*] at the end of the neft] month period, the actual Manufacturing I shall be
determined for batches Manufactured during[themonth period.

If the actual Manufacturing ling] for batches Manufactured during tfig month period is less than the allowed
Manufacturing lind*] , [*] for [*] Manufacturing lind*] will be [*] pursuant to Section 2.7 for sugh month period.

If the actual Manufacturing ling] for batches Manufactured during ti¢ month period i§*] the allowed Manufacturing
line[*] , [*] pursuant to Section 2.7 for tf§ between th§*] Manufacturing lind*] . With [*] for such[*] , a new period of
time with reference to g] will start.

For every*] , this[*] is[*] initially, based on an initigt] for [*] API.

As the[*] for APl may fluctuate over time, on an annual b&lisEAD may determine an adjustment to the &®Ito reflect
such[*] in the[*] month period prior to such adjustment. Such adugtPI[*] shall apply under this Schedule D solely on a

prospective basis. APO shall have the right tdtabid methodology employed by GILEAD to determareadjusted*] for
API.
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Schedule*1”

Toll Manufacturing Agreement

Yearly Minimum Volumes of Purchases

Pursuant to what is provided under Section 5.13Ra®f the Agreement, GILEAD undertakes to guaratie following yearly minimum
volumes of purchases of Bulk Products:

* Forthe Year 2003, GILEAD shall guarantee a minimuatume of purchase of [*] of Bulk Product .
* For the Year 2004, GILEAD shall guarantee a minimuotume of purchase of [*] of Bulk Product.

* For the Year 2005, GILEAD shall guarantee a minimutume of purchase of [*] of Bulk Product.

It is agreed by APO that the specified minimum volme of purchases above are subject to a potential][tolume demand [*] from
GILEAD in a given year. APO hereby confirms that GILEAD has the potentiatliscuss with APO additional volume requirements.
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Exhibit 10.68
CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAIBE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

LICENSING AGREEMENT

This LICENSING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), effectivesaf March 31, 2000 (the “Effective Date”), by aathiong GILEAD
SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware corporation with itspipal office located at 333 Lakeside Drive, Fos&idy, CA 94404 (“Gilead Sciences”),
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, NEXSTAR PHARMACEICRALS, INC., a Delaware corporation (collectivelytivGilead Sciences,
“Gilead”), and EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Dmlvare corporation with its principal offices loahtt 300 East 42nd Street,
Third Floor, New York, New York 10017 (“EyeTech"Wnless otherwise defined in this Agreement, gliitedized terms shall have the
meanings given to them in Section bflthis Agreement.

RECITALS
1. WHEREAS, Gilead owns certain patents and patenicgipns and related know-how for NX1838, and hesle certain
filings for regulatory approvals with respect to N338; and
2. WHEREAS, Gilead and EyeTech desire to enter intAlgreement and certain other agreements, inojudinagreement

providing for the fill-and-finish manufacture of aputities of Product sufficient for the completiohRhase Ib clinical trials; and

3. WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions sghfim this Agreement, Gilead wishes to licens&yeTech and
EyeTech wishes to license from Gilead all of Gilea@jhts under patents, patent applications armhkhow related to NX1838, and have
access to all regulatory approvals with respe&tXd838; and

4. WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions sghfim this Agreement, Gilead also wishes to sefEyeTech and
EyeTech wishes to purchase from Gilead its invgnodmNX1838.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto, intending ttelgally bound, hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following teghall have the meanings set forth below:

“ Affiliate " shall mean any Person that, directly or indingathrough one or more intermediaries, Owns, is €aviny or is under
common Ownership with, a Party, where “Own” or “Gaship” means (a) direct or indirect possessioat déast fifty percent (50%) of the
outstanding voting securities of a corporation epmparable ownership in any other type of Perpooyided, howevethat if the law of the
jurisdiction in which such entity operates doesaitaw fifty percent (50%) or greater ownershipaiParty, such ownership interest shall
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least forty percent (40%) or (b) that a Personroug of Persons otherwise has the unilateral glidittontrol and direct the management of
the entity, whether by contract or otherwise.

“ Business Day shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sundégnking holiday in New York City or San Francisc
California.

“ Calendar Quartet shall mean a calendar quarter (i.e., period téeh(3) consecutive months) ending on March 31¢ Ain
September 30 or December 31.

“ Calendar Yeat shall mean any period of twelve (12) consecutienths ending on December 31.

“ Competitive Product shall mean a product competitive with a Product.

“ Compulsory Licensé means a compulsory license under the Licenseen®abbtained by a Third Party through the ordecrek,
or grant of a governmental authority of competensgiction, authorizing such Third Party to maruatfae, use, sell, offer for sale or import a
Competitive Product in one or more countries witthie Territory.

“ Control”, “ Controls”, and “ Controlled’ shall mean, with respect to a particular iteminébrmation or intellectual property right,
that the applicable Party owns or has a licenseieh item or right and has the ability to granth other Party access to and a license or
sublicense (as applicable) under such item orsightprovided for in this Agreement without vialgtithe terms of any agreement or other
arrangement with any Third Party.

“ Damages' shall mean any and all costs, losses, claimbiliiees, fines, penalties, damages and expengest costs, and
reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel, ltanmsiand expert witnesses incurred by a Partgtb€mcluding any interest payments
which may be imposed in connection therewith).

“ Delivery Dateé shall mean the date that is ten (10) days afteEffextive Date.
“ Effective Date” shall have the meaning given such term in th&t Bentence of this Agreement.

“ EU " shall mean Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finlandakece, Germany, Greece, Ireland, Italy, Luxemboting, Netherlands,
Portugal, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom fanole members of the European Union (or its ssg8, upon their admission for full
membership (with commercial rights and privilegebstantially comparable to those of the foregoiogntries).

“ EyeTech Rights shall mean any invention or inventions, patergad not, know-how, information and/or data relgtia the
Product, including, without limitation, pre-clinicstudies and clinical trial information, manufagty processes, formulations, modes of
delivery and/or data necessary for the manufactige or sale of the Product, which are Controlle&yeTech during the term of this
Agreement, and all Patents covering any of thegfmireg which are Controlled by EyeTech during thentef this Agreement.

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAKE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.




“ EDA " shall mean the United States Food and Drug Adstriafion, or any successor thereto.

“ Field ” shall mean the prevention and treatment of athan and other animal diseases and conditions,@réssly excluding in
vivo and in vitro diagnostic applications.

“ First Commercial Salé shall mean, with respect to any particular coynttne first sale of a Product in such country lygEech, or
any of its Affiliates or sublicensees, after Regut Approvals in such country have been grantethfthe relevant Regulatory Authority in
such country for such Product.

“ GAAP " shall mean United States generally accepted adtgayprinciples, consistently applied.

“ Indemnified Party’ shall have the meaning given in Section 7.2 hiereo

“ Indemnifying Party’ shall have the meaning given in Section 7.2 hiereo

“ Know-How " shall mean all ideas, materials, inventions (leetpatentable or not), trade secrets, data, ttgins, processes,
formulas, expert opinion and information, includimgthout limitation, the Manufacturing Informati@nd biological, chemical,
pharmacological, toxicological, physical and anabl safety, manufacturing and quality controledand information, in each case within the
Field, that, as of the Effective Date are (i) érigt and (ii) Controlled by Gilead as of the EfigetDate, in each case which is necessary or
useful for the development, manufacture, use, ad®mmercialization of the Product in the Fielekcluded from Know-How are any
Patents, the Licensed Patents and the Transfesset#\

“ License” shall mean the license granted by Gilead to EgbTmursuant to Section 2.1.

“ Licensed Patentsshall mean any Patents listed in Exhibit D (adatpd from time to time pursuant to Section 5.6icitlaim the
manufacture, use, import, offer for sale or salPmfducts in accordance with this Agreement anatlwhow or at any time during the term of
this Agreement are Controlled by Gilead or any lfdfe of Gilead.

“ Major Countries’ shall mean Canada, France, Germany, Italy, J&@aain, United Kingdom and the United States.

“ Manufacturing Informatiori shall mean copies of all existing informationvimitten and electronic form in Gilead’s possession
control as of the Effective Date, with respectig 8roduct existing as of the Effective Date, tieddtes to, in the Field: (1) processes for the
production of NX1838, and intermediates in the prafion of a Product; (2) the in-process analyticaitrols for production of each of: (a)
NX1838; and (b) a Product; (3) the process, fortitsand development reports generated for thegpagion of a Product; (4) the analyti
methods and validation for the quality control asle of each of: (a) NX1838; and (b) a Product;(&hnthe stability protocols, stability
indicating methods and stability data for each (@) NX1838; and (b) a Product.
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“NDA " shall mean a New Drug Application filed with tRA requesting market approval for a new drug pobddu

“ Net Sales’ shall mean, with respect to the Product, the gamount billed or invoiced by EyeTech, its Affida or sublicensees, to
unrelated Third Parties for the Products in fingpeoduct form, less the following deductions:

(@) trade, quantity and cash discounts allowed, butesgly excluding discounts or allowances offerefdaas of a
package of products that includes a Product solBy®Tech, its Affiliates or sublicensees;

(b) refunds, chargebacks and any other allowances vdfifebtively reduce the net selling price;
(c) actual product returns, credits and allowances;
(d) rebates actually paid or credited to any governalegency (or branch thereof) or to any Third Ppgyor,

administrator or contractee;

(e) discounts mandated by, or granted to meet the nemgents of, applicable state, provincial or fed&ai,
wholesaler, including required chargebacks anaaetive price reductions;

® transportation, freight, postage charges and atha@rges such as insurance, relating thereto, im ezse included
as a specific line item on an invoice to such TiHedties; and

(9) taxes, excises or other governmental charges uporeasured by the production, sale, transportatielivery or
use of goods, in each case included as a speoificttm on an invoice to such Third Parties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, amounts receivedepgTech, or its Affiliates or sublicensees, for ade of Products among EyeTech ant
Affiliates or sublicensees for resale shall notriiduded in the computation of Net Sales hereundiiat Sales shall be determined from books
and records maintained in accordance with GAAPthénevent the Product is sold as part of a conibm@roduct, or as part of bundled
products or as part of a delivery system, the Nd#<Sfrom the combination product, bundled produatelivery system, for the purposes of
determining royalty payments, shall be determingdltiplying the Net Sales (as defined withoutaefjto this paragraph) of the
combination product by the fraction, A/(A+B) whekds the average sale price of the Product whet separately in finished form and B is
the average sale price of the other product(systesm sold separately in finished form, or, onlthi value of B cannot be determined, where
A+B is the average sales price of the product(d)thae delivery system together. If the value afa® be determined, in no event will the
sales price of any combination product, bundledlipob or delivery system product be less than tine sUA and B. In the event that such
average sale price cannot be determined for betfPthduct and such other product(s) or systemrmbauation, the following calculation

shall be substituted for the calculation recitegijnof the preceding sentence: the Net Salesiédimed without regard
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to this paragraph) of the combination productsidfemultiplied by the fraction C/(C+D) where CHgeTech’s cost of goods of the Product
and D is EyeTech’s cost of goods for the other pet@) or system, determined in accordance withrtethod of accounting normally
employed by EyeTech in computing cost of goquieyided, howevethat the minimum value of such fraction as usetthéncalculation of
Net Sales shall be 0.

“NX1838" shall mean Gilead’s proprietary compound knowiNx4.838, as described in Exhibit A.

“ Party” shall mean either Gilead or EyeTech, and “ Paft&hall mean both of Gilead and EyeTech.

“ Patents’ shall mean patents and patent applications, bo#tigio and domestic, including without limitatiorl, @xtensions, reissue
renewals, reexaminations, patents of addition, lempentary protection certificates and inventorstiieates thereof, substitutions,

provisionals, divisionals, continuations and comdtions-in-part.

“ Person” shall mean a natural person, a corporation, tnpeship, a trust, a joint venture, a limited ligpicompany, any
governmental authority or any other entity or oiigation.

“ Pivotal Clinical Trial” shall mean either (a) a trial on sufficient numibef patients that is designed to establish that a
pharmaceutical product is safe and efficacioustéontended use, and to define warnings, precastamd adverse reactions that are assoi
with the pharmaceutical product in the dosage raodee prescribed, and to support Regulatory Apgiro’such pharmaceutical product or
label expansion of such pharmaceutical produdthpa clinical trial that began as a trial on stifint numbers of patients that is designed to
establish the safety and biological activity offepmaceutical product for its intended use, ardefime warnings, precautions and adverse
reactions that are associated with the pharmaedyioduct in the dosage range to be prescribéet, sdich date as the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration or its successor (or equivalent tatpry authority) has indicated that the applica®éety may reasonably continue such trials
with the intention to establish that a pharmacealificoduct is safe and efficacious for its intended, and to define warnings, precautions
adverse reactions that are associated with themawautical product in the dosage range to be pbestrand to support Regulatory Approval
of such pharmaceutical product or label expansisuch pharmaceutical product.

“ Product” shall mean any pharmaceutical composition coirigi?NX1838 in any formulation, dosage concentrattorolume,
together with all label expansions, line extensiang improvements thereon, which may be includeahinsupplement, modification or
addition to the filings for Regulatory Approval tfe foregoing compound.

“ Product Data Packadeshall include the following information and datéated to the Product in the possession or confr@lilead
as of the Effective Date: (a) the Regulatory Doeunts; (b) pre-clinical and clinical developmenttpawls, data, and reports; (c)
manufacturing development technical reports; (gictdogy reports; and (e) such other informatiod data specifically identified in Exhibit
B attached hereto.




“ Product Inventory shall mean the NX1838 and Product inventory, utktor finished form, which Gilead Controls as bét
Effective Date, as identified in Exhibit &tached hereto.

“ Reasonable Diligencéshall mean commercially reasonable efforts toaliew, obtain Regulatory Approval, and/or commeiz@&!
as applicable, a Product in a country in the Tenyitconsistent with accepted business practicddegal requirements, and comparable to
efforts in the pharmaceutical industry applicablel€velopment, obtaining of Regulatory Approval farcommercialization of human
pharmaceutical products at an equivalent stagewéldpment and similar market potential, profitgmdial and strategic value in view of
conditions then prevailing.

“ Regulatory Approval shall mean (a) in the United States, approvatlheyFDA of an NDA, or equivalent application, for
marketing approval and satisfaction of any relateplicable FDA registration and notification reguirents (if any) and (b) in any country
other than the United States, all approvals (indgény required marketing, pricing and reimbursenapprovals) by the Regulatory
Authority in such country of a single applicationset of applications comparable to an NDA, enaplégal sale of a product in such country.

“ Regulatory Authority’ shall mean the FDA in the United States or theiesjent governmental agency having jurisdictiorminy
other country in the Territory.

“ Regulatory Documentsshall mean the (a) United States investigatioreal drug application (the “IND”) #56503 (dated JaB,
1998), and all amendments and annual reports te;sé) any pediatric data package or other exdlyséxtensions relating to Products; and
(c) any other regulatory filings with Regulatory tharities relating to the Product.

“ Royalty Term” shall mean, with respect to each country in whechduct is sold, the period of time equal to thrgler of (i)[*]
years from the date of First Commercial Sale ofRheduct in such country, or (ii) the expirationtloé las-to-expire Licensed Patent in such
country that claims the manufacture, use, andlerafasuch Product as such activities are carrigcparsuant to this Agreement.

“ Territory " shall mean the world, unless the License terngimatith respect to a country pursuant to Secti@nib.which case the
Territory shall exclude any country in which theémnse has so terminated.

“ Third Party” shall mean a Person other than EyeTech, Gileddeir Affiliates.

“ Transferred Assetsshall mean the Product Inventory and the Profata Package.
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SECTION 2
GRANT OF LICENSES AND TRANSFER AND DELIVERY OF TRAN SFERRED
ASSETS AND MANUFACTURING INFORMATION

2.1 Grant of License Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, during the term of this Agreement, Gileacchgr
grants to EyeTech an exclusive license under tberlsed Patents and Know How to make, have madeseleoffer to sell, import and
export the Product within the Field throughout Tregritory, with a right to sublicense to its Affilies or (subject to Section 2.4) to any other
Person.

2.2 Transferred Assets As of the Effective Date, Gilead hereby assigrassfers and conveys to EyeTech all of Gilsadjht,
titte and interest in and to the Transferred Aséaibject to Section 4.5(c)), and EyeTech herelogis such assignment, transfer and
conveyance. On or before the Delivery Date, Gilglzall have delivered to EyeTech all of the Tramsfit Assets and the Manufacturing
Information. EyeTech shall have up to ten (10)dafyer such delivery to inventory the deliverednaferred Assets and Manufacturing
Information and to give notice to Gilead of any fisgerred Assets and Manufacturing Information thate not so delivered. If Gilead
receives notice or otherwise learns after the [@eji\Date that it has failed to deliver any TransdrAssets or Manufacturing Information to
EyeTech, Gilead shall provide to EyeTech any suamdferred Assets or Manufacturing Information aiet than five (5) Business Days a
receipt of such notice or knowledge (or within starfiger time as is mutually agreed by EyeTech aileb@). The clinical data portion of the
Product Data Package shall be provided to EyeTrecbmputer-readable format, where available, ahdratise in printed format. Gilead
shall be under no obligation to convert to eledtrdarmat any portion of the Product Data Packdge turrently is available only in printed
format. In the event that EyeTech is unwillingumable to assume physical possession of the TraedfAssets and Manufacturing
Information by the Effective Date, Gilead shalldrditled to charge EyeTech a reasonable fee foageoof the Transferred Assets and
Manufacturing Information beyond the Effective Datgilead shall ship the Transferred Assets to EghTF.O.B. to EyeTech’s designated
facilities. For a period of 90 days following theceipt by EyeTech of the Transferred Assets anduféecturing Information, Gilead
personnel shall be reasonably available duringa@ikenormal business hours to respond to techimiqairies of EyeTech regarding Products
as is reasonably requested by EyeTech. EyeTectoatddges that Gilead makes no representationsoanties with respect to the
Transferred Assets or Manufacturing Informatiorhéotthan as expressly set forth in Section 5 bebowd) that it accepts such Transferred
Assets and Manufacturing Information “as is.”

2.3 Negative Covenant of EyeTechEyeTech shall not use or practice Licensed RatarKnow-How outside the Field or
outside the Territory or for any other purpose @xeetivities that it conducts in compliance witlistAgreement.

2.4 Sublicenses EyeTech shall have the right to sublicenseitemtes granted to it by Gilead under this Agreeémahout
the consent of Gileaghrovidedthat (i) prompt notice and a copy of such sublieesisall be given by EyeTech to Gilead pursuaneitiGn
8.2 of this Agreement; (ii) EyeTech shall remaitigdited at all times under this Agreement withagard to whether it has sublicensed its
rights or whether EyeTech’s sublicensee has peddrttiii) such sublicense shall name Gilead asrd tharty beneficiary of such sublicense;
and (iv) any such sublicenses granted by EyeTeal @bntain provisions providing for its terminatior assignment to Gilead, at the option
of Gilead, of EyeTech’s interest therein upon texation of this Agreement, and shall further confaiovisions which obligate such
sublicensee to comply




with such terms, conditions, agreements and olidigatthat are consistent with the terms, conditiagseements and obligations to which
EyeTech is subject under this Agreement.

2.5 Gilead Right of First NegotiationExcept as otherwise provided in this Section @ifsad shall have a right of first
negotiation with respect obtaining all rights wifspect to any Product which is, or which can reably be expected to bg] (a “Reversion
Product”) as follows: Eyetech shall notify Gileiadwriting if Eyetech intends to seek, negotiatesalicit offers to license a Third Party to
commercialize the Reversion Product for the treatroe preventiorf*] (the “Reversion Field”) and a specific territorji§t“Reversion
Territory”), prior to contacting any such potenfidird Party licensees. Such written notice simallude sufficient detailed technical
information concerning the Reversion Product as#silmay reasonably require to evaluate its intémesich Reversion Product. Within
thirty (30) days after receiving Eyetech’s notiset@a the Reversion Product, Gilead shall notifytEgk whether it is interested in negotiating
with Eyetech the terms under which Gilead shalaoba license from Eyetech to research, developcanmimercialize Reversion Products as
described herein. If Gilead provides such notiee,Rarties shall negotiate exclusively and in dgadtti for a period of up to ninety (90) days
after Eyetech receives Gilead’s notice of inte(dst “Negotiation Period”) the terms of an agreehpmnsuant to which Eyetech will grant to
Gilead and its Affiliates an exclusive, royalty-bieg, sublicensable license, under all Eyetech Kittnw and Eyetech Patents relating to ¢
Reversion Product, to research, develop, make, imagke, use, import, offer for sale, sell and oth@wommercialize such Reversion
Product within the Reversion Field within the Resien Territory, and which agreement shall includmmercially reasonable provisions for
transfer of or access to relevant regulatory fdimgd technology to Gilead. Neither Gilead nor Egletshall have any obligation to actually
enter into a license agreement with respect to Reslersion Product. If either Gilead does not ragddo Eyetech’s notice of intent to license
the Reversion Product within thirty (30) days afBélead’s receipt thereof, or Gilead and Eyetedhideagree upon the terms of a license
under rights to the Reversion Product during thgadtiation Period, Eyetech shall be free to comnadime such Reversion Product by itsel
through its Affiliates or Third Parties without ther obligation to Gilead.

SECTION 3
PAYMENTS AND DELIVERIES

In consideration of the exclusive license grantexkim and the transfer of ownership of the TramsteAssets, EyeTech shall pay the
following amounts to Gilead:

3.1 Initial Payments and Deliveries

(@) On or before Tuesday, April 4, 2000, EyeTech shajyl to Gilead the sum §f] United States Dollars (US¥] )
by Federal Reserve electronic wire transfer in imdiaiely available funds to an account designate@ibyad. Such amount shall be non-
refundable and non-creditable, and shall not b@gstulo any counterclaim or set-off.

(b) On or before the Effective Date, EyeTech and Gilgai@nces shall enter into a Warrant Agreement‘“{i¥arrant
Agreement”) mutually satisfactory to both Parties




pursuant to which EyeTech shall issue to Gilea@i8m®s a warrant to purchase EyeTech Series B Rr@fgtock.

(c) On or before the Delivery Date, Gilead shall daliteeEyeTech (i) all of the Transferred Assets parg to Sectio
2.2 of this Agreement; (ii) all of the Manufactugiinformation pursuant to Section 2.2 of this Agneat; and (iii) a schedule (“Schedule of
Transferred Assets and Manufacturing Informaticsefting forth each of the Transferred Assets andWecturing Information being
delivered to EyeTech at such time.

(d) Within ten (10) days of delivery of the Transferrsssets and the Manufacturing Information and ef$ithedule
of Transferred Assets and Manufacturing Informapansuant to Section 3.1(c) above, EyeTech shadlitory the delivered Transferred
Assets and Manufacturing Information pursuant tctifa 2.2 and shall either (i) deliver to Gileadeaeipt acknowledging the receipt of each
of the Transferred Assets and the Manufacturingrmétion set forth on the Schedule of Transferredefs and Manufacturing Informatior
(i) notify Gilead of any Transferred Assets or Miéacturing Information that Gilead did not delivirGilead receives notice or otherwise
learns after the Delivery Date that it has failedieliver any Transferred Assets or Manufacturimigrimation to EyeTech, Gilead shall
provide to EyeTech any such Transferred Assetsam¥hcturing Information no later than five (5) Biess Days after receipt of such notice
or knowledge (or within such longer time as is nalljuagreed by EyeTech and Gilead). Within ten) d&ys of Gilead delivering such
missing items to EyeTech following notice giventbyeTech pursuant to clause (i) of this Sectior{d,1EyeTech shall deliver the receipt
described in clause (i) of this Section 3.1(d).

3.2 Milestone Payments Within five (5) Business Days of EyeTech andietffiliates or sublicensees achieving the first
occurrence of each of the milestone events lisetovbwith respect to any Product, EyeTech shalfy@ilead of such achievement and the
date thereof, and within thirty (30) days of theéedaf such achievement, pay the one-time non-refoledfees specified below to Gilead by
Federal Reserve electronic wire transfer in imntetifaavailable funds to an account designated bgadi provided, however, that in no e\
shall the following fees be payable more than omitle respect to Products for any particular geobjiegd area or Milestone:

Milestone Fee

First[*] with respect to a Produ (]
("]
[*]
[*]
("]
[*]

First[*] with respect to a Produ
First[*] with respect to a Produ
First[*] with respect to a Produ

First[*] with respect to a Produ

€@ B B B B

First[*] with respect to a Produ




3.3 Royalties.

€)) Royalty on Products EyeTech shall pay Gilead a royalty payment oh$&des of Products that are made or sold
during the Royalty Term and that are sold by EyéiTd@s Affiliates or sublicensees (the “Royalty§carding to the following rates, as
adjusted in accordance with Sections 3.3(b) below:

() [*] percent (*] %) of Net Sales in the United States for the fitfstdollars ($[*] ) in Net Sales in the
United States in a given Calendar Year;

(i) [*] percent (*] %) of Net Sales in the United States for the figxdollars ($[*] ), up to and including,
[*] dollars ($[*] ) in Net Sales during the same Calendar Year;

(iii) [*] percent (*] %) of Net Sales in the United States in exceg§]adollars ($[*] ) during the same
Calendar Year; and

(iv) [*] percent (*] %) of Net Sales outside the United States in thees@alendar Year.

By way of example, if, in the year 2005, EyeTech Sales in the United States were equdfjtalollars ($[*] ), and[*] dollars ($
[*] ) outside the United States, then the Royalty pleyebGilead hereunder would eqUfgl dollars ($[*] ), calculated in the following
manner:

Amount of Net Sales Royalty Rate Royalty
First $[*] (United States % $ [*]
Next $[*] (United States % $ [*]
Next $[*] (United States [*1% $ [*]
$[*] (outside United States % $ [*]
Total Royalty $ [*]

By way of further example, if, thugh the second Calendar Quarter in the year 20057 &ch Net Sales in the United States were
equal to[*] dollars ($[*] ), and[*] dollars ($[*] ) outside the United States, then the Royalty pleybGilead hereunder after such Calendar
Quarter would equdt] dollars ($[*] ), calculated in the following manner:

Amount of Net Sales Royalty Rate Royalty
First $[*] (United States 1% $ [*]
Next $[*] (United States 1% $ [*]
$[*] (outside United States 1% $ [*
Total Royalty $ [*]
(b) Offset. Notwithstanding the forgoing, on a country byiotyy and Product by Product basis, EyeTech magitcre

against Net Sald3] percent (*] %) of any royalties it must pay to any Third Pastyany Product: (1) pursuant to any licenses sacgdo
practice the License; or (2) resulting from anigétion (including settlement thereof) under
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Section 6.16; providediowever, for purposes of this Section 3.3(b) that the impple royalty rates used for calculation of Ragalpayable
to Gilead shall not be reduced to less tfthmpercent (*] %) of the royalty rates(s) otherwise applicablespant to Section 3.3(a).

3.4 Payment; Report All Royalties payable to Gilead under this Agremt shall be paid in U.S. dollars within sixty @ays
of the end of each Calendar Quarter or as othersyiseifically provided herein by Federal Resereetebnic wire transfer in immediately
available funds to an account designated by Gilgstdhe time of payment of Royalties, EyeTech kkahd to Gilead a statement with res
to the applicable Calendar Quarter, country by tgusnd Product by Product, for EyeTech, its Affits and sublicensees, of the amount of
aggregate worldwide gross sales and Net Salesntlogint of gross sales during such Calendar Quaridtemized calculation of Net Sales
showing deductions provided for in the definitidriNet Sales and in Section 3.3(b), and, on a cutivel&asis for the current Calendar Year,
the amount of Royalties or other payments due ch sales.

3.5 Exchange Rate; Manner and Place of Payment

€)) All payments due hereunder from time to time shalpaid in U.S. Dollars. For purposes of compusingh
payments, the Net Sales of Product in countriesrdtian the United States shall be converted ing& Dollars as computed using the avel
monthly rate of exchange at the time for such qwies as the rate applicable to the transfer addlarising from payments as published ir
Wall Street Journal (New York edition). The currgmonversion system used by EyeTech shall be sutgjeidit by Gilead as described in
Section 3.6 and, if not determined to be a systftaating the fair market value of the currenciegjiiestion, shall be modified as necessa
effect currency conversion at fair market value.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 3.5(&hyi reason of any restrictive exchange laws oulaipns,
EyeTech shall be unable to convert to U.S. Dollaesamount, determined as above, equivalent tartt@unt due by EyeTech hereunder, t
EyeTech shall so notify Gilead promptly and provaateexplanation of the circumstances. In suchteweTech shall make all such
payments or the balance thereof due hereunder hiathws not paid in foreign currency as providetble in U.S. Dollars as soon as
reasonably possible after and to the extent that sestrictive exchange laws or regulations atedifo as to permit EyeTech to pay amounts
due under this Section 3.5 in U.S. Dollars. EyéiTgtall promptly notify Gilead if such restrictioase so lifted. At its option Gilead shall
meanwhile have the right to request the paymerit ¢oto its nominee), and, upon request, EyeTs#ddll pay or cause to be paid amounts
(or such portions thereof as are specified by @jléathe currency of any other country designdmgdsilead and legally available to EyeTz
under the then-existing laws of regulations. Aayments shall be payable to Gilead by wire trarsfauch bank in the United States as
Gilead Sciences shall specify from time to timeot Mss than one (1) Business Day prior to suck wansfer, the remitting party shall tele
the receiving party advising it of the amount afithe payment to be made.

3.6 Audits. EyeTech and its Affiliates and sublicensees|teap full and accurate books and records reldtrtpe financial
performance of the Product. During the term of thi
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Agreement plus four (4) years after terminatioexpiration of this Agreement, Gilead shall haverigat, during regular business hours and
upon reasonable advance notice, to have such lamokeecords audited by an independent certifiedwatant so as to verify the accuracy of
the information previously reported to Gilead. Sutformation shall be deemed to be Proprietargrimfation of EyeTech and, as such,
subject to confidentiality obligations pursuanSection 6.3. The independent certified account keap confidential any Proprietary
Information obtained during such audit and shalbréto Gilead only the amounts of Royalties dué payable. The cost of such audit shall
be borne by Gilead; however, in the event suchtaadeals that the Royalties to Gilead constituteaderpayment of five percent (5%) or
more from that revealed by the audit to be actualgd, the cost of the audit shall be borne by EeghT EyeTech shall include in all
sublicenses granted as permitted under Sectioaratidit provision substantially similar to thedgoing requiring the sublicensee to keep
full and accurate books and records relating tdPteeluct and granting Gilead the right to auditabeuracy of the information reported by
sublicensee in connection therewith on the sanmesters apply to an audit of EyeTech’s records heleunThe terms of this Section 3.6 shall
survive any termination or expiration or terminatiaf this Agreement for a period of four (4) years.

3.7 Withholding Taxes Any and all taxes levied on account of royalyments paid or owed from a country in which
provision is made in the law or by regulation fathlolding will be deducted from royalty paymentg@Gilead hereunder. EyeTech shall
cooperate with Gilead to claim exemption from sdeluctions or withholdings under any double taxatiosimilar agreement in force from
time to time.

3.8 Sublicensee ObligationsIn the event EyeTech sublicenses its right toesBroduct, such sublicense shall include an
obligation for the sublicensee to account for aebrt its Net Sales of Products and provide thiga@ishall have audit rights therefor
pursuant to this Section 3 on the same basisaaglf sales were Net Sales of Products by EyeTadhEgeTech shall pay royalty payment
Gilead as if the Net Sales of the sublicensee WNeteSales of EyeTech.

3.9 Late Payments Any amounts not paid by EyeTech when due urtdsrAgreement shall be subject to interest from and
including the date payment is due through and @tiolyithe date upon which Gilead has collected imatety available funds in an account
designated by Gilead at a rate equal to the sumvapercent (2%) plus the prime rate of interegitgd in the Money Rates section of The
Wall Street Journal, calculated daily on the basis 360-day year, or similar reputable data sauide special notice by Gilead to EyeTech
of such interest due shall be required.

3.10 Compulsory Licenself either Party learns that a Third Party hasaote#d a Compulsory License in any country in the
Territory, such Party shall promptly notify the ettParty of such occurrence. If the royalty reaggble by the grantee of the Compulsory
License is less than the royalty rates applicabkuch country set forth in Section 3.3 of this @égment, then the applicable royalty rates set
forth in Section 3.3 of this Agreement shall beusstl to the lower royalty rates applicable in scehintry pursuant to such Compulsory
License for so long
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as sales of a Competitive Product are made by aingd Party pursuant to the Compulsory License.

SECTION 4
TERM OF AGREEMENT; TERMINATION

4.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upergffective Date and, unless sooner terminatgu@sded in
this Section 4, expire on the expiration of all Bity Terms for all Products.

4.2 Licenses upon Expiration In the event that the Agreement expires asostt in Section 4.1 above without early
termination, the License shall automatically becpatdyeTech’s election made at least 90 days prisuch expiration, either (i) an
exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-bearing licensegjsat to the surviving provisions of the Agreemeaatuse and/or sublicense the use of Know
How to make, have made, use, import, have impoa#el, for sale, sell, and have sold Product(dhanField in the Territory as it exists at
time of such expiration, subject to payment by Ea@vto Gilead of a royalty equal [t percent (*] %) of Net Sales of Products made
pursuant to the license under this Section 4.2y ghe expiration of this Agreement, or (ii) amexclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free, paid-up
license, subject to the surviving provisions oftAgreement, to use and/or sublicense the use ofvktow to make, have made, use, import,
have imported, offer for sale, sell, and have goduct(s) in the Field in the Territory as it éxiat the time of such expiration.

4.3 Termination for Breach Each Party shall have the right to terminate A&greement and its obligations hereunder for
material breach by the other Party, which breaataias uncured for sixty (60) days after writtenic@is provided to the breaching Party, or
in the case of an obligation to pay royalty paymentother amounts owing under this Agreement, wbieach remains uncured for thirty
(30) days after written notice to the breachingyarovided, however, that non-payment of any hyyamounts or other payments owing
under this Agreement, for which the non-paying Peeisonably disputes the obligation or amountgadat, shall not be deemed a breach of
an obligation to pay royalty payments or other antswwing under this Agreement, provided that the-paying Party has paid all such
amounts not in reasonable dispute.

4.4 Termination in Event of Patent Challeng8ilead shall have the right to terminate thise@@nent if EyeTech challenges
the validity of the Licensed Patents within any oy in the Territory, effective thirty (30) dayfier EyeTech’s receipt of written notice of
such termination by Gilead.

45 Reversion of Product Rights

€)) Termination of Agreementlin the event that this Agreement is terminatedspant to Sections 4.3 or 4.4 above,
other than for Gilead’s material breach of this égmnent, the License shall terminate immediatelynugah termination.
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(b) Loss of License Rights in Countryln the event that EyeTech permanently losesgid to use and sell Products
in any country other than by reason of any actiofaiture to act on the part of Gilead or any patying on behalf of Gilead, the License s
terminate with respect to such country.

(c) Transfer of Rights With respect to any and all countries in whigleEech'’s license rights are terminated
pursuant to Sections 4.5(a), 4.5(b), or 6.7(b)s(igh country(ies) shall automatically be removedfthe Territory; (ii) EyeTech hereby
grants to Gilead an exclusive, freely sublicenstibénse under the EyeTech Rights, which licensdl sle royalty-free and paidp, subject t
Section 4.5(d), to make, have made, use, impdar &r sale, sell and otherwise research, devat@pcommercialize formulations of the
NX1838 in such countries, and Gilead covenantgmptactice such license until the actual termoratf EyeTec’s license rights as to such
countries pursuant to Sections 4.5(a) or (b); EieTech shall assign all of its right, title antkrest in and to, and shall cooperate in the
transfer of all of, the following related to Prodsito the extent that EyeTech Controlled such duttie term of this Agreement: (A) INDs and
Regulatory Approvals, (B) all pre-clinical and dtial development protocols, data, and reports dherénformation and data (with any
clinical data to be in computer-readable formaterehavailable, and otherwise in printed formathwid obligation of EyeTech to convert to
electronic format any portion of such clinical d#tat currently is available only in printed formdC) manufacturing development technical
reports, (D) toxicology reports, and (E) such othésrmation and data specifically identified intikit B or of such type (the preceding (A),
(B), (C), (D) and (E) constituting the “Updated Euct Data Package”), (iv) EyeTech shall deliveGitead copies of all information, records
and data that it Controls that are reasonably secgdor the research, development and commeratadiz of Products, including without
limitation all clinical data relating to Producfeyward to Gilead samples of all chemical and hjodal materials acquired, made, cloned,
synthesized, first discovered or collected as alre$ research development or commercializatioR@fducts and reasonable necessary to
continue the research, development and commeraimliz of Products, and take such other actionseardute such other instruments,
assignments and documents as may be necessafgdbtké transfer of rights and materials hereuna@&ilead; and (v) EyeTech shall
provide assistance reasonably requested by Gitgaalferiod of ninety (90) days following the dafanotice of termination to facilitate the
exercise of the license granted to Gilead in Secti&(c)(ii).

(d) Royalties. Any license granted to Gilead pursuant to Secti&ifc) shall be subject to payment of a royalty to
EyeTech on a country-by-country basis at a ratealegu (i) if such license is granted after iniidat of Pivotal Clinical Trials for a Product
applicable to such countrff] percent (*] %) of Gilead’s net sales of Products in such caouymr (ii) if such license is granted on or afteet
first Regulatory Approval of Product in such coynft] percent (*] %) of Gilead’s net sales of Products in such cauntr

4.6 Accrued Rights and Obligations; Survivallermination or expiration of this Agreement &ty reason shall be without
prejudice to any rights which shall have accruethébenefit of either Party prior to such termimtor expiration, including damages arising
from any breach hereunder. The following provisiofnthis Agreement shall survive the expirationesmination of this Agreement:
Sections 2.3, 4.2,4.6,5, 6.3,6.4,6.5,6.9,@)15.12, 6.18,
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7, 8. The following provisions of this Agreemehta#l survive the expiration of this Agreement te #xtent that the license granted to
EyeTech pursuant to Section 4.2 is in effect: $esti3.4 through 3.9, 4.3, 4.5, 6.2, 6.7(d), §, B8, 6.11(b), 6.11(c), 6.11(d), 6.13, 6.16 and
6.17(a).

SECTION 5
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

5.1 Corporate Existence and Poweks of the Effective Date, each Party representsvearrants to the other that it (a) is a
corporation duly organized, validly existing andgmod standing under the laws of the state in whihincorporated, and (b) has full
corporate power and authority and the legal righiwn and operate its property and assets andty @a its business as it is now being
conducted and as contemplated in this Agreemecityding, without limitation, the right to grant thieenses granted hereunder.

5.2 Authority and Binding AgreementAs of the Effective Date, each Party representsvearrants to the other that it (a) has
the corporate power and authority and the legalt ig enter into this Agreement and perform itdgdilons hereunder, (b) has taken all
necessary corporate action on its part requireditborize the execution and delivery of the Agreetaad the performance of its obligations
hereunder, and (c) the Agreement has been dulyutecdand delivered on behalf of such Party, andtitoes a legal, valid and binding
obligation of such Party and is enforceable agairistaccordance with its terms.

5.3 Title . As of the Effective Date, each Party representsvearrants to the other that it has sufficienaleand/or beneficial
title under its intellectual property rights necaysto perform activities contemplated under thiggement and to grant the licenses contained
in this Agreement and other ownership rights coedepursuant to this Agreement

5.4 No Conflict. Each Party represents and warrants to the diheitthas not entered, and will not enter, intp agreement
with any Third Party which is in conflict with threghts granted to the other Party under this Ageetmand has not taken and will not take
any action that would in any way prevent it fronamging the rights granted to the other Party utlliesrAgreement, or that would otherwise
materially conflict with or adversely affect thghis granted to the other Party under this Agreémen

55 No Approvals or Consents Requiredeach Party represents and warrants to the tdtheall necessary consents, approvals
and authorizations of all governmental authoritied other persons or entities required to be obthlny such Party in order to enter into this
Agreement have been obtained.

5.6 Patents Gilead represents and warrants to EyeTech thaxklibit D, Gilead has in good faith supplied a gdete list of al
Patents it Controls as of the Effective Date, that,for the grant of the License, would be infeddoy the manufacture, use or sale of
Products in the Field. If EyeTech reasonably deiees that any Patent Controlled by Gilead or affilidte of Gilead as of the Effective
Date should be added to Exhibit D because EyeTeunhtsufacture, use or sale of Products would in&isgch Patent, then there shall be no
deemed breach of Gilead’s representations and mt&san this Section 5.6 until after the partiegotiate in
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good faith regarding the addition of any such Patieixhibit D without any additional financial adpation and are unable to reach agreement
on such addition of such Patent.

5.7 No Conflict. Each Party represents and warrants to the tihethe execution and delivery of the Agreemensiagh
Party and the performance of such Party’s obligatisereunder (a) do not conflict with or violate aaquirement of applicable law or
regulation or any provision of articles of incorption or bylaws of such Party in any material wayd (b) do not conflict with, violate or
breach or constitute a default or require any catngeder, any contractual obligation or court omadstrative order by which such Party is
bound.

5.8 Regulatory Documents Gilead represents and warrants to EyeTech that:

(@) Gilead has furnished EyeTech with access to a ceteagbpy of the United States Regulatory Documfamtthe
Product, including all material amendments and &ippnts thereto;

(b) the Regulatory Documents have been accepted byGaead has received no notice that the Regulatory
Documents are not in good standing with, the relefRegulatory Authorities;

(c) to its knowledge, Gilead has filed with the relevMBegulatory Authorities all required notices, sigppental
applications and annual or other reports, includidgerse experience reports, with respect to tlgeiRery Documents which are material;

(d) Gilead has received no written notice of any reiguiaaction by the relevant Regulatory Authoritigsich may
reasonably be expected to have a material advéesz en the ability of a Party to obtain Regulatépproval for Products based upon the
Regulatory Documents.

5.9 Manufacturing Information Gilead represents and warrants that, it haseleld or shall by the Delivery Date deliver to
EyeTech all of the Transferred Assets and the Magstufing Information.

5.10 Product Quality Gilead hereby represents and warrants tharatlut Inventory that is provided to EyeTech purdua
the terms of this Agreement has been manufactaredmpliance with all laws, rules and regulatiansl(iding without limitation, all
applicable IND applications) applicable to the coctdbf Gilead’s Phase | clinical trial for a Protluc

511 Implied Warranties EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS SECTIONGILEAD MAKES NO
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE PATENTS, LICENED PATENTS, KNOW-HOW, THE TRANSFERRED ASSETS,
PRODUCTS, ITS INVENTORY OF PRODUCTS OR NX1838, EX£%5 OR IMPLIED, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF
LAW, BY STATUTE OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMTATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSER®NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS, OR
OTHERWISE, AND GILEAD SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL IMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTIES.
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Without limiting the foregoing, EyeTech acknowleddhat it has not and is not relying upon any iegblvarranty, including without
limitation implied warranties of merchantabilitytrfess for a particular purpose, non-infringemerthad party rights, or upon any
representation or warranty whatsoever as to thepeiats (financial, regulatory or otherwise), orhédity or likelihood of success, of any
Product after the Effective Date.

SECTION 6
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES

6.1 Governmental Filings Gilead and EyeTech each agree to prepare andfiatever filings, requests or applications are
required to be filed with any governmental authpoirit connection with this Agreement and to coopermith one another as reasonably
necessary to accomplish the foregoing. Withouitiing the generality of the foregoing, prior to,within five (5) Business Days following,
the assignment, transfer and conveyance by Gile&yéTech of the Transferred Assets pursuant tad®e2.2, Gilead shall have submitted
to the relevant Regulatory Authorities the inforioatrequired of a former owner of regulatory filgwgith respect to the Product, and
EyeTech shall submit to the relevant Regulatoryhatities the information required of a new owneragulatory filings with respect to the
Product.

6.2 Compliance with Law EyeTech shall comply with all supranationaliowél, federal, state, provincial and other locabd
and regulations applicable to EyeTech’s manufacuse, development, marketing and sale of the Rtodithout limiting the generality of
the foregoing sentence, EyeTech shall not prontatd>toduct in any manner in conflict with any apatile laws or regulations.

6.3 Proprietary Information; ExceptionsEach Party will maintain all Proprietary Infortia received by it under this
Agreement in trust and confidence and will not ldise any such Proprietary Information to any TlRedty or use any such Proprietary
Information for any purposes other than those resagsor permitted for performance under this Agreein In particular, EyeTech shall not
use any Know How for the manufacture or sale of pnogluct other than a Product in the Field. EaattyPmay use such Proprietary
Information only to the extent required to accorsiplihe purposes of this Agreement. Proprietangrination shall not be used for any
purpose or in any manner that would constituteoation of any laws or regulations, including withdimitation the export control laws of
the United States. Proprietary Information shatl loe reproduced in any form except as requirettmmplish the intent of this Agreement.
No Proprietary Information shall be disclosed tg employee, agent, consultant, Affiliate, or sublisee who does not have a need for:
information. To the extent that disclosure is autted by this Agreement, the disclosing Party wfitain prior agreement, from its
employees, directors, agents, consultants, Affiiasublicensees or clinical investigators to witisolosure is permitted to be made, to
obligations to hold in confidence and not make afssuch information for any purpose other than ¢hpsrmitted by this Agreement, that are
at least as restrictive as those of this Secti8n Gach Party will use at least the same stanofacdre as it uses to protect its own Proprietary
Information of a similar nature to ensure that seiployees, agents, consultants and clinical inyestrs do not disclose or make any
unauthorized use of such Proprietary Informatian,no less than reasonable care.
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Each Party will notify the other within two (2) Basss Days upon discovery of any unauthorized usksolosure of the Proprietary
Information.

Proprietary Information shall not include any infation which, as shown by competent proof:

(@) is now, or hereafter becomes, through no act arréato act on the part of the receiving Partyeitsployees or
contractors in breach hereof, generally known ailakle;

(b) is known by the receiving Party at the time of reiog such information, as evidenced by its conterapeous
written records;

(c) is hereafter furnished to the receiving Party (had Party, as a matter of right and without rie§on on
disclosure;

(d) is independently developed by the receiving Paitiiout any breach of this Agreement, as shown begpendent,

contemporaneous, written records; or
(e) is the subject of a prior, express, written permis$o disclose provided by the disclosing Party.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sect®8, (i) the Parties agree that they shall isspeeas release promptly after close
of NASDAQ trading on Monday, April 3, 2000, whichal include key financial terms for this LicensiAgreement and the Warrant
Agreement, including the initial payment under 88t8.1(a), the aggregate milestone payments udéetion 3.2, the number and class of
shares issuable upon exercise of the warrant potrsoishe Warrant Agreement and the price per sbsech shares, but excluding the
royalty rates in Section 3.3 and elsewhere inAlgigeement, and (i) either Party may disclose secims to bona fide potential corporate
partners, to the extent required or contemplatethisyAgreement, and to financial underwriters attter Third Parties with a need to know
such information, provided that all such disclosuskall be made only to such Third Parties undaidigation of confidentiality and
appropriately limited use.

6.4 Authorized Disclosure Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agneent, each Party may disclose Proprietary
Information if such disclosure:

(@) is in response to a valid order of a court or otfmrernmental body of the United States or a foreguntry, or
any political subdivision thereof; provided, howeuhat the receiving Party shall first have givetice to the other Party hereto and shall
have made a reasonable effort to obtain a protctiger requiring that the Proprietary Informatsandisclosed be used only for the purposes
for which the order was issued;

(b) is otherwise required by governmental law, ruleegulation, including without limitation rules cegulations of
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, auleg of the National Association of Securities Bes or
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(c) is otherwise necessary to file or prosecute patpplications, prosecute or defend litigation or pbnwith
applicable governmental regulations or otherwigaldish rights or enforce obligations under thiségment, but only to the extent that any
such disclosure is necessary. Under no circumesanwdl EyeTech disclose publicly proprietary faatiof Gilead manufacturing technology
for NX1838; provided, however, that Gilead shalbperate with EyeTech to disclose such informatothe extent required to provide
EyeTech with reasonable protection from liabilitydeason of this prohibition on disclosure.

6.5 Return of Proprietary Informationin the event that the License terminates orrespiEyeTech shall promptly return all
Proprietary Information received by it from Gilead.

6.6 Expenses Gilead and EyeTech shall each bear their onectand indirect expenses incurred in connectidh thie
negotiation and preparation of this Agreement axdept as set forth in this Agreement, the perfoiceaof the obligations contemplated
hereby.

6.7 Efforts.

@ EyeTech shall use Reasonable Diligence to develaiajn Regulatory Approval for, and commercializedRict(s]
in the Territory and shall be solely responsibledi related development, regulatory and comméreiion efforts and costgrovided,
howeverwith respect to countries in the Territory that aot Major Countries (such countries, “Non-Majorudtries”), EyeTech shall have
the right to determine, on a country by countryibasing its reasonable discretion not to pursuguReory Approval in such Non-Major
Country because commercialization of the Produnbtseconomically feasible for EyeTech. EyeTecHIgiravide Gilead with written notice
of all decisions by EyeTech to not pursue develagiriRegulatory Approval or commercialization inauatry in the Territory for a Product
in the Field for any reason within thirty (30) dayfssuch decision.

(b) In the event EyeTech or its sublicensees fail weumtake Reasonable Diligence in developing, obigini
Regulatory Approval of, and/or commercializing Rrots in one or more Major Countries in the Teryit@uch failure shall (i) automatically
cause the License to terminate with respect to Majbr Country(ies) and have the consequencestifhh Section 4.5(c) with respect to
any such Major Country(ies); and (ii) shall entiBéead to terminate this Agreement for materigdmh under Section 4.3 if there have been
such failures of diligence applying to four (4)roore Major Countries, with the consequences s#t farSection 4.5(c); provideid each cas
that EyeTech (or its sublicensee) does not curk failure within ninety (90) days of written noti®@m Gilead specifying its belief that such
failure has occurred and the reasons thereforea@ishall not be entitled to exercise the foregténgrination rights if EyeTech reasonably
disputes Gilead contention that EyeTech has failed in such ResdderDiligence until after the Parties have fistnpleted dispute resoluti
procedures pursuant to Section 8.9.

(c) EyeTechs Responsibilities EyeTech shall be responsible, at its sole expdos all development of, regulatory
activities relating to, and commercialization ob&ucts in the Territory beginning on the Effectivate, including performing clinical
development of Products within the Territory usstgndard pharmaceutical industry practices,
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and making all regulatory filings necessary to @bRegulatory Approvals of Products in the Tergto#Vithin thirty (30) days of the
Effective Date, EyeTech shall provide to Gileadarfal clinical development plan for Products in Eield in the Territory (the
“Development Plan”), pursuant to which EyeTech witry out development of Products under this Agrexat, which shall be reasonably
satisfactory to Gilead. The Development Plan dhalsubject to amendment by EyeTech from timente tiwith notice and copy of such
amended Development Plan to Gilead; provided, hewdi) Gilead shall have the right to review spchposed amendment prior to its
adoption; (ii) EyeTech shall in good faith considey reasonable comments and considerations rays€dlead within five (5) Business Da
of Gilead'’s receipt of such proposed amendment;(#éijduch proposed amendment is consistent wjthTech’s obligations of Reasonable
Diligence pursuant to Sections 6.7(a) and (b).

(d) Regulatory Filings and MattersEyeTech will file such regulatory filings as mlg necessary to obtain
Regulatory Approvals of Products within the Temjto EyeTech will be responsible for all communicas with all supranational, regional,
federal, state, provincial or other local regulgtagencies, department, bureaus and other govetahanhorities with jurisdiction over
Regulatory Approvals in connection with such filngeyeTech will keep Gilead informed of the staifisuch filings in each country, and
will provide Gilead with at least sixty (60) daydvance notice of the final submission of an appilicefor Regulatory Approval in any
country of the Territory. EyeTech will promptly\age Gilead each time that it obtains Regulatorprypal of Products in a country of the
Territory. EyeTech shall be responsible for theortipg of adverse events related to the use of litsdmarketed by EyeTech, its Affiliates or
sublicensees in the Territory.

(e) Reporting; Meetings Prior to February 1, May 1, August 1 and Novenibef each Calendar Year, EyeTech will
submit to Gilead, written reports summarizing ttess and progress of the clinical developmentketarg and commercialization efforts for
each Product in sufficient detail so as to allowe&d to monitor EyeTech’s compliance with Sectioi(&). During March and September of
each Calendar Year, senior executive and sciep#isonnel of EyeTech will meet with Gilead repreagves to report on the status of
development and commercialization of Products arcbhsult as to modifications in the developmeahpkferenced in Section 6.7(c).

6.8 Pricing. EyeTech shall determine, in its sole discrettbm,pricing, discounting policy and other commairéérms relating
solely to Products. EyeTech agrees that EyeTexhfiiliates and its sublicensees shall not sutijee selling price of Products to abnormal
discounts taken against Products in order to aetsales of other products.

6.9 Export Control. This Agreement is made subject to any restristiconcerning the export of products or technical
information from the United States of America dnertcountries which may be imposed upon or relatdgilead or EyeTech from time to
time. Each Party agrees that it will not expoitectly or indirectly, any technical informationgdred from the other Party under this
Agreement or any products using such technicatinédion to a location or in a manner that at theetdf export requires an export license or
other governmental approval, without first obtagthe written consent to do so from the appropéagency or other governmental entity.
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6.10 Inability to Develop or CommercializeEyeTech represents that it has, and covenartt# thiél maintain adequate
resources and expertise to fulfill its obligatiamsler this Agreement. During the term of this Agmnent, EyeTech shall provide such
information that Gilead may request that is reabbynaecessary for Gilead to verify that EyeTech &dsquate resources and expertise to
fulfill its obligations under this Section 6.10.

6.11 Compliance with Laws; Cooperation; Maintenance gfiidal Documents

€)) Each Party shall carry out its activities pursuarthis Agreement in compliance with all applicablgoranational,
national, state, provincial and local laws, rutegjulations and guidances.

(b) Gilead and EyeTech each agree to use all commigrogalsonable efforts to take, or cause to be takiéactions
and to do, or cause to be done, all things necgssaroper to make effective the transactions empiated by this Agreement, including s
actions as may be reasonably necessary to obtpio\agls and consents of governmental Persons dwed Bersons (including, without
limitation, all applicable drug listing and notiéittons to the relevant Regulatory Authority ideyitify EyeTech as the licensee of the Product),
in each case as reasonably necessary to allow Egddalevelop, obtain Regulatory Approvals for, anchmercialize Products as provided
in this Agreement; provided that no Party shaltdmuired in connection with such activities to ifidke any payment (other than as expressly
required pursuant to this Agreement), or (2) assanyeother material obligation not otherwise regdito be assumed by this Agreement.

(c) For so long as EyeTech, its Affiliates or subliceesis making, using or selling Products, Gileadl store and
maintain all original Manufacturing Information &nsecure location in accordance with practicesoocusty for Gilead and the pharmaceutical
industry for regulatory documents and in compliawith applicable laws and regulations, and, upappr notice from a Regulatory
Authority of competent jurisdiction over Produatball make such Manufacturing Information reasopabhilable to such Regulatory
Authority.

(d) EyeTech shall store and maintain all original Upda®roduct Data Package in a secure location iordance witl
practices customary for EyeTech and the pharmaradutidustry for regulatory documents and in coenpdie with applicable laws and
regulations.

6.12 Cooperation If either Party shall become engaged in or pidie in any investigation, claim, litigation aher
proceeding with any Third Party, including any preding before a Regulatory Authority, relating iy avay to the Product or any of the
Licensed Patents the other Party shall cooperaa# irasonable respects with such Party in commeterewith, including, without
limitation, using its reasonable efforts to makaikable to the other Party such Party’s employeles may be helpful with respect to such
investigation, claim, litigation or other proceegliprovided that, for purposes of this provisi@ggonable efforts to make available any
employee shall be deemed to mean providing a Ratityreasonable access to any such employee aistdar a period of time not to exceed
24 hours (e.g., three 8-hour Business Days). Hfiere any such employee shall be made available fo
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such time and upon such terms and conditions (@t but not limited to, compensation) as the iBannay mutually agree.

6.13 Exclusive Rights The licenses granted under this Agreement td Egle are exclusive, and no Person, including withou
limitation Gilead, shall have any right with resptesuch licenses during the term of this Agreeimexcept as otherwise permitted under this
Agreement. Except as otherwise permitted by tlgjigeAment, Gilead shall refrain from granting amptito any Third Party relating to
NX1838, the Licensed Patents or the Transferre@tdghat would, in any manner, violate the termsrafonflict with the rights granted
EyeTech pursuant to this Agreement.

6.14 Patent Prosecution and Maintenance

€)) Prosecution of PatentsLicensed Patents shall be prosecuted and miaéttan the Territory by Gilead using
diligent efforts, at Gilead's expense, except &entise provided in this Section 6.14(a). If Gileaasonably determines that it has no
material or commercially useful application for i@énsed Patent, then EyeTech shall have the ighdve Gilead prosecute and maintain
such Licensed Patents or file for such patent &xtansion therefor at EyeTech’s sole expense. &sle¥hall bear all reasonable costs of any
inter partes patent proceeding, including withduitation oppositions, interferences or conteste@xaminations, which proceeding shall be
conducted under the control of Gilead.

(b) EyeTech shall assist Gilead in obtaining patergresibns and supplementary protection certificated,provide
such other assistance as reasonably requesteddad@ connection with the prosecution and maister of the Licensed Patents in any
of the Territory at EyeTech’s sole expense.

6.15 Infringement of Licensed Patents

€)) Natice. Each Party shall promptly notify the other intimg of any alleged infringement by Third Part@fsany
Licensed Patent within the Territory and providg arformation available to that Party relating tehk alleged infringement or
misappropriation. EyeTech shall have no righthwéspect to any infringement of Licensed Patdrasdccurs outside of the Field and/or
outside the Territory except the right to receie¢ice pursuant to this Section 6.15(a).

(b) Enforcement of Licensed Patents against Compeftireglucts If any Licensed Patent is infringed by a Third
Party in connection with the manufacture, use,, sdfer for sale or import of a Competitive Produgthin the Field and within the Territory
(“Competitive Product Infringement”gyeTech shall have the primary right, but not thigation, to initiate, prosecute and control aatian
with respect to such infringement in the Territdsy,counsel of its own choice, to secure the cessaf the infringement or to enter suit
against the infringer. Gilead shall have the righparticipate in any such action with respedhtLicensed Patents and to be represented by
counsel of its own choice. If EyeTech fails to lprem action or proceeding to enforce a LicensedrRatithin a period of one hundred twenty
(120) days after having knowledge of infringemeinguch Licensed Patent, then Gilead
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shall have the right to bring and control any saction by counsel of its own choice, and EyeTedll ¢tave the right to participate in such
action and be represented by counsel of its owicehdf a Party brings any such action or proceedinder this Section 6.15(b), the other
Party agrees to be joined as a party plaintiff @ngive the first Party reasonable assistance atitbsty to control, file and prosecute the suit
as necessary. The costs and expenses of thelPiading suit under this Section 6.15(b) (includihg internal costs and expenses
specifically attributable to such suit) shall bemeursed first out of any damages or other monedargrds recovered in favor of the Parties,
and any remaining damages shall be treated asadlkt 8f EyeTech in its Territory if EyeTech confedlthe action or allocated between the
parties in accordance with their economic inteiresihe profitability of Products if Gilead contrell the action. No settlement or consent
judgment or other voluntary final disposition o$ait under this Section 6.15(b) relating to a L&exhPatent may be entered into without
consent of Gilead, not to be unreasonably withheld.

(c) Enforcement of Licensed Patents against{@@mpetitive Products With respect to any infringement of
Licensed Patents within the Field and within theritery that is not a Competitive Product Infringem, Gilead shall have the primary right,
but not the obligation, to initiate, prosecute andtrol any action with respect to such infringemén counsel of its own choice, to secure
cessation of the infringement or to enter suit agjathe infringer and shall be the “Lead Party” &y&Tech shall be the “Secondary Party”.
The Secondary Party shall have the right to padie in any such action with respect to its Patentsto be represented by counsel of its own
choice. If the Lead Party fails to bring an actosrproceeding to enforce a Licensed Patent withperéod of one hundred twenty (120) days
after having knowledge of infringement of such losed Patent, then the Secondary Party shall havegtht to bring and control any such
action by counsel of its own choice, and the LeadyPshall have the right to participate in sucticacand be represented by counsel of its
own choice. If a Party brings any such actionrocpeding hereunder, the other Party agrees toifkedj as a party plaintiff and to give the
first Party reasonable assistance and authoritpmtrol, file and prosecute the suit as necessa@hg costs and expenses of the Party bringing
suit under this Section 6.15(c) (including the intd costs and expenses specifically attributadkuth suit) shall be reimbursed first out of
any damages or other monetary awards recoverear bf the Parties, and any remaining damages lshalaid to Gilead if Gilead
controlled the action, or paid to each Party inpprtion to their expenditures in such action, iefEgch controlled the action. No settlement or
consent judgment or other voluntary final dispositof a suit under this Section 6.15(c) relating tacensed Patent may be entered into
without the consent of Gilead, not to be unreastynatihheld.

6.16 Infringement of Third Partg Rights.

(@) If the practice of the Licensed Patents throughtla@ufacture, use or sale of Products by EyeTéxHffiliates or
sublicensees results in a claim for patent infrimget against EyeTech, its Affiliates or sublicerssdélee Party to this Agreement first having
notice of that claim shall promptly notify the othRarty in writing. The notice shall set forth tlaets of the claim in reasonable detail.
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(b) If a Third Party asserts that a patent or othdrtrigvned by or licensed to it is infringed by thagiice of the
Licensed Patents through the manufacture, usd@ot®roducts by EyeTech, its Affiliates or sublisees pursuant to the License, EyeTech
may attempt to resolve the problem raised by teerted infringement. The matter shall be deemsaolved if EyeTech obtains: (a) a license
permitting EyeTech to manufacture, use and selfifts in that country on a royalty-free or royabgaring basis; (b) a statement or
representation from the Third Party that: (1) otica will be taken against EyeTech, its Affiliatesits sublicensees, or (2) that the patent or
other right is not infringed by the manufactures vs sale of Products by EyeTech, its Affiliatestsisublicensees; or (c) a final judgment by
a court of competent jurisdiction from which no epphas or can be taken that the Third Party’syéealleged to be infringed is invalid, or
the Third Party’s patent(s) or other right(s) anenforceable or not infringed by the manufactuse, or sale of Products by EyeTech, its
Affiliates or sublicensees. EyeTech shall havepttimary right to defend any such claim. Gileadlishave the right, but not the obligation,
participate in any such suit at its sole option ahiis own expense. Each Party shall reasonatdgearate with the Party conducting the
defense of the claim. Neither Party shall enter any settlement that affects the other Partgsts or interests without such other Party’s
prior written consent, not to be unreasonably wattih If EyeTech makes a payment to any Third Piarthe course of defending or settling
any claim brought by a Third Party pursuant to 8ggtion 6.16, EyeTech shall be entitled to oféspercentage of all such amounts against
royalties due to Gilead hereunder as provided ii&e 3.3(b).

6.17 Manufacturing.

@ EyeTech shall be solely responsible for the mariufacf Product following the Effective Date, indlag without
limitation for clinical trials and commercializatio

(b) The Parties shall enter into an agreement datefithe Effective Date (the “Manufacturing Agreenignt
obligating the Parties to enter into a clinical glypagreement providing for the fill and finish sdifficient quantities of Product Inventory to
complete a Phase Ib trial investigating the usdX1838 for the treatment of age-related macularedegation.

6.18 Use of Names, Logos or SymboldNo Party hereto shall use the name, trademkntss, physical likeness, employee
names or owner symbol of the other Party heretafgrpurpose, including, without limitation, in caction with any private or public
securities placements, without the prior writtensent of the affected Party, such consent not tanbeasonably withheld or delayed so long
as such use of name is limited to objective statesnef fact, rather than for endorsement purpodighing contained herein shall be
construed as granting either Party any rightscanise to use any of the other Party’s trademarkside names without separate, express
written permission of the owner of such trademarkade name.
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SECTION 7
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 Indemnification.
€)) Gilead shall indemnify, defend and hold EyeTecld (& directors, officers, employees, consultaafiliates and
sublicensees) (each, an “EyeTech Indemnitkafjnless from and against any and all Damagesriedtur suffered by an EyeTech Indemn
as a result of Third Party claims, actions or peaiegs (collectively, “EyeTech Claimstd the extent such EyeTech Claims are a conseq
of:
Q) the breach or alleged breach of any representatiorarranty by Gilead hereunder, or
(2 the negligence or misconduct of Gilead in connectidth its activities under this Agreement;
except to the extent such EyeTech Claims are aecuesice any of the items in Sections 7.1(b)(1)p(ZB).
(b) EyeTech shall indemnify, defend and hold Gilead! (@& directors, officers, employees, consultants Affiliates)

(each, a “Gilead Indemnitee”) harmless from andregjany and all Damages incurred or suffered Bjlead Indemnitee as a result of Third
Party claims, actions or proceedings (collectiveBilead Claims”) to the extent such Gilead Claians a consequence of:

1) the breach or alleged breach of any representatiorarranty by EyeTech hereunder;

(2 the negligence or willful misconduct of EyeTectcomnection with its activities under this
Agreement;

3 the possession, research, development, manufaageeoffer for sale, sale, administration,

storage or transport of NX1838 or Products by Ey#ilar its Affiliates or sublicensees;
except to the extent such Gilead Claims are a cuesee any of the items in Sections 7.1(a)(1) r (2

7.2 Mechanics If a Party or its Affiliate has a right to bediemnified under this Section 7 (the “Indemnifiedti?g, such
Party or Affiliate (i) shall give prompt notice sfich EyeTech Claim or Gilead Claim, as the casehleaias applicable, a “Claim”), to the
other Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) and (ii) gabt to Sections 6.15 and 6.16 of this Agreemeiithave the first right to defend any
Claims for which it is entitled to indemnificatidrom the other Party under Section 7.1, with thepsation and at the expense of such other
Party, provided that it will not settle any suctai@i without the prior written consent of the Indefying Party, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. If the Indemnified Partgéending a
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Claim, the Indemnifying Party shall have the righbe present in person or through counsel at antigé legal proceedings. In the event:
the Parties cannot agree as to the applicatiorcti@ 7.1 to any Damages or Claim, the Parties coagluct separate defenses of such cl
Each Party further reserves the right to claim indity from the other in accordance with Sectionupbn resolution of the underlying claim.

7.3 Insurance CoverageEach Party represents and warrants that itisrea and will continue to be covered by a
comprehensive general liability insurance prograhnictv covers all of each Party’s activities and gétions hereunder in accordance with
reasonable pharmaceutical industry standards. Eaxly will provide the other Party with written et at least fifteen (15) days prior to any
cancellation or material change in such insuramogram. Each Party will maintain such insurancegpam, or other program with
comparable coverage, beyond the expiration or teatin of this Agreement during the period in whéaty Product is being commercially
distributed or sold, and for a commercially reasd@geriod thereafter.

7.4 Indemnification Payment AdjustmentsThe amount of any Damages for which indemnifiazats provided under this
Section 7 shall be reduced to take account of ahyax benefit and shall be increased to take ataafiany net tax detriment arising from the
incurrence or payment of any such Damages or fremméceipt of any such indemnification payment simall be reduced by the insurance
proceeds received and any other amount recovdrady, by the Indemnified Party with respect to &amages; provideghowever, that an
Indemnified Party shall not be subject to an oliiggato pursue an insurance claim relating to aayn@ges for which indemnification is
sought hereunder. If any Indemnified Party shalldhreceived any payment pursuant to this Sectiwsithi/respect to any Damages and shall
subsequently have received insurance proceed$ier amnounts with respect to such Damages, thenledemnified Party shall pay to the
Indemnifying Party an amount equal to the diffeee(i€any) between (1) the sum of the amount of¢hmsurance proceeds or other amounts
received and the amount of the payment by suchminifging Party pursuant to this Section 7 with respto such Damages and (2) the
amount necessary to fully and completely indemaifg hold harmless such Indemnified Party from agairest such Damages; provided
however, in no event will such Indemnified Party have alnigation pursuant to this sentence to pay to sadbmnifying Party an amount
greater than the amount of the payment by suchminifging Party pursuant to this Section 7 with msto such Damages.

7.5 Indemnification Payment Upon the final determination of liability andetamount of the indemnification payment under
this Section 7, the appropriate Party shall payéoother in immediately available funds, withiirtyh(30) Business Days after such
determination, the amount of any claim for indenwaifion made hereunder.

7.6 Survival. The provisions of this Section 7 shall surving éermination of this Agreement with respect tbats of the
Parties during the term of the Agreement or thmtef any license to EyeTech, whichever occurs lakach Indemnified Party’s rights under
this Section 7 shall not be deemed to have beevedair otherwise affected by such Indemnified Pantyaiver of the breach of any
representation, warranty, agreement or covenaraimu in or made pursuant to this Agreement, srdesh waiver expressly and in writing
also waives any or all of the Indemnified Partyght under Section 7.
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SECTION 8
MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Successors and Assigndhis Agreement shall be binding upon and simalié to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns; provitiewvever, that neither Gilead nor EyeTech may assign arnisafghts, duties or obligations
hereunder without the prior written consent of dfeer, which consent may be withheld in the othsole discretion, except that no prior
written consent shall be required in the event ¢éh@hird Party acquires substantially all of theeds or outstanding shares of, or merges with,
EyeTech or Gilead, as the case may be. No assigrohéhis Agreement or of any rights hereundetligiefieve the assigning Party of any of
its obligations or liability hereunder. Any atteteg assignment not in compliance with this Sec8dnshall be of no force or effect.

8.2 Natices. All notices or other communications requiregermitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing shall be
deemed to have been duly given if delivered by hprepaid telex, cable, telegram or facsimile amficmed in writing, or mailed first class,
postage prepaid, by registered or certified matljnn receipt requested (mailed notices and nosieasby telex, cable or telegram shall be
deemed to have been given on the date receivdd)@ass:

If to Gilead, as follows:

Gilead Sciences, Inc.

333 Lakeside Drive,

Foster City, CA 94404
Facsimile: (650) 522-5488
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

With a copy to:

Gilead Sciences, Inc.

333 Lakeside Drive,
Foster City, CA 94404
Facsimile: (650) 522-5537
Attn: General Counsel

If to EyeTech, as follows:

EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
300 East 42nd Street

Third Floor

New York, N.Y. 10017
Facsimile: (212) 883-8883
Attn: Chief Executive Officer
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With a copy to:

Duval & Stachenfeld LLP
300 East 42nd Street
Third Floor

New York, N.Y. 10017
Facsimile: (212) 883-8883
Attn: Harsha Murthy

or in any case to such other address or addresseseafter shall be furnished as provided inSlaistion 8.2 by any Party hereto to the other
Party.

8.3 Waiver; Remedies Any term or provision of this Agreement may baived at any time by the Party entitled to the fiene
thereof by a written instrument executed by suattyPaNo delay on the part of Gilead or EyeTeclexercising any right, power or privilege
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, ral ahy waiver on the part of either Gilead or Egefi of any right, power or privilege
hereunder operate as a waiver of any other rigiviep or privilege hereunder nor shall any singlgantial exercise of any right, power or
privilege hereunder preclude any other or furth@reise thereof or the exercise of any other rigbtyer or privilege hereunder.

8.4 Survival of RepresentationsEach of the representations and warranties rnimaithés Agreement shall survive the expira
or termination of this Agreement only with respercactivities conducted or events occurring proothte expiration or termination of the
Agreement.

8.5 Entire Agreement This Agreement, together with all exhibits herahd the Warrant Agreement and the Manufacturing
Agreement, constitute the entire agreement betweeRarties with respect to the subject matterdiened supersedes all prior agreements or
understandings of the Parties relating thereto.

8.6 Amendment This Agreement may be modified or amended owlyhtten agreement of the Parties hereto.
8.7 Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in any numbeoohterparts, each of which shall be deemed armmaitig

but all of which together shall constitute a singistrument.

8.8 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and constnuedé¢ordance with the laws of the State of Califgrn
excluding its choice of law rules, except for tipplecation of the Federal Arbitration Act pursuamtSection 8.9(c)(ii).

8.9 Dispute Resolution

€)) The Parties recognize that disputes as to certattens may from time to time arise during the tefrthis
Agreement which relate to either party’s rights/andbligations hereunder or thereunder. It isdhgctive of the Parties to establish
procedures to facilitate the resolution of dispw@egsing under this Agreement in an expedient mahype
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mutual cooperation and without resort to litigatioho accomplish this objective, the Parties agoeellow the procedures set forth in this
Section 8.9 if and when a dispute arises under&gisement. In the event of disputes between #rgd?, a Party seeking to resolve such
dispute will, by written notice to the other Paittyave such dispute referred to their respectivewgikee officers designated below or their
successors, for attempted resolution by good fatjotiations within fourteen (14) days after suotiae is received. Said designated officers
are as follows:

For EyeTech Chief Executive Office
For Gilead: Chief Executive Office

In the event the designated executive officersateble to resolve such dispute, either party atany time after the 14 day period
invoke the provisions of Section 8.9(b) hereinafter

(b) Following settlement efforts pursuant to Sectid®(&), any dispute, controversy or claim arising afutr relating
to the validity, construction, enforceability orrf@mance of this Agreement, including disputestial to alleged breach or to termination of
this Agreement under Section 4, other than disputesh are expressly prohibited herein from beiegpived by this mechanism, shall be
settled by binding Alternative Dispute Resoluti6ARR”) in the manner described below:

0] If a party intends to begin an ADR to resolve gdte, such party shall provide written notice (tABR
Request”) to counsel for the other party informgngh other party of such intention and the issod®tresolved. From the date of the ADR
Request and until such time as any matter hasfioesly settled by ADR, the running of the time jmefs contained in Section 4.3 as to which
party must cure a breach of this Agreement shadiuspended as to the subject matter of the dispute.

(i) Within ten (10) business days after the receighefADR Request, the other party may, by writteticeo
to the counsel for the party initiating ADR, addldithnal issues to be resolved.

(iii) Disputes regarding the scope, validity and enfdsitiéya of Patents shall not be subject to this &st8.9,
except for Section 8.9(a), and shall be submitbeal tcourt of competent jurisdiction.

(c) The ADR shall be conducted pursuant to CompreherRides for Commercial, Real Estate and Constructio
Disputes then in effect, except that notwithstagdhose rules, the following provisions shall apjgthe ADR hereunder:

0] The arbitration shall be conducted by a panel @fetarbitrators (the “Panel”)The Panel shall be selec
from a pool of retired independent federal judgebé presented to the Parties by JAMS.

(i) The time periods set forth in the JAMS rules shelfollowed, unless a party can demonstrate t¢@tre
that the complexity of the issues or other reasons
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warrant the extension of one or more of the tinbea In such case, the Panel may extend suchtaiohes, but in no event shall the time
tables being extended so that the ADR proceeditends more than 18 months from its beginning tofward. In regard to such time tabl
the Parties (i) acknowledge that the issues thgtamiae in any dispute involving this Agreement nmrayolve a number of complex matters
and (ii) confirm their intention that each partyllvmiave the opportunity to conduct complete discpweith respect to all material issues
involved in a dispute within the framework providaolove. Within such time frames, each party gtk the right to conduct discovery in
accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedulrhe Panel shall not award punitive damageghereparty and the Parties shall be
deemed to have waived any right to such damaghke.Panel shall, in rendering its decision, appéyghbstantive law of the State of
California, without regard to its conflict of lavgsovisions, except that the interpretation of anfbecement of this Section 8.9(c)(ii) shall be
governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. The Patelll apply the Federal Rules of Evidence to #srimg. The proceeding shall take place
in San Francisco, San Mateo or Santa Clara Coy@agornia. The fees of the Panels and JAMSIdie@paid by the losing Party which
shall be designated by the Panel. If the Panatable to designate a losing party, it shall stestad the fees shall be split equally between
the Parties.

(iii) The Panel is empowered to award any remedy alldwddw, including money damages, multiple
damages, prejudgment interest and attorneys’ fektagrant final, complete, interim, or interloony relief, including injunctive relief but
excluding punitive damages.

(iv) Except as set forth in Section 8.9(c)(ii), abowagheparty shall bear its own legal fees. The Psingl
assess its costs, fees and expenses against théogarg the ADR unless it believes that neitharty is the clear loser, in which case the
Panel shall divide such fees, costs and expensesditg to the Panel’s sole discretion.

(v) The ADR proceeding shall be confidential and thedPahall issue appropriate protective orders to
safeguard each party’s Proprietary Informationcdpt as required by law, no party shall make (struct the Panel to make) any public
announcement with respect to the proceedings asidamf the Panel without prior written consentakch other party. The existence of any
dispute submitted to ADR, and the award, shalldy kn confidence by the Parties and the Panegpbas required in connection with the
enforcement of such award or as otherwise requiyeapplicable law.

(d) The Parties agree that judgment on any arbitrat@vssued pursuant to this Section 8.9 shall beredtin the
United States District Court for the Northern Dittiof California or, in the event such court does$ have subject matter jurisdiction over the
dispute in question, such judgment shall be entigréloe Superior Court of the State of Californrathe County of San Mateo, and each Party
agrees to the co-exclusive personal jurisdictioaunth courts for the purpose of entry of such grjeint.

8.10 Captions. All section titles or captions contained in thigreement, in any Exhibit referred to herein dmeltiable of
contents, if any, to this Agreement are for conganée
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only, shall not be deemed a part of this Agreenaedtshall not affect the meaning or interpretatibthis Agreement.

8.11 No Third Party Rights or ObligationsExcept as expressly provided in Section 7, mwipion of this Agreement shall be
deemed or construed in any way to result in thatme of any rights or obligation in any Person a®arty to this Agreement.

8.12 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found @cthred to be invalid or unenforceable by any courdther
competent authority having jurisdiction, such fimglior declaration shall not invalidate any othevision hereof, and this Agreement shall
thereafter continue in full force and effect. e tevent any such provision is so declared invalidnenforceable, the Parties shall negotiate
an alternative provision that closely approximdkesParties’ intent, to the extent allowable urider.

8.13 Attachments All Exhibits and other attachments to this Agneat are by this reference incorporated hereinnaade a
part of this Agreement.

8.14 Disclaimer of Agency This Agreement shall not constitute any Pargyldgal representative or agent of another, ndf sha
any Party have the right or authority to assumeater, or incur any Third Party liability or obligat of any kind, express or implied, against
or in the name of or on behalf of another excepbgsessly set forth in this Agreement.

8.15 Interpretation This Agreement has been jointly prepared by tmtiés and their respective legal counsel and sioalbe
strictly construed against either Party.

8.16 Force Majeure Each of the Parties hereto shall be excused fnenperformance of its obligations hereunder (pktee
payment of money) in the event such performanpeasented by force majeure, provided that the nerfiepming Party promptly provides
notice of the prevention to the other Party. Suatuse shall be continued so long as the conditimistituting force majeure continues and
non-performing Party makes and continues to ma&sorgable efforts to remove or overcome the comditieor the purposes of this
Agreement, force majeure shall mean any act of @@j,casualty, flood, war, earthquake, strikéluf@ of public utilities, any act, exercise,
assertion or requirement of governmental authoaitgident, epidemic, destruction of facilities sach other similar occurrences beyond the
control of the Party whose performance is affected.

8.17 Limitation of Liability . IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR ITS RESPECTIVEFFILIATES AND
PERMITTED SUBLICENSEES BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, EXENIRRY, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, WHETHEI
IN CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY OR OHERWISE, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT SUCH PARTY MAY BE
REQUIRED TO INDEMNIFY THE OTHER PARTY FROM SUCH DAKGES CLAIMED BY THIRD PARTIES UNDER SECTION 7.

8.18 No Assumption of Obligations Except as expressly provided in this Agreeméntneither Party is assuming any of the
other Party’s responsibilities, duties (includimgthout limitation, compliance with all applicabl@ws and regulations), obligations (including
payment obligations), claims, Damages, liabilitimsrdens and problems of any nature whatsoever
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(collectively, “Obligations”) whether by operation of law or otherwise, andwiithout limiting the foregoing, EyeTech is not assng any of
Gilead’s Obligations with respect to Transferrecéts.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thieé&gent to be duly executed and delivered as addlgeand year first
above written.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
By: /s/ Mark L. Perry By: /s/ David Guye

Mark L. Perry David Guyet

Senior Vice President, Operatic Chief Executive Office

NEXSTAR PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ Mark L. Perry
Mark L. Perry
Chief Financial Office
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EXHIBIT A
NX1838
The compound NX1838, 3]
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EXHIBIT B

PRODUCT DATA PACKAGE INFORMATION AND DATA

Regulatory
IND

Pre-IND submissions
IND correspondence
IND supplements

Clinical
Case Report Forms by site
1838 Project Files
Investigator Files by Site

Manufacturing (API)
Synthesis Batch Records
Accompanying Analytical Data
Records of Failed Lots

Manufacturing (DP)
Master Production Records
Bills of Materials
Assay methods
Finished Product Specifications
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EXHIBIT C

PRODUCT INVENTORY

LOT UNITS OF

DESCRIPTION PART NUMBER NUMBER QUANTITY MEASUREMENT
[']

['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] [']
'] '] '] ']
[']

['] ['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] ['] [']
'] '] '] '] ']
[']

['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] [']
['] ['] ['] [']
'] '] '] ']
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[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']

[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']

[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']

[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
[']
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EXHIBIT D

LICENSED PATENTS

D-1




Exhibit 10.69
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO LICENSING AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (the “Amendment”) is enterectd as of the 9th day of May, 2000, by and amongeaD SCIENCES,
INC., a Delaware corporation, NEXSTAR PHARMACEUTICS, INC., a Delaware corporation (these two partigiectively referred to
herein as “Gilead”) and EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS, @\, a Delaware corporation (hereinafter “EyeTectd)amend the Licensing
Agreement made effective as of March 31, 2000 ‘Bggeement”) by and among Gilead and EyeTech, wine@ilead licensed EyeTech to
further clinically develop and commercialize Gile&agroprietary compound NX 1838. Capitalized teumsed and not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings given them in theedment.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreeinetfine the term “Proprietary Information” whietas employed but not
defined in the Licensing Agreement, and to setéhe of survival for the confidentiality, nondisslare and nonuse obligations pertaining to
such Proprietary Information.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl ¢he covenants and promises contained in thisnrdment, and the Parties
hereby amend the Agreement as follows:

1. Section 1.1 is hereby amended to insert the foligvdefined term and definition immediately followithe definition for Product
Inventory:

“Proprietary Information” shall mean, subject tacBen 6.3 of the Agreement, any Know-How, patenilaations or other
confidential information of a Party disclosed bylsiParty to another Party in the course of negotiair performing under this
Agreement or any other written agreement betweerPtrties entered into on or prior to May 9, 20@@prietary Information shall
be deemed to include the terms of this Agreemeditlam terms of any other written agreement betvieerParties entered into on or
prior to May 9, 2000.

2. Section 6.3 is hereby amended to add the followigg paragraph to the end of such section:

The obligations of confidentiality, nondisclosuredanonuse contained in this Section 6.3 shall serany expiration or
termination of this Agreement for a period of fi{& years.

3. The Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, sfrahin in full force and effect according to itsnis.

4. This Amendment may be executed in any number ofitesparts, each of which shall be deemed an ofigamal all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same institime




5. This Amendment shall be effective as of the dat firitten above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulgcerted this Amendment effective as of the date irgten above.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC

By: /s/ Mark L. Perry

Name: Mark L. Perr

Title: Senior Vice President, Operatic

NEXSTAR PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ Mark L. Perry

Name: Mark L. Perr'

Title: Chief Financial Office

EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ David Guye

Name: David Guye

Title: Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 10.70
AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO LICENSING AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 (“the Second Amendment”) istered into as of December 4, 2001, by and betweeiT &ch
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. a Delaware corporation (“Eg#r) and Gilead Sciences, Inc., a Delaware cotfmorg“Gilead”), to amend that certain
Licensing Agreement dated as of March 31, 200@nasnded by Amendment No. 1 to Licensing Agreemategdias of May 9, 2000 (the
“Agreement”) by and between EyeTech and Gileads(@sessor in interest to NeXstar Pharmaceutiaats). ICapitalized terms used and not
otherwise defined herein shall have the meaningsngihem in the Agreement.

WHEREAS, EyeTech desires to obtain access to notebof Gilead relating or potentially relating teetcompound NX1838;

WHEREAS, Gilead is willing to provide such acces&yeTech personnel if the information in such hotks is kept confidential by
EyeTech and its personnel under the terms of thredxgent;

WHEREAS, in support of EyeTechactivities under the Agreement, Gilead would tixgrovide to EyeTech, and EyeTech would lik
receive from Gilead, certain of Gilead’s inventofWEGF aptamer and potentially a reference stahgassessed by Gilead, as determine by
Gilead (“Materials”).

NOW, THEREFOR, in consideration of the foregoing éime covenants herein, EyeTech and Gilead herg®eaand the Agreement is
hereby amended, as follows:

1. Allinformation learned, received, extracted or ieapby EyeTech from notebooks or other documentsaords of Gilead, or
excerpts thereof, that Gilead provides or makefabla to EyeTech after the date hereof shall s to be Proprietary Information of
Gilead and subject to provisions in the Agreememtgining to Proprietary Information of Gilead.

2. Nothing in this Second Amendment shall be constagedreating any obligation of Gilead to providemake available to EyeTech
any notebooks or other documents or records of@ijler excerpts thereof, beyond any such obligaifdgilead currently existing under the
Agreement.

3. Gilead will deliver the materials to EyeTech witliifteen (15) days after the date hereof.

4. EyeTech shall not and shall not permit any persaentity to (a) administer any Materials to humanser any circumstances; or
administer any Materials to animals except in coamgle with U.S. National Institutes of Health guides and all other applicable laws, ru
and regulations.

5. Nothing in this Amendment shall be construed togeather Party any right or license beyond thatdarth in the Agreement.




6. GILEAD PROVIDES THE MATERIALS “AS IS”, WITH NO WARRNTY, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, EXCLUSIVITY, OF
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

7. Solely for purposes of Section 7.1(b) of the Agreatthe Materials will deemed to included withiXDN838.

8. The Agreement, as amended by this Second Amendstait,remain in full force and effect accordingt®terms.

9. This Second Amendment may be executed in any nuoflmunterparts, each of which shall be deemeariginal, and all of
which taken together shall constitute one and éimeesinstrument.

10. This Second Amendment shall be effective as ofitite first written above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duscexed this Second Amendment effective as of the fitat written above.

EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. GILEAD SCIENCES, INC
By: /s/ Harsha Murth By: /s/ Nicole Onett
Name: Harsha Murth Name: Nicole Onett

Title: V.P.- Business Development & General Cour Title: SVP Medical Affairs




Exhibit 10.71
CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTEI
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAKRGE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24RB- OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO LICENSING AGREEMENT

This Amendment No. 3 to Licensing Agreement (thhifd Amendment”) amends, effective August 30, 2a82,LICENSING
AGREEMENT, itself effective as of March 31, 200Qasreviously amended first as of May 9, 2000 armbsd as of December 4, 200 s
so twice amended, the “Agreement”) originally bylamong GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware corpaativith its principal office
located at 333 Lakeside Drive, Foster City, CA d{@Gilead”), and its whollygpwned subsidiary, NEXSTAR PHARMACEUTICALS, IN(
a Delaware corporation, on the one hand, and EYBETPEARMACEUTICALS, INC., a Delaware corporation Wiits principal office as of
the date hereof located at 500 Seventh Avenu& RlBor, New York, New York 10018 (“EyeTech”), on thther hand, and currently
between Gilead and EyeTech. All capitalized teased herein and not otherwise defined shall haenbanings given in the Agreement.
All references to “Sections” and “Articles” aregections and articles of the Agreement unless wikerspecified below.

The Parties hereby amend the Agreement as follows:
1. The definition of Net Sales is deleted in its eattirand replaced with the following:
“ Net Sales’ shall mean, with respect to the Product, the ggamaount billed or invoiced by EyeTech, its Affiéa or sublicensees to Third
Parties for Products and Combination Products ri@dfbelow), less the following deductions to theeakincluded in such billed or invoiced

or credited amounts:

(a) trade, quantity and cash discounts allowed, butesgly excluding discounts or allowances offeregdaas of a packag
of products that includes a Product sold by EyeTisHffiliates or sublicensees;

(b) refunds, chargebacks and any other allowances vdffebtively reduce the net selling price;
(c) actual product returns, credits and allowancesvatbto customers;

(d) rebates actually paid or credited to any governalexgency (or branch thereof) or to any Third Ppgyor,
administrator or contractee;

(e) discounts mandated by, or granted to meet the negents of, applicable state, provincial or fed&ai, wholesaler,
including required chargebacks and retroactiveepréziuctions;

(f) transportation, freight, postage charges and ath&rges such as insurance, relating thereto, im &@se included as a
specific line item on an invoice to such Third Rextand

(g) taxes, excises or other governmental charges upoeasured by the production, sale, transportatielivery or use ¢
goods, in each case included as a specific lime @e an invoice to such Third Parties.

If any such sales to Third Parties are made irsaeiions that are not at agriength between the buyer and the seller, thegrbss amount |
be included in the calculation of Net Sales shalthe amount that would have been invoiced hatr#msaction been conducted at arm’s
length. Such amount that would have been invostedl be determined, wherever possible, by referénthe average selling price of the
relevant Product in arm’s-length transactions mrgdevant country.




If EyeTech, its Affiliate or sublicensee sells aéuct in unfinished form to a Third Party for resahen the gross amount to be included il
calculation of Net Sales arising from such saldl $feathe amount invoiced by the Third Party upesale, in lieu of the amount invoiced by
EyeTech, its Affiliates or sublicensee when selling Product in unfinished form. Otherwise, wheyeTech, its Affiliate or sublicensee st
a Product in finished form to a Third Party thaesmot require a sublicense under the Licensedh®dt further resale (a distributor) (each
such Third Party hereinafter a “Distributor”), thmount to be included in the calculation of Net&eSalhall be the price invoiced from
EyeTech or its Affiliate or sublicensee to the Thitarty, not the amount invoiced by the Third Papgn resale.

If, in addition to or in lieu of a transfer pricaid for quantities of Product supplied, any Digitidr provides consideration to EyeTech, its
Affiliate or sublicensee in connection with any &uat or the Distributor’s rights or relationshiptivEyeTech, its Affiliate or sublicensee in
relation thereto, then such consideration shaihblided in the calculation of Net Sales in theeodlar quarter in which it becomes due to
EyeTech or its Affiliate or sublicensee (as appiie

Notwithstanding the foregoing, amounts receivedepgTech, or its Affiliates or sublicensees, for slade of Products among EyeTech ant
Affiliates or sublicensees for resale shall notriuded in the computation of Net Sales hereunder.

Net Sales shall be determined from books and reaointained in accordance with GAAP, consisteagiglied throughout the organizati
and across all products of the entity whose sdl&saruct are giving rise to Net Sales.

If any Product (i) contains or is sold with a thgeatically active ingredient other than NX1838 (stiterapeutically active ingredient an
“Other Active”), regardless of whether they arearafulated or physically packaged together, origigold with a mechanical or
pharmacological delivery system for the deliverysoth Product (such system, a “Delivery Systemighi{sa Product including and together
with the Other Active or Delivery System, a “Comdiiion Product”) then Net Sales from the Combinafoaduct shall be determined by
multiplying the Net Sales of the Combination Pradias determined without reference to the calonetiof this paragraphby the fraction A/
(A+B), where A is the average sale price of a Pobdfithe same formulation and dosage when nota®lgart of a Combination Product, and
B is the average sale price of the Other ActivBelivery System when sold separately, or, oniyhé value of B cannot be determined, where
A+B is the average sales price of the Combinatimuéct. If A and B can be determined, in no eweiitthe sales price of the Combination
Product be less than the sum of A and B. If bo#nd B, and A+B, cannot be determined, then C/(CsHa)Jl be substituted for A/(A+B) in
such calculation, where C is EyeTech’s cost of gaafdhe Product and D is EyeTesltost of goods for the Other Active or Deliverys&ym
determined in accordance with the method of acéogmtormally employed by EyeTech in computing aifsgjoods sold (which must be in
accordance with GAAP consistently applied througheyeTech)provided, howeverthat the minimum value of such fraction as usetthe
calculation of Net Sales shall be 0.9. All averagees, for purposes of this paragraph, shalldterchined on a country-by-country and
product-by-product basis.

For clarity and without limiting the generality thfe foregoing, the inclusion of PEG (polyethylgyécol) in a Product, because PEG is not a
therapeutically active molecule, will not in itsbé deemed to result in a Combination Product foppses of the foregoing paragraph.”

2. The phrase “with a right to sublicense to its Adfies or (subject to Section 2.4) to any other &®€ra Section 2.1 is deleted and
replaced with the following: “with a right (subjettt Section 2.4) to sublicense to its Affiliatestorany other Person.”

3. In Section 2.5, the phrase “EyeTech Know-How andT&gch Patents” in the nineteenth f1pline is deleted and replaced with the
following: “EyeTech Rights.”

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTEI
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAKRGE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B- OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.




4. The following words are included in the sentenad th the text of Section 2.3, at the end of th@esece: “within the scope of the
license granted EyeTech in Section 2.1.”

5. Section 3.3(b) is deleted in its entirety and regthwith the following:

“ Offset. Notwithstanding the foregoing, on a country-toyhatry and Product-by-Product basis, EyeTech maglicagainst Royalties
otherwise due hereunder on Net Sales of such Pradsach country*] percent in any calendar quartdt]( %) of any royalties it must
pay to any Third Party on sales of such Produstith country in such calendar quarter: (1) pursteaahy licenses necessary to practice
the License; or (2) resulting from any litigatianqluding settlement thereof) under Section 6[dréyided, howeverfor purposes of this
Section 3.3(b) that the applicable royalty ratesdufer calculation of Royalties payable to Gilehdlbnot be reduced to less thiah

percent (*] %) of the royalty rate(s) otherwise applicable parg to Section 3.3(a).”

6. The following is inserted between the first andsetsentences of Section 3.7: “EyeTech shall ptiymgmit any amounts so
withheld to the appropriate governmental authaaitg provide Gilead with written evidence of suckrpant.”

7. Section 4.6 is deleted in its entirety and replawsgt the following:

“ Accrued Rights and Obligations; SurvivalTermination or expiration of this Agreement &y reason shall be without prejudice to
rights which shall have accrued to the benefititbfez Party prior to such termination or expiratiorcluding damages arising from any
breach hereunder. The following provisions of thigeement shall survive any expiration or terniorabf this Agreement: Sections
2.3,3.6,4.2,46,5,6.3,6.4,6.5, 6.9, 6.118d)2, 6.18, 7, and 8. In addition, the followjmgvisions of this Agreement shall survive
expiration of this Agreement to the extent thatltbense granted to EyeTech pursuant to SectiomsdrReffect: Sections 3.4 through :
4.3,4.5,6.2,6.7(c)-(e), 6.8, 6.9, 6.11(b), 6¢),16.11(d), 6.13, 6.16 and 6.17(a).”

8. The last sentence of Section 6.13 is deleted ientsety and changed to read as follows: “Exceptherwise permitted by this
Agreement or required by law, Gilead shall reffaonm granting any right to any Third Party relatimgNX1838, the Licensed
Patents or the Transferred Assets that would, yonaanner, violate the terms of or conflict with tights granted to EyeTech
pursuant to this Agreement.

9. The phrase “distribution,” is inserted immediatphor to “administration” in the second {9) line of Section 7.1(b)(3).

10. Section 8.2, “Notices” is changed to show EyeTedlldress as follows: EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, 306. Seventh Avenue, 18
Floor, New York, New York 10018, Facsimile: 219799251, attn: Chief Executive Officer.

11. The Agreement, as amended by this Third Amendmentains in full force and effect according to &sms.
12. Article 18 shall apply to this Third Amendment &set forth herein in its entirety.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thisdTAimendment to be duly executed and deliveredfdise day and year
first above written.




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ Gregg Altor By: /s/ David Guye

Gregg Alton David Guyel

Vice President and General Coun Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 10.72
GlaxoSmithKline Letterhead

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAKE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

Gilead World Markets Limite:

Queensgate Hou:

South Church Stre:

PO Box 1234G”

Grand Caymal

Cayman Island 19 May 200:

Dear Sirs,

Licensing Agreement dated 26 April 2002 made by anldetween (1) Glaxo Group Limited and (2) Gilead Wadd Markets Limited
(“Agreement”)

We refer to the Agreement and hereby confirm th#t effect from 28 April 2003 Exhibit E of the Agement (Safety Data Exchange
Protocol) (“SDEP”) has been replaced with a reviSBEP the terms of which are attached as Appentisréof.

We would be grateful if you could execute and netiar us the duplicate copy of this letter whicleielosed herewith to acknowledge and
confirm your acceptance of its terms.

Yours faithfully,

/sl Victoria Llewellyn
Glaxo Group Limitec
Victoria Llewellyn
Assistant Secretal

Gilead World Markets Limite:

By: /s/ Gregg H. Altor
Gregg H. Alton, Directo

Date: 5/23/03




EXHIBIT E

SAFETY DATA EXCHANGE PROTOCOL
Safety monitoring of adefovir dipivoxil
between
Global Clinical Safety & Pharmacovigilance, Glaxagrline
And
Global Drug Safety, Gilead Sciences

This Safety Data Exchange Protocol is agreed by Gla Group Limited and Gilead World Markets, Limited in connection with the
Licensing Agreement between them dated as of Apr002 (“Licensing Agreement”)and will govern safety data exchange for adefov
dipivoxil by them or by their Affiliates. “Gilead” shall refer to Gilead World Markets, Limited or its Affiliates performing safety data
exchange under this Protocol; “GlaxoSmithKline” shall refer to Glaxo Group Limited or its Affiliate s performing safety data exchang

under this Protocol. Capitalized terms used but nbotherwise defined herein shall have the meaninggven such terms in the
Licensing Agreement to the extent defined therein.

1. DEFINITIONS (CONSISTENT WITH ICH GUIDELINE E2A)
[l
2. LANGUAGE AND MEANS OF EXCHANGE
']

3. SAFETY DATABASE

[l

4. CORE SAFETY INFORMATION

']

5. EXPEDITED REPORTING

']

6. PERIODIC REPORTING

']

7. REGULATORY ENQUIRIES

']

8. GENERAL MANAGEMENT OF SAFETY

']




9. REVIEW AND REVISIONS

']

10. TERMINATION OF THE SDE PROTOCOL
[l

11. CONTACTS

']

For Gilead
[*]




Exhibit 10.73
GlaxoSmithKline Letterhead

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAKE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

Gilead World Markets Limite:

Queensgate Hou:

South Church Stre:

PO Box 1234G’

Grand Caymal

Cayman Island 9 January 200

Dear Sirs,

Licensing Agreement dated 26 April 2002 made by anbetween (1) Glaxo Group Limited and (2) Gilead Wadd Markets Limited
(“Agreement”)

We refer to the Agreement and to the letter agre¢mheted 19 May 2003 and hereby confirm that witbat from the date hereof, Exhibit E
of the Agreement (Safety Data Exchange Protoc@PEP”) has been replaced with the revised SDERetines of which are attached as
Appendix 1 hereof.

We would be grateful if you could execute and netiarus the duplicate copy of this letter whicleiiclosed herewith to acknowledge and
confirm your acceptance of its terms.

Yours faithfully,

/sl Victoria Llewellyn
Glaxo Group Limitec
Victoria Llewellyn
Assistant Secretal

Gilead World Markets Limite:

By: /s/ Gregg H. Altor
Gregg H. Alton, Directo

Date: 1/27/04




EXHIBIT E
SAFETY DATA EXCHANGE PROTOCOL
Safety monitoring of adefovir dipivoxil
between
Global Clinical Safety & Pharmacovigilance, Glaxagmline
And
Global Drug Safety, Gilead Sciences

This Safety Data Exchange Protocol is agreed by Gla Group Limited and Gilead World Markets, Limited in connection with the
Licensing Agreement between them dated as of Aprl002 (“Licensing Agreement”)and will govern safety data exchange for adefov
dipivoxil by them or by their Affiliates. “Gilead” shall refer to Gilead World Markets, Limited or its Affiliates performing safety data
exchange under this Protocol; “GlaxoSmithKline” shall refer to Glaxo Group Limited or its Affiliate s performing safety data exchang

under this Protocol. Capitalized terms used but nbotherwise defined herein shall have the meaninggven such terms in the
Licensing Agreement to the extent defined therein.

1. DEFINITIONS (CONSISTENT WITH ICH GUIDELINE E2A)
[l

2. LANGUAGE AND MEANS OF EXCHANGE
']

3. SAFETY DATABASE

[l

4. CORE SAFETY INFORMATION

']

5. EXPEDITED REPORTING

']

6. PERIODIC REPORTING

']




']

']
9.
']

10.

']

11.

REGULATORY ENQUIRIES

GENERAL MANAGEMENT OF SAFETY

REVIEW AND REVISIONS

TERMINATION OF THE SDE PROTOCOL

CONTACTS

For GlaxoSmithKline

']

For Gilead

']




SUBSIDIARIES OF GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

Name of Subsidiary

Gilead Sciences Limited

Gilead World Markets, Ltc
Gilead International, Ltc

Gilead International Holdings, Lti
Gilead Sciences Gmb

Gilead Sciences Se

Gilead Sciences S.r

Gilead Sciences, S.I

Gilead Sciences, Ld

Gilead Sciences Lt

Gilead Sciences International L
Gilead Sciences Canada, |i
Gilead Sciences PTY Limite
Gilead Sciences (Nz

Gilead Sciences B.\

Gilead Sciences Hellas EF
Gilead Vintage Park, L.L.C

Country or State of Incorporation

Ireland
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Germany
France

Italy

Spain

Portugal

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Canads
Australia

New Zealanc
Netherland:
Greece
Delaware

Exhibit 21.1




EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-08883,08083, 333-47520, 333-
58893, 333-64628, 333-84713, 333-84719, 333-1028111333-102912) pertaining to the 1991 Stock Ofilam, Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, and the 1995 Non-Employee Directors’ StockiddpPlan of Gilead Sciences, Inc., the NeXstarPlageuticals, Inc. 1993 Incentive
Stock Plan, NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1995diireOption Plan, Vestar, Inc. 1988 Stock OptiocarRITriangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
1996 Stock Incentive Plan, and the Option Agreentated August 5, 2002, between Triangle Pharmaadsitinc. and Daniel G. Welch,
and the Registration Statements (Form S-3 Nos.183871 and 333-111451) of Gilead Sciences, Inciratite related Prospectuses, as
applicable, of our report dated January 23, 200t respect to the consolidated financial statesiantd schedule of Gilead Sciences, Inc.
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for thear ended December 31, 2003.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
March 10, 2004




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, John C. Martin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fof¥Klof Gilead Sciences, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repogsdmt contain any untrue statement of a matex@ildr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedfircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateémend other financial information included iistannual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officersdal are responsible for establishing and maintgimlisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduressore that material information relating to tegistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in which this annual
report is being prepared;

b) intentionally omitted

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis annual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures as of the end of the period coveyélis report based on such evaluation;

d) disclosed in this report any change in @rggstrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have disclosed, based on our most recent avafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors p@rsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakpresses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have disagn role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have indicated in this annual report whetheré were significant changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could signifidgreffect internal controls subsequent to the dditeur most recent evaluation, including any
corrective actions with regard to significant defitcies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 10, 2004 /s/ JoHN C. MARTIN
John C. Martin
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, John F. Milligan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fof¥Klof Gilead Sciences, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repogsdmt contain any untrue statement of a matex@ildr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedfircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateémend other financial information included iistannual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this an
report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officersdal are responsible for establishing and maintgimlisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduressore that material information relating to tegistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in which this annual
report is being prepared;

b) intentionally omitted

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and predentthis annual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures as of the end of the period coveyélis report based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in #ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have disclosed, based on our most recent avafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors p@rsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakpresses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabires management or other employees who have disagn role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have indicated in this quarterly report whetbienot there were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulgngiicantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard tonsigant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 10, 2004 /s/ JoHN F. MILLIGAN
John F. Milligan
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the requirements set forth in Rule1l¥gh) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad (the “Exchange Act”), and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Uaigtates Code (18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted),JoNtartin, the Chief Executive Officer
of Gilead Sciences, Inc. (the “Company”), and JBhMilligan, the Chief Financial Officer of the Cgany, each hereby certifies that, to the
best of his knowledge:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thegubended December 31, 2003, to which this Cediion is attached as
Exhibit 32 (the “Annual Report”), fully complies thithe requirements of Section 13(a) or Sectiom}1&6{ the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Reportl§apresents, in all material respects, the finanmiadition and results of
operations of the Company for the periods coverethe Annual Report.

In Witness Whereof,the undersigned have set their hands hereto & dfath day of March, 2004.
Dated: March 10, 2004

/s/ JoHN C. MARTIN /s/ JoHN F. MILLIGAN
John C. Martir John F. Milligan
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officel

This certification accompanies the FormH®@e which it relates, is not deemed filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission al
not to be incorporated by reference into any filidgsilead Sciences, Inc. under the SecuritiesoAdti933, as amended, or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether madeeefafter the date of the Form 10-K), irrespext¥ any general incorporation
language contained in such filing.




